
 

 
Putting People First Providing for our Communities Preserving our Heritage Promoting the County Protecting our Future  

Herefordshire Council, PO Box 239, HEREFORD, HR1 1ZU 

Main Switchboard (01432) 260000 - www.herefordshire.gov.uk 
$$Agenda0.doc 

 

Chief Executive’s Office 
Chief Executive:  CJ Bull 

To:  All Members of Cabinet: 
 RJ Phillips (Chairman)
 LO Barnett
 AJM Blackshaw
 H Bramer
 JP French
 JA Hyde
 JG Jarvis
 PD Price
 DB Wilcox 

Your Ref:  

Our Ref: 

Please ask for: 

Direct Line/Extension: 

Fax: 

E-mail: 

 

CJB/SAHC 

Mr CJ Bull 

(01432) 260044 

(01432) 340189 

cbull@herefordshire.gov.uk 

3 September 2008 

 
Dear Councillor, 
 
MEETING OF CABINET 
THURSDAY 11 SEPTEMBER 2008 AT 2.00 PM. 
THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, BROCKINGTON, 35 HAFOD ROAD, HEREFORD 

 
AGENDA (08/05) 

 
HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL - NOTICE UNDER REGULATION 15 OF THE LOCAL 

AUTHORITIES (EXECUTIVE ARRANGEMENTS((ACCESS TO INFORMATION) REGULATIONS 
2000 (AS AMENDED) 

 
Notice is hereby given that the following report contains a key decision.  When the decision has 
been made, Members of the relevant Scrutiny Committee will be sent a copy of the decision notice 
and given the opportunity to call-in the decision. 
 
Item 
No 

Title Portfolio 
Responsibility 

Scrutiny 
Committee 

Included in the 
Forward Plan 

Yes/No 

6 Contract award for Minster College 
Building Schools For The Future, 
One School Pathfinder 

Children’s 
Services 

Children’s 
Services 

Yes 

 
 

 

  
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
  
 To receive any apologies for absence.   
  
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
  

. 



 

 
Putting People First Providing for our Communities Preserving our Heritage Promoting the County Protecting our Future  

Herefordshire Council, PO Box 240, HEREFORD, HR1 1ZT 

Main Switchboard (01432) 260000 - www.herefordshire.gov.uk 
$$Agenda0.doc 

 

 To receive any declarations of interest by Members in respect of items on the Agenda. 
 
GUIDANCE ON DECLARING PERSONAL AND PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS AT MEETINGS 
 
The Council’s Members’ Code of Conduct requires Councillors to declare against an Agenda 
item(s) the nature of an interest and whether the interest is personal or prejudicial.  
Councillors have to decide first whether or not they have a personal interest in the matter 
under discussion.  They will then have to decide whether that personal interest is also 
prejudicial. 
  
A personal interest is an interest that affects the Councillor more than most other people in 
the area.  People in the area include those who live, work or have property in the area of the 
Council.  Councillors will also have a personal interest if their partner, relative or a close 
friend, or an organisation that they or the member works for, is affected more than other 
people in the area.  If they do have a personal interest, they must declare it but can stay and 
take part and vote in the meeting.   
 
Whether an interest is prejudicial is a matter of judgement for each Councillor.  What 
Councillors have to do is ask themselves whether a member of the public – if he or she knew 
all the facts – would think that the Councillor’s interest was so important that their decision 
would be affected by it.  If a Councillor has a prejudicial interest then they must declare what 
that interest is and leave the meeting room.   

  
3. MINUTES   
  
 To approve and sign the minutes of the meeting held on 31 July 2008  (Pages 1 - 8) 
  
4. YOUTH JUSTICE PLAN 2008/09   
  
 To endorse the Youth Justice Plan which is prepared on an annual basis on behalf of 

Herefordshire Council and Worcestershire County Council  (Pages 9 - 64) 
  
5. REVIEW OF SERVICE DELIVERY PARTNERSHIP   
  
 To consider the recommendations of the review of the Service Delivery Partnership with 

Amey and approve a preferred approach to future service delivery to enable formal 
negotiations to commence.  (Pages 65 - 184) 

  
6. MINSTER COLLEGE BUILDING SCHOOLS FOR THE FUTURE ONE SCHOOL 

PATHFINDER – AWARD OF CONTRACT   
  
 To receive and approve the recommendation of the Building Schools for the Future Project 

Board to award the design and build contract for the above scheme to Stepnell Limited.  
(Pages 185 - 204) 

  
7. LAND AT FARADAY ROAD, HEREFORD   
  



 

 
Putting People First Providing for our Communities Preserving our Heritage Promoting the County Protecting our Future  

Herefordshire Council, PO Box 240, HEREFORD, HR1 1ZT 

Main Switchboard (01432) 260000 - www.herefordshire.gov.uk 
$$Agenda0.doc 

 

 To seek approval for preparatory steps to be taken to acquire by agreement or make a 
potential compulsory purchase order for land at Faraday Road  (Pages 205 - 214) 

  
8. ESG MASTERPLAN   
  
 To adopt the ESG Masterplan as a basis for the ongoing development of the ESG Area and 

as a material consideration in the determination of relevant planning applications.  (Pages 215 
- 218) 

  
  
 
 
Yours sincerely,  

 
CJ BULL 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 
 
 
Copies to: Chairman of the Council 

Chairman of Strategic Monitoring Committee 
Vice-Chairman of Strategic Monitoring Committee 
Chairmen of Scrutiny Committees 
Group Leaders 
Directors 
Assistant Chief Executive 
 

 





E:\MODERNGOV\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\8\9\AI00014987\PUBLINFcabinetcdbus750.doc28/08/08 

The Public's Rights to Information and Attendance at 
Meetings  
 
 
YOU HAVE A RIGHT TO:- 
 
• Attend all Council, Cabinet, Committee and Sub-Committee meetings 

unless the business to be transacted would disclose ‘confidential’ or 
‘exempt' information. 

• Inspect agenda and public reports at least five clear days before the date of 
the meeting. 

• Inspect minutes of the Council and all Committees and Sub-Committees 
and written statements of decisions taken by the Cabinet or individual 
Cabinet Members for up to six years following a meeting. 

• Inspect background papers used in the preparation of public reports for a 
period of up to four years from the date of the meeting.  (A list of the 
background papers to a report is given at the end of each report).  A 
background paper is a document on which the officer has relied in writing 
the report and which otherwise is not available to the public. 

• Access to a public Register stating the names, addresses and wards of all 
Councillors with details of the membership of the Cabinet, of all 
Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have a reasonable number of copies of agenda and reports (relating to 
items to be considered in public) made available to the public attending 
meetings of the Council, Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have access to a list specifying those powers on which the Council have 
delegated decision making to their officers identifying the officers 
concerned by title. 

• Copy any of the documents mentioned above to which you have a right of 
access, subject to a reasonable charge (20p per sheet subject to a 
maximum of £5.00 per agenda plus a nominal fee of £1.50, for postage).   

• Access to this summary of your rights as members of the public to attend 
meetings of the Council, Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees and to 
inspect and copy documents. 



E:\MODERNGOV\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\8\9\AI00014987\PUBLINFcabinetcdbus750.doc28/08/08 

 

Please Note: 

Agenda and individual reports can be made 
available in large print or on tape.  Please contact 
the officer named below in advance of the meeting 
who will be pleased to deal with your request. 

The Council Chamber where the meeting will be held is accessible for visitors 
in wheelchairs, for whom toilets are also available. 

A public telephone is available in the reception area. 

Public Transport links 

• Public transport access can be gained to Brockington via the service that 
runs approximately every half hour from the ‘Hopper’ bus station at the 
Tesco store in Bewell Street (next to the roundabout junction of Blueschool 
Street / Victoria Street / Edgar Street). 

• The nearest bus stop to Brockington is located in Old Eign Hill near to its 
junction with Hafod Road.  The return journey can be made from the same 
bus stop. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

If you have any questions about this Agenda, how the Council works or would 
like more information or wish to exercise your rights to access the information 
described above, you may do so either by telephoning Mrs Sally Cole on 
01432 260249 or by visiting in person during office hours (8.45 a.m. - 5.00 
p.m. Monday - Thursday and 8.45 a.m. - 4.45 p.m. Friday) at the Council 
Offices, Brockington, 35 Hafod Road, Hereford. 

 

 

Where possible this agenda is printed on paper made from 100% Post-
Consumer waste. De-inked without bleaching and free from optical brightening 
agents (OBA). Awarded the Nordic Swan for low emissions during production 
and the Blue Angel environmental label. 

 



FIREBROCK0.doc 21.05.97 

COUNTY OF HEREFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

 

BROCKINGTON, 35 HAFOD ROAD, HEREFORD. 

 

 

 

FIRE AND EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 

 
 
 

 
In the event of a fire or emergency the alarm bell will ring 
continuously. 

You should vacate the building in an orderly manner through 
the nearest available fire exit. 

You should then proceed to Assembly Point J which is located 
at the southern entrance to the car park.  A check will be 
undertaken to ensure that those recorded as present have 
vacated the building following which further instructions will be 
given. 

Please do not allow any items of clothing, etc. to obstruct any of 
the exits. 

Do not delay your vacation of the building by stopping or 
returning to collect coats or other personal belongings. 





HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL 

MINUTES of the meeting of CABINET held at THE COUNCIL 
CHAMBER, BROCKINGTON, 35 HAFOD ROAD, HEREFORD 
on Thursday, 31 July 2008 at 2.00 p.m. 
  

Present: Councillor RJ Phillips (Chairman) 
   
 Councillors: LO Barnett, AJM Blackshaw, H Bramer, JP French, 

JA Hyde, JG Jarvis, PD Price and DB Wilcox 
 

  
In attendance: Councillors PA Andrews, GFM Dawe, PJ Edwards, TM James, 

RI Matthews and SJ Robertson 
  
  
28. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
  
 There were no apologies for absence. 
  
29. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
  
 There were no declarations of interest made. 
  
30. MINUTES   
  
 RESOLVED: That the Minutes of the meeting held on 10 July 2008 be 

approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 
 
NOTE: 
 
Cabinet and Members in attendance acknowledged the excellent news of the 
agreement for a radiotherapy treatment unit at Herefordshire County Hospital.  The 
Leader thanked staff and everyone involved in the campaign with particularly thanks 
to Cllr Swinburne, as chairman of the Health Scrutiny Committee, for the work she 
had carried out. 

  
31. SWIMMING PROVISION FOR PRIMARY SCHOOLS IN HEREFORD CITY   
  
 The Cabinet Member ICT, Education and Achievement advised that since the 

publication of the LEA Swimming Pool report in the cabinet agenda there had been 
amendments made to the original recommendations to more fully explain the 
proposals.  It was stated that a more evidence based report was required to look 
holistically at the issues, as they did not just relate to the LEA pool, but to the LAA 
agenda, the Olympics, encouraging swimming and providing services in a 
competitive way.  It was also stated that HALO were experts in the provision of 
leisure facilities and there was a need to ensure there was a quality provision, as 
currently there was concern over this.  Additionally an examination was needed of 
what is required and how to address the rising costs to schools. 
 
A Member in attendance stated it was felt the report did not provide the overall cost 
to be incurred to bring the HALO leisure pool up to standard.  The change over 
period in getting the children in and out of the pool would mean the children only had 
20 minutes of actual swimming time.  The cost of transporting the children would 
also be extensive.  It was felt that additional capacity would be required even though 
an independent report stated it would not.  At a site visit it was stated that the public 

AGENDA ITEM 3

1



CABINET THURSDAY, 31 JULY 2008 

 

 

use would out of necessity be limited in the main leisure pool to accommodate the 
schools.  It was felt that the public needed to be consulted if any of the public 
swimming time was to be taken away. 
 
The Leader of the Council stated that the recommendation clearly stated that any 
alternative provision needed to be monitored.  A Member in attendance suggested 
that the minimum amount of maintenance should be carried out at the pool in order 
to prevent further deterioration.  Cabinet was advised that petitions and emails had 
been received in support of the pool, however, a further report was proposed for 
Easter 2009, when a business case could be set out and the monitoring analysed.  
Cabinet was reminded that 38 schools were affected and a number of schools had 
stated they would not use the leisure pool.  Cabinet was urged to reconsider its 
proposal and not to close the LEA pool but to find the money to bring it up to modern 
standards. 
 
The Leader acknowledged that this was an emotive issue and reminded cabinet that 
there were four pools in the county fit for purpose and that in the current climate 
energy costs must be considered.  He added that the school transportation bill was 
rising and that Herefordshire Council was the third lowest funded for children’s 
services in the country.  He added that without government support authorities were 
being forced into difficult positions, but it was essential to ensure that there was 
access to swimming provision for every child.   
 
Cabinet was reminded that the amended recommendations called upon the 
community and HALO to work together to provide a suitable provision to an 
acceptable standard and to work with all clubs and other organisations, however, 
time was needed for officers to put a clear business case forward.  It was stated that 
27 schools had already agreed to the HALO offer.  Cabinet was reminded that HALO 
provided good value for money and discussion would be held with them over service 
provision.  The Chairman of Children’s Services Scrutiny Committee stated that 
HALO provided a fantastic service, but there was concern over the loss of public 
swimming time and that an hour per day for children to swim was not sufficient.  
Therefore, the LEA pool needed to be reopened and that money should be found 
from the reserves to fund it.  Cabinet was reminded of the costs of running a 
swimming pool and that no pool was financially viable.  However, it was important to 
take on the views of the public, as outlined in the report and to ensure that as an 
efficient and viable service as possible was provided.   

RESOLVED 

 THAT: 

(i) the LEA swimming pool not be reopened; 

(ii) alternative provision from September 2008 be offered at 
Hereford Leisure Pool and that the provision by HALO be 
monitored to ensure the needs of schools and other users 
continue to be met; 

(iii) close collaboration and partnership working be 
undertaken between the Council and HALO with schools, 
clubs and other users of the LEA pool to ensure a viable 
and efficient service is provided; and 

(iv) a report be brought back to Cabinet by Easter 2009 at the 
latest outlining the outcome of the process. 

  

2



CABINET THURSDAY, 31 JULY 2008 

 

 

32. VIRTUAL LEARNING ENVIRONMENT   
  
 The Cabinet Member ICT, Education and Achievement presented the report Virtual 

Learning Environment (VLE) and advised that full consultation had been carried out 
with the schools.  Following on from the procurement process a preferred supplier 
had now been selected to provide a VLE for schools across the county.  This 
provision would allow schools to meet the requirements for an online learning 
platform.  Cabinet was informed that the Department for Children, Schools and 
Families (DCSF) had introduced the Harnessing Technology Grant (HTG) scheme, 
which required 75% of funding to be devolved to schools however; it was proposed 
that 98% of grant funding be devolved to the schools, with £25k retained for the 
purchase of central servers. 
 
The Cabinet Member was asked whether the system would be able to interact with 
the proposed Hereford Connects programme and how secure the system would be 
for the children to use.  Cabinet was advised that the VLE would be hosted on its 
own dedicated server with its own firewalls to ensure no outside influence.  It was 
stated that even when a child used the system from home all use of the system 
would be monitored.  There would be full training of staff and pupils to ensure 
everyone was fully aware of the system and it would be fully interactive with all other 
Council systems. 

RESOLVED That the strategy for providing a Virtual Learning Environment 
(VLE) for schools be agreed and the contract with the preferred 
supplier be approved for signature. 

  
33. INTEGRATED PERFORMANCE AND FINANCE REPORT   
  
 The Cabinet Member Corporate, Customer Services and Human Resources 

presented the Integrated Performance and Finance Report (IPFR), which outlines 
performance for the whole operating year 2007/08 against the Annual Operating 
Plan 2007/08, Best Value Performance Indicators and the Direction of Travel 
indicators.  Cabinet was informed that the Council’s performance was still improving, 
although a significant number of targets had not been reached and the rate of overall 
improvement was slowing.  More consideration needs to be given in future to setting 
appropriate, challenging targets.  However, as many targets were agreed as part of 
the Local Area Agreement (LAA) the Local Public Service Agreement (LPSA) or the 
Herefordshire Community Strategy (HCS) more work still needed to be done to 
deliver to the timescales outlined and ensure that under performance was rectified.  
Finally, future IPFR’s would be in a revised format to accommodate the national 
indicator set and other desirable changes. 
 
A Member in attendance raised a question on climate change and the continued lack 
of baseline figures.  Cabinet was advised that this was now one of the new national 
indicators and some work was still needed to establish what the government was 
setting as the baseline for Herefordshire. 
 
Note: Subsequent to the meeting it was established that the Council had now 

received DEFRA's baseline figure for carbon emissions in Herefordshire and 
progress against this would be monitored from now onwards 

RESOLVED: 

 THAT: 

(i) performance in 2007/08 be noted; and 

3



CABINET THURSDAY, 31 JULY 2008 

 

 

(ii) directors ensure that the issues are addressed within 
their respective areas, including the updating of service 
improvement plans. 

  
34. COMPREHENSIVE AREA ASSESSMENT PREPARATION PROGRAMME 

PROGRESS REPORT   
  
 The Cabinet Member Corporate, Customer Services and Human Resources 

presented the Comprehensive Area Assessment Preparation Programme Progress 
Report.  Cabinet was advised that further guidance had recently been made 
available on the Corporate Area Assessment (CAA) and that it was important that all 
Members, along with partner organisations, attend a forthcoming training event on 8 
October.  Cabinet noted that overall Herefordshire was getting on with preparations, 
but not as quickly as had been anticipated.  As outlined in paragraph three of the 
report there were a number of items marked amber.  It was added that there was a 
lot for the Council and its partner organisations to do in order to complete the joint 
preparation plan and that there were issues to consider around capacity and 
communications remained the key issues.   

RESOLVED: 

 THAT: 

(i) progress made in delivering the Comprehensive Area 
Assessment Preparation Programme over the first six 
months of 2008 be noted; and 

(ii) Cabinet agree the need for effective remedial action for 
the items marked amber listed in paragraph three of the 
report. 

  
35. HEREFORDSHIRE CONNECTS OPTION APPRAISAL   
  
 The Cabinet Member ICT, Education and Achievement presented the report on 

Herefordshire Connects Option Appraisal and referred Cabinet to page 158 of the 
report, the summary of the recommendations.  He advised that the Herefordshire 
Connects Programme had been paused for a while but it was now time to take it 
forward on the recommendations for the choice of software.  Cabinet noted that at a 
recent meeting with the ICT department many Members did not fully understand 
what the Herefordshire Connects programme was trying to achieve.  It was proposed 
therefore, that a series of short messages outlining what the programme was about 
would be made available to Members shortly. 
 
The Deputy Chief Executive informed Cabinet that a review of the business case had 
been undertaken by the Joint Management Team and Deloitte.  The priority now was 
to address the high number of systems at risk of failure.  Should the Herefordshire 
Connects Programme not be progressed Herefordshire Council could be put in a 
serious position.  He added that staff had looked at the rank system and what could 
be upgraded and looked carefully at the costs and which were the most expensive 
applications on the market place.  He stated that the most expensive system was the 
one for adult social care and that was already in place and working.  Cabinet was 
advised by the Head of Financial Services that in the budget for 2008/09 costs of 
£750k had been built in. 
 
Cabinet referred to the savings of £5.5m that would be made and were asked if 
further technical staff would be required to see the system fully in place.  The Deputy 

4



CABINET THURSDAY, 31 JULY 2008 

 

 

Chief Executive advised that a significant number of the staff required were already 
in place, however there might be a requirement for an additional six members of staff 
with the preference to have the staff in house rather than consultants.  Cabinet was 
advised that the costings outlined were at worse case and the savings were at risk 
averse, however the problem was the risk regarding the old systems.  The Leader 
praised the staff in ICT as being extremely capable and paid tribute to them as they 
had been exposed to some loose comments in the past. 

RESOLVED 

 THAT: 

(a) Herefordshire Connects be re-focused on implementing the 
three updated business cases and further developing these 
business cases jointly with the PCT as Herefordshire Public 
Services partners, as defined in section 5.3 of the report 
attached; 

(b) Cabinet note the critical risks to service continuity of key 
ICT system failures.  This is due to the current large number 
of inadequately connected systems requiring upgrades that 
would not achieve the Council’s ambitions for improving 
customer services and satisfaction, provide poor value for 
money or that are no longer supported by providers due to 
their age; 

(c) the Council’s ICT system application portfolio be 
rationalised to achieve the minimum number of integrated 
applications by Joint Management Team and Deloitte 
conducting a two month evaluation of: 

(i) the four market proven system providers for an 
integrated back office system and associated 
integration tools to enable integration between 
Council systems and where jointly approved, Council 
and PCT systems, as stated in Section 6.4 of the report 
attached; 

(ii) the two market proven system providers for an 
integrated environment and planning system, as 
stated in Section 6.4 of the report attached; 

(iii) market proven system providers for an integrated 
performance management system, as stated in 
Section 6.4 of the report attached; 

  (d) a report on the recommendations arising from (c) above be 
produced for Cabinet in October 2008; 

  (e) the Customer Relationship Management System Upgrade 
should proceed to secure the significant increase in system 
efficiency and customer service standards.  Deloitte advise 
this upgrade is already delivering these for other Council 
users of this system; 

  (f) the current Finance System Upgrade should proceed; 
which will address imminent service continuity risks; and 

5



CABINET THURSDAY, 31 JULY 2008 

 

 

  (g) the Joint Management Team implement Connects 
Programme Management arrangements based on Section 8 
of the report attached to provide assurance to the Council, 
and where relevant PCT, of compliance with the applicable 
Procurement Policies and best practice in the Project 
Management risks, costs and the realisation of benefits for 
customers and staff. 

  
36. WASTE COLLECTION CONTRACT   
  
 The Cabinet Member Environment and Strategic Housing presented the Waste 

Collection Contract report.  He stated he believed the proposals outlined in the report 
were inline with the wishes of the majority of residents in the county.  With regard to 
the collection of waste he stated that the authority would continue with a weekly 
waste collection, with recycling carried out on a bi-weekly basis and wheeled bins 
would be provided.  He added that Herefordshire would also be recycling glass 
products as part of the kerbside collection, and for that reason it was no longer safe 
to use plastic bags.  By not using plastic bags there would be a saving of 2.5m bags 
every year.  With this provision it was felt that the Council could now discuss with the 
supermarkets how to reduce the use of plastic bags.  For those members of the 
community who would be unable to use wheeled bins then plastic bags would 
continue. 
 
It was emphasised that any resident who might have difficulty in putting out their 
rubbish help would be provided, as it was important to ensure that everyone could 
participate in the scheme.  It was not proposed to impose any draconian measures 
on residents, however it should be noted that if the government recycling targets 
were not met then heavy penalties could be imposed upon the authority. 
 
The Cabinet Member referred Cabinet to paragraph 21 of the report and the 
consideration of other tasks that could be undertaken by contractor staff.  He 
commended officers for the ideas they had put forward at a recent ideas session the 
director had held, in particular the delivery and collection of library books to 
vulnerable residents.  Cabinet was also referred to paragraph 19 of the report and 
the discussions held with EnviroAbility who manage the Rebox scheme.  It was 
stated the EnviroAbility were delighted to be asked to pilot the scheme, which if 
successful would be introduced across the county.  It was added that the public 
would be encouraged to respond with ideas to improve the scheme.  Cabinet was 
advised that currently recycling was at 74% and it was hoped it would reach 88%.  
The Cabinet Member stated he was confident that Herefordshire now had the right 
policy to take forward on recycling.   
 
Both Cabinet Members and Members in attendance welcomed the 
recommendations, the creative ideas such as the collection of library books and the 
reduction in the use of plastic bags.  It was felt that it was important to ensure the 
recycling facilities were operating fully before offering the kerbside collection across 
the county, as currently residents were sorting their waste and this would not be 
required under the new system.  The Cabinet Member thanked officers for their work 
and the Hereford Times for its support. 

RESOLVED 

 THAT: 

  (a) a weekly refuse collection service is provided at the 
kerbside for all households in the county and that plastic 

6



CABINET THURSDAY, 31 JULY 2008 

 

 

sacks be used for this purpose; 

  (b) the kerbside recycling service be extended to a near 100% 
of the county’s homes as is practicable from the current 
level of c.75%; 

  (c) the recycling service collect mixed materials from the 
kerbside including glass, paper, cardboard, plastic and 
metal cans and that the collections be made fortnightly.  
The Council to provide a rigid container (a wheeled bin) 
for the purposes of collecting and presenting the 
recyclables.  Householders may choose an appropriate 
sized bin from a number offered; 

  (d) both services (waste and recycling) offer to anyone who 
has difficulty presenting waste and recycling at the 
kerbside (whether through old age, disability or other 
reasonable cause) a collection from any agreed part of 
their property; and  

  (e) officers, through the procurement process, explore all 
opportunities to add value to the new waste and recycling 
collection contract especially provision of additional 
services by contractor staff whilst undertaking their main 
duties.  For example, the collection and delivery of library 
books from vulnerable people, reporting road defects, 
carrying out automated road condition surveys, the 
delivery and collection of community equipment such as 
walking frames and other aids and any other possibilities 
that become apparent. 

  
37. TREASURY MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES 2007/08   
  
 The Cabinet Member Resources presented the Treasury Management Activities 

2007/08 report and the outturn of Prudential Indicators for the year 2007/08.  He 
stated that it covered the Council’s performance for 2007/08 through cash flow, 
banking and money markets and borrowing transactions; adding that a significant 
contribution had been made to the Council through investment.  During the year the 
average amount in daily investments was £53.7m and £3.27m was received through 
investment income.  The overall performance in the year allowed income from 
investments to exceed the budget by £804k, which helped produce an overall 
underspend.  He reminded Cabinet that it was not only incumbent upon the Council 
to spend tax payers’ money wisely, but to invest it wisely also.  The savings made 
significantly contributed to the improvement of the waste and recycling arrangements 
for the county and congratulated the Treasury Management Team on their 
performance. 
 
The Head of Financial Services drew Cabinet’s attention to paragraph 3.5 of the 
report regarding the externally managed investments.  He stated this was now 
managed by the treasury team with some of the monies going out to the schools.  A 
Member in attendance raised concern over the monies held on behalf of the schools 
and felt this should be held separately as the Council only managed the funds on 
behalf of the schools.  Cabinet was informed that the funds were accounted for 
separately even though they were held jointly.  A question was raised on the nearly 
£106m in long term borrowing and whether the maximum the authority could borrow 
was £169m.  Cabinet was advised this was correct as advised at the recent July 
Council meeting. 

7



CABINET THURSDAY, 31 JULY 2008 

 

 

  
The meeting ended at 3.50 p.m. CHAIRMAN 
 

8



 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from Sharon Menghini, Director of 

Children’s Services, on (01432) 260039 
  

YouthJusticePlan20.doc  

YOUTH JUSTICE PLAN 2008/09 

PORTFOLIO RESPONSIBILITY: CORPORATE STRATEGY AND FINANCE 

CABINET 11 SEPTEMBER 2008 

  

Wards Affected 

County-wide  

Purpose 

The Youth Justice Plan is prepared on an annual basis on behalf of Herefordshire Council 
and Worcestershire County Council.  The basic preparation of the plan is undertaken by the 
Youth Offending Service (YOS) according to deadlines and strict guidance from the Youth 
Justice Board (YJB). 

Background 

The YJB, in partnership with Youth Offending Services, has developed a new outcome-
focused youth justice planning framework for England and Wales this year. The process is 
based upon self-assessment, improvement planning and then validated by the YJB through 
risk-led support.  The quality and validation of our plan will improve future inspection 
processes such as APA and CAA and will inform the decision to release the Youth 
Offending Service grant to us. 

As this is the first cycle of the new process the YOS Head of Service has led much of the work on 
behalf of both Herefordshire and Worcestershire. 

Key Decision  

This is not a Key Decision.  

Recommendation 

THAT the Youth Justice Plan as prepared be endorsed and that it be recommended 

within the Policy Framework that the Plan be approved by Council at its meeting on 

31 October 2008. 

Financial Implications 

These are covered by the existing budgetary contribution. 

AGENDA ITEM 4

9



Risk Management 

No major risks identified. 

Alternative Options 

There are no alternative options. 

Consultees 

As detailed in the Youth Justice Plan 

Appendices 

Appendix 1 – Youth Justice Plan 2008-9 

Background Papers 

None identified. 

10



W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 –
  
V
.4
 

1

 
    

 
Y
o
u
th
 J
u
s
ti
c
e
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 T
o
o
l 
2
0
0
8
/0
9
 -
 E
n
g
la
n
d
 

 

W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 

 

D
a
te
 C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

J
u
ly
 2
0
0
8
 

 
(V
e
rs
io
n
 4
) 

     

11



W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 –
  
V
.4
 

2

 

S
E
C
T
IO
N
 A
 –
 T
H
E
 N
A
T
IO
N
A
L
 A
N
D
 L
O
C
A
L
 C
O
N
T
E
X
T
 O
F
 Y
O
U
T
H
 J
U
S
T
IC
E
 

A
1
 W
h
a
t 
a
re
 t
h
e
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 a
im
s
 a
n
d
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 o
f 
th
e
 y
o
u
th
 j
u
s
ti
c
e
 s
y
s
te
m
 i
n
 E
n
g
la
n
d
 a
n
d
 W
a
le
s
?
 

T
h
e
 2
0
0
8
-1
1
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 a
im
s
 a
re
 t
o
: 

•
 
P
re
v
e
n
t 
o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 

•
 
R
e
d
u
c
e
 r
e
o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 

•
 
E
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
 s
a
fe
 a
n
d
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 
c
u
s
to
d
y
 

•
 
In
c
re
a
s
e
 v
ic
ti
m
 a
n
d
 p
u
b
lic
 c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
. 

A
2
 W
h
a
t 
a
re
 t
h
e
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 a
im
s
 a
n
d
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 o
f 
th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
y
o
u
th
 j
u
s
ti
c
e
 s
y
s
te
m
 (
th
e
 s
to
ry
 o
f 
p
la
c
e
)?
 

 L
o
c
a
l 
P
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

 T
h
e
 Y
o
u
th
 O
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 c
o
m
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
h
ig
h
 q
u
a
lit
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
in
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
it
h
 o
th
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
, 
w
it
h
 

th
e
 a
im
 o
f 
p
re
v
e
n
ti
n
g
 o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 a
n
d
 r
e
-o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 b
y
 c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
. 
In
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 t
h
is
 t
h
e
 Y
O
S
 h
a
s
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 a
 r
is
k
 l
e
d
 

c
a
s
e
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
, 
w
h
ic
h
 m
a
p
s
 i
n
te
n
s
it
y
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
te
n
t 
o
f 
in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 t
o
 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 l
e
v
e
ls
 o
f 
ri
s
k
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 t
h
re
e
 a
re
a
s
 o
f 
re
-o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
, 

h
a
rm
 t
o
 s
e
lf
 a
n
d
 h
a
rm
 t
o
 o
th
e
rs
. 
In
 a
d
d
it
io
n
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
re
c
o
g
n
is
e
s
 t
h
e
 r
o
le
 i
t 
h
a
s
 i
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
in
g
 p
u
b
lic
 c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 y
o
u
th
 j
u
s
ti
c
e
 

s
y
s
te
m
 a
n
d
 i
n
c
re
a
s
in
g
 v
ic
ti
m
 s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
ir
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 r
e
s
to
ra
ti
v
e
 a
n
d
 r
e
p
a
ra
ti
v
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
. 
T
h
is
 i
s
 r
e
fl
e
c
te
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
’s
 

fi
v
e
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
; 

 

•
 
T
h
e
 p
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 o
f 
o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 b
y
 c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

•
 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 a
n
d
 m
a
in
ta
in
in
g
 a
n
d
 e
m
p
o
w
e
re
d
 a
n
d
 m
o
ti
v
a
te
d
 w
o
rk
fo
rc
e
 

•
 
Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 f
o
r 
v
ic
ti
m
s
 

•
 
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
n
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 f
iv
e
 “
E
v
e
ry
 C
h
ild
 M
a
tt
e
rs
” 
o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 

•
 
In
c
re
a
s
in
g
 a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 o
f 
a
n
d
 c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 y
o
u
th
 j
u
s
ti
c
e
 s
y
s
te
m
 

 T
h
e
 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 
b
e
lie
v
e
s
 
th
a
t 
th
e
 
c
o
rn
e
rs
to
n
e
 
to
 
d
e
liv
e
ri
n
g
 
q
u
a
lit
y
 
a
n
d
 t
a
rg
e
te
d
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
ri
s
k
 i
s
 a
c
c
u
ra
te
 a
n
d
 

c
o
m
p
re
h
e
n
s
iv
e
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t,
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 C
A
F
 (
w
h
e
re
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
),
 O
n
s
e
t 
a
n
d
 A
s
s
e
t 
to
o
ls
. 
A
u
d
it
 w
o
rk
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 o
n
 A
s
s
e
ts
 i
n
 

e
a
rl
y
 2
0
0
8
, 
re
v
e
a
le
d
 i
n
c
o
n
s
is
te
n
c
ie
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
 A
n
 A
s
s
e
t 
Q
u
a
lit
y
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
P
la
n
 i
s
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 f
o
r 

2
0
0
8
/0
9
. 

    

12



W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 –
  
V
.4
 

3

 K
e
y
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 a
re
a
s
 f
o
r 
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 
2
0
0
8
/0
9
 w
ill
 b
e
; 

 

•
 
P
re
v
e
n
ti
n
g
 O
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 -
 r
e
d
u
c
in
g
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
fi
rs
t 
ti
m
e
 e
n
tr
a
n
ts
 t
o
 t
h
e
 y
o
u
th
 j
u
s
ti
c
e
 s
y
s
te
m
 (
N
I 
1
1
1
) 

•
 
R
e
d
u
c
in
g
 R
e
-o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 (
N
I 
1
9
) 
a
n
d
 

•
 
Im
p
ro
v
in
g
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 T
ra
in
in
g
 a
n
d
 E
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
(N
I 
4
5
) 

 K
e
y
 a
re
a
s
 f
o
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 
2
0
0
8
/0
9
 w
ill
 b
e
: 

 

•
 
Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
q
u
a
lit
y
 

•
 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 u
s
e
r 
a
n
d
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
r 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 V
ie
w
p
o
in
t 
w
e
b
 b
a
s
e
d
 i
n
te
ra
c
ti
v
e
 u
s
e
r 

fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 p
ro
g
ra
m
 

•
 
Im
p
le
m
e
n
ti
n
g
 
a
 
S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 
A
c
ti
o
n
 
P
la
n
 
w
h
ic
h
 
a
d
d
re
s
s
e
s
 
th
e
 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 
o
u
tl
in
e
d
 
in
 
a
n
 
in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 
a
u
d
it
 

c
o
n
d
u
c
te
d
 i
n
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
8
 

•
 
Q
u
a
lit
y
 a
s
s
u
ri
n
g
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 

•
 
W
o
rk
in
g
 i
n
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
it
h
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 C
o
n
n
e
x
io
n
s
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 T
a
rg
e
te
d
 Y
o
u
th
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
tr
a
te
g
ie
s
 i
n
 b
o
th
 c
o
u
n
ti
e
s
 

•
 
U
n
d
e
rt
a
k
in
g
 f
e
a
s
ib
ili
ty
 o
f 
im
p
le
m
e
n
ti
n
g
 j
o
in
t 
o
ff
e
n
d
e
r 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r 
m
e
d
iu
m
 r
is
k
 o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 r
e
s
o
lu
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fi
rs
t 
ti
m
e
 e
n
tr
a
n
ts
 

  P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 O
v
e
rv
ie
w
 

 2
0
0
7
/0
8
 h
a
s
 s
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 W

o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 Y
o
u
th
 O
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 s
te
a
d
ily
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
. 
In
 

2
0
0
7
/8
 W

o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 Y
o
u
th
 O
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 a
n
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 r
a
ti
n
g
 o
f 
L
e
v
e
l 
4
 (
o
n
 a
 5
 l
e
v
e
l 
ra
ti
n
g
 

s
c
a
le
).
 T
h
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 d
e
g
re
e
 t
o
 w
h
ic
h
 t
h
e
 Y
O
S
 i
s
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 i
n
 4
 a
re
a
s
; 
(i
) 
P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

a
g
a
in
s
t 
Y
J
B
 K
e
y
 P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 M
e
a
s
u
re
s
, 
(i
i)
 C
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 k
e
y
 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
, 
(i
ii)
 E
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 P
ra
c
ti
c
e
 a
n
d
 Q
u
a
lit
y
 A
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 (
E
P
Q
A
) 

a
u
d
it
 s
c
o
re
s
 a
n
d
 (
iv
) 
le
v
e
ls
 o
f 
re
-o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
. 

 D
u
ri
n
g
 2
0
0
7
/0
8
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 w
e
re
 s
e
c
u
re
d
 i
n
 3
 o
f 
th
e
s
e
 4
 a
re
a
s
. 
T
h
e
re
 w
a
s
 n
o
 m
e
a
s
u
re
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
re
-o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 
2
0
0
7
/0
8
 a
n
d
 

th
e
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 f
o
r 
0
6
/0
7
 w
e
re
 u
s
e
d
 t
o
 a
s
s
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 Y
O
S
 f
o
r 
0
7
/0
8
. 
T
h
e
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
re
 o
u
tl
in
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 t
a
b
le
: 

     

13



W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 –
  
V
.4
 

4

 

2
0
0
5
/0
6
 

2
0
0
6
/0
7
 

2
0
0
7
/0
8
 

 

L
e
v
e
l 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

S
c
o
re
 

L
e
v
e
l 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

S
c
o
re
 

L
e
v
e
l 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

S
c
o
re
 

O
v
e
ra
ll
 P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

L
e
v
e
l 
3
 

6
3
.1
%
 

L
e
v
e
l 
3
 

6
8
.4
%
 

L
e
v
e
l 
4
 

7
6
.6
%
 

K
P
I 
P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

L
e
v
e
l 
3
 

7
6
.7
%
 

L
e
v
e
l 
3
 

7
7
.8
%
 

L
e
v
e
l 
5
 

9
1
.7
%
 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

L
e
v
e
l 
4
 

6
6
.7
%
 

L
e
v
e
l 
4
  

7
9
.4
%
 

L
e
v
e
l 
5
 

9
0
.5
%
 

E
P
Q
A
 P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

L
e
v
e
l 
1
  

5
9
.7
%
 

L
e
v
e
l 
1
 

5
5
.7
%
 

L
e
v
e
l 
2
 

6
7
.7
%
 

R
e
-O
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

L
e
v
e
l 
3
 

6
0
.0
%
 

L
e
v
e
l 
3
 

6
6
.7
%
 

L
e
v
e
l 
3
 

6
6
.7
%
 

  In
 t
e
rm
s
 o
f 
o
v
e
ra
ll 
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
, 
K
P
I 
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
, 
N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 c
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 r
e
-o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 Y
O
S
 i
s
 p
e
rf
o
rm
in
g
 

h
ig
h
e
r 
th
a
n
 t
h
e
 f
a
m
ily
 g
ro
u
p
 (
s
ta
ti
s
ti
c
a
l 
n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
r)
, 
re
g
io
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
v
e
ra
g
e
s
. 

 

Y
o
u
th
 O
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 2
0
0
7
/0
8

0
1
0
2
0
3
0
4
0
5
0
6
0
7
0
8
0
9
0

1
0
0

O
ve

ra
ll 
P
er
fo
rm

an
ce

K
PI

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

N
at
io
na

l S
ta
nd

ar
ds

E
PQ

A R
e-

O
ffe

nd
in
g

Percentage Score

W
 &
 H
 Y
O
S

F
a
m
ily
 G
ro
u
p

W
e
s
t 
M
id
la
n
d
s
 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l

 
 In
 t
e
rm
s
 o
f 
in
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 f
u
ll 
ti
m
e
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
tr
a
in
in
g
 a
n
d
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t,
 a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
, 
7
8
.7
%
 i
n
 

2
0
0
7
/0
8
 c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 t
o
 6
6
.4
%
 i
n
 2
0
0
6
/0
7
, 
fa
lls
 s
h
o
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 p
re
v
io
u
s
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
ta
rg
e
t 
o
f 
9
0
%
. 
R
e
-o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 h
a
s
 d
e
c
lin
e
d
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 

th
e
 2
0
0
2
 c
o
h
o
rt
, 
3
8
%
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 2
0
0
5
 c
o
h
o
rt
, 
4
6
%
. 
T
h
e
s
e
 t
w
o
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 a
re
a
s
 a
re
 k
e
y
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 f
o
r 
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 2
0
0
8
/0
9
. 

  

14



W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 –
  
V
.4
 

5

 In
 2
0
0
8
/0
9
 t
h
e
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 f
o
r 
Y
o
u
th
 O
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
lly
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 t
o
 a
 s
m
a
lle
r 
s
e
t 
o
f 
s
ix
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 a
re
a
s
 

w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
in
d
ic
a
to
r 
s
e
t 
fo
r 
lo
c
a
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 (
1
9
8
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
).
 T
h
e
s
e
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 a
re
:-
 

•
 
N
I 
1
9
 –
 P
ro
v
e
n
 r
a
te
 o
f 
re
-o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 b
y
 y
o
u
n
g
 o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
 

•
 
N
I 
4
3
 –
 Y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 t
h
e
 y
o
u
th
 j
u
s
ti
c
e
 s
y
s
te
m
 r
e
c
e
iv
in
g
 a
 c
o
n
v
ic
ti
o
n
 i
n
 c
o
u
rt
 w
h
o
 a
re
 s
e
n
te
n
c
e
d
 t
o
 c
u
s
to
d
y
 

•
 
N
I 
4
4
 –
 E
th
n
ic
 c
o
m
p
o
s
it
io
n
 o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
 o
n
 y
o
u
th
 j
u
s
ti
c
e
 s
y
s
te
m
 d
is
p
o
s
a
ls
 

•
 
N
I 
4
5
 –
 Y
o
u
th
 o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 s
u
it
a
b
le
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
tr
a
in
in
g
 a
n
d
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 

•
 
N
I 
4
6
 –
 Y
o
u
n
g
 o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 s
u
it
a
b
le
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 

•
 
N
I 
1
1
1
 –
 F
ir
s
t 
ti
m
e
 e
n
tr
a
n
ts
 t
o
 t
h
e
 y
o
u
th
 j
u
s
ti
c
e
 s
y
s
te
m
 

 L
o
c
a
l 
P
la
n
n
in
g
 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

 T
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
la
n
n
in
g
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
in
 w
h
ic
h
 t
h
e
 Y
O
S
 o
p
e
ra
te
s
 i
s
 c
o
m
p
le
x
 a
n
d
 m
u
lt
i-
la
y
e
re
d
 g
iv
e
n
 t
h
e
 f
a
c
t 
it
 s
p
a
n
s
 t
w
o
 t
o
p
 t
ie
r 
L
o
c
a
l 
A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 

A
re
a
s
, 
H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 W

o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
, 
6
 D
is
tr
ic
t 
le
v
e
l 
L
o
c
a
l 
A
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 i
n
 t
e
rm
s
 o
f 
th
e
 L
o
c
a
l 
C
ri
m
in
a
l 
J
u
s
ti
c
e
 B
o
a
rd
 a
n
d
 a
s
 l
e
a
d
 

a
g
e
n
c
y
 f
o
r 
th
e
 I
n
te
n
s
iv
e
 S
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 a
n
d
 S
u
rv
e
ill
a
n
c
e
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 h
a
s
 W

e
s
t 
M
e
rc
ia
 w
id
e
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
. 
 

 T
h
e
re
 a
re
 7
4
,7
4
8
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
g
e
d
 1
0
 t
o
 1
7
 l
iv
in
g
 i
n
 W

o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
. 
In
 2
0
0
7
/0
8
 t
h
e
re
 w
e
re
 1
8
8
0
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
 c
o
m
m
it
ti
n
g
 o
ff
e
n
c
e
s
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ti
n
g
 2
.5
%
 o
f 
th
e
 y
o
u
th
 p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
, 
th
u
s
 9
7
.5
%
 o
f 
c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
c
ro
s
s
 W

o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 

H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 d
o
 n
o
t 
o
ff
e
n
d
. 
A
p
p
ro
x
im
a
te
ly
 4
.4
5
%
 o
f 
th
e
 y
o
u
th
 p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 a
re
 f
ro
m
 B
M
E
 g
ro
u
p
s
 (
m
id
 2
0
0
5
 e
s
ti
m
a
te
) 
a
n
d
 a
p
p
ro
x
im
a
te
ly
 

4
.1
%
 o
f 
th
e
 o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 a
re
 f
ro
m
 B
M
E
 g
ro
u
p
s
. 

 T
h
e
 Y
O
S
 l
in
k
s
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
s
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 s
tr
u
c
tu
re
s
 a
n
d
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 T
ru
s
t 
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
n
 

th
e
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 A
d
v
is
o
ry
 B
o
d
y
 i
n
 W

o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 T
ru
s
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
G
ro
u
p
 i
n
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
. 
In
 a
d
d
it
io
n
 t
h
e
 Y
O
S
 

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 C
h
a
ir
 o
f 
th
e
 P
o
s
it
iv
e
 C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 O
u
tc
o
m
e
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 G
ro
u
p
 i
n
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
. 
R
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
n
 t
h
e
s
e
 b
o
d
ie
s
 e
n
s
u
re
s
 

th
a
t 
w
o
rk
 o
f 
th
e
 Y
O
S
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
s
 t
h
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
s
 P
la
n
s
 (
C
Y
P
P
) 
a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 P
la
n
s
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
 

a
d
d
re
s
s
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 o
ff
e
n
d
 a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 t
h
o
s
e
 a
t 
ri
s
k
 o
f 
o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
. 

 T
h
e
 w
o
rk
 o
f 
th
e
 Y
O
S
 d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
s
 8
 o
f 
th
e
 1
0
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 W

o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 C
Y
P
P
 a
n
d
 9
 o
f 
th
e
 1
8
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 P
la
n
. 
 

 T
h
e
 
Y
O
S
 
h
a
s
 
tw
o
 
ta
rg
e
ts
 
in
 
th
e
 
2
0
0
6
/0
9
 
L
o
c
a
l 
A
re
a
 
A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
(L
A
A
) 
in
 
W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
, 
re
-o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 
a
n
d
 
th
e
 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 

o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
 i
n
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
tr
a
in
in
g
 a
n
d
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t,
 a
n
d
 o
n
e
 t
a
rg
e
t,
 r
e
-o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
, 
in
 t
h
e
 2
0
0
6
/0
9
 L
A
A
 i
n
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
. 
In
 t
e
rm
s
 o
f 
th
e
 2
0
0
8
 

L
A
A
 
n
o
n
e
 
o
f 
th
e
 
6
 
Y
O
S
 
in
d
ic
a
to
rs
 
a
re
 
in
c
lu
d
e
d
 
in
 
th
e
 
W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 
L
A
A
, 
h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
th
e
 
Y
O
S
 
re
c
o
g
n
is
e
s
 
it
 
h
a
s
 
a
 
p
a
rt
 
to
 
p
la
y
 
in
 
th
e
 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
N
I 
1
1
0
, 
p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 p
o
s
it
iv
e
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 N
I 
1
1
7
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
g
e
d
 1
6
 t
o
1
9
 w
h
o
 a
re
 n
o
t 
in
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
o
r 

tr
a
in
in
g
, 
w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
. 
T
h
e
 p
ro
v
e
n
 r
a
te
 o
f 
re
-o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
, 
N
I 
1
9
 i
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 2
0
0
8
 L
A
A
. 

  

15



W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 –
  
V
.4
 

6

 T
h
e
 Y
O
S
 i
s
 a
 m
e
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 W

e
s
t 
M
e
rc
ia
 L
o
c
a
l 
C
ri
m
in
a
l 
J
u
s
ti
c
e
 B
o
a
rd
 w
h
ic
h
 h
a
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 s
e
v
e
n
 k
e
y
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 f
o
r 
2
0
0
8
/0
9
, 
th
e
s
e
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 

e
n
h
a
n
c
in
g
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 a
n
d
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 w
h
ic
h
 i
n
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
s
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
C
J
S
S
S
 i
n
 t
h
e
 Y
o
u
th
 C
o
u
rt
s
, 
im
p
ro
v
in
g
 p
u
b
lic
 c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
, 

fo
c
u
s
in
g
 o
n
 v
ic
ti
m
s
 a
n
d
 w
it
n
e
s
s
e
s
, 
s
tr
e
n
g
th
e
n
in
g
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
o
rk
in
g
 a
n
d
 r
e
d
u
c
in
g
 r
e
-o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
. 

 T
h
e
 
Y
O
S
 
is
 
a
 
m
e
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 
H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 
S
a
fe
ty
 
a
n
d
 
D
ru
g
s
 
P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 
B
o
a
rd
, 
th
e
 
W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 
S
a
fe
r 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 B
o
a
rd
, 
th
e
 S
o
u
th
 W

o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
a
fe
ty
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
, 
th
e
 N
o
rt
h
 W

o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 A
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 G
ro
u
p
 a
n
d
 

th
e
 t
h
re
e
 d
is
tr
ic
t 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
a
fe
ty
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 i
n
 N
o
rt
h
 W

o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
. 
 

 Y
O
S
 P
o
s
it
io
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 L
o
c
a
l 
A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 a
n
d
 Y
O
S
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 A
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 

 T
h
e
 Y
O
S
 i
s
 h
o
s
te
d
 b
y
 W

o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 C
o
u
n
ty
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 l
in
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 
th
e
 H
e
a
d
 o
f 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 H
e
a
d
 o
f 
In
te
g
ra
te
d
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 F
a
m
ili
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C
h
ild
re
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
. 
It
 i
s
 c
le
a
r,
 h
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 t
h
a
t 
th
is
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
 i
s
 s
tr
u
c
tu
ra
l 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 Y
O
S
 

re
m
a
in
s
 a
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
it
h
 a
 d
is
ti
n
c
t 
c
le
a
r 
id
e
n
ti
ty
 o
p
e
ra
ti
n
g
 a
c
ro
s
s
 a
n
d
 w
it
h
in
 b
o
th
 L
o
c
a
l 
A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 C
h
ild
re
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
T
h
e
 Y
O
S
 

re
c
o
g
n
is
e
s
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
re
d
u
c
in
g
 t
h
e
 d
is
ta
n
c
e
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
n
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 f
o
r 
c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 a
n
d
 i
s
 

in
c
re
a
s
in
g
ly
 w
o
rk
in
g
 m
o
re
 c
lo
s
e
ly
 a
n
d
 i
n
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
it
h
 o
th
e
r 
p
a
rt
s
 o
f 
C
h
ild
re
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
, 
in
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r,
 t
h
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 

fo
r 
T
a
rg
e
te
d
 Y
o
u
th
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 i
n
 b
o
th
 W

o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 i
n
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
. 

 T
h
e
 
Y
O
S
 
h
a
s
 
a
 
s
tr
o
n
g
 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
B
o
a
rd
 
jo
in
tl
y
 
c
h
a
ir
e
d
 
b
y
 
th
e
 
D
ir
e
c
to
r 
fo
r 
C
h
ild
re
n
 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 
fo
r 
H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 
a
n
d
 
th
e
 
D
ir
e
c
to
r 
fo
r 

C
h
ild
re
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
n
 W

o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
. 
O
th
e
r 
B
o
a
rd
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 t
w
o
 P
C
T
s
, 
th
e
 C
h
ie
f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 o
f 

W
e
s
t 
M
e
rc
ia
 
P
ro
b
a
ti
o
n
 
T
ru
s
t,
 
a
 
S
e
n
io
r 
O
ff
ic
e
r 
fr
o
m
 
W
e
s
t 
M
e
rc
ia
 
C
o
n
s
ta
b
u
la
ry
 
a
n
d
 
th
e
 
H
e
a
d
 
o
f 
In
te
g
ra
te
d
 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 
fo
r 
C
h
ild
re
n
 
a
n
d
 

F
a
m
ili
e
s
 f
ro
m
 W

o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il.
 

 T
h
e
 B
o
a
rd
 h
a
s
 d
e
fi
n
e
d
 t
h
re
e
 c
le
a
r 
fu
n
c
ti
o
n
s
; 

 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 -
 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 a
d
e
q
u
a
te
 f
in
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 h
u
m
a
n
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
, 
in
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 a
n
d
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 –
  
In
c
lu
d
in
g
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t,
 a
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
a
n
d
 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
la
n
s
, 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
a
n
d
 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

q
u
a
lit
y
 a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 e
n
a
b
lin
g
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 m

a
in
s
tr
e
a
m
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
it
h
in
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 B
o
a
rd
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 i
n
 a
c
c
e
s
s
in
g
 

o
th
e
r 
m
a
in
s
tr
e
a
m
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 

 In
 2
0
0
8
/0
9
 t
h
e
 B
o
a
rd
 i
n
te
n
d
s
 t
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
 t
h
e
 g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 B
o
a
rd
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 T
ru
s
t 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
. 

 

  

16



W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 –
  
V
.4
 

7

   S
E
C
T
IO
N
 B
 -
 U
S
E
 O
F
 R
E
S
O
U
R
C
E
S
 A
N
D
 V
A
L
U
E
 F
O
R
 M
O
N
E
Y
 

B
1
 A
s
s
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 e
x
te
n
t 
to
 w
h
ic
h
 t
h
e
 Y
O
T
’s
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l,
 s
ta
ff
, 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 a
n
d
 I
C
T
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 u
s
e
d
 t
o
 d
e
li
v
e
r 
q
u
a
li
ty
 y
o
u
th
 

ju
s
ti
c
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

F
IN
A
N
C
IA
L
 R
E
S
O
U
R
C
E
S
 

T
h
e
 Y
O
S
 h
a
s
 a
 c
o
m
p
le
x
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 c
o
m
p
ri
s
in
g
 o
f 
p
a
rt
n
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
y
 c
a
s
h
 a
n
d
 i
n
 k
in
d
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
s
, 
c
o
re
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 Y
J
B
 a
n
d
 a
 

ra
n
g
e
 
o
f 
ti
m
e
 
lim

it
e
d
 
ri
n
g
 
fe
n
c
e
d
 
fu
n
d
in
g
 
fo
r 
s
p
e
c
if
ic
 
p
u
rp
o
s
e
s
. 
T
h
e
 
ri
n
g
 
fe
n
c
e
d
 
g
ra
n
ts
 
in
c
lu
d
e
 
th
e
 
IS
S
P
 
G
ra
n
t,
 
P
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 
G
ra
n
t 
a
n
d
 

S
u
b
s
ta
n
c
e
 M
is
u
s
e
 W

o
rk
e
r 
G
ra
n
t 
c
h
a
n
n
e
lle
d
 v
ia
 t
h
e
 Y
J
B
, 
a
n
 a
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 f
ro
m
 W

o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 S
u
b
s
ta
n
c
e
 M
is
u
s
e
 A
c
ti
o
n
 T
e
a
m
, 
O
L
A
S
S
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 

fo
r 
th
e
 N
g
a
g
e
 p
ro
je
c
t 
a
n
d
 a
n
 a
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 f
ro
m
 W

o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
’s
 A
re
a
 b
a
s
e
d
 G
ra
n
t 
to
 p
a
rt
 f
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 W

o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 Y
IS
P
. 

P
a
rt
n
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
y
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 Y
O
S
 i
s
 o
u
tl
in
e
d
 i
n
 t
a
b
le
 B
4
. 
T
h
e
re
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 n
o
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 p
a
rt
n
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
y
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
s
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 

2
0
0
7
/0
8
 a
n
d
 2
0
0
8
/0
9
. 
 T
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 m

a
rg
in
a
l 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 
p
ro
je
c
te
d
 c
o
s
ts
, 
d
u
e
 t
o
 i
n
fl
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 c
o
s
t 
o
f 
liv
in
g
 

ri
s
e
s
 b
e
in
g
 h
ig
h
e
r 
th
a
n
 t
h
e
 i
n
fl
a
ti
o
n
a
ry
 u
p
lif
ts
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 p
a
rt
n
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 a
n
d
 a
p
p
lie
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
e
n
tr
a
l 
g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
g
ra
n
ts
. 
T
h
e
re
 w
a
s
 n
o
 u
p
lif
t 

a
p
p
lie
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 P
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 G
ra
n
t 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 a
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 A
re
a
 B
a
s
e
d
 G
ra
n
t 
in
 W

o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 w
a
s
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
. 
T
h
e
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
s
 t
h
e
s
e
 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 p
o
s
e
 a
re
 p
la
n
n
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 m
e
t 
th
ro
u
g
h
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
ie
s
. 

T
h
e
 a
g
re
e
d
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
fo
r 
2
0
0
8
/0
9
, 
th
e
re
fo
re
, 
a
tt
e
m
p
ts
 t
o
 b
a
la
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 c
h
a
lle
n
g
in
g
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
fa
c
e
d
 b
y
 p
a
rt
n
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
, 
th
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 

fi
n
d
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
ie
s
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 Y
O
S
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 m
a
in
ta
in
 a
n
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
. 
T
h
e
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
in
c
re
a
s
e
d
 c
o
s
t 
o
f 
s
ta
ff
in
g
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 

to
 b
e
 a
 m
a
jo
r 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
p
re
s
s
u
re
 a
s
 p
a
y
ro
ll 
c
o
s
ts
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
fo
r 
a
p
p
ro
x
im
a
te
ly
 7
0
%
 o
f 
th
e
 Y
O
S
 b
u
d
g
e
t.
  

T
h
e
 
p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
a
te
 
s
p
e
n
d
in
g
 
o
n
 
y
o
u
th
 
ju
s
ti
c
e
 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 
a
c
ro
s
s
 
p
re
v
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
P
A
C
E
, 
p
re
-c
o
u
rt
 
a
n
d
 
re
m
a
n
d
 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
c
o
u
rt
 
b
a
s
e
d
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 b
a
s
e
d
 p
e
n
a
lt
ie
s
 a
n
d
 c
u
s
to
d
ia
l 
s
e
n
te
n
c
e
s
 a
re
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
in
 t
a
b
le
 B
5
. 
 

 S
T
A
F
F
 R
E
S
O
U
R
C
E
S
 

T
h
e
 s
ta
ff
in
g
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 o
f 
th
e
 Y
O
S
 a
re
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
in
 t
a
b
le
s
 B
7
 a
n
d
 B
8
. 
 T
h
e
 Y
O
S
 c
o
m
p
ri
s
e
s
 1
0
4
 s
a
la
ri
e
d
 s
ta
ff
 (
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 p
a
rt
 t
im
e
 p
o
s
ts
) 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
y
 5
4
 s
e
s
s
io
n
a
l 
w
o
rk
e
rs
 a
n
d
 4
4
 v
o
lu
n
te
e
rs
. 
T
h
e
 m

a
jo
ri
ty
 o
f 
s
ta
ff
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
 w
h
it
e
 w
it
h
 B
M
E
 g
ro
u
p
s
 n
o
t 
c
o
n
s
is
te
n
tl
y
 

re
p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 a
ll 
le
v
e
ls
 a
n
d
 t
e
a
m
s
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
 T
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
s
e
s
s
io
n
a
l 
w
o
rk
e
rs
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 h
a
s
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 s
in
c
e
 2
0
0
7
/0
8
, 
m
a
in
ly
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 r
e
c
ru
it
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 
w
o
rk
e
rs
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 Y
IS
P
 a
n
d
 I
S
S
P
 a
c
ti
v
it
y
. 
T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 o
n
ly
 u
s
e
s
 v
o
lu
n
te
e
rs
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 o
f 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 P
a
n
e
l 

M
e
m
b
e
rs
 a
n
d
 a
 r
e
c
ru
it
m
e
n
t 
c
a
m
p
a
ig
n
 i
s
 p
la
n
n
e
d
 t
o
 r
e
p
la
c
e
 t
h
o
s
e
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 w
h
o
 h
a
v
e
 n
o
w
 s
e
rv
e
d
 t
w
o
 t
e
rm
s
 o
f 
th
re
e
 y
e
a
rs
. 

In
 2
0
0
8
/0
9
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 
p
ro
v
id
in
g
 h
u
m
a
n
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 t
h
e
 Y
O
S
 b
y
 W

o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 C
o
u
n
ty
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 C
h
ild
re
n
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
e
a
m
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 H
R
 d
iv
is
io
n
. 
M
o
n
th
ly
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 a
re
 h
e
ld
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 Y
O
S
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 H
R
 a
d
v
is
o
r 
fr
o
m
 W

C
C
 w
h
e
re
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 

re
c
ru
it
m
e
n
t,
 s
ta
ff
 t
u
rn
o
v
e
r 
a
n
d
 s
ic
k
n
e
s
s
 a
re
 m
o
n
it
o
re
d
. 
 

 

17



W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 –
  
V
.4
 

8

O
v
e
ra
ll 
th
e
 Y
O
S
 i
s
 a
d
e
q
u
a
te
ly
 s
ta
ff
e
d
 a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
d
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie
s
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 N
o
rt
h
 W

o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 T
e
a
m
 w
h
ic
h
 h
a
s
, 
h
is
to
ri
c
a
lly
, 

h
a
d
 a
 h
ig
h
 t
u
rn
o
v
e
r 
a
n
d
 t
o
 w
h
ic
h
 i
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 m
o
re
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 t
o
 r
e
c
ru
it
 t
o
. 
 

T
h
e
 W

o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 Y
IS
P
 e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
d
 a
 h
ig
h
 t
u
rn
o
v
e
r 
o
f 
s
ta
ff
 a
t 
th
e
 e
n
d
 o
f 
2
0
0
7
/0
8
 d
u
e
 t
o
 s
ta
ff
 b
e
in
g
 p
la
c
e
d
 a
t 
ri
s
k
 o
f 
re
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
y
 d
u
e
 t
o
 

th
e
 l
a
te
 c
o
n
fi
rm
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 Y
J
B
 P
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 G
ra
n
t.
  

T
h
e
 
Y
O
S
 
h
a
s
 
a
 
d
e
d
ic
a
te
d
 
tr
a
in
in
g
 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
to
 
c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 
tr
a
in
in
g
 
in
 
2
0
0
8
/0
9
 
to
 m

e
e
t 
th
e
 
tr
a
in
in
g
 a
n
d
 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
n
e
e
d
s
 
o
f 
s
ta
ff
 a
n
d
 

v
o
lu
n
te
e
rs
. 
A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 t
ra
in
in
g
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
re
p
re
s
e
n
ts
 a
 v
e
ry
 s
m
a
ll 
p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
 o
f 
th
e
 t
o
ta
l 
Y
O
S
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
it
 i
s
 s
u
p
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 b
y
 s
ta
ff
 b
e
in
g
 a
b
le
 t
o
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 
tr
a
in
in
g
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 t
ra
in
in
g
 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 
b
y
 
th
e
 t
w
o
 L
o
c
a
l 
A
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
. 
In
 a
d
d
it
io
n
 s
o
m
e
 t
ra
in
in
g
 i
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 
b
y
 

p
a
rt
n
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
, 
th
e
 L
o
c
a
l 
S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 C
h
ild
re
n
 B
o
a
rd
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 Y
O
S
 h
a
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 a
d
v
a
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 
Y
J
B
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 p
la
c
e
s
 f
o
r 
s
ta
ff
 t
o
 o
b
ta
in
 y
o
u
th
 

ju
s
ti
c
e
 N
Q
F
 q
u
a
lif
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

 P
R
O
G
R
A
M
M
E
 R
E
S
O
U
R
C
E
S
 

T
h
e
 Y
O
S
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 t
h
e
 W

o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 Y
IS
P
 w
h
ic
h
 c
o
-o
rd
in
a
te
s
 a
n
d
 d
e
liv
e
rs
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 
a
s
 
a
t 
ri
s
k
 
o
f 
e
n
te
ri
n
g
 
th
e
 
y
o
u
th
 
ju
s
ti
c
e
 
s
y
s
te
m
. 
T
h
is
 
in
c
lu
d
e
s
 
d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 
d
e
liv
e
ri
n
g
 
a
 
c
o
m
b
in
a
ti
o
n
 
o
f 
fo
c
u
s
s
e
d
 
in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
, 
fo
r 

e
x
a
m
p
le
, 
a
n
g
e
r 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t,
 w
it
h
 p
o
s
it
iv
e
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
. 
P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 P
o
lic
e
 a
n
d
 W

o
rc
e
s
te
r 
R
u
g
b
y
 C
lu
b
 h
a
s
 r
e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
“W

a
lk
 l
ik
e
 a
 W

a
rr
io
r”
 P
ro
je
c
t.
 T
h
e
 Y
O
S
 i
s
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 a
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
it
h
 H
e
re
fo
rd
 a
n
d
 W

o
rc
e
s
te
r 
F
ir
e
 a
n
d
 R
e
s
c
u
e
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
 t
h
e
 “
Ig
n
it
e
” 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 t
o
 t
a
rg
e
t 
N
E
E
T
 y
o
u
n
g
 o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
 a
n
d
 t
h
o
s
e
 a
t 
ri
s
k
 o
f 
e
n
te
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 Y
J
S
. 
T
h
e
 Y
O
S
 h
a
s
, 
in
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
it
h
 

W
e
s
t 
M
e
rc
ia
 C
o
n
s
ta
b
u
la
ry
, 
W
C
C
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
a
fe
ty
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 a
 m
e
n
to
ri
n
g
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
re
v
e
n
t 

c
o
h
o
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 P
re
v
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 D
e
te
r 
S
c
h
e
m
e
s
. 

In
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 t
h
e
 Y
O
S
 p
a
rt
 f
u
n
d
s
 t
h
e
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 C
F
 P
a
n
e
l 
(Y
IS
P
).
 T
h
e
 C
F
 P
a
n
e
l 
h
a
s
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
A
re
a
 B
a
s
e
d
 G
ra
n
t 
fu
n
d
e
d
 p
ro
je
c
t 

w
h
ic
h
 i
t 
is
 a
b
le
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 m
e
n
to
ri
n
g
. 
T
h
e
 p
ri
m
a
ry
 r
e
fe
rr
a
l 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 C
F
 p
a
n
e
l 
w
o
rk
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
t 
ri
s
k
 o
f 
 e
n
te
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 

Y
J
S
 
is
 
v
ia
 
th
e
 
P
re
v
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 
D
e
te
r 
s
c
h
e
m
e
. 
T
h
e
 
ta
rg
e
te
d
 
P
o
s
it
iv
e
 
A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 
fo
r 
Y
o
u
n
g
 
P
e
o
p
le
 
h
a
s
 
n
o
w
 
a
d
o
p
te
d
 
th
e
 
P
re
v
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 
D
e
te
r 

S
c
h
e
m
e
 a
s
 i
ts
 m
a
in
 r
e
fe
rr
a
l 
s
o
u
rc
e
. 

T
h
e
 Y
O
S
 h
a
s
 a
 s
tr
o
n
g
 c
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
t 
to
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 i
ts
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 t
o
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 t
h
e
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
th
e
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
. 
In
 s
u
m
m
a
ry
, 
th
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 s
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 a
re
 k
e
y
: 

•
 
D
ru
g
 T
re
a
tm
e
n
t 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 –
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 i
s
 e
v
id
e
n
t 
in
 t
h
is
 a
re
a
 a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 
th
e
 Y
O
S
 S
u
b
s
ta
n
c
e
 M
is
u
s
e
 s
p
e
c
ia
lis
ts
 l
in
k
in
g
 t
o
 S
P
A
C
E
 

a
n
d
 
Z
IG
Z
A
G
 
(W

o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 
Y
o
u
n
g
 
P
e
o
p
le
’s
 
S
u
b
s
ta
n
c
e
 
M
is
u
s
e
 
S
e
rv
ic
e
, 
a
n
d
 
H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 
Y
o
u
n
g
 
P
e
o
p
le
’s
 
S
u
b
s
ta
n
c
e
 
M
is
u
s
e
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
).
  
 

•
 
M
e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 –
 t
h
e
s
e
 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 
to
 p
e
rf
o
rm
 
c
o
n
s
is
te
n
tl
y
 w
e
ll 
w
it
h
 Y
O
S
 
s
p
e
c
ia
lis
ts
 l
in
k
in
g
 
in
to
 m

a
in
s
tr
e
a
m
 C
A
M
H
S
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
 I
n
 2
0
0
8
 n
e
w
 p
ro
to
c
o
ls
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 Y
O
S
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 P
C
T
s
 r
e
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 o
f 
m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 p
u
t 
in
 p
la
c
e
 

in
 b
o
th
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 W

o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
. 

•
 
E
T
E
 P
ro
v
is
io
n
 –
 a
c
c
e
s
s
in
g
 p
o
s
t-
1
6
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 r
e
m
a
in
s
 a
 c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
b
le
 b
a
rr
ie
r 
to
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
, 
h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
v
ia
 O
L
A
S
S
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 e
a
c
h
 Y
O
T
 t
e
a
m
 

h
a
s
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 N
g
a
g
e
 P
ro
je
c
t 
W
o
rk
e
rs
 w
h
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
 i
n
 a
c
c
e
s
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 m
a
in
ta
in
in
g
 E
T
E
 p
la
c
e
m
e
n
ts
. 

18



W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 –
  
V
.4
 

9

•
 
P
a
re
n
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
 V
ic
ti
m
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 –
 T
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 p
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
’s
 p
a
re
n
ti
n
g
 w
o
rk
e
r 
a
n
d
 t
w
o
 f
u
ll 
p
a
re
n
ti
n
g
 w
o
rk
e
rs
 w
o
rk
in
g
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 Y
O
S
. 
 

E
a
c
h
 A
re
a
 T
e
a
m
 h
a
s
 a
 V
ic
ti
m
 L
ia
is
o
n
 W

o
rk
e
r 
w
it
h
in
 i
t.
 T
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 R
e
s
to
ra
ti
v
e
 J
u
s
ti
c
e
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
w
h
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 t
ra
in
in
g
 t
o
 s
ta
ff
 

a
n
d
 p
ro
m
o
te
s
 t
h
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 
re
s
to
ra
ti
v
e
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
s
 i
n
 o
th
e
r 
s
e
tt
in
g
s
. 

T
h
e
 Y
O
S
 i
s
 a
ls
o
 b
u
ild
in
g
 t
h
e
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 t
ra
in
in
g
 o
f 
a
ll 
p
ra
c
ti
ti
o
n
e
rs
 i
n
 t
h
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
th
e
 P
a
th
w
a
y
 P
lu
s
 c
o
g
n
it
iv
e
 

b
e
h
a
v
io
u
ra
l 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
. 
T
o
 p
ro
m
o
te
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 a
n
d
 d
iv
e
rs
it
y
, 
th
e
 Y
O
S
 h
a
s
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 a
 D
iv
e
rs
it
y
 g
ro
u
p
, 
w
h
ic
h
 h
a
s
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ty
 f
o
r 

th
e
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 R
a
c
e
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
. 
  

T
h
e
 
Y
O
S
 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 
to
 
w
o
rk
 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
 
w
it
h
 
Y
o
u
th
 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 
(Y
S
S
),
 
w
it
h
 
Y
S
S
 
s
ta
ff
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
e
d
 
in
to
 
th
e
 
a
re
a
 
te
a
m
s

.
 
Y
S
S
 
h
a
s
 

a
d
d
it
io
n
a
lly
 b
e
e
n
 a
w
a
rd
e
d
 a
 g
ra
n
t 
to
 p
ilo
t 
a
 T
ra
n
s
it
io
n
 t
o
 A
d
u
lt
h
o
o
d
 p
ro
je
c
t.
 T
h
is
 p
ro
je
c
t 
w
ill
 p
ro
v
id
e
 v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 y
o
u
n
g
 o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
 

w
h
o
 a
re
 t
ra
n
s
it
io
n
 f
ro
m
 y
o
u
th
 c
ri
m
in
a
l 
ju
s
ti
c
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 a
d
u
lt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
It
 i
s
 l
ik
e
ly
 t
h
is
 p
ro
je
c
t 
w
ill
 b
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 N
o
rt
h
 W

o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
re
a
. 

In
 2
0
0
8
 t
h
e
 Y
O
S
 h
a
s
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 a
n
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 w
o
rk
in
g
 g
ro
u
p
 t
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
 c
o
n
te
n
t 
a
n
d
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
, 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 c
o
re
 o
ff
e
r 
a
n
d
 p
u
t 

in
 p
la
c
e
 a
 q
u
a
lit
y
 a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 p
e
n
a
lt
y
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
. 

 IC
T
 R
E
S
O
U
R
C
E
S
 I
N
C
L
U
D
IN
G
 T
H
E
 W
IR
IN
G
 U
P
 Y
O
U
T
H
 J
U
S
T
IC
E
 P
R
O
G
R
A
M
M
E
 

Y
O
S
 I
T
 s
y
s
te
m
s
 a
re
 h
o
s
te
d
 b
y
 W

e
s
t 
M
e
rc
ia
 C
o
n
s
ta
b
u
la
ry
 (
W
M
C
),
 a
n
d
 a
ll 
h
a
rd
w
a
re
 i
s
 s
to
re
d
 a
t 
W
M
C
 F
o
rc
e
 h
e
a
d
q
u
a
rt
e
rs
. 
 E
a
c
h
 a
re
a
 o
ff
ic
e
 

is
 l
in
k
e
d
 t
o
 W

e
s
t 
M
e
rc
ia
 v
ia
 a
 2
.3
M
b
 l
in
e
, 
th
e
 W

o
rc
e
s
te
r 
lin
e
 b
e
in
g
 r
e
c
e
n
tl
y
 u
p
g
ra
d
e
d
 t
o
 1
0
M
b
 w
h
ic
h
 h
a
s
 r
e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 s
p
e
e
d
ie
r 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 c
a
s
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
y
s
te
m
s
. 
 U
s
e
rs
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 a
ll 
a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 c
a
s
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
y
s
te
m
s
 u
s
in
g
 W

in
te
rm
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 a
 t
h
in
 c
lie
n
t 
n
e
tw
o
rk
. 
 Y
O
S
 

P
o
lic
e
 s
ta
ff
 h
a
v
e
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 P
o
lic
e
 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
C
o
m
p
u
te
r 
(P
N
C
) 
a
t 
d
e
s
ig
n
a
te
d
 t
e
rm
in
a
ls
 i
n
 e
a
c
h
 a
re
a
 o
ff
ic
e
, 
a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 W

e
s
t 
M
e
rc
ia
 l
o
c
a
l 

d
a
ta
b
a
s
e
s
, 
C
R
IM
E
S
 a
n
d
 G
E
N
IE
. 

W
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 u
s
e
 t
w
o
 c
a
s
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
y
s
te
m
s
: 

Y
O
IS
 P
lu
s
 –
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 S
o
c
ia
l 
S
o
ft
w
a
re
 –
 f
o
r 
c
a
s
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 d
a
ta
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
 o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 h
a
v
e
 o
ff
e
n
d
e
d
, 
a
n
d
 

Y
IS
P
IS
 –
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 a
n
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y
 c
o
m
p
a
n
y
 –
 f
o
r 
p
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 r
e
c
o
rd
in
g
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
p
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 d
a
ta
. 

S
e
c
u
re
 E
 M
a
il
 

T
h
e
 Y
O
S
 u
s
e
s
 C
J
S
M
 s
e
c
u
re
 e
m
a
il 
p
o
rt
a
l 
fo
r 
th
e
 t
ra
n
s
m
is
s
io
n
 o
f 
s
e
n
s
it
iv
e
/c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ti
a
l 
d
a
ta
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 o
th
e
r 
C
ri
m
in
a
l 
J
u
s
ti
c
e
 A
g
e
n
c
ie
s
, 
a
s
 w
e
ll 

a
s
 h
a
v
in
g
 t
h
e
 P
o
lic
e
 P
N
N
 s
e
c
u
re
 e
m
a
il.
  
 

T
h
e
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 Y
J
B
 E
le
c
tr
o
n
ic
 Y
e
llo
w
 e
n
v
e
lo
p
e
 p
ro
je
c
t 
h
a
s
 e
n
a
b
le
d
 t
h
e
 Y
O
S
 t
o
 s
e
n
d
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s
e
c
u
re
 e
s
ta
te
 b
y
 s
e
c
u
re
 e
 

m
a
il 
in
 a
 f
o
rm
a
t 
th
a
t 
c
a
n
 b
e
 u
p
lo
a
d
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s
e
n
te
n
c
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
y
s
te
m
 u
s
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 s
e
c
u
re
 e
s
ta
te
 (
e
A
s
s
e
t)
. 
 R
is
k
 c
a
n
 b
e
 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 b
y
 

th
e
 s
e
c
u
re
 e
s
ta
te
 p
ri
o
r 
to
 t
h
e
 a
rr
iv
a
l 
o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 s
e
n
te
n
c
e
d
 t
o
 c
u
s
to
d
y
. 
 S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
ti
m
e
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
 b
y
 s
e
n
d
in
g
 t
h
is
 

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 e
le
c
tr
o
n
ic
a
lly
 c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p
re
v
io
u
s
 m
e
th
o
d
s
 o
f 
fa
x
 a
n
d
 h
a
rd
 c
o
p
y
. 
  

R
e
m
o
te
 A
c
c
e
s
s
 

R
e
m
o
te
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 i
s
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 b
y
 u
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 p
o
lic
e
’s
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
 c
a
b
le
 a
n
d
 w
ir
e
le
s
s
 s
e
c
u
re
 d
ia
l 
in
 f
a
c
ili
ty
. 
 L
a
p
to
p
s
 a
re
 c
o
n
fi
g
u
re
d
 a
n
d
 s
e
c
u
re
 l
o
g
-

in
 f
o
b
s
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
o
r 
e
a
c
h
 r
e
m
o
te
 a
c
c
e
s
s
. 
 T
h
is
 e
n
a
b
le
s
 Y
O
S
 l
a
p
to
p
s
 t
o
 b
e
 u
s
e
d
 r
e
m
o
te
ly
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 a
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
 m

o
d
e
m
 w
it
h
 a
n
 a
n
a
lo
g
u
e
 

19



W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 –
  
V
.4
 

1
0

c
o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
 b
y
 u
ti
lis
in
g
 a
n
 a
u
th
e
n
ti
c
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 e
m
p
lo
y
e
d
 b
y
 W

M
C
. 

 In
 2
0
0
7
/2
0
0
8
 t
h
e
 Y
O
S
 s
e
c
u
re
d
 a
 g
ra
n
t 
fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 Y
o
u
th
 J
u
s
ti
c
e
 B
o
a
rd
 u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 W

ir
in
g
 u
p
 Y
o
u
th
 J
u
s
ti
c
e
 P
ro
je
c
t.
  
A
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 
th
is
 t
h
e
re
 a
re
 

n
o
w
 
W
in
te
rm
s
 
a
n
d
 
p
ri
n
te
rs
 
in
s
ta
lle
d
 
in
 
R
e
d
d
it
c
h
, 
K
id
d
e
rm
in
s
te
r,
 
W
o
rc
e
s
te
r 
a
n
d
 
H
e
re
fo
rd
 
M
a
g
is
tr
a
te
s
 
C
o
u
rt
 
b
u
ild
in
g
s
. 
 
T
h
is
 
g
iv
e
s
 
e
a
s
y
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 Y
O
S
 I
T
 s
y
s
te
m
s
, 
a
n
d
 e
n
a
b
le
s
 o
u
r 
c
o
u
rt
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 u
p
 t
o
 d
a
te
 c
a
s
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 M
a
g
is
tr
a
te
s
 u
p
o
n
 r
e
q
u
e
s
t.
 

L
ib
ra
 

W
o
rk
in
g
 c
lo
s
e
ly
 w
it
h
 W

e
s
t 
M
e
rc
ia
 P
o
lic
e
 a
n
d
 H
M
C
S
, 
W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 i
s
 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
Y
O
S
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
tr
y
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 d
ir
e
c
t 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 

to
 t
h
e
 M

a
g
is
tr
a
te
s
 C
o
u
rt
s
 n
e
w
 d
a
ta
b
a
s
e
 L
IB
R
A
. 
 T
h
is
 i
s
 a
 W

e
b
 b
a
s
e
d
 a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
, 
e
n
a
b
lin
g
 s
ta
ff
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 i
n
s
ta
n
t 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 C
o
u
rt
 l
is
ts
, 

re
g
is
te
rs
, 
P
S
R
 r
e
q
u
e
s
ts
, 
C
o
u
rt
 O
rd
e
rs
 a
n
d
 b
a
il 
n
o
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
s
. 
  

F
u
tu
re
 I
T
 P
ro
je
c
ts
 

C
o
n
n
e
c
ti
v
it
y
 

T
h
e
 C
o
n
n
e
c
ti
v
it
y
 P
ro
je
c
t,
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 Y
J
B
 i
s
 p
la
n
n
e
d
 t
o
 g
o
 l
iv
e
 i
n
 W

o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 b
y
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
. 
 I
t 
w
ill
 a
llo
w
 c
o
m
p
u
te
r 

s
y
s
te
m
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 y
o
u
th
 j
u
s
ti
c
e
 s
y
s
te
m
 t
o
 “
ta
lk
” 
d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 t
o
 e
a
c
h
 o
th
e
r,
 e
x
c
h
a
n
g
in
g
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 a
u
to
m
a
ti
c
a
lly
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 Y
O
S
 a
n
d
 Y
J
B
 

P
la
c
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 C
a
s
e
w
o
rk
s
 t
e
a
m
 a
n
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 e
A
s
s
e
t 
s
y
s
te
m
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
e
c
u
re
 e
s
ta
te
. 
 I
t 
w
ill
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
 o
f 
e
rr
o
r 
a
s
 p
ra
c
ti
ti
o
n
e
rs
 w
ill
 n
o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

b
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 e
n
te
r 
th
e
 s
a
m
e
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 t
w
o
 d
if
fe
re
n
t 
s
y
s
te
m
s
. 
 T
h
e
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 t
a
rg
e
t 
d
a
te
 f
o
r 
th
is
 p
ro
je
c
t 
is
 d
e
p
e
n
d
a
n
t 
u
p
o
n
 S
o
c
ia
l 

S
o
ft
w
a
re
 c
o
m
p
le
ti
n
g
 a
 t
e
c
h
n
ic
a
l 
u
p
g
ra
d
e
 o
f 
Y
O
IS
 b
y
 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
q
u
a
rt
e
r 
o
f 
2
0
0
9
. 

V
ie
w
p
o
in
t 
 

In
v
e
s
tm
e
n
t 
h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n
 
m
a
d
e
 
in
 
V
ie
w
p
o
in
t,
 
a
n
 
in
te
ra
c
ti
v
e
 
in
te
rn
e
t 
b
a
s
e
d
 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 
u
s
e
r 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 
fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
, 
to
 
b
e
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 i
n
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
. 
 H
o
w
e
v
e
r 
th
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 
th
is
 n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 b
e
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
a
n
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
u
s
e
r 
a
n
d
 p
a
rt
n
e
r 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
 w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 b
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 d
u
ri
n
g
 0
8
/0
9
. 
 

C
o
n
ta
c
tP
o
in
t  

T
h
e
 Y
J
B
 h
a
s
 a
c
c
e
p
te
d
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 
C
h
ild
re
n
, 
S
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
n
d
 F
a
m
ili
e
s
 f
o
r 
p
ro
v
id
in
g
 a
 l
in
k
 t
o
 C
o
n
ta
c
tP
o
in
t 
a
n
d
 i
s
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 

w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
m
 t
o
 d
e
fi
n
e
 t
h
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 
Y
O
IS
. 
 D
C
S
F
 C
o
n
ta
c
t 
P
o
in
t 
lo
c
a
l 
im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 b
a
s
e
d
 i
n
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 w
ill
 

s
o
o
n
 b
e
 a
s
s
is
ti
n
g
 Y
O
T
’s
 w
it
h
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
C
o
n
ta
c
tP
o
in
t.

 
 
 

P
o
li
c
e
 E
le
c
tr
o
n
ic
 N
o
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 Y
O
T
s
 (
P
E
N
Y
) 

A
 Y
J
B
 i
n
it
ia
ti
v
e
, 
th
e
 p
ro
je
c
t 
w
ill
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 
a
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
s
o
lu
ti
o
n
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 u
s
e
 a
n
d
 s
h
a
ri
n
g
 o
f 
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 4
3
 p
o
lic
e
 f
o
rc
e
s
, 
th
e
 

B
ri
ti
s
h
 T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 P
o
lic
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 1
5
7
 Y
O
T
s
 u
s
in
g
 C
J
S
M
 o
r 
o
th
e
r 
s
e
c
u
re
 r
o
u
te
s
. 
 T
h
is
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 n
o
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
re
p
ri
m
a
n
d
s
, 
F
in
a
l 
W
a
rn
in
g
s
, 

c
h
a
rg
e
s
, 
p
e
n
a
lt
y
 n
o
ti
c
e
s
 a
n
d
 v
ic
ti
m
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 (
w
h
e
re
 c
o
n
s
e
n
t 
is
 g
iv
e
n
).
 T
h
e
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 b
e
 s
u
p
p
lie
d
 s
e
c
u
re
ly
, 
w
it
h
in
 2
4
 h
o
u
rs
 o
f 
a
 

p
o
lic
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 a
n
d
 t
o
 a
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
lly
 a
g
re
e
d
 m
in
im
u
m
 d
a
ta
s
e
t.
  
T
h
e
 s
o
lu
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 b
e
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 a
c
ro
s
s
 E
n
g
la
n
d
 a
n
d
 W

a
le
s
 b
y
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
. 

  

20



W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 –
  
V
.4
 

1
1

B
2
 I
d
e
n
ti
fy
 r
is
k
s
 t
o
 f
u
tu
re
 u
s
e
 o
f 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 a
n
d
 v
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 
m
o
n
e
y
 a
n
d
 p
la
n
s
 t
o
 o
v
e
rc
o
m
e
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
s
 

 F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

 T
h
e
 Y
O
S
 r
e
c
o
g
n
is
e
s
 c
h
a
lle
n
g
in
g
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
fa
c
e
d
 b
y
 p
a
rt
n
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 w
h
ic
h
 h
a
s
 l
e
d
 i
n
 2
0
0
8
/0
9
 t
o
 i
n
fl
a
ti
o
n
 u
p
lif
ts
 w
h
ic
h
 m
a
y
 n
o
t 

re
fl
e
c
t 
th
e
 c
o
s
t 
o
f 
liv
in
g
 r
is
e
s
 a
p
p
lie
d
 t
o
 s
a
la
ri
e
s
 (
c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 u
n
d
e
r 
n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
) 
fo
r 
d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 e
m
p
lo
y
e
d
 s
ta
ff
 a
n
d
 s
p
in
a
l 
p
o
in
t 
in
c
re
a
s
e
s
 f
o
r 
th
o
s
e
 

s
ta
ff
 w
h
o
 a
re
 n
o
t 
a
t 
th
e
 t
o
p
 o
f 
th
e
ir
 s
c
a
le
. 
T
h
e
 Y
O
S
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
re
c
o
g
n
is
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
p
a
rt
n
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 m
a
y
 a
ls
o
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 f
a
c
to
r 
e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 i
n
to
 

fu
tu
re
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
s
. 
 I
n
 a
d
d
it
io
n
 t
h
e
re
 a
re
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
g
ra
n
ts
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
, 
w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 a
n
n
u
a
lly
 a
n
n
o
u
n
c
e
d
 f
o
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
 t
h
e
 O
L
A
S
S
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 a
n
d
 

th
e
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
s
u
b
s
ta
n
c
e
 m
is
u
s
e
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 v
ia
 S
M
A
T
 (
D
ru
g
 A
c
ti
o
n
 T
e
a
m
),
 w
h
ic
h
 m
a
y
 n
o
t 
b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 i
n
 f
u
tu
re
 y
e
a
rs
. 

O
n
e
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
a
re
a
 o
f 
ri
s
k
 i
s
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 A
re
a
 B
a
s
e
d
 G
ra
n
t.
 I
n
 b
o
th
 c
o
u
n
ti
e
s
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 h
o
w
 t
h
e
 

A
B
G
 w
ill
 b
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
d
/a
llo
c
a
te
d
 f
o
r 
2
0
0
9
/1
0
 a
n
d
 1
1
/1
2
 h
a
v
e
 n
o
t 
b
e
e
n
 f
in
a
lis
e
d
. 
Y
O
S
 p
re
v
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 i
n
 W

o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 i
s
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 i
n
 

0
8
/0
9
 b
y
 a
n
 A
B
G
 a
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
a
n
d
 i
n
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 Y
O
S
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
Y
IS
P
 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 i
s
 p
ri
m
a
ri
ly
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 

A
B
G
. 

 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

 S
e
c
ti
o
n
 C
2
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
s
 t
h
e
 r
e
-o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 p
e
n
a
lt
ie
s
 a
s
 a
n
 a
re
a
 o
f 
w
e
a
k
n
e
s
s
. 
T
h
is
 h
a
s
 h
ig
h
lig
h
te
d
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
 

to
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 Y
O
S
 i
s
 d
e
liv
e
ri
n
g
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
. 
T
h
e
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 r
e
v
ie
w
 g
ro
u
p
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 p
u
t 
in
 p
la
c
e
 t
o
 e
v
a
lu
a
te
 

th
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 b
e
in
g
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 Y
O
S
. 

 IC
T
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

C
o
n
n
e
c
ti
v
it
y
  

T
h
e
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 t
a
rg
e
t 
d
a
te
 f
o
r 
th
is
 p
ro
je
c
t 
is
 d
e
p
e
n
d
a
n
t 
u
p
o
n
 S
o
c
ia
l 
S
o
ft
w
a
re
 c
o
m
p
le
ti
n
g
 a
 t
e
c
h
n
ic
a
l 
u
p
g
ra
d
e
 o
f 
Y
O
IS
 b
y
 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
q
u
a
rt
e
r 
o
f 

2
0
0
9
. 
Y
O
IS
 s
y
s
te
m
 u
p
g
ra
d
e
 w
ill
 b
e
g
in
 i
n
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 a
n
d
 i
s
 p
la
n
n
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
q
u
a
rt
e
r 
o
f 
2
0
0
9
. 
 T
h
e
 Y
J
B
 W

U
Y
J
 t
e
a
m
 

a
re
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 Y
O
S
 a
n
d
 W

e
s
t 
M
e
rc
ia
 I
T
 t
o
w
a
rd
s
 a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 C
o
n
n
e
c
ti
v
it
y
. 
 T
h
e
 t
e
c
h
n
ic
a
l 
s
o
lu
ti
o
n
 i
s
 t
o
 i
n
s
ta
ll 
a
 b
ro
a
d
b
a
n
d
 

c
o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
 a
lo
n
g
s
id
e
 t
h
e
 Y
O
IS
 s
e
rv
e
r.
  
 A
ft
e
r 
th
e
 s
y
s
te
m
 u
p
g
ra
d
e
, 
th
e
 W

ir
in
g
 U
p
 Y
o
u
th
 J
u
s
ti
c
e
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 C
h
a
n
g
e
 t
e
a
m
 w
ill
 c
o
n
ta
c
t 
th
e
 Y
O
S
 

a
n
d
 
W
e
s
t 
M
e
rc
ia
 
IM
T
D
 
to
 
a
g
re
e
 
h
o
w
 
th
e
y
 
c
a
n
 
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
lly
 
in
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 
C
o
n
n
e
c
ti
v
it
y
 
a
n
d
 
im
p
ro
v
e
 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
. 
 
 
T
h
is
 
w
ill
 
in
v
o
lv
e
 
Y
O
T
 

p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 
in
 
w
o
rk
s
h
o
p
s
 
to
 
h
e
lp
 
im
p
ro
v
e
 
c
u
rr
e
n
t 
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 
tr
a
in
in
g
 
b
y
 
th
e
 
s
u
p
p
lie
rs
 
o
n
 
u
s
in
g
 
th
e
 
c
a
s
e
 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

s
y
s
te
m
. 
T
h
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 t
o
 g
o
 l
iv
e
 w
it
h
 C
o
n
n
e
c
ti
v
it
y
 w
ill
 b
e
 m

a
d
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 Y
O
S
 a
ft
e
r 
th
e
 i
n
it
ia
l 
tr
a
in
in
g
. 
 A
n
y
 d
e
la
y
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
y
s
te
m
 u
p
g
ra
d
e
 b
y
 

S
o
c
ia
l 
S
o
ft
w
a
re
 w
ill
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 a
m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
te
s
ti
n
g
 t
im
e
 a
llo
c
a
te
d
 t
o
 W

e
s
t 
M
e
rc
ia
 I
M
T
D
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
is
 i
n
 t
u
rn
 c
o
u
ld
 d
e
la
y
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
. 

V
ie
w
p
o
in
t 

S
tr
ic
t 
s
e
c
u
ri
ty
 p
o
lic
y
 o
f 
W
e
s
t 
M
e
rc
ia
 I
T
 m
a
y
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 o
f 
th
is
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
. 
 W

e
s
t 
M
e
rc
ia
 h
a
v
e
 y
e
t 
to
 t
e
s
t 
th
e
 V
ie
w
p
o
in
t 
s
o
ft
w
a
re
 

to
 s
e
e
 i
f 
it
 i
s
 c
o
m
p
a
ti
b
le
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
ir
 I
T
 i
n
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
. 
 N
o
rt
h
 W

o
rc
s
 t
e
a
m
 d
o
 n
o
t 
h
a
v
e
 a
 d
e
d
ic
a
te
d
 P
C
 c
o
n
n
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 b
ro
a
d
b
a
n
d
 f
o
r 
u
s
e
 b
y
 y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
 d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
ir
 m
o
b
ile
 /
 f
le
x
ib
le
 w
o
rk
in
g
 s
ta
tu
s
 a
n
d
 a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 m
e
th
o
d
s
 o
f 
a
c
c
e
s
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 w
e
b
s
it
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 f
o
u
n
d
. 
 T
h
is
 w
ill
 b
e
 v
ia
 a
 

w
ir
e
le
s
s
 c
o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 a
 l
a
p
to
p
, 
s
o
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 c
a
n
 b
e
 u
s
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
rs
o
n
s
 h
o
m
e
. 
  
 

21



W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 –
  
V
.4
 

1
2

Id
e
n
ti
fy
 p
la
n
s
 t
o
 o
v
e
rc
o
m
e
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
s
 t
o
 f
u
tu
re
 u
s
e
 o
f 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 a
n
d
 v
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 
m
o
n
e
y
 

R
is
k
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 C
ri
te
ri
a
 

O
w
n
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 -
 E
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
Y
O
S
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 p
ro
m
o
te
 p
o
s
it
iv
e
 

o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 o
f 
th
e
 p
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 w
o
rk
. 

R
a
is
e
 a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 o
f 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o
f 

p
re
v
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
 w
o
rk
 –
 d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
 

p
o
s
it
iv
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
n
d
 

fa
m
ili
e
s
. 

P
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

O
n
g
o
in
g
 t
o
 

3
1
/3
/0
9
 

W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 –
 a
n
y
 p
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 

te
a
m
 v
a
c
a
n
c
y
 t
o
 b
e
 f
ill
e
d
 o
n
 t
im
e
 

lim
it
e
d
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 

M
in
im
is
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
fo
r 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
n
d
 f
o
r 

s
ta
ff
 i
f 
p
o
s
ts
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 d
e
le
te
d
 

A
d
m
in
  

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

3
1
/1
2
/0
9
 

A
B
G
 
G
ra
n
t 

re
d
u
c
e
d
 
o
r 

d
ir
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 o
th
e
r 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 

W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 

- 
S
c
e
n
a
ri
o
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 f
o
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 

d
e
liv
e
ry
 m
o
d
e
l 
if
 A
B
G
 n
o
t 
a
llo
c
a
te
d
 

T
ra
n
s
it
io
n
 t
o
 n
e
w
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 m
o
d
e
ls
 i
f 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
. 
C
o
n
ti
n
u
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 w
o
rk
 

w
it
h
 a
t 
ri
s
k
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
. 

D
H
O
S
 

3
1
/1
2
/0
9
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 

o
v
e
rs
p
e
n
d
 

in
 

2
0
0
8
/0
9
 

M
o
n
th
ly
 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 w
it
h
 

fi
n
a
n
c
e
 s
ta
ff
. 

A
c
ti
o
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 

re
m
a
in
s
 o
n
 t
ra
c
k
  

F
in
a
n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

M
o
n
th
ly
 

o
n
g
o
in
g
 

In
s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t 

fu
n
d
in
g
 

to
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

c
u
rr
e
n
t 

s
ta
ff
in
g
 

e
s
ta
b
lis
h
m
e
n
t 

P
o
s
ts
 t
o
 b
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 a
s
 v
a
c
a
n
c
ie
s
 

a
ri
s
e
 d
u
ri
n
g
 0
8
/0
9
 a
n
d
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 

b
a
la
n
c
e
 o
f 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 a
re
a
 

te
a
m
s
 

E
n
s
u
re
 b
a
la
n
c
e
 o
f 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 i
s
 c
o
rr
e
c
t 

b
e
tw
e
e
n
 e
a
c
h
 a
re
a
 t
e
a
m
. 

H
O
S
 

O
n
g
o
in
g
, 

re
v
ie
w
 b
y
 

3
1
/1
0
/0
9
 

In
c
o
n
s
is
te
n
c
ie
s
 
in
 
d
e
liv
e
ry
 

a
n
d
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 

a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 

R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
q
u
a
lit
y
 a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
 

C
o
n
s
is
te
n
t 
d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 

D
H
O
S
 

3
1
/0
3
/0
9
 

D
e
la
y
s
 i
n
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ti
n
g
 

C
o
n
n
e
c
ti
v
it
y
 

   

A
g
re
e
 d
e
a
d
lin
e
s
 f
o
r 
in
s
ta
lla
ti
o
n
 o
f 

B
ro
a
d
b
a
n
d
 c
o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
 a
t 
W
e
s
t 

M
e
rc
ia
 I
T
 H
Q
. 
  
F
o
llo
w
 u
p
 w
it
h
 Y
J
B
 

a
n
d
 S
o
c
ia
l 
S
o
ft
w
a
re
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 

Y
O
IS
 u
p
g
ra
d
e
 i
s
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 o
n
 t
im
e
. 

C
o
n
n
e
c
ti
v
it
y
 l
iv
e
 b
y
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

    

IP
M
 

    

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

T
e
c
h
n
ic
a
l 
a
n
d
 p
ra
c
ti
c
a
l 

is
s
u
e
s
 a
ff
e
c
t 
th
e
 f
u
ll 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 

V
ie
w
p
o
in
t 

 

Id
e
n
ti
fy
 I
T
 t
o
 b
e
 u
s
e
d
 i
n
 e
a
c
h
 a
re
a
, 

a
n
d
 t
e
s
t.
  
A
rr
a
n
g
e
 r
e
q
u
e
s
t 
fo
r 

c
h
a
n
g
e
 w
it
h
 W

e
s
t 
M
e
rc
ia
 f
o
r 

s
o
ft
w
a
re
 i
n
s
ta
lla
ti
o
n
 o
n
 s
e
rv
e
rs
. 
 

A
rr
a
n
g
e
 t
ra
in
in
g
 f
o
r 
a
ll 
s
ta
ff
. 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 b
y
 e
n
d
 o
f 
S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
r 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t     S

 M
a
d
d
o
x

 
3
0
/9
/0
8
 

22



W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 –
  
V
.4
 

1
3

B
3
 Y
J
B
 r
is
k
 t
o
 f
u
tu
re
 d
e
li
v
e
ry
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

          

23



W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 –
  
V
.4
 

1
4

 

B
4
 Y
o
u
th
 o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 t
e
a
m
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
r 
2
0
0
8
/0
9
 

A
g
e
n
c
y
 

S
ta
ff
in
g
 C
o
s
ts
 

P
a
y
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 K
in
d
 

O
th
e
r 
D
e
le
g
a
te
d
 F
u
n
d
s
 

T
o
ta
l 

P
o
lic
e
 

1
5
2
,8
4
8

 
1
4
6
,5
1
6
 

    
2
9
9
,3
6
4

 

P
ro
b
a
ti
o
n
 

1
1
1
,9
2
0

 
7
3
,3
4
0

 
3
0
,6
5
0

 
2
1
5
,9
1
0

 

H
e
a
lt
h
 

8
6
,4
6
7

 
6
5
,9
9
6

 

    
1
5
2
,4
6
3

 

L
o
c
a
l 
A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 

5
0
8
,8
2
6

 
7
3
6
,8
2
2

 
3
8
,0
0
0

 
1
,2
8
3
,6
4
8

 

Y
J
B
  

    
1
,2
9
1
,5
3
0

    
    

1
,2
9
1
,5
3
0

 

O
th
e
r 

    
4
7
5
,0
4
4

 

    
4
7
5
, 
0
4
4

 

T
o
ta
l 

8
6
0
,0
6
1

 
2
,7
8
9
,2
4
8

 
6
8
,6
5
0

 
3
,7
1
7
,9
5
9

 

 

B
5
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 p
la
n
n
e
d
 f
o
r 
th
e
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
r 
2
0
0
8
/0
9
 

C
o
re
 A
c
ti
v
it
y
 

T
o
ta
l 
B
u
d
g
e
t 
(£
) 

A
n
y
 C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

P
re
v
e
n
ti
v
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

6
6
6
, 
7
9
0
 

      
P
A
C
E
 

2
3
,7
5
4
 

      
P
re
-C
o
u
rt
 

3
0
8
, 
3
2
4
 

 
      

R
e
m
a
n
d
 

1
1
8
,7
7
1
 

      
C
o
u
rt
 

3
6
5
,7
8
6
 

      
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

1
,5
8
2
,7
7
6
 

      
C
u
s
to
d
y
 

1
4
6
,7
9
9
 

      
O
th
e
r 

5
0
4
,9
5
9
 

      
  

24



W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 –
  
V
.4
 

1
5

         

B
6
 P
ro
b
a
ti
o
n
 C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
s
 

P
a
y
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 k
in
d
 1
 

e
x
c
lu
d
in
g
 s
ta
ff
 

P
a
y
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 k
in
d
 2
 

s
ta
ff
in
g
 

C
a
s
h
 C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 

It
e
m
 

C
a
s
h
 V
a
lu
e
 

(£
) 

G
ra
d
e
 a
n
d
 

N
u
m
b
e
r 

C
a
s
h
 V
a
lu
e
 

(£
) 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 

o
n
 c
o
s
ts
 

T
O
T
A
L
 (
£
) 

£
7
3
,3
4
0

 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

P
u
n
is
h
m
e
n
t 

C
o
s
ts

 

£
3
0
, 
6
5
0

 
3
 x
 P
o
’s

 
£
1
1
1
,9
2
0
 

£
2
1
5
,9
1
0

 

25



W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 –
  
V
.4
 

1
6

 B
7
 S
ta
ff
 i
n
 t
h
e
 y
o
u
th
 o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 t
e
a
m
 (
b
y
 h
e
a
d
c
o
u
n
t)
 

 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

P
ra
c
ti
ti
o
n
e
r 

A
d
m
in
is
tr
a
ti
o
n
 

 
P
T
 

F
T
 

P
T
 

F
T
 

P
T
 

F
T
 

P
T
 

F
T
 

S
e
s
s
io
n
a
l 

S
tu
d
e
n
t 

V
o
lu
n
te
e
r 

T
o
ta
l 

P
e
rm
a
n
e
n
t  

    2 
    5 

4
 

1
2

 
6

 
1
1

 

     
     

  40 
F
ix
e
d
 T
e
rm

 
      

     
 

     
     

     
 

     
     

     
 

    
O
u
ts
o
u
rc
e
d
 

      
     

 
     

     
     

 
     

     
     

 
    

T
e
m
p
o
ra
ry
 

    1 
    3 

    1 
    2 

     
     

  7 
V
a
c
a
n
t 

      
     

 
    1 

8
 

4
 

     
     

     
 

1
3

 

C
h
ild
re
n
 

      
     

 
    1 

4
 

     
     

     
 

    5 
P
o
lic
e
 

      
     

 
     

   3 
     

     
     

 
    3 

H
e
a
lt
h
 

      
     

 
    1 

1
 

     
     

     
 

    2 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

      
     

 
    3 

     
     

     
 

     
   3 

C
o
n
n
e
x
io
n
s
 

      
     

 
     

   2 
     

     
     

 
    2 

O
th
e
r 

      
     

 

1
 

5
 

2
1

 
1

 
1

 
5
4

 

    44
 

1
2
7

 

T
O
T
A
L
 

    3 
    9 

1
5

 
5
2

 
1
1

 
1
4

 
5
4

 

    44
 

2
0
2

 

   

26



W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 –
  
V
.4
 

1
7

B
8
 S
ta
ff
 i
n
 t
h
e
 y
o
u
th
 o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 t
e
a
m
 b
y
 g
e
n
d
e
r 
a
n
d
 e
th
n
ic
it
y
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 c
e
n
s
u
s
 2
0
0
1
 c
a
te
g
o
ri
e
s
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

P
ra
c
ti
ti
o
n
e
r 
A
d
m
in
is
tr
a
ti
o
n
 
S
e
s
s
io
n
a
l 

S
tu
d
e
n
t 

V
o
lu
n
te
e
r 

T
o
ta
l 

 

M
 

F
 

M
 

F
 

M
 

F
 

M
 

F
 

M
 

F
 

M
 

F
 

M
 

F
 

M
 

F
 

W
h
it
e
 B
ri
ti
s
h
 

3
 

    3 
6

 
1
6

 
4
0

 
4

 
1
7

 
2
1
 

3
0

 
 

 
1
3

 
2
7

 
6
0

 
1
2
0

 

 W
h
it
e
 I
ri
s
h
 

        
        

    1 
       

 
 

        
        

        
1
 

O
th
e
r 
w
h
it
e
 

        
        

        
       

 
 

        
        

2
 

    2 
W
h
it
e
 a
n
d
 B
la
c
k
 

C
a
ri
b
b
e
a
n
 

        
        

        
       

 
 

        
        

        
    

W
h
it
e
 a
n
d
 B
la
c
k
 

A
fr
ic
a
n
 

        
        

        
       

 
            

        
        

    
W
h
it
e
 a
n
d
 A
s
ia
n
 

        
        

        
       

 
 

1
 

        
    1 

    2 
O
th
e
r 
M
ix
e
d
 

        
        

        
       

 
 

        
        

        
    

In
d
ia
n
 

        
        

1
 

        
     

        
        

    1 
    

P
a
k
is
ta
n
i 

        
        

        
       

 
 

        
        

        
    

B
a
n
g
la
d
e
s
h
i 

        
        

        
       

 
 

        
        

        
    

O
th
e
r 
A
s
ia
n
 

        
        

        
       

 
 

        
        

        
    

C
a
ri
b
b
e
a
n
 

        
        

        
       

 
 

        
        

        
    

A
fr
ic
a
n
 

        
        

        
       

 
 

1
 

        
        

    1 
O
th
e
r 
B
la
c
k
 

        
        

        
       

 
 

        
        

1
 

    1 
C
h
in
e
s
e
 

        
        

        
       

 
 

        
        

        
    

O
th
e
r 
e
th
n
ic
 

g
ro
u
p
 

        
        

        
       

 
            

        
        

    
N
o
t 
g
iv
e
n
 

        
        

        
       

 
 

        
        

        
    

T
o
ta
l 

3
 

 
3

 
6

 
1
7

 
4
1

 
4

 
1
7

 
2
1

 
3
3

 
 

 
1
3

 
3
1

 
6
1

 
1
2
8

 

W
e
ls
h
 S
p
e
a
k
e
rs
 

        
        

        
       

 
 

        
        

        
    

 
 

 

27



W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 –
  
V
.4
 

1
8

 

S
E
C
T
IO
N
 C
1
 –
 F
IR
S
T
-T
IM
E
 E
N
T
R
A
N
T
S
 

C
1
.1
 A
s
s
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 e
x
te
n
t 
to
 w
h
ic
h
 t
h
e
 Y
O
T
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 h
a
s
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
d
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
in
g
 f
ir
s
t-
ti
m
e
 e
n
tr
a
n
ts
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 y
o
u
th
 j
u
s
ti
c
e
 

s
y
s
te
m
 a
n
d
 r
e
d
u
c
in
g
 a
n
y
 d
is
p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
a
li
ty
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 c
h
il
d
re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 f
ro
m
 B
la
c
k
 M
in
o
ri
ty
 E
th
n
ic
 (
B
M
E
) 

b
a
c
k
g
ro
u
n
d
s
 

 T
h
e
 t
a
rg
e
t 
s
e
t 
fo
r 
a
ll 
Y
o
u
th
 J
u
s
ti
c
e
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 t
o
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 a
 5
%
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 2
0
0
5
/0
6
-b
a
s
e
lin
e
 f
ig
u
re
 f
o
r 
th
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

fi
rs
t 
ti
m
e
 
e
n
tr
a
n
ts
 
in
 
2
0
0
7
/0
8
. 
T
h
e
 
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 
fo
r 
W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 
a
n
d
 
H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 
w
a
s
 
a
 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 
o
f 
1
7
.1
%
. 
T
h
is
 
c
o
m
p
a
re
s
 

fa
v
o
u
ra
b
ly
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
th
e
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
1
1
%
. 

In
 2
0
0
7
/0
8
 3
%
 o
f 
fi
rs
t 
ti
m
e
 e
n
tr
a
n
ts
 a
c
ro
s
s
 W

o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 w
e
re
 f
ro
m
 B
M
E
 g
ro
u
p
s
 c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 t
o
 a
 B
M
E
 g
ro
u
p
s
 

re
p
re
s
e
n
ti
n
g
 4
.4
5
%
 o
f 
th
e
 y
o
u
th
 p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
. 

T
h
e
 W

o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 Y
o
u
th
 I
n
c
lu
s
io
n
 a
n
d
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 P
a
n
e
l 
(Y
IS
P
) 
w
a
s
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 a
n
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
e
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 A
u
tu
m
n
 2
0
0
7
, 
fr
o
m
 w
h
ic
h
 

th
e
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 g
iv
e
n
 b
y
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 U
s
e
rs
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 w
a
s
 v
e
ry
 p
o
s
it
iv
e
. 
T
h
e
 e
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 c
o
n
fi
rm
e
d
 t
h
e
 Y
IS
P
 w
a
s
 d
e
liv
e
ri
n
g
 p
o
s
it
iv
e
 

o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
, 
in
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
8
6
%
 o
f 
th
e
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 t
h
a
t 
h
a
s
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 a
 Y
IS
P
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 h
a
d
 n
o
t 
o
ff
e
n
d
e
d
 a
t 
th
e
 t
im
e
 

th
e
 e
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 w
a
s
 c
o
n
d
u
c
te
d
. 
T
h
e
 e
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 a
ls
o
 g
a
in
e
d
 t
h
e
 r
e
c
o
g
n
it
io
n
 o
f 
th
e
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
r 
fo
r 
E
n
g
la
n
d
 w
h
o
 v
is
it
e
d
 t
h
e
 

Y
IS
P
 t
e
a
m
 a
n
d
 i
t’
s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 U
s
e
rs
 i
n
 t
h
e
 S
p
ri
n
g
 o
f 
2
0
0
8
. 
T
h
e
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
r 
w
a
s
 a
g
a
in
 v
e
ry
 p
o
s
it
iv
e
. 
T
h
e
 r
e
fe
rr
a
l 

c
ri
te
ri
a
 
fo
r 
a
 
Y
IS
P
 
in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 
in
c
lu
d
e
s
 
th
e
 
y
o
u
n
g
 
p
e
rs
o
n
 
b
e
in
g
 
e
x
p
o
s
e
d
 
to
 
fo
u
r 
o
r 
m
o
re
 
ri
s
k
 
fa
c
to
rs
 
a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 
w
it
h
 
o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 

b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 
a
n
d
 i
s
 i
n
 l
in
e
 w
it
h
 Y
J
B
 “
Y
IS
P
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
G
u
id
a
n
c
e
”.
 

In
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 p
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 o
f 
o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 w
o
rk
 i
s
 c
o
n
d
u
c
te
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 a
 Y
IS
P
 t
y
p
e
 s
tr
u
c
tu
re
, 
th
e
 C
F
 P
a
n
e
l.
 T
h
is
 Y
IS
P
 h
a
s
 a
ls
o
 b
e
e
n
 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
tl
y
 e
v
a
lu
a
te
d
 a
n
d
 f
o
u
n
d
 t
o
 b
e
 d
e
liv
e
ri
n
g
 p
o
s
it
iv
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 i
t 
w
o
rk
s
 w
it
h
. 
T
h
e
 m
a
in
 r
e
fe
rr
a
l 

ro
u
te
 
fo
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 
p
e
o
p
le
 
a
t 
ri
s
k
 
o
f 
e
n
te
ri
n
g
 
th
e
 
y
o
u
th
 
ju
s
ti
c
e
 
s
y
s
te
m
 
is
 
v
ia
 
th
e
 
P
re
v
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 
D
e
te
r 
o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l 
g
ro
u
p
. 
 
S
o
m
e
 
w
o
rk
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 o
n
 r
e
fe
rr
a
ls
 d
u
ri
n
g
 2
0
0
7
/0
8
 f
o
u
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
6
8
%
 h
a
d
 n
o
t 
o
ff
e
n
d
e
d
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 t
h
e
ir
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
. 
A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
is
 f
ig
u
re
 i
s
 

lo
w
e
r 
th
a
n
 f
o
r 
th
e
 W

o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 Y
IS
P
, 
w
h
e
n
 t
h
e
 c
a
s
e
s
 w
e
re
 a
n
a
ly
s
e
d
 i
t 
w
a
s
 f
o
u
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
e
re
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
h
o
rt
 w
h
o
 

w
e
re
 p
re
v
io
u
s
ly
 o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
 a
n
d
 w
e
re
 n
o
t,
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
, 
p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fi
rs
t 
ti
m
e
 e
n
tr
a
n
ts
. 
W
o
rk
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 r
e
fi
n
e
 t
h
e
 r
e
fe
rr
a
l 
c
ri
te
ri
a
 

a
n
d
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 Y
IS
P
. 

T
h
e
 t
a
rg
e
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
o
 b
e
 a
t 
ri
s
k
 o
f 
b
e
c
o
m
in
g
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 o
r 
a
n
ti
 s
o
c
ia
l 

b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r,
 r
e
lie
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
 g
o
o
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 r
e
fe
rr
a
ls
 b
e
in
g
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
, 
fr
o
m
 l
o
c
a
l 
v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 a
n
d
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
. 
If
 a
 

re
fe
rr
a
l 
is
 a
c
c
e
p
te
d
, 
in
 b
o
th
 t
h
e
 W

o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 s
c
h
e
m
e
s
 a
 k
e
y
 w
o
rk
e
r 
w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 f
o
r 
c
o
m
p
le
ti
n
g
 a
n
 i
n
 d
e
p
th
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t,
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 
P
a
re
n
t 
a
n
d
 Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
rs
o
n
 “
O
v
e
r 
to
 Y
o
u
” 
a
n
d
  
th
e
  
O
n
s
e
t 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
to
o
l.
  
A
n
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 p
la
n
 

w
ill
 b
e
 p
u
t 
in
 p
la
c
e
, 
w
h
ic
h
 a
im
s
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 r
is
k
 f
a
c
to
rs
 a
n
d
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 p
ro
te
c
ti
v
e
 f
a
c
to
rs
. 

  

28



W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 –
  
V
.4
 

1
9

 W
it
h
in
 W

o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 c
a
s
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 c
o
lle
c
te
d
 a
n
d
 r
e
c
o
rd
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 Y
IS
P
IS
 d
a
ta
b
a
s
e
. 
U
n
fo
rt
u
n
a
te
ly
 

IT
 c
o
n
s
tr
a
in
ts
 w
it
h
in
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 h
a
v
e
 m

e
a
n
t 
th
a
t 
Y
IS
P
IS
 h
a
s
 n
o
t 
b
e
e
n
 a
b
le
 t
o
 b
e
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 m

a
k
in
g
 d
a
ta
 c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 d
a
ta
 

re
tu
rn
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 Y
J
B
 a
 m
a
n
u
a
l 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 c
o
lla
ti
n
g
 a
g
g
re
g
a
te
 r
e
fe
rr
a
l 
a
n
d
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 m
o
re
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 t
o
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
. 
  

W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 Y
IS
P
 h
a
s
 a
 p
a
re
n
ti
n
g
 k
e
y
 w
o
rk
e
r 
w
h
o
 w
o
rk
s
 a
lo
n
g
s
id
e
 c
a
s
e
 h
o
ld
in
g
 k
e
y
 w
o
rk
e
rs
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 a
 f
a
m
ily
 f
o
c
u
s
s
e
d
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
. 

In
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 p
a
re
n
ti
n
g
 w
o
rk
 w
a
s
 p
a
rt
ly
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 b
y
 a
 t
h
ir
d
 s
e
c
to
r 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
to
 t
h
e
 C
F
 P
a
n
e
l,
 a
n
d
 p
a
rt
ly
 b
y
 t
h
e
 k
e
y
 

w
o
rk
e
rs
. 
T
h
e
 r
o
le
 o
f 
th
e
 C
F
 p
a
n
e
l 
is
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 u
n
d
e
r 
re
v
ie
w
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
to
 e
x
p
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 f
a
m
ily
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

d
ir
e
c
tl
y
. 
In
 
2
0
0
7
/0
8
 
7
0
%
 
o
f 
p
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 
w
e
re
 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 
b
y
 
p
a
re
n
ti
n
g
 
in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 
in
 
W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 
a
n
d
 
1
0
0
%
 
in
 

H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
. 
 

T
h
e
 
Y
IS
P
 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 
in
 
b
o
th
 
H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 
a
n
d
 
W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 
p
ro
m
o
te
 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 
u
s
e
r 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 
p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 
u
s
in
g
 

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 
fr
o
m
 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 
u
s
e
rs
 
to
 
in
fo
rm
 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 
d
e
liv
e
ry
. 
In
 
W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 
u
s
e
rs
 
h
a
v
e
 
re
c
e
n
tl
y
 
b
e
e
n
 
u
s
e
d
 
a
s
 
p
a
rt
 
o
f 
a
n
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
c
e
n
tr
e
 f
o
r 
k
e
y
 w
o
rk
e
r 
re
c
ru
it
m
e
n
t.
 

W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 Y
IS
P
 a
ls
o
 h
a
s
 a
n
 E
a
rl
y
 I
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 K
e
y
w
o
rk
e
r,
 w
h
o
 i
s
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 b
a
s
e
d
 a
t 
a
 t
a
rg
e
te
d
 H
ig
h
 S
c
h
o
o
l 
a
n
d
 m
a
k
e
s
 u
p
 p
a
rt
 o
f 

th
e
 m
u
lt
i 
a
g
e
n
c
y
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
e
a
m
 (
M
A
S
T
).
 O
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 F
a
m
ily
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
, 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 P
s
y
c
h
o
lo
g
is
ts
, 
C
o
n
n
e
x
io
n
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

Y
o
u
th
 S
e
rv
ic
e
. 
T
h
e
 p
ro
je
c
t 
fo
c
u
s
e
s
 o
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 a
tt
a
in
m
e
n
t,
 i
m
p
ro
v
in
g
 b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 
a
n
d
 r
e
d
u
c
in
g
 e
x
c
lu
s
io
n
. 
T
h
e
 

Y
IS
P
 E
 I
 K
e
y
w
o
rk
e
r,
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 a
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 w
o
rk
 l
in
k
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 h
ig
h
 s
c
h
o
o
l.
 

T
h
e
 
P
re
v
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 
D
e
te
r 
S
c
h
e
m
e
s
 
in
 
N
o
rt
h
 
W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
, 
S
o
u
th
 
W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 
a
n
d
 
H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 
to
 
b
e
 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 
in
 

id
e
n
ti
fy
in
g
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
t 
ri
s
k
 o
f 
c
o
m
m
it
ti
n
g
 a
n
ti
-s
o
c
ia
l 
b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 
a
n
d
 c
ri
m
e
 a
n
d
 p
u
tt
in
g
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
. 
T
h
e
 

la
s
t 
s
e
lf
 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 
s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 
to
 
G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
O
ff
ic
e
 
W
e
s
t 
M
id
la
n
d
s
 
ra
te
d
 
a
ll 
th
re
e
 
s
c
h
e
m
e
s
 
a
s
 
g
re
e
n
. 
 
T
h
e
 
H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 

C
o
n
n
e
x
io
n
s
 
ta
rg
e
te
d
 
P
o
s
it
iv
e
 
A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 
fo
r 
Y
o
u
n
g
 
O
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
 
(P
A
Y
P
) 
s
c
h
e
m
e
 
is
 
lin
k
e
d
 
in
to
 
th
e
 
P
re
v
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 
D
e
te
r 
s
c
h
e
m
e
. 
In
 

W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 t
h
e
 Y
O
S
 h
a
s
 p
a
rt
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 a
 P
re
v
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 D
e
te
r 
m
e
n
to
ri
n
g
 p
ro
je
c
t.
 

In
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 o
th
e
r 
in
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
n
g
 t
o
 t
h
is
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 a
re
a
 a
re
 a
 R
e
s
to
ra
ti
v
e
 J
u
s
ti
c
e
 i
n
 S
c
h
o
o
ls
 p
ro
je
c
t,
 l
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 P
o
lic
e
 a
n
d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 Y
O
S
 R
J
 O
ff
ic
e
r,
 t
a
rg
e
ti
n
g
 p
a
re
n
ti
n
g
 w
o
rk
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 P
re
v
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 D
e
te
r 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 Y
O
S
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
o
lic
e
 v
is
it
s
 

to
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
ti
n
g
 a
n
ti
 s
o
c
ia
l 
b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 
a
t 
th
e
 A
B
C
 s
ta
g
e
 o
f 
th
e
 A
S
B
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
. 

In
 
W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 
th
e
 
Y
O
S
 
h
a
s
 
p
ro
m
o
te
d
 
th
e
 
u
s
e
 
o
f 
re
s
to
ra
ti
v
e
 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 
fo
r 
b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 
th
e
 
L
A
 
C
h
ild
re
n
 
H
o
m
e
s
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
y
 a
 j
o
in
t 
P
o
lic
e
, 
C
P
S
, 
Y
O
S
 a
n
d
 C
h
ild
re
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 p
ro
to
c
o
l.
 

T
h
e
 Y
O
S
 i
s
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
n
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 e
m
e
rg
in
g
 T
a
rg
e
te
d
 Y
o
u
th
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 b
o
th
 c
o
u
n
ti
e
s
. 
  

    

29



W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 –
  
V
.4
 

2
0

C
1
.2
 I
d
e
n
ti
fy
 r
is
k
s
 t
o
 f
u
tu
re
 d
e
li
v
e
ry
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 p
la
n
s
 t
o
 o
v
e
rc
o
m
e
 t
h
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 r
is
k
s
 

R
is
k
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 C
ri
te
ri
a
 

O
w
n
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

W
it
h
in
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 

th
e
 o
p
ti
m
u
m
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 f
ir
s
t 

ti
m
e
 e
n
tr
a
n
ts
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

a
tt
a
in
e
d
 c
o
m
p
ro
m
is
in
g
 t
h
e
 

a
b
ili
ty
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 o
n
 o
r 
s
u
s
ta
in
 

c
u
rr
e
n
t 
le
v
e
l 
o
f 
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
. 

In
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te
 w
it
h
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
, 
v
ia
 t
h
e
 L
C
J
B
, 

th
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
o
f 
p
ilo
ti
n
g
 a
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

re
s
o
lu
ti
o
n
 i
n
it
ia
ti
v
e
 (
in
it
ia
ti
v
e
 w
h
ic
h
 d
iv
e
rt
s
 

p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fi
rs
t 
ti
m
e
 e
n
tr
a
n
ts
 t
o
 t
h
e
 y
o
u
th
 

ju
s
ti
c
e
 s
y
s
te
m
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 

re
s
to
ra
ti
v
e
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
s
) 

A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
to
 p
ilo
t 
a
 C
R
 

in
it
ia
ti
v
e
. 

E
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 

re
d
u
c
e
 r
e
c
id
iv
is
m
 i
n
 y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
 e
n
g
a
g
e
d
. 

H
O
S

 
D
e
c
 2
0
0
8

 

E
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
Y
O
S
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 p
ro
m
o
te
 

p
o
s
it
iv
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 o
f 
th
e
 p
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 w
o
rk
. 

R
a
is
e
 a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 o
f 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o
f 
p
re
v
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
 

w
o
rk
 –
 d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
 p
o
s
it
iv
e
 

o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

a
n
d
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
. 

P
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

O
n
g
o
in
g
 t
o
 

3
1
/3
/0
9
 

U
n
c
e
rt
a
in
ti
e
s
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 

a
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
A
re
a
 B
a
s
e
d
 G
ra
n
t 

fu
n
d
in
g
 b
e
y
o
n
d
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 –
 

p
la
c
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 m
o
d
e
l 

a
t 
ri
s
k
 i
n
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 

re
d
u
c
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
n
 

W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
. 

S
c
e
n
a
ri
o
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 f
o
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 

m
o
d
e
l 
if
 A
B
G
 n
o
t 
a
llo
c
a
te
d
 

T
ra
n
s
it
io
n
 t
o
 n
e
w
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 

m
o
d
e
ls
 i
f 
re
q
u
ir
e
d
 

D
H
O
S
 

3
1
/1
2
/0
9
 

A
t 
ri
s
k
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 n
o
t 
b
e
in
g
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
n
d
 o
ff
e
re
d
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

J
o
in
t 
p
la
n
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r 
p
ro
v
is
io
n
 

o
f 
ta
rg
e
te
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
t 

T
ie
r 
2
. 

E
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 T
a
rg
e
te
d
 Y
o
u
th
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 

p
la
c
e
 i
n
 W

o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 

H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
. 

Y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 

n
e
e
d
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
n
d
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 

fo
r.
 

D
H
O
S
 

3
1
/3
/0
9
 

C
1
.3
 I
d
e
n
ti
fy
 w
o
rk
fo
rc
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
s
 t
o
 o
v
e
rc
o
m
e
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
s
 t
o
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

S
k
il
ls
 t
o
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
G
ro
u
p
 

A
c
ti
o
n
  

O
w
n
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
s
k
ill
s

 
N
e
w
 Y
IS
P
 P
ra
c
ti
ti
o
n
e
rs

 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
(O
n
s
e
t 
T
ra
in
in
g
) 

 
P
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

3
1
/1
2
/0
9

 

A
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 o
f 
C
A
F
 

Y
IS
P
 P
ra
c
ti
ti
o
n
e
rs
 

P
ra
c
ti
ti
o
n
e
rs
 t
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
 C
A
F
 

tr
a
in
in
g
/b
ri
e
fi
n
g
s
 

P
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

3
1
/1
2
/0
9
 

C
1
.4
 Y
J
B
 r
is
k
 t
o
 f
u
tu
re
 d
e
li
v
e
ry
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

      
  

30



W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 –
  
V
.4
 

2
1

  

S
E
C
T
IO
N
 C
2
 –
 R
E
O
F
F
E
N
D
IN
G
 

C
2
.1
 A
s
s
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 e
x
te
n
t 
to
 w
h
ic
h
 t
h
e
 Y
O
T
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 h
a
s
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
d
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
in
g
 p
ro
v
e
n
 r
e
o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 b
y
 c
h
il
d
re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
 a
n
d
 r
e
d
u
c
in
g
 a
n
y
 d
is
p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
a
li
ty
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 c
h
il
d
re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 f
ro
m
 B
la
c
k
 M
in
o
ri
ty
 E
th
n
ic
 (
B
M
E
) 

b
a
c
k
g
ro
u
n
d
s
 

 R
e
d
u
c
in
g
 
re
-o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 
h
a
s
 
p
re
v
io
u
s
ly
 
b
e
e
n
 
m
e
a
s
u
re
d
 
b
y
 
tr
a
c
k
in
g
 
a
 
c
o
h
o
rt
 
o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 
o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
 
(a
ll 
y
o
u
n
g
 
p
e
o
p
le
 
re
c
e
iv
in
g
 
a
 

s
u
b
s
ta
n
ti
v
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 o
r 
re
le
a
s
e
d
 f
ro
m
 c
u
s
to
d
y
 d
u
ri
n
g
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
to
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
e
a
c
h
 y
e
a
r)
 f
o
r 
re
-o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 o
v
e
r 
a
 1
2
 m
o
n
th
 p
e
ri
o
d
. 
T
h
e
 

p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 t
a
rg
e
t 
w
a
s
 t
o
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 a
 5
%
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 r
e
-o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 r
a
te
 f
o
r 
th
e
 2
0
0
6
 c
o
h
o
rt
 c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 2
0
0
2
 c
o
h
o
rt
 a
c
ro
s
s
 

e
a
c
h
 o
f 
th
e
 f
o
u
r 
p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
p
re
-c
o
u
rt
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
, 
fi
rs
t 
ti
e
r 
p
e
n
a
lt
ie
s
, 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 p
e
n
a
lt
ie
s
 a
n
d
 c
u
s
to
d
ia
l 
s
e
n
te
n
c
e
s
. 
D
u
e
 t
o
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

in
 t
h
e
 m
e
th
o
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 p
ro
v
e
n
 r
a
te
 o
f 
re
-o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 w
ill
 b
e
 m
e
a
s
u
re
d
 f
o
r 
N
I 
1
9
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
t 
to
 a
n
a
ly
s
e
 a
 n
e
w
 b
a
s
e
lin
e
 c
o
h
o
rt
, 

th
e
re
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 n
o
 r
e
c
id
iv
is
m
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
 f
o
r 
2
0
0
6
 c
o
h
o
rt
. 
T
h
e
 l
a
s
t 
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 d
a
ta
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 i
s
, 
th
e
re
fo
re
, 
th
a
t 
fo
r 
th
e
 2
0
0
5
 c
o
h
o
rt
. 

A
 c
o
m
p
a
ri
s
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 1
2
 m
o
n
th
 r
e
c
id
iv
is
m
 r
a
te
s
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 2
0
0
2
 c
o
h
o
rt
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 2
0
0
5
 c
o
h
o
rt
 r
e
v
e
a
l 
th
a
t 
th
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
re
c
id
iv
is
m
 h
a
s
 

in
c
re
a
s
e
d
 f
ro
m
 3
7
.7
%
 i
n
 2
0
0
2
 t
o
 4
5
.9
%
 2
0
0
5
. 
It
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 n
o
te
d
, 
h
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
re
 i
s
 n
o
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
th
is
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
s
 a
 t
re
n
d
 a
s
 

th
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
re
c
id
iv
is
m
 r
a
te
s
 f
o
r 
e
a
c
h
 o
f 
c
o
h
o
rt
s
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 2
0
0
5
 a
n
d
 2
0
0
6
 a
re
 a
s
 f
o
llo
w
s
: 

•
 
2
0
0
2
 –
 3
7
.7
%
 

•
 
2
0
0
3
 –
 4
2
.0
%
 

•
 
2
0
0
4
 –
 3
7
.1
%
 

•
 
2
0
0
5
 –
 4
5
.9
%
 

W
h
ils
t 
th
is
 w
a
s
 t
h
e
 m

e
th
o
d
o
lo
g
y
 u
s
e
d
 p
re
v
io
u
s
ly
 t
o
 e
v
a
lu
a
te
 t
h
e
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
th
e
 Y
O
S
 i
n
 t
e
rm
s
 o
f 
re
-o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 h
a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 r
a
is
e
d
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 r
e
lia
b
ili
ty
 o
f 
th
e
s
e
 f
in
d
in
g
s
. 
S
m
a
ll 
c
o
h
o
rt
s
, 
a
 m

e
th
o
d
o
lo
g
y
 w
h
ic
h
 h
a
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
o
f 
c
o
m
p
a
ri
n
g
 u
n
re
la
te
d
 

c
o
h
o
rt
s
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
c
o
n
tr
o
l 
o
f 
o
th
e
r 
v
a
ri
a
b
le
s
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
p
ro
b
le
m
s
 a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
c
h
a
n
g
in
g
 p
o
lic
y
 a
n
d
 t
a
rg
e
ts
, 
fo
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 
o
f 
th
e
 
P
ro
lif
ic
 
a
n
d
 
O
th
e
r 
P
ri
o
ri
ty
 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 
a
n
d
 
th
e
 
O
ff
e
n
c
e
s
 
B
ro
u
g
h
t 
to
 
J
u
s
ti
c
e
 
ta
rg
e
ts
 
ra
is
e
 
s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
p
ro
b
le
m
s
 

re
g
a
rd
in
g
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 c
o
m
p
a
ri
s
o
n
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
h
o
rt
s
. 

D
e
s
p
it
e
 t
h
is
 h
e
a
lt
h
 w
a
rn
in
g
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
p
a
ri
s
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 1
2
 m
o
n
th
 r
e
c
id
iv
is
m
 r
a
te
s
 i
n
 W

o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 2
0
0
2
 a
n
d
 

2
0
0
5
 c
o
h
o
rt
s
 s
h
o
w
s
 t
h
a
t 
re
-o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 l
e
v
e
ls
 f
o
r 
fi
rs
t 
ti
e
r 
p
e
n
a
lt
ie
s
 a
n
d
 c
u
s
to
d
y
 h
a
v
e
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
. 
C
o
n
v
e
rs
e
ly
, 
re
-o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 l
e
v
e
ls
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 p
re
-c
o
u
rt
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 p
e
n
a
lt
ie
s
 h
a
v
e
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
. 

  

31



W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 –
  
V
.4
 

2
2

R
e
-O
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 A
ft
e
r 
1
2
 M
o
n
th
s

0
1
0
2
0
3
0
4
0
5
0
6
0
7
0
8
0
9
0

1
0
0

Pre-Court

Disposals

First Tier

Disposals

Community

Penalties

Custody

Overall

Percentage Re-Offending

2
0
0
2
 C
o
h
o
rt

2
0
0
5
 C
o
h
o
rt

 

In
 2
0
0
7
/8
 t
h
e
 Y
O
S
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 a
 r
e
c
id
iv
is
m
 w
o
rk
in
g
 g
ro
u
p
, 
w
h
ic
h
 u
n
d
e
rt
o
o
k
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
a
n
a
ly
s
e
s
 i
n
 a
tt
e
m
p
t 
to
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 

fa
c
to
rs
 l
in
k
e
d
 t
o
 r
e
-o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 r
e
c
e
iv
in
g
 p
re
-c
o
u
rt
 d
is
p
o
s
a
ls
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 p
e
n
a
lt
ie
s
. 
T
h
e
 w
o
rk
 

re
m
a
in
s
 i
n
c
o
n
c
lu
s
iv
e
 d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 m
a
n
y
 v
a
ri
a
b
le
s
 w
h
ic
h
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 i
n
a
b
ili
ty
 t
o
 c
o
n
tr
o
l 
fo
r 
th
e
s
e
. 
 

A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 r
e
-o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 f
ig
u
re
s
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 c
u
s
to
d
y
 (
7
3
%
) 
a
n
d
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 I
S
S
P
 (
7
8
%
) 
a
re
 h
ig
h
, 

th
e
y
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
 s
m
a
ll 
n
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
, 
1
5
 a
n
d
 9
 r
e
s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 w
a
s
 l
e
s
s
 f
re
q
u
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 l
e
s
s
 s
e
ri
o
u
s
 i
n
 o
v
e
r 
5
5
%
 

o
f 
c
a
s
e
s
. 
O
f 
c
o
n
c
e
rn
 
a
re
 
th
e
 
n
u
m
b
e
rs
 
o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 
o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
 
w
h
o
 
re
-o
ff
e
n
d
 
o
n
 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 
p
e
n
a
lt
ie
s
. 
It
 
is
 
p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 
to
 
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 
a
 

b
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
in
g
 e
x
e
rc
is
e
 w
it
h
 y
o
u
th
 o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re
 p
e
rf
o
rm
in
g
 b
e
tt
e
r 
th
a
n
 W

o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 Y
O
S
 i
n
 t
e
rm
s
 

o
f 
re
c
id
iv
is
m
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 p
e
n
a
lt
ie
s
. 

A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 B
M
E
 g
ro
u
p
s
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
a
re
 n
o
t 
o
v
e
r 
re
p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 y
o
u
th
 o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 i
n
 W

o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 w
h
e
n
 

in
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
B
M
E
 g
ro
u
p
s
 a
re
 a
n
a
ly
s
e
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 o
f 
m
ix
e
d
 e
th
n
ic
it
y
 w
e
re
 t
h
e
 m
o
s
t 
o
v
e
r-
re
p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 e
th
n
ic
 g
ro
u
p
 i
n
 2
0
0
6
/7
. 
W
h
e
n
 

w
e
 l
o
o
k
 a
t 
th
is
 e
th
n
ic
 g
ro
u
p
 i
n
 t
h
e
 o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
, 
w
e
 s
e
e
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
ir
 o
v
e
r-
re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 d
e
c
re
a
s
e
d
 f
ro
m
 0
.9
%
 i
n
 2
0
0
6
/7
 t
o
 0
.4
%
 

in
 2
0
0
7
/8
, 
a
 d
if
fe
re
n
c
e
 o
f 
-0
.5
%
. 
T
h
e
 a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 Y
J
B
 s
ta
ti
s
ti
c
a
l 
te
s
t 
s
h
o
w
s
 c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 a
t 
8
2
%
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 d
e
c
re
a
s
e
 i
s
 s
ta
ti
s
ti
c
a
lly
 

s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t.
  
  

A
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
G
ro
u
p
 f
o
r 
R
e
fe
rr
a
l 
O
rd
e
rs
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 s
e
t 
u
p
 i
n
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 e
x
e
rc
is
e
 c
o
n
d
u
c
te
d
 r
e
c
e
n
tl
y
 b
y
 t
h
e
 

Y
J
B
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 s
u
c
h
 O
rd
e
rs
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 C
ri
m
in
a
l 
J
u
s
ti
c
e
 a
n
d
 I
m
m
ig
ra
ti
o
n
 A
c
t.
 M
e
m
b
e
rs
h
ip
 

o
f 
th
e
 
g
ro
u
p
 
re
p
re
s
e
n
ts
 
v
a
ri
o
u
s
 
in
te
re
s
t 
g
ro
u
p
s
 
a
n
d
 
in
c
lu
d
e
s
 
p
a
rt
n
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 
(i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 
C
h
ild
re
n
’s
’ 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
th
e
 
P
o
lic
e
),
 
a
 

M
a
g
is
tr
a
te
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 V
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 S
e
c
to
r 
(i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 V
ic
ti
m
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
).
 R
e
c
id
iv
is
m
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
 s
ta
n
d
in
g
 a
g
e
n
d
a
 i
te
m
. 
A
 t
a
rg
e
te
d
 

re
c
ru
it
m
e
n
t 
e
x
e
rc
is
e
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 d
iv
e
rs
it
y
 o
f 
lo
c
a
l 
p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
s
 i
s
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 b
o
d
y
 o
f 
v
o
lu
n
te
e
r 

P
a
n
e
l 
M
e
m
b
e
rs
. 

32



W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 –
  
V
.4
 

2
3

 D
is
e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
fr
o
m
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
tr
a
in
in
g
 o
r 
e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 s
h
o
w
n
 t
o
 b
e
 a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
ri
s
k
 f
a
c
to
r 
fo
r 
o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r.
 T
h
e
re
 

h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 s
te
a
d
y
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 i
n
 i
m
p
ro
v
in
g
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 i
n
 t
h
is
 a
re
a
 s
in
c
e
 t
h
e
 s
e
c
o
n
d
 q
u
a
rt
e
r 
2
0
0
6
/7
. 
 I
n
 2
0
0
6
/0
7
 t
h
e
 Y
O
S
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

a
g
a
in
s
t 
th
e
 
E
T
E
 
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 
in
d
ic
a
to
r 
w
a
s
 
6
6
.4
%
. 
In
 
2
0
0
7
/0
8
 
th
e
 
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 
in
c
re
a
s
e
d
 
to
 
7
8
.7
%
. 
T
h
e
 
Y
O
S
 
is
 
p
e
rf
o
rm
in
g
 

s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
tl
y
 m
o
re
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
 w
it
h
 t
h
o
s
e
 o
f 
s
ta
tu
to
ry
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
a
g
e
 (
8
9
.9
%
) 
th
a
n
 t
h
o
s
e
 o
v
e
r 
(7
1
.4
%
).
  
A
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t,
 t
ra
in
in
g
 o
r 

le
a
rn
in
g
 p
la
c
e
m
e
n
ts
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
th
o
s
e
 o
v
e
r 
s
ta
tu
to
ry
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
a
g
e
 r
e
m
a
in
s
 o
n
e
 o
f 
th
e
 m

o
s
t 
s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
b
a
rr
ie
rs
 t
o
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 

p
re
v
io
u
s
 
n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
ta
rg
e
t 
o
f 
9
0
%
. 
A
 
Y
O
S
 
m
u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 
s
te
e
ri
n
g
 
g
ro
u
p
 
o
v
e
rs
e
e
s
 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 
p
ro
v
is
io
n
, 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 
a
c
ti
o
n
 
p
la
n
s
 
fo
r 

in
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
c
a
s
e
s
. 
R
e
s
e
a
rc
h
 
in
to
 
th
e
 
b
a
rr
ie
rs
 
fo
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 
p
e
o
p
le
 
in
 
a
c
c
e
s
s
in
g
 
a
n
d
 
e
n
g
a
g
in
g
 
in
 
E
T
E
 
fo
r 
th
o
s
e
 
a
g
e
d
 
1
6
 
p
lu
s
 
w
a
s
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 
in
 
2
0
0
7
. 
T
h
e
 
re
s
e
a
rc
h
 
fo
u
n
d
 
th
a
t 
th
e
 
N
E
E
T
 
g
ro
u
p
 
o
f 
o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
 
h
a
d
 
lo
w
 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
tt
a
in
m
e
n
t,
 
d
is
ru
p
te
d
 
fa
m
ily
 

b
a
c
k
g
ro
u
n
d
s
, 
s
u
b
s
ta
n
c
e
 m

is
u
s
e
 o
r 
b
e
h
a
v
io
u
ra
l 
is
s
u
e
s
. 
In
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
, 
d
u
ri
n
g
 2
0
0
7
/8
 t
h
e
 N
g
a
g
e
 p
ro
je
c
t 
w
a
s
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

y
o
u
n
g
 o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
 a
g
e
d
 1
6
+
 i
n
 f
in
d
in
g
 a
n
d
 s
u
s
ta
in
in
g
 E
T
E
 p
la
c
e
m
e
n
ts
. 
S
in
c
e
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
is
 p
ro
je
c
t,
 t
h
e
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 f
o
r 

th
o
s
e
 a
g
e
d
 1
6
+
 h
a
s
 r
is
e
n
 f
ro
m
 6
5
%
 i
n
 q
u
a
rt
e
r 
2
 t
o
 7
1
.4
%
 q
u
a
rt
e
r 
3
 a
n
d
 7
9
.4
%
 i
n
 q
u
a
rt
e
r 
4
. 
 

T
h
e
 Y
O
S
 h
a
s
 c
o
n
s
is
te
n
tl
y
 p
e
rf
o
rm
e
d
 w
e
ll 
a
g
a
in
s
t 
M
e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 K
P
Is
, 
m
a
in
ta
in
in
g
 t
h
is
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 i
n
 2
0
0
7
/8
. 
A
ll 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 

a
c
u
te
 m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 p
ro
b
le
m
s
 h
a
d
 a
n
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
th
a
t 
c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 5
 w
o
rk
in
g
 d
a
y
s
. 
V
e
ri
fi
e
d
 f
ig
u
re
s
 s
o
 f
a
r 
s
h
o
w
 t
h
a
t 
1
0
0
%
 o
f 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 n
o
n
-a
c
u
te
 m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h

 
h
a
d
 a
n
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t,
 w
h
ic
h
 c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 1
5
 w
o
rk
in
g
 d
a
y
s
 o
f 
re
fe
rr
a
l.
 M
a
in
ta
in
in
g
 a
 

h
ig
h
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
n
 t
h
is
 a
re
a
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 b
y
 e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 g
o
o
d
 l
in
k
a
g
e
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 C
A
M
H
S
 a
n
d
 E
a
rl
y
 I
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 p
s
y
c
h
o
s
is
 

te
a
m
s
, 
e
n
a
b
lin
g
 
p
ro
m
p
t 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t,
 
re
fe
rr
a
l 
a
n
d
 
in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
. 
N
e
w
 
jo
in
t 
p
ro
to
c
o
ls
 
re
g
a
rd
in
g
 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 
to
 
m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 Y
O
S
 a
n
d
 P
C
T
s
 i
n
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 W

o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 w
e
re
 p
u
t 
in
 p
la
c
e
 i
n
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
8
. 

T
h
e
 
Y
O
S
 
e
m
p
lo
y
s
 
fo
u
r 
s
u
b
s
ta
n
c
e
 
m
is
u
s
e
 
w
o
rk
e
rs
, 
th
re
e
 
w
o
rk
in
g
 
a
c
ro
s
s
 
W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 
a
n
d
 
o
n
e
 
in
 
H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
. 
T
h
e
 
w
o
rk
e
rs
 

a
d
d
it
io
n
a
lly
 
w
o
rk
 
a
s
 
p
a
rt
 
o
f 
th
e
 
o
v
e
ra
ll 
y
o
u
n
g
 
p
e
o
p
le
’s
 
s
u
b
s
ta
n
c
e
 
m
is
u
s
e
 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
S
P
A
C
E
 
in
 
W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 
a
n
d
 
Z
ig
 
Z
a
g
 
in
 

H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
, 
e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 b
a
s
e
d
 t
re
a
tm
e
n
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
D
u
ri
n
g
 2
0
0
7
/0
8
 1
0
0
%
 o
f 
c
a
s
e
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
in
g
 a
 s
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 
S
M
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
re
c
e
iv
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
w
it
h
in
 f
iv
e
 d
a
y
s
 o
f 
re
fe
rr
a
l,
 a
n
d
 9
8
.2
%
 c
a
s
e
s
 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
in
g
 a
 T
ie
r 
3
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 h
a
d
 

th
a
t 
in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 1
0
 d
a
y
s
 o
f 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t.
 I
n
 2
0
0
7
 a
 S
M
 t
ra
in
in
g
 n
e
e
d
s
 a
u
d
it
 w
a
s
 c
o
n
d
u
c
te
d
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 Y
O
S
. 
It
 i
s
 t
h
e
 

in
te
n
ti
o
n
 t
o
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 t
ra
in
in
g
, 
v
ia
 M
e
rc
ia
 N
e
t 
to
 m
e
e
t 
th
e
 t
ra
in
in
g
 n
e
e
d
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
. 

In
 2
0
0
8
 t
h
e
 Y
O
S
 h
a
s
 c
o
n
v
e
n
e
d
 a
n
 I
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 W

o
rk
in
g
 g
ro
u
p
 t
o
 e
v
a
lu
a
te
d
 t
h
e
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 u
s
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 Y
O
S
, 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 

q
u
a
lit
y
 
a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 
fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
 
fo
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 
in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 
w
o
rk
 
a
n
d
 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
 
th
e
 
“P
a
th
w
a
y
s
” 
im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 
p
la
n
s
 
fo
r 
e
a
c
h
 
te
a
m
. 

P
a
th
w
a
y
s
 i
s
 a
 m
o
d
u
la
r 
c
o
g
n
it
iv
e
-b
e
h
a
v
io
u
ra
l 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 w
h
ic
h
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 e
v
a
lu
a
te
d
 a
s
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 b
y
 o
th
e
r 
y
o
u
th
 o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
n
d
 

in
 w
h
ic
h
 t
h
e
 m
a
jo
ri
ty
 o
f 
p
ra
c
ti
ti
o
n
e
rs
 i
n
 t
h
e
 Y
O
S
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 t
ra
in
e
d
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r.
  

   

33



W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 –
  
V
.4
 

2
4

C
2
.2
 I
d
e
n
ti
fy
 r
is
k
s
 t
o
 f
u
tu
re
 d
e
li
v
e
ry
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 p
la
n
s
 t
o
 o
v
e
rc
o
m
e
 t
h
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 r
is
k
s
 

R
is
k
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 C
ri
te
ri
a
 

O
w
n
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

Y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 E
T
E
 f
ig
u
re
s
 d
o
n
’t
 

in
c
re
a
s
e
 

M
a
in
ta
in
 e
m
p
h
a
s
is
 o
n
 N
G
A
G
E
 

w
o
rk
 

M
a
in
ta
in
in
g
 o
r 
in
c
re
a
s
in
g
 

p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 q
u
a
rt
e
r 
b
y
 

q
u
a
rt
e
r 
u
n
ti
l 
ta
rg
e
t 
o
f 
9
0
%
 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
In
c
re
a
s
e
d
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 

o
f 
y
p
 e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 i
n
 E
T
E
. 

H
O
S
 

3
1
/3
/0
9
 

N
u
m
b
e
rs
 i
n
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 f
a
ll 
a
g
a
in
s
t 

p
re
v
io
u
s
 h
ig
h
 r
a
te
s

 

E
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
m
a
in
s
tr
e
a
m
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
c
u
s
 o
n
 m
a
in
ta
in
in
g
 

p
ro
g
re
s
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
is
 a
g
e
 g
ro
u
p
 

S
c
h
o
o
l 
a
g
e
 g
ro
u
p
 m
a
in
ta
in
 

le
v
e
ls
 o
f 
E
T
E
 a
b
o
v
e
 t
a
rg
e
t 
%

 

L
e
a
d
 o
n
 

E
T
E
 

 

3
1
/3
/0
9

 

R
e
-o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
 r
e
m
a
in
s
 

in
c
o
n
c
lu
s
iv
e
, 
m
e
a
n
in
g
 Y
O
S
 c
a
n
’t
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 

k
e
y
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 

B
e
n
c
h
 m
a
rk
 g
o
o
d
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 o
f 

h
ig
h
e
r 
p
e
rf
o
rm
in
g
 Y
O
S
 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
b
e
s
t 

p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 a
n
d
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
. 

In
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
 o
f 

y
o
u
n
g
 o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
 n
o
t 
re
-

o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 

In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
r 

3
1
/1
2
/0
8
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 s
e
n
te
n
c
e
s
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 

h
ig
h
 r
a
te
s
 o
f 
re
-o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
t 
u
s
e
 o
f 
p
a
th
w
a
y
s
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 m
o
re
 r
o
b
u
s
tl
y
 

  

In
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
 o
f 

y
o
u
n
g
 o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
 n
o
t 
re
-

o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 

A
T
M
’s
 

   

3
1
/1
0
/0
8
 

   

Q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 d
e
te
ri
o
ra
te
s
 

Q
u
a
lit
y
 a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 

fo
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 

C
o
n
s
is
te
n
t 
d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
h
ig
h
 

q
u
a
lit
y
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
. 
E
n
s
u
re
 

e
q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 

a
c
ro
s
s
 a
ll 
a
re
a
 t
e
a
m
s
 

D
H
O
S
 

3
1
/1
2
/0
9
 

C
u
rr
e
n
t 
ri
s
k
 l
e
d
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 i
n
 Y
O
S
 a
n
d
 

S
c
a
le
d
 A
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 (
A
p
ri
l 
0
9
) 
m
a
y
 i
m
p
a
c
t 

n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
ly
 o
n
 r
e
c
id
iv
is
m
 r
a
te
s
 o
f 
m
e
d
iu
m
 

ri
s
k
 o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
. 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
jo
in
t 

o
ff
e
n
d
e
r 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
in
it
ia
ti
v
e
 

w
it
h
 W

e
s
t 
M
e
rc
ia
 C
o
n
s
ta
b
u
la
ry
 

R
a
te
 o
f 
re
-o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 o
f 

m
e
d
iu
m
 r
is
k
 o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
 

m
a
in
ta
in
e
d
 o
r 
im
p
ro
v
e
d
 –
 

le
s
s
 m
e
d
iu
m
 r
is
k
 o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
 

re
-o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 a
ft
e
r 

in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
. 

    

H
O
S
 

3
1
/3
/0
9
 

34



W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 –
  
V
.4
 

2
5

C
2
.3
 I
d
e
n
ti
fy
 w
o
rk
fo
rc
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
s
 t
o
 o
v
e
rc
o
m
e
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
s
 t
o
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

S
k
il
ls
 t
o
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
G
ro
u
p
 

A
c
ti
o
n
  

O
w
n
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

G
ro
u
p
 w
o
rk
 s
k
ill
s
 

 
Y
O
S
 s
ta
ff
 d
e
liv
e
ri
n
g
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 s
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 

S
k
ill
s
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
 d
u
ri
n
g
 s
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 a
n
d
 a
n
y
 

d
e
fi
c
it
 a
d
d
re
s
s
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 S
R
D
 p
ro
c
e
s
s

 

A
T
M
’s
 

O
n
g
o
in
g
 

R
e
fe
rr
a
l 
O
rd
e
r 
P
a
n
e
l 

c
h
a
ir
in
g
 –
p
la
n
n
in
g
 

in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 

N
e
w
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 P
a
n
e
l 

M
e
m
b
e
rs
 

In
it
ia
l 
R
O
 P
a
n
e
l 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
T
ra
in
in
g
 

L
e
a
d
 f
o
r 

R
O
s
 

b
y
 3
1
/3
/0
9
 

M
a
in
s
tr
e
a
m
in
g
 S
M
 T
ie
rs
 1
 

a
n
d
 2
 I
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 

Y
O
S
 P
ra
c
ti
ti
o
n
e
rs
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 o
f 
tr
a
in
in
g
 t
o
 m
e
e
t 
n
e
e
d
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 S
M
 a
u
d
it
 

D
H
O
S
 

b
y
 3
1
/3
/0
9
 

Id
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
M
e
n
ta
l 

H
e
a
lt
h
 i
s
s
u
e
/m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 

s
c
re
e
n
in
g
 

Y
O
S
 P
ra
c
ti
ti
o
n
e
rs
 

D
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
M
e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 I
n
s
e
t 
T
ra
in
in
g
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

M
H
 

b
y
 3
1
/3
/0
9
 

C
2
.4
 Y
J
B
 r
is
k
 t
o
 f
u
tu
re
 d
e
li
v
e
ry
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

      
   

35



W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 –
  
V
.4
 

2
6

 

S
E
C
T
IO
N
 C
3
 -
 C
U
S
T
O
D
Y
 

C
3
.1
 A
s
s
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 e
x
te
n
t 
to
 w
h
ic
h
 t
h
e
 Y
O
T
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 h
a
s
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
d
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
in
g
 t
h
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 
y
o
u
th
 c
u
s
to
d
ia
l 
re
m
a
n
d
s
 a
n
d
 

s
e
n
te
n
c
e
s
 a
n
d
 r
e
d
u
c
in
g
 a
n
y
 d
is
p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
a
li
ty
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 c
h
il
d
re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 f
ro
m
 B
la
c
k
 M
in
o
ri
ty
 E
th
n
ic
 (
B
M
E
) 

b
a
c
k
g
ro
u
n
d
s
 

 T
h
e
 p
re
v
io
u
s
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 r
e
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 t
h
is
 a
re
a
 o
f 
w
o
rk
 a
re
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 s
e
c
u
re
 e
s
ta
te
 f
o
r 
re
m
a
n
d
s
 t
o
 9
%
 o
f 
th
e
 

to
ta
l 
n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
re
m
a
n
d
s
 e
x
c
lu
d
in
g
 u
n
c
o
n
d
it
io
n
a
l 
b
a
il,
 a
n
d
 f
o
r 
c
u
s
to
d
ia
l 
s
e
n
te
n
c
e
s
 t
o
 n
o
 m
o
re
 t
h
a
n
 5
%
 o
f 
a
ll 
s
e
n
te
n
c
e
s
 i
m
p
o
s
e
d
. 
 I
n
 

2
0
0
7
/0
8
 t
h
e
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 s
e
c
u
re
 r
e
m
a
n
d
s
 w
a
s
 1
0
.7
%
, 
1
.7
 p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 p
o
in
ts
 o
ff
 o
f 
th
e
 t
a
rg
e
t 
a
n
d
 c
u
s
to
d
ia
l 
s
e
n
te
n
c
e
s
 

a
c
c
o
u
n
te
d
 f
o
r 
3
.4
%
 o
f 
a
ll 
s
e
n
te
n
c
e
s
. 

 T
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 h
ig
h
e
r 
p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
a
te
 u
s
e
 o
f 
c
u
s
to
d
y
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 f
ro
m
 a
 B
M
E
 b
a
c
k
g
ro
u
n
d
. 
T
h
is
, 
h
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 i
s
 p
ri
m
a
ri
ly
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

N
o
rt
h
 W

o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
re
a
 w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 h
ig
h
e
r 
p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
 o
f 
B
M
E
 g
ro
u
p
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 
p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
n
 t
h
e
 a
v
e
ra
g
e
 f
o
r 
th
e
 w
h
o
le
 

Y
O
S
 a
re
a
. 
M
o
re
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
 n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 b
e
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 d
e
te
rm
in
e
 t
h
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 b
e
h
in
d
 t
h
is

 
d
is
p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
a
lit
y
. 

 T
h
e
 E
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 P
ra
c
ti
c
e
 a
n
d
 Q
u
a
lit
y
 A
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 (
E
P
Q
A
) 
re
v
ie
w
, 
w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
 Y
O
S
 i
s
 a
u
d
it
e
d
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
1
6
 k
e
y
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 o
f 
q
u
a
lit
y
, 

 t
h
e
 Y
O
S
, 
s
c
o
re
d
 2
 f
o
r 
re
s
e
tt
le
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 3
 f
o
r 
re
m
a
n
d
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
(o
n
 a
 s
c
a
le
 o
f 
0
 t
o
 3
).
 

 In
 t
h
e
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
8
 c
a
s
e
 a
u
d
it
 f
o
r 
E
P
Q
A
 8
4
%
 o
f 
c
a
s
e
s
 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a
s
 a
t 
ri
s
k
 o
f 
a
 r
e
m
a
n
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s
e
c
u
re
 e
s
ta
te
 h
a
d
 b
a
il 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 

s
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 o
ff
e
re
d
 a
t 
fi
rs
t 
a
p
p
e
a
ra
n
c
e
, 
6
4
%
 o
f 
c
a
s
e
s
 w
h
e
re
 a
 r
e
m
a
n
d
 t
o
 c
u
s
to
d
y
 w
a
s
 m
a
d
e
 h
a
d
 s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t 
b
a
il 
a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 m
a
d
e
. 
 

 T
h
e
re
 
is
 
a
n
 
in
te
r-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 
re
m
a
n
d
 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
 
in
 
p
la
c
e
 
m
o
n
it
o
re
d
 
a
n
d
 
re
g
u
la
rl
y
 
re
v
ie
w
e
d
 
b
y
 
th
e
 
W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 
a
n
d
 

H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 Y
o
u
th
 J
u
s
ti
c
e
 F
o
ru
m
 (
Y
J
F
).
  

 U
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 
Y
O
S
 
re
m
a
n
d
 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 
th
e
 
b
a
il 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 
o
ff
ic
e
rs
 
c
h
e
c
k
 
w
it
h
 
th
e
 
P
o
lic
e
 
c
u
s
to
d
y
 
s
u
it
e
s
 
e
a
c
h
 
m
o
rn
in
g
 
to
 

a
s
c
e
rt
a
in
 w
h
e
th
e
r 
th
e
re
 a
re
 a
n
y
 u
n
e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 d
u
e
 t
o
 b
e
 p
la
c
e
d
 b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
rt
 a
n
d
 t
o
 c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
 a
 b
a
il 
s
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t.
 B
a
il 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
m
e
e
t 
re
q
u
ir
e
d
 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 (
1
0
0
%
 i
n
 b
o
th
 t
h
e
 2
0
0
6
 

a
n
d
 2
0
0
7
 N
S
 a
u
d
it
s
).
 T
h
e
 E
P
Q
A
 a
u
d
it
 r
e
v
e
a
le
d
 t
h
e
 b
a
il 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 w
e
re
 t
a
ilo
re
d
 t
o
 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 n
e
e
d
s
 i
n
 1
0
0
%
 o
f 
c
a
s
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 

p
ro
v
id
e
d
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
 C
o
u
rt
 i
n
 1
0
0
%
 o
f 
c
a
s
e
s
 w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
re
 a
 r
is
k
 o
f 
fa
ilu
re
 t
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
 c
o
u
rt
 h
a
d
 b
e
e
n
 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
. 

  A
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 W

e
s
t 
M
e
rc
ia
 I
n
te
n
s
iv
e
 S
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 a
n
d
 S
u
rv
e
ill
a
n
c
e
 P
ro
je
c
t 
(I
S
S
P
) 
W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 Y
O
S
 h
a
d
 4
0
 

IS
S
P
 s
ta
rt
s
 d
u
ri
n
g
 2
0
0
7
/0
8
. 
 I
S
S
P
 r
e
m
a
in
s
 a
 c
re
d
ib
le
 a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 t
o
 c
u
s
to
d
y
 a
n
d
 p
o
s
it
iv
e
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 I
S
S
P
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 g
iv
e
n
 b
y
 Y
o
u
th
 P
a
n
e
l 
C
h
a
ir
m
e
n
 w
h
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
 t
h
e
 W

o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 Y
o
u
th
 J
u
s
ti
c
e
 F
o
ru
m
. 
T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 

m
o
d
e
l 
fo
r 
IS
S
P
 w
a
s
 r
e
v
is
e
d
 i
n
 J
u
n
e
 2
0
0
8
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 a
 r
e
v
ie
w
 i
n
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
8
. 

36



W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 –
  
V
.4
 

2
7

   T
h
e
 c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 o
f 
M
a
g
is
tr
a
te
s
 i
s
 g
e
n
e
ra
lly
 h
ig
h
. 
In
 a
 r
e
c
e
n
t 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 s
u
rv
e
y
 
th
e
 f
o
u
r 
b
e
n
c
h
e
s
 s
c
o
re
d
 t
h
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 o
f 

th
e
 Y
O
S
 a
s
 g
o
o
d
, 
w
it
h
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 &
 p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
lis
m
 o
f 
Y
O
S
 C
o
u
rt
 S
ta
ff
 &
 t
h
e
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
P
S
R
’s
. 
T
h
is
 i
s
 

re
fl
e
c
te
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 h
ig
h
 c
o
n
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 i
n
 P
S
R
s
 a
n
d
 f
in
a
l 
s
e
n
te
n
c
e
, 
w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 8
0
%
. 

 A
ll 
P
S
R
s
 f
o
r 
“s
o
 s
e
ri
o
u
s
” 
a
n
d
 “
a
ll 
o
p
ti
o
n
” 
P
S
R
s
 a
re
 m
o
n
it
o
re
d
 a
n
d
 c
o
u
n
te
r 
s
ig
n
e
d
 b
y
 a
n
 A
re
a
 T
e
a
m
 M
a
n
a
g
e
r.
 

 T
h
e
 Y
O
S
 i
s
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 a
t 
C
o
u
rt
 U
s
e
r 
G
ro
u
p
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
, 
Y
o
u
th
 P
a
n
e
l 
M
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 W

e
s
t 
M
e
rc
ia
 Y
o
u
th
 P
a
n
e
l 
C
h
a
ir
s
 M
e
e
ti
n
g
. 
 

 T
h
e
re
 i
s
 n
o
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 r
e
m
a
n
d
e
d
 i
n
 e
it
h
e
r 
c
o
u
n
ty
. 
In
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

re
m
a
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 L
o
c
a
l 
A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 A
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 W

o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
re
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
te
d
 a
t 
a
 L
A
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 U
n
it
. 
 

 In
 
H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 
th
e
re
 
h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n
 
tw
o
 
o
c
c
a
s
io
n
s
 
in
 
th
e
 
la
s
t 
y
e
a
r 
w
h
e
n
 
s
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 
o
rd
e
rs
 
h
a
v
e
 
b
e
e
n
 
a
c
c
o
m
p
a
n
ie
d
 
b
y
 
re
s
id
e
n
c
e
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 u
s
in
g
 c
iv
il 
s
e
c
u
re
 o
rd
e
rs
 t
o
 m
e
e
t 
th
e
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 d
is
tu
rb
e
d
 b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r,
 w
it
h
 a
 n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 
s
ta
b
ili
ty
 

a
n
d
 p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
. 
H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 a
re
 a
ls
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
ri
n
g
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 f
o
s
te
r 
c
a
re
rs
 t
o
 a
c
t 
a
s
 a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 s
e
c
u
re
 

e
s
ta
te
 f
o
r 
re
m
a
n
d
s
. 

 T
h
e
 Y
O
S
 A
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 P
o
s
t 
is
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 v
a
c
a
n
t 
fo
llo
w
in
g
 u
n
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
re
c
ru
it
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
. 
T
h
e
 Y
O
S
 i
s
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 t
o
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te
 

th
e
 p
o
s
s
ib
ili
ty
 o
f 
fi
lli
n
g
 t
h
is
 p
o
s
t 
v
ia
 a
 s
e
c
o
n
d
m
e
n
t 
fr
o
m
 a
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 o
r 
R
S
L
. 
 I
n
 t
h
e
 i
n
te
ri
m
 t
e
m
p
o
ra
ry
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 

p
u
t 
in
 p
la
c
e
 u
s
in
g
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 s
ta
ff
 a
n
d
 a
 T
e
a
m
 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 
h
a
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 o
n
 l
e
a
d
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ty
 f
o
r 
a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
s
u
e
s
. 

 T
h
e
 r
e
c
e
n
t 
in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 a
u
d
it
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
n
 e
x
tr
e
m
e
ly
 h
ig
h
 q
u
a
lit
y
 a
n
d
 w
e
ll 
ru
n
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 a
d
u
lt
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 (
Y
S
S
).
 

 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 a
re
 w
e
ll 
m
e
t 
w
it
h
 a
 c
le
a
r 
u
s
e
 o
f 
e
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t.
 T
h
is
 h
a
s
 l
e
d
 t
o
 s
e
v
e
ra
l 
c
u
s
to
d
ia
l 
s
e
n
te
n
c
e
s
 w
h
e
re
 r
e
p
e
a
te
d
 b
re
a
c
h
 

o
f 
o
rd
e
rs
 h
a
s
 o
c
c
u
rr
e
d
. 

 T
h
e
 c
a
s
e
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 f
o
ru
m
s
, 
w
h
ic
h
 a
p
p
ly
 t
o
 m
e
d
iu
m
 a
n
d
 h
ig
h
 r
is
k
 c
a
s
e
s
 u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 Y
O
S
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
R
is
k
 P
o
lic
y
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 p
o
s
it
iv
e
 

fo
ru
m
 
fo
r 
in
c
re
a
s
in
g
 
c
o
n
s
is
te
n
c
y
 
o
f 
b
o
th
 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 
d
e
liv
e
ry
 
a
n
d
 
b
re
a
c
h
 
&
 
e
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t.
 
A
ll 
c
u
s
to
d
ia
l 
s
e
n
te
n
c
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
re
m
a
n
d
s
 
a
re
 

re
v
ie
w
e
d
 
th
ro
u
g
h
 
th
e
 
C
a
s
e
 
P
la
n
n
in
g
 
F
o
ru
m
s
 
w
it
h
 
s
ix
 
m
o
n
th
ly
 
w
h
o
le
 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 
to
 
a
s
s
e
s
s
 
a
n
y
 
le
a
rn
in
g
 
re
s
u
lt
in
g
 
fr
o
m
 
th
e
 

re
v
ie
w
s
 a
n
d
, 
w
h
e
re
 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
, 
re
v
is
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 a
n
d
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
. 

 S
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 
s
ta
ff
 
a
re
 
re
g
u
la
rl
y
 
in
 
c
o
n
ta
c
t 
w
it
h
 
th
e
ir
 
c
o
lle
a
g
u
e
s
 
in
 
th
e
 
Y
O
I’
s
 
m
o
s
t 
in
 
u
s
e
 
fo
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 
p
e
o
p
le
 
fr
o
m
 
W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 
&
 

H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
. 

 

37



W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 –
  
V
.4
 

2
8

 C
3
.2
 I
d
e
n
ti
fy
 r
is
k
s
 t
o
 f
u
tu
re
 d
e
li
v
e
ry
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 p
la
n
s
 t
o
 o
v
e
rc
o
m
e
 t
h
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 r
is
k
s
 

R
is
k
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 C
ri
te
ri
a
 

O
w
n
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

U
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
 i
n
to
 B
M
E
 

c
u
s
to
d
y
 c
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 a
n
y
 

u
n
d
e
rl
y
in
g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
. 

A
n
a
ly
s
is
 c
o
m
p
le
te
, 
a
c
ti
o
n
 

p
la
n
s
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
. 

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
 o
f 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 f
ro
m
 B
M
E
 

g
ro
u
p
s
 e
n
te
ri
n
g
 c
u
s
to
d
y
 

C
h
a
ir
 Y
O
S
 

D
iv
e
rs
it
y
 

G
ro
u
p
 

3
1
/1
2
/0
8
 

T
h
e
 h
ig
h
e
r 
p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
a
te
 u
s
e
 o
f 
c
u
s
to
d
y
 

in
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 f
ro
m
 a
 B
M
E
 

b
a
c
k
g
ro
u
n
d
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 i
s
 t
h
e
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 

s
tr
u
c
tu
ra
l 
d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
. 

E
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
ro
b
u
s
t 
a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 

to
 c
u
s
to
d
y
 m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 a
re
 m
a
d
e
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
  

 

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
 o
f 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 f
ro
m
 a
 B
M
E
 

re
c
e
iv
in
g
 c
u
s
to
d
ia
l 
re
m
a
n
d
s
 

a
n
d
 s
e
n
te
n
c
e
s
. 

L
e
a
d
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

fo
r 

re
d
u
c
in
g
 

u
s
e
 o
f 

s
e
c
u
re
 

e
s
ta
te
  

3
1
/3
1
/0
9
 

  

N
e
w
 I
S
S
P
 D
e
liv
e
ry
 m
o
d
e
l 
d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 
re
s
u
lt
 

in
 

im
p
ro
v
e
d
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 

a
n
d
 

e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
ie
s
. 

U
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 f
u
ll 
re
v
ie
w
 o
f 
th
e
 

d
e
liv
e
ry
 m
o
d
e
l 
a
ft
e
r 
1
0
 m
o
n
th
s
 

o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
 

R
e
v
ie
w
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
, 
a
c
ti
o
n
 

p
la
n
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 i
f 
re
q
u
ir
e
d
. 

 

IS
S
P
 l
e
a
d
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
r 

3
0
/4
/0
9
 

A
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
v
a
c
a
n
c
y
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
. 

U
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 L
ia
is
o
n
 w
it
h
 

R
S
L
s
/H
o
u
s
in
g
 A
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

re
g
a
rd
in
g
 s
e
c
o
n
d
m
e
n
t 
 

A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
s
e
c
u
re
d
 –
 

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 o
ff
ic
e
r 
in
 

p
la
c
e
. 
Im
p
ro
v
e
d
 

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
 l
e
a
v
in
g
 c
u
s
to
d
y
 a
n
d
 

o
n
 r
e
m
a
n
d
. 

L
e
a
d
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 
- 

A
c
c
o
m
m
 

3
1
/1
0
/0
9
 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 o
f 
a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 

re
s
o
u
rc
e
 f
o
r 
R
L
A
A
 i
n
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
. 
 

 

E
n
s
u
re
 t
h
is
 i
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

n
e
w
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
b
e
in
g
 d
ra
w
n
 u
p
 

C
a
re
rs
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 &
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
. 

Im
p
ro
v
e
d
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
  
o
n
 r
e
m
a
n
d
. 

       

H
O
S
 

3
1
/3
/0
9
 

38



W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 –
  
V
.4
 

2
9

C
3
.3
 I
d
e
n
ti
fy
 w
o
rk
fo
rc
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
s
 t
o
 o
v
e
rc
o
m
e
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
s
 t
o
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

S
k
il
ls
 t
o
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
G
ro
u
p
 

A
c
ti
o
n
  

O
w
n
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

C
o
n
s
is
te
n
t 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

s
k
ill
s

 

Y
O
S
 o
ff
ic
e
rs

 
Im
p
le
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 “
m
o
d
e
l 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t”
 t
ra
in
in
g
 

u
s
in
g
 i
n
-h
o
u
s
e
 p
ro
d
u
c
e
d
 D
V
D
  

D
H
o
S
 

2
8
/2
/0
9
 

R
e
p
o
rt
 W

ri
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

Q
u
a
lit
y
 A
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
. 

      

Y
O
S
 O
ff
ic
e
rs
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 

T
ra
in
in
g
 o
n
 R
e
p
o
rt
 W

ri
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
 Q
u
a
lit
y
 

D
H
o
S
 

3
1
/3
/0
9
 

C
3
.4
 Y
J
B
 r
is
k
 t
o
 f
u
tu
re
 d
e
li
v
e
ry
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

      
    

39



W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 –
  
V
.4
 

3
0

 

S
E
C
T
IO
N
 C
4
 -
 R
IS
K
 O
F
 S
E
R
IO
U
S
 H
A
R
M
 

C
4
.1
 A
s
s
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 e
x
te
n
t 
to
 w
h
ic
h
 t
h
e
 Y
O
T
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 h
a
s
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
d
 t
o
 a
d
d
re
s
s
in
g
 r
is
k
 o
f 
s
e
ri
o
u
s
 h
a
rm
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p
u
b
li
c
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
Y
J
B
 r
is
k
 o
f 
s
e
ri
o
u
s
 h
a
rm
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 

 In
 2
0
0
7
/0
8
, 
1
%
 o
f 
c
a
s
e
s
 w
e
re
 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a
s
 b
e
in
g
 v
e
ry
 h
ig
h
 r
is
k
 o
f 
s
e
ri
o
u
s
 h
a
rm
, 
2
8
%
 o
f 
c
a
s
e
s
 a
s
 h
ig
h
 r
is
k
 o
f 
s
e
ri
o
u
s
 h
a
rm
, 
a
n
d
 4
1
%
 

o
f 
c
a
s
e
s
 a
s
 m
e
d
iu
m
 r
is
k
 o
f 
s
e
ri
o
u
s
 h
a
rm
. 
D
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 p
e
ri
o
d
 1
6
%
 o
f 
a
ll 
A
s
s
e
t 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 h
a
d
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 o
f 
s
e
ri
o
u
s
 h
a
rm
, 
w
h
ic
h
 

w
o
u
ld
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
 a
 f
u
ll 
ri
s
k
 o
f 
s
e
ri
o
u
s
 h
a
rm
 (
R
O
S
H
) 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
to
 b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
. 
O
f 
th
o
s
e
 t
h
a
t 
re
q
u
ir
e
d
 a
 R
O
S
H
, 
th
e
re
 i
s
 o
n
ly
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 

th
a
t 
th
e
s
e
 w
e
re
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 i
n
 6
0
%
 o
f 
c
a
s
e
s
, 
a
 R
O
S
H
 w
a
s
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 i
n
 7
%
 o
f 
c
a
s
e
s
 w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
re
 w
e
re
 n
o
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 o
f 
s
e
ri
o
u
s
 h
a
rm
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 A
s
s
e
t.
 

A
n
 i
n
te
rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 o
f 
A
s
s
e
ts
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 i
n
 e
a
rl
y
 2
0
0
8
 r
e
v
e
a
le
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
e
re
 i
n
c
o
n
s
is
te
n
c
ie
s
 i
n
 A
s
s
e
t 
c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 q
u
a
lit
y
 a
c
ro
s
s
 

th
e
 
s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
T
h
is
 
w
a
s
 
fu
rt
h
e
r 
c
o
n
fi
rm
e
d
 
b
y
 
th
e
 
re
g
io
n
a
l 
A
s
s
e
t 
a
u
d
it
 
c
a
rr
ie
d
 
o
u
t 
a
s
 
p
a
rt
 
o
f 
E
le
c
tr
o
n
ic
 
Y
e
llo
w
 
E
n
v
e
lo
p
e
 
p
ro
je
c
t 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 (
e
le
c
tr
o
n
ic
 t
ra
n
s
fe
r 
o
f 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
d
a
ta
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s
e
c
u
re
 e
s
ta
te
).
  
T
h
e
 r
e
g
io
n
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
o
f 
th
e
 1
0
 A
s
s
e
ts
 

s
a
m
p
le
d
 o
n
ly
 3
0
%
 f
e
ll 
in
to
 t
h
e
 c
a
te
g
o
ry
 o
f 
s
a
ti
s
fa
c
to
ry
 o
r 
a
b
o
v
e
 c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 t
o
 2
4
.2
%
 f
o
r 
th
e
 W

e
s
t 
M
id
la
n
d
s
 a
n
d
 1
8
%
 f
o
r 
th
e
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

b
a
s
e
lin
e
. 
 A
n
 A
s
s
e
t 
Q
u
a
lit
y
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
P
la
n
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 p
u
t 
in
 p
la
c
e
, 
w
h
ic
h
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 a
 m

o
re
 r
o
b
u
s
t 
q
u
a
lit
y
 a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 t
h
a
n
 w
a
s
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 p
re
v
io
u
s
ly
. 

T
h
e
 Y
O
S
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 a
 r
e
v
is
e
d
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
R
is
k
 P
o
lic
y
 (
M
O
R
) 
in
 m

id
 2
0
0
7
. 
 T
h
e
 M

O
R
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
 l
e
d
 c
a
s
e
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 

fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
 u
s
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 Y
O
S
, 
w
h
ic
h
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
s
 a
ll 
h
ig
h
 a
n
d
 v
e
ry
 h
ig
h
 r
is
k
 o
f 
s
e
ri
o
u
s
 h
a
rm
 c
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 b
e
 r
e
fe
rr
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C
a
s
e
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 

F
o
ru
m
. 
T
h
e
 C
a
s
e
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 F
o
ru
m
 (
C
P
F
) 
c
o
m
p
ri
s
e
s
 t
h
e
 A
re
a
 T
e
a
m
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r,
 t
h
e
 C
a
s
e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r 
fo
r 
th
e
 c
a
s
e
, 
th
e
 Y
O
S
 s
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 

w
o
rk
e
rs
 
(e
.g
. 
C
A
M
H
S
 
C
P
N
, 
S
u
b
s
ta
n
c
e
 
M
is
u
s
e
 
W
o
rk
e
r 
e
tc
) 
a
n
d
 
p
o
te
n
ti
a
lly
 
re
le
v
a
n
t 
e
x
te
rn
a
l 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 
w
h
o
 
m
a
y
 
b
e
 
in
v
o
lv
e
d
. 
In
 

p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 t
h
e
 C
P
F
 t
e
n
d
s
 t
o
 c
o
m
p
ri
s
e
 m
o
s
t 
o
f 
th
e
 a
re
a
 t
e
a
m
. 
T
h
e
 C
P
F
 w
ill
 c
o
n
fi
rm
 t
h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
ri
s
k
, 
in
fo
rm
 a
n
d
 a
g
re
e
 t
h
e
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 r
is
k
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
s
 a
n
d
 m

a
k
e
 t
h
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 w
h
e
th
e
r 
th
e
 c
a
s
e
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 r
e
fe
rr
e
d
 u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 M

u
lt
i 
A
g
e
n
c
y
 P
u
b
lic
 P
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 

A
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 (
M
A
P
P
A
) 
fo
r 
a
 M
u
lt
i 
A
g
e
n
c
y
 P
u
b
lic
 P
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 P
a
n
e
l 
(M
A
P
P
P
) 
L
e
v
e
l 
2
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
. 
 C
a
s
e
s
 a
re
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 r
e
v
ie
w
s
 

a
t 
th
e
 C
P
F
. 

T
h
o
s
e
 c
a
s
e
s
 b
e
in
g
 m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 a
n
d
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 C
P
F
 f
o
rm
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
’s
 h
ig
h
 r
is
k
 c
a
s
e
 r
e
g
is
te
r 
a
n
d
 e
a
c
h
 c
a
s
e
, 
w
ill
 h
a
v
e
 a
 r
is
k
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
 
in
 
p
la
c
e
. 
W
h
e
n
 
th
e
 
re
v
is
e
d
 
M
O
R
 
p
o
lic
y
 
w
a
s
 
in
tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
 
ri
s
k
 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
s
 
w
e
re
 
c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 
in
 
a
 
ri
s
k
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
b
o
o
k
le
t,
 e
it
h
e
r 
in
 h
a
rd
 c
o
p
y
 o
r 
e
le
c
tr
o
n
ic
 f
o
rm
. 
S
o
m
e
 t
e
a
m
s
 h
a
v
e
 m
o
v
e
d
 t
o
 p
la
c
in
g
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
 o
n
 Y
O
IS
, 

th
e
 Y
O
S
 c
lie
n
t 
a
n
d
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 s
y
s
te
m
. 

T
h
e
 
Y
O
S
 
is
 
fu
lly
 
e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 
in
 
th
e
 
M
A
P
P
A
 
fo
r 
W
e
s
t 
M
e
rc
ia
. 
T
h
e
 
D
e
p
u
ty
 
H
e
a
d
 
o
f 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 
is
 
a
 
m
e
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 
M
A
P
P
A
 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
B
o
a
rd
 a
n
d
 A
re
a
 T
e
a
m
 M
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 a
tt
e
n
d
 t
h
e
 M
A
P
P
P
 L
e
v
e
l 
2
 a
n
d
 M
A
P
P
P
 L
e
v
e
l 
3
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
. 
In
 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
 f
o
u
r 
m
o
n
th
s
 o
f 

2
0
0
8
 A
T
M
s
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
 1
2
 o
f 
th
e
 1
3
 (
9
2
%
) 
M
A
P
P
P
 L
e
v
e
l 
3
 M
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 h
e
ld
 a
c
ro
s
s
 W

o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
. 
 

40



W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 –
  
V
.4
 

3
1

C
4
.2
 I
d
e
n
ti
fy
 r
is
k
s
 t
o
 f
u
tu
re
 d
e
li
v
e
ry
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 p
la
n
s
 t
o
 o
v
e
rc
o
m
e
 t
h
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 r
is
k
s
 

R
is
k
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 C
ri
te
ri
a
 

O
w
n
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

In
c
o
n
s
is
te
n
t 
re
c
o
rd
in
g
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
s
 i
n
 

re
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 R
is
k
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
P
la
n
s

 

A
g
re
e
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 

re
c
o
rd
in
g
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
. 

R
is
k
 P
la
n
s
 (
H
a
rm
 a
n
d
 

V
u
ln
e
ra
b
ili
ty
) 
re
c
o
rd
e
d
 

c
o
n
s
is
te
n
tl
y
 a
c
ro
s
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 

 

D
H
O
S

 
3
1
/1
2
/0
9

 

M
O
R
 P
o
lic
y
 i
n
c
o
n
s
is
te
n
tl
y
 a
p
p
lie
d
. 

Q
u
a
lit
y
 A
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 P
ro
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 

b
e
 p
u
t 
in
 p
la
c
e
 

M
O
R
 c
o
n
s
is
te
n
tl
y
 a
p
p
lie
d
. 

E
q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 

a
c
ro
s
s
 a
re
a
 t
e
a
m
s
. 

D
H
O
S
 

3
1
/1
2
/0
9
 

R
O
S
H
 n
o
t 
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 i
n
 a
ll 
re
le
v
a
n
t 

c
a
s
e
s
 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 A
s
s
e
t 

Q
IP
 –
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 r
e
v
ie
w
in
g
 

A
c
ti
o
n
s
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
. 

R
is
k
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 a
ll 

a
p
p
lic
a
b
le
 c
a
s
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
c
ti
o
n
 a
 

in
 p
la
c
e
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 r
is
k
 o
f 

h
a
rm
 t
o
 o
th
e
rs
. 

L
e
a
d
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 
–
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
’t
 

O
n
g
o
in
g
 

0
8
/0
9
 

N
e
w
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
Q
A
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 

le
a
d
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 q
u
a
lit
y
 

A
s
s
e
t 
a
u
d
it
 t
o
 a
s
c
e
rt
a
in
 i
f 
Q
A
 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
 h
a
s
 r
a
is
e
d
 q
u
a
lit
y
. 

A
u
d
it
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
, 
re
v
is
e
d
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 i
f 
n
e
e
d
e
d
. 

In
c
re
a
s
e
d
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t,
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
n
d
 m
e
t 

H
O
S
 

Q
3
 0
8
/0
9
 

C
4
.3
 I
d
e
n
ti
fy
 w
o
rk
fo
rc
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
s
 t
o
 o
v
e
rc
o
m
e
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
s
 t
o
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

S
k
il
ls
 t
o
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
G
ro
u
p
 

A
c
ti
o
n
  

O
w
n
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 o
f 
M
A
P
P
A

 
N
e
w
 s
ta
ff
  

M
A
P
P
A
 A
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 b
ri
e
fi
n
g
 t
o
 b
e
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
d
 

w
it
h
 M
A
P
P
A
 C
o
-o
rd
in
a
to
r 

D
H
O
S

 
b
y
  
3
1
/3
/0
9

 

U
s
e
 o
f 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
to
 l
in
k
 

in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 t
o
 r
is
k
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
rs
  

P
ra
c
ti
ti
o
n
e
rs
 

U
s
in
g
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
to
o
ls
 –
 Y
J
B
 t
ra
in
in
g
 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
 f
ro
m
 O
U
 

 In
te
rn
a
l 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
tr
a
in
in
g
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
 D
V
D
 

D
H
O
S
 

b
y
 3
1
/3
/0
9
 

A
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 o
f 
M
O
R
 a
n
d
 r
is
k
 

p
la
n
n
in
g
 

P
ra
c
ti
ti
o
n
e
rs
 

R
e
fr
e
s
h
e
r 
b
ri
e
fi
n
g
s
 i
n
 t
e
a
m
s
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
’t
 

b
y
 3
1
/1
0
/0
9
 

41



W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 –
  
V
.4
 

3
2

C
4
.4
 Y
J
B
 r
is
k
 t
o
 f
u
tu
re
 d
e
li
v
e
ry
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

      
   
 

42



W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 –
  
V
.4
 

3
3

 

S
E
C
T
IO
N
 C
5
 -
 S
A
F
E
G
U
A
R
D
IN
G
 

C
5
.1
 A
s
s
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 e
x
te
n
t 
to
 w
h
ic
h
 t
h
e
 Y
O
T
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 h
a
s
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
d
 t
o
 k
e
e
p
in
g
 c
h
il
d
re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 s
a
fe
 f
ro
m
 h
a
rm
 

 T
o
 a
s
c
e
rt
a
in
 Y
O
S
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 i
n
 s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 W

o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 t
h
e
 Y
O
S
 h
a
s
 r
e
c
e
n
tl
y
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
 

a
n
 
in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
a
u
d
it
 
a
c
ro
s
s
 
th
e
 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 
(S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 
A
u
d
it
: 
A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
8
).
 
R
e
fe
re
n
c
e
s
 
to
 
th
is
 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
h
a
v
e
 
b
e
e
n
 
m
a
d
e
 
in
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 p
la
c
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
is
 o
u
tl
in
e
. 

R
e
s
e
a
rc
h
 h
a
s
 s
h
o
w
n
 t
h
a
t 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a
ft
e
r 
s
y
s
te
m
 a
re
 d
is
p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
a
te
ly
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C
ri
m
in
a
l 
J
u
s
ti
c
e
 S
y
s
te
m
. 

In
 2
0
0
7
/2
0
0
8
, 
th
e
re
 w
a
s
 a
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
 o
f 
lo
o
k
e
d
 a
ft
e
r 
c
h
ild
re
n
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 w
it
h
 f
in
a
l 
w
a
rn
in
g
s
, 
re
p
ri
m
a
n
d
s
 o
r 
c
o
n
v
ic
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 

H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 
o
v
e
r 
th
e
 
p
re
v
io
u
s
 
y
e
a
r’
s
 
o
u
tt
u
rn
. 
 
T
h
e
 
Y
O
S
 
a
n
d
 
C
Y
P
D
 
p
la
n
 
to
 
w
o
rk
 
o
n
 
a
 
jo
in
t 
p
ro
to
c
o
l 
to
 
a
d
d
re
s
s
 
th
e
 
is
s
u
e
s
. 
In
 

W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 
th
e
 
p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
 
o
f 
lo
o
k
e
d
 
a
ft
e
r 
c
h
ild
re
n
 
is
s
u
e
d
 
w
it
h
 
fi
n
a
l 
w
a
rn
in
g
s
, 
re
p
ri
m
a
n
d
s
 
o
r 
c
o
n
v
ic
ti
o
n
s
 
d
e
c
re
a
s
e
d
. 
In
 

W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 
th
e
 
Y
O
S
 
h
a
s
 
in
it
ia
te
d
 
a
 
p
ro
je
c
t 
to
 
in
tr
o
d
u
c
e
 
re
s
to
ra
ti
v
e
 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 
in
to
 
th
e
 
L
o
c
a
l 
A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 
C
h
ild
re
n
s
’ 
H
o
m
e
s
, 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
y
 a
 j
o
in
t 
P
o
lic
e
, 
C
P
S
, 
Y
O
S
 a
n
d
 C
h
ild
re
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 P
ro
to
c
o
l.
  
 

  
 

O
v
e
r 
th
e
 p
a
s
t 
2
 y
e
a
rs
 t
h
e
re
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 a
 r
is
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a
s
 v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 b
y
 t
h
e
 Y
O
S
 f
ro
m
 1
8
7
 i
n
 A
p
ri
l 
0
6
 

to
 3
6
1
 i
n
 A
p
ri
l 
0
8
 a
 r
is
e
 o
f 
5
1
%
. 
T
h
is
 r
is
e
 c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
d
 s
h
a
rp
ly
 i
n
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
0
6
 a
c
ro
s
s
 a
ll 
te
a
m
s
. 
 I
t 
is
 l
ik
e
ly
 t
h
e
 r
is
e
 i
s
 a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 

in
c
re
a
s
e
d
 a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 a
ri
s
in
g
 o
u
t 
o
f 
a
 r
e
v
is
e
d
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
ri
s
k
 p
o
lic
y
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
t 
th
a
t 
ti
m
e
. 

 
 

D
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 p
a
s
t 
1
2
 m
o
n
th
s
 o
u
t 
o
f 
2
7
5
3
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
o
n
 Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 2
1
%
 (
n
=
5
9
3
) 
w
e
re
 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a
s
 b
e
in
g
 v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 a
t 

a
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
m
e
d
iu
m
 o
r 
a
b
o
v
e
 (
3
9
6
 m

e
d
, 
1
7
3
 h
ig
h
, 
2
4
 v
e
ry
 h
ig
h
).
 T
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a
s
 b
e
in
g
 v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 t
o
 a
n
y
 

d
e
g
re
e
 i
s
 r
e
m
a
rk
a
b
ly
 s
im
ila
r 
a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 t
h
re
e
 a
re
a
 t
e
a
m
s
. 

A
n
 a
u
d
it
 o
f 
3
4
 c
a
s
e
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 3
 a
re
a
 t
e
a
m
s
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 o
b
ta
in
 s
o
m
e
 i
d
e
a
 o
f 
V
u
ln
e
ra
b
ili
ty
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
P
la
n
 c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
. 

O
f 
th
e
 3
4
 c
a
s
e
s
, 
1
1
 w
e
re
 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a
s
 v
e
ry
 h
ig
h
 r
is
k
 o
f 
v
u
ln
e
ra
b
ili
ty
, 
1
2
 w
e
re
 H
ig
h
 a
n
d
 1
1
 w
e
re
 M
e
d
iu
m
. 
O
f 
a
ll 
th
e
 c
a
s
e
s
 V
u
ln
e
ra
b
ili
ty
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
P
la
n
s
 c
o
u
ld
 o
n
ly
 b
e
 t
ra
c
e
d
 i
n
 2
9
%
 c
a
s
e
s
. 

 
T
h
is
 m

a
y
 b
e
 t
h
e
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 
in
c
o
n
s
is
te
n
c
ie
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 o
f 
w
h
e
re
 r
is
k
 

p
la
n
s
 a
re
 r
e
c
o
rd
e
d
 (
s
e
e
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 C
4
.1
).
 

C
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 B
M
E
 g
ro
u
p
s
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
t 
4
.1
%
 o
f 
th
e
 t
o
ta
l 
y
o
u
th
 o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 4
.9
3
%
 o
f 
th
e
 t
o
ta
l 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
s
 v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 Y
o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
e
re
 B
M
E
 (
0
6
-0
8
 f
ig
u
re
s
) 
th
is
 i
s
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
a
n
 e
s
ti
m
a
te
d
 t
w
o
 c
o
u
n
ty
 p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 o
f 
4
.5
%
 a
n
d
 d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
 w
h
o
le
, 
th
a
t 

th
e
re
 i
s
 a
 p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
a
te
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
B
M
E
 g
e
n
e
ra
lly
 a
c
ro
s
s
 o
u
r 
c
lie
n
t 
g
ro
u
p
. 
 

T
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 s
iz
a
b
le
 t
ra
v
e
lle
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 i
n
 W

o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
, 
w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
c
c
u
ra
te
ly
 r
e
c
o
rd
e
d
 b
u
t 
is
 t
h
o
u
g
h
t 
to
 b
e
 i
n
 

th
e
 r
e
g
io
n
 o
f 
7
0
0
0
. 
T
h
e
 Y
o
u
th
 O
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 h
a
s
 e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
d
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
y
 i
n
 k
e
e
p
in
g
 f
ig
u
re
s
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
in
g
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
tr
a
v
e
lle
rs
 i
n
 

o
u
r 
c
lie
n
t 
g
ro
u
p
 b
u
t 
th
e
 i
n
d
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
 t
h
a
t 
d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 p
a
s
t 
1
2
 m
o
n
th
s
 t
h
e
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 k
n
e
w
 s
o
m
e
 f
iv
e
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
. 

T
h
e
 r
e
c
e
n
t 
S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 a
u
d
it
 a
c
k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
re
 a
re
 v
e
ry
 l
o
w
 p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
s
 o
f 
b
o
th
 e
th
n
ic
 m

in
o
ri
ty
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 a
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

u
s
e
rs
 w
it
h
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 b
u
t 
s
a
id
 t
h
a
t 
Y
o
u
th
 O
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
to
c
o
ls
 a
n
d
 L
S
C
B
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 a
d
d
re
s
s
e
d
 t
h
e
ir
 n
e
e
d
s
. 
 T
h
e
 a
u
d
it
 w
e
n
t 
o
n
 

to
 s
a
y
 t
h
a
t 
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
ir
 f
ile
 r
e
a
d
in
g
 a
n
d
 i
n
te
rv
ie
w
s
 i
n
d
ic
a
te
d
 a
 c
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
t 
to
 p
ro
v
id
in
g
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 t
o
 t
ra
v
e
lle
rs
, 
th
e
y
 

43



W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 –
  
V
.4
 

3
4

w
o
u
ld
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 a
s
 t
o
 h
o
w
 m
u
c
h
 a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 s
e
n
s
it
iv
it
y
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 p
ro
m
o
te
d
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
s
 a
 w
h
o
le
. 

T
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
re
q
u
e
s
ts
 f
o
r 
th
e
 a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
Y
O
S
 s
ta
ff
 a
t 
C
h
ild
 P
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 C
o
n
fe
re
n
c
e
s
 r
e
m
a
in
 l
o
w
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
th
e
 t
o
ta
l 
n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
C
h
ild
 

P
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 C
o
n
fe
re
n
c
e
s
 h
e
ld
. 
 T
h
e
 L
o
c
a
l 
S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 C
h
ild
re
n
 b
o
a
rd
s
 d
o
 n
o
t 
ro
u
ti
n
e
ly
 c
o
lle
c
t 
d
a
ta
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
in
g
 Y
O
S
 a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 

n
e
it
h
e
r 
is
 s
u
c
h
 d
a
ta
 r
e
tr
ie
v
a
b
le
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 Y
O
S
 d
a
ta
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
y
s
te
m
. 
 

Y
O
S
 
a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 
a
t 
S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 
n
e
tw
o
rk
 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 
in
 
W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 
h
a
s
 
ru
n
 
a
t 
5
0
%
 
o
v
e
r 
th
e
 
p
a
s
t 
1
5
 
m
o
n
th
s
. 
 
T
h
e
re
 
is
 
n
o
 

e
q
u
iv
a
le
n
t 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
 i
n
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
. 
 T
h
e
 Y
O
S
 i
s
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 o
n
 b
o
th
 L
o
c
a
l 
C
h
ild
re
n
 S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 B
o
a
rd
s
 b
y
 t
h
e
 H
e
a
d
 o
f 
S
e
rv
ic
e
, 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 D
e
p
u
ty
 H
e
a
d
 o
f 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ts
 t
h
e
 Y
O
S
 o
n
 t
h
e
 t
w
o
 S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 B
o
a
rd
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 G
ro
u
p
s
. 

 W
it
h
 r
e
g
a
rd
 t
o
 t
h
e
 e
x
te
n
t 
to
 w
h
ic
h
 t
h
e
 Y
o
u
th
 O
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
s
 t
o
 k
e
e
p
in
g
 C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 s
a
fe
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
e
c
u
re
 

e
s
ta
te
, 
th
e
 r
e
c
e
n
t 
S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 a
u
d
it
 c
o
n
fi
rm
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
a
s
 ‘
…
c
lo
s
e
 l
ia
is
o
n
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 Y
J
B
 a
n
d
 c
a
re
fu
l 
th
o
u
g
h
t 
b
e
in
g
 g
iv
e
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

m
o
s
t 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t,
 p
lu
s
 v
e
ry
 p
ro
m
p
t 
v
is
it
s
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
rs
o
n
 b
e
in
g
 p
la
c
e
d
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
n
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 
th
e
 p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t.
  

S
im
ila
rl
y
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 o
f 
c
lo
s
e
 w
o
rk
in
g
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 c
u
s
to
d
ia
l 
in
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
, 
v
u
ln
e
ra
b
ili
ty
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 a
t 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
.’
 

T
h
e
 f
ile
 a
u
d
it
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 a
u
d
it
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 s
e
v
e
ra
l 
c
a
s
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
ra
is
e
d
 s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 i
n
 a
ll 
o
f 
th
e
m
 

th
e
 a
u
d
it
o
rs
 w
e
re
 s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 h
a
d
 b
e
e
n
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
ly
 h
a
n
d
le
d
 a
n
d
 a
d
d
re
s
s
e
d
. 
  

T
h
e
 
S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 
a
u
d
it
 
c
o
n
fi
rm
e
d
 
a
 
lo
w
 
le
v
e
l 
o
f 
re
c
e
n
t  
S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 
tr
a
in
in
g
 
th
ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 
th
e
 
Y
o
u
th
 
O
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 
S
e
rv
ic
e
. 
T
h
is
 

s
h
o
rt
c
o
m
in
g
 h
a
s
 n
o
w
 b
e
e
n
 a
d
d
re
s
s
e
d
 w
it
h
 t
ra
in
in
g
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 f
o
r 
a
ll 
s
ta
ff
 i
n
 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
8
. 
D
e
s
p
it
e
 t
h
e
 p
re
v
io
u
s
 l
o
w
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
re
c
e
n
t 
tr
a
in
in
g
  
 

th
e
 a
u
d
it
o
rs
 w
e
re
 s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
re
 i
s
 a
 h
ig
h
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 o
f 
s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 Y
O
S
. 
  
  

  A
 
s
y
s
te
m
 
o
f 
‘e
-l
e
a
rn
in
g
’ 
is
 
b
e
in
g
 
u
ti
lis
e
d
 
to
 
d
e
liv
e
r 
c
o
re
 
b
a
s
ic
 
s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 
tr
a
in
in
g
 
to
 
s
ta
ff
. 
T
h
e
 
s
y
s
te
m
, 
c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
 
b
y
 
th
e
 

W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 C
h
ild
re
n
 B
o
a
rd
 a
n
d
 r
u
n
 b
y
 t
h
e
 E
-A
c
a
d
e
m
y
 e
n
a
b
le
s
 s
ta
ff
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 t
o
 l
e
a
rn
 v
ia
 a
n
 I
n
te
rn
e
t 
c
o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
 a
t 

th
e
ir
 
o
w
n
 
s
p
e
e
d
. 
P
re
s
e
n
tl
y
 
o
n
ly
 
b
a
s
ic
 
tr
a
in
in
g
 
is
 
b
e
in
g
 
d
e
liv
e
re
d
 
a
n
d
 
th
e
re
 
a
re
 
c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 
7
4
 
Y
O
S
 
m
e
m
b
e
rs
 
o
f 
s
ta
ff
 
a
c
ro
s
s
 

W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
in
g
 t
h
is
 t
ra
in
in
g
. 

 C
5
.3
 I
d
e
n
ti
fy
 r
is
k
s
 t
o
 f
u
tu
re
 d
e
li
v
e
ry
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 p
la
n
s
 t
o
 o
v
e
rc
o
m
e
 t
h
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 r
is
k
s
 

R
is
k
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 C
ri
te
ri
a
 

O
w
n
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

V
u
ln
e
ra
b
ili
ty
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 n
o
t 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 o
r 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 a
re
 n
o
t 
c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 f
u
lly
 

   

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
M
O
R
 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 Q
A
 p
ro
c
e
s
s

 

C
o
m
p
re
h
e
n
s
iv
e
 a
n
d
 a
c
c
u
ra
te
 

v
u
ln
e
ra
b
ili
ty
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 

a
ll 
c
a
s
e
s
 –
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
n
d
 m
e
t.
 

 

D
H
O
S

 
3
1
/1
2
/0
8

 

44



W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 –
  
V
.4
 

3
5

V
u
ln
e
ra
b
ili
ty
 r
is
k
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
s
 n
o
t 

in
 p
la
c
e
 f
o
r 
a
ll 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a
s
 

v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 

P
ro
c
e
s
s
 o
f 
c
h
e
c
k
in
g
 p
u
t 
in
 

p
la
c
e
. 

R
is
k
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
s
 i
n
 

p
la
c
e
 f
o
r 
a
ll 
v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
. 
R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 r
is
k
 t
o
 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
. 

D
H
O
S
 

3
1
/1
2
/0
9
 

T
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
P
A
F
 C
1
8
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 i
n
 

H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 i
s
 s
u
s
ta
in
e
d
 o
r 
d
e
te
ri
o
ra
te
s
 
Y
O
S
 a
n
d
 C
h
ild
re
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

P
ro
to
c
o
l 
to
 b
e
 p
u
t 
in
 p
la
c
e
 a
n
d
 

a
c
ti
o
n
e
d
 

P
A
F
 C
1
8
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

im
p
ro
v
e
s
 –
 n
a
rr
o
w
in
g
 h
e
 g
a
p
 

in
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 L
A
C
 

a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

g
e
n
e
ra
l 
p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
. 

H
O
S
 

3
1
/1
2
/0
9
 

S
a
la
ri
e
d
 s
ta
ff
, 
s
e
s
s
io
n
a
l 
s
ta
ff
 a
n
d
 

v
o
lu
n
te
e
rs
 d
o
 n
o
t 
u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
 

s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 

E
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
a
ll 
s
ta
ff
 a
re
 a
w
a
re
 

o
f 
Y
O
S
 s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 

p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s

.
 

A
ll 
s
ta
ff
 a
w
a
re
 o
f 
p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 

–
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 c
o
n
s
is
te
n
tl
y
 

a
p
p
lie
d
 a
n
d
 r
is
k
 o
f 
h
a
rm
 t
o
 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
. 

D
H
O
S
 

O
n
g
o
in
g
 

S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 n
o
t 
fu
lly
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

Q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 

a
t 
L
e
a
d
e
rs
h
ip
 T
e
a
m
 M
e
e
ti
n
g
 

A
ll 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 –
 

c
o
n
s
is
te
n
t 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 i
n
 

s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 a
n
d
 r
is
k
 o
f 
h
a
rm
 

to
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
. 

D
H
O
S
 

T
h
ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 

2
0
0
8
/2
0
1
0
 

C
5
.3
 I
d
e
n
ti
fy
 w
o
rk
fo
rc
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
s
 t
o
 o
v
e
rc
o
m
e
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
s
 t
o
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

S
k
il
ls
 t
o
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
G
ro
u
p
 

A
c
ti
o
n
  

O
w
n
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

A
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 o
f 
S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 

a
n
d
 c
h
ild
 p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 i
s
s
u
e
s
  

A
ll 
s
ta
ff
 

A
ll 
s
ta
ff
 t
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
 G
ro
u
p
 A
 o
r 
L
1
 (
s
in
g
le
 

a
g
e
n
c
y
) 
S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 T
ra
in
in
g
 

D
H
O
S
 

3
1
/3
/0
9
 

F
u
rt
h
e
r 
s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 

tr
a
in
in
g
 f
o
r 
s
ta
ff
. 

S
e
le
c
te
d
 

P
ra
c
ti
ti
o
n
e
rs
/M
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 
F
u
rt
h
e
r 
tr
a
in
in
g
 n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 b
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 

s
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 a
n
d
 r
e
fe
rr
a
ls
 m
a
d
e
 t
o
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 

L
S
C
B
 c
o
u
rs
e
s
 

A
ll 
L
in
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 

O
n
g
o
in
g
 

C
5
.4
 Y
J
B
 r
is
k
 t
o
 f
u
tu
re
 d
e
li
v
e
ry
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

      
    

45



W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 –
  
V
.4
 

3
6

 

S
E
C
T
IO
N
 C
6
 –
 P
U
B
L
IC
 C
O
N
F
ID
E
N
C
E
 

C
6
.1
 A
s
s
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 e
x
te
n
t 
to
 w
h
ic
h
 t
h
e
 Y
O
T
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 h
a
s
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
d
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
in
g
 p
u
b
li
c
 c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
a
ir
n
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o
f 
d
e
a
li
n
g
 w
it
h
 y
o
u
th
 c
ri
m
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C
ri
m
in
a
l 
J
u
s
ti
c
e
 S
y
s
te
m
 

 T
h
e
 W

o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 &
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 Y
O
S
 w
a
s
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
o
f 
a
n
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 2
0
0
5
 w
it
h
 a
 f
o
llo
w
 u
p
 i
n
 2
0
0
8
, 
w
h
ic
h
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
it
 w
a
s
 o
n
 

a
 t
ra
je
c
to
ry
 o
f 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
a
l 
im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t.
 T
h
is
 i
s
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 i
m
p
ro
v
in
g
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 r
e
tu
rn
s
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
is
te
n
tl
y
 h
ig
h
 c
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
S
ta
n
d
a
rd
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 l
e
a
d
in
g
 t
o
 a
n
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
ra
ti
n
g
 o
f 
4
 i
n
 2
0
0
7
/0
8
 c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 t
o
 3
 i
n
 2
0
0
6
/0
7
. 
 

 T
h
e
 Y
O
S
 h
a
s
 s
h
o
w
n
 y
e
a
r 
o
n
 y
e
a
r 
im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
th
e
 Y
J
B
 k
e
y
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 a
n
d
 m
e
t 
8
4
%
 o
f 
it
s
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 i
n
 2
0
0
6
/7
 

ri
s
in
g
 t
o
 9
1
%
 i
n
 2
0
0
7
/8
. 
In
 b
o
th
 P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
K
P
I’
s
 a
n
d
 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
S
ta
n
d
a
rd
 c
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 Y
O
S
 i
s
 p
e
rf
o
rm
in
g
 h
ig
h
e
r 
th
a
n
 t
h
e
 

fa
m
ily
 g
ro
u
p
, 
re
g
io
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
v
e
ra
g
e
s
. 
D
u
ri
n
g
 0
7
/0
8
 t
h
e
 Y
O
S
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
e
d
 f
ro
m
 l
e
v
e
l 
3
 t
o
 l
e
v
e
l 
5
 f
o
r 
K
P
I 
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 l
e
v
e
l 
4
 

to
 l
e
v
e
l 
5
 f
o
r 
N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
S
ta
n
d
a
rd
 c
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
. 
Y
O
S
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 i
s
 i
n
 l
in
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 f
a
m
ily
 g
ro
u
p
 a
v
e
ra
g
e
 &
 a
b
o
v
e
 b
o
th
 r
e
g
io
n
a
l 

(6
9
.9
%
) 
 a
n
d
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
v
e
ra
g
e
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 (
6
8
.2
%
).
  

  In
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 d
iv
e
rs
it
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
, 
Y
J
B
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 o
f 
W
H
Y
O
S
 a
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
re
 i
s
 i
m
p
ro
v
in
g
 c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
B
M
E
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
re
 l
e
s
s
 

lik
e
ly
 t
o
 b
e
 o
v
e
r 
re
p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 y
o
u
th
 j
u
s
ti
c
e
 s
y
s
te
m
 l
o
c
a
lly
, 
b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 r
e
tu
rn
s
 o
f 
a
n
 8
2
%
 c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
w
h
ic
h
 s
c
o
re
 a
 r
a
ti
n
g
 o
f 
2
 

(3
 b
e
in
g
 t
h
e
 h
ig
h
e
s
t)
 

 A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 n
o
t 
e
a
s
ily
 m
o
n
it
o
re
d
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 r
e
c
o
g
n
it
io
n
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
re
 i
s
 a
 h
ig
h
 p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
 o
f 
T
ra
v
e
lle
r 
fa
m
ili
e
s
 b
o
th
 s
e
tt
le
d
 a
n
d
 t
ra
v
e
lli
n
g
, 
in
 b
o
th
 

c
o
u
n
ti
e
s
, 
w
it
h
 c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 t
h
e
 y
o
u
th
 J
u
s
ti
c
e
 s
y
s
te
m
. 
W
o
rk
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 f
u
tu
re
 e
n
tr
y
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 

s
y
s
te
m
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 a
 p
a
re
n
ti
n
g
 i
n
it
ia
ti
v
e
 r
u
n
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
lly
 o
n
 t
w
o
 o
c
c
a
s
io
n
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 
1
2
 m
o
n
th
s
. 
 

 T
h
e
 
L
C
J
B
 
is
 
c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 
re
fo
rm
u
la
ti
n
g
 
it
s
 
p
la
n
s
 
fo
r 
im
p
ro
v
in
g
 
c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 
in
 
th
e
 
lo
c
a
l 
c
ri
m
in
a
l 
ju
s
ti
c
e
 
s
y
s
te
m
. 
T
h
e
 
c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 
o
f 

M
a
g
is
tr
a
te
s
 i
s
 g
e
n
e
ra
lly
 h
ig
h
. 
T
h
e
 f
o
u
r 
b
e
n
c
h
e
s
 s
c
o
re
 t
h
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
th
e
 Y
O
S
 a
s
 g
o
o
d
, 
w
it
h
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 a
n
d
 p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
lis
m
 o
f 
Y
O
S
 C
o
u
rt
 S
ta
ff
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
P
S
R
’s
. 

  
 
W
H
Y
O
S
 h
a
v
e
 p
u
rc
h
a
s
e
d
 V
ie
w
p
o
in
t 
a
 w
e
b
 b
a
s
e
d
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
to
o
l 
w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 b
e
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 i
n
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
. 

T
h
is
 w
ill
 e
n
a
b
le
 t
h
e
 Y
O
S
 t
o
 g
a
in
 r
e
g
u
la
r 
a
n
d
 s
u
s
ta
in
e
d
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 f
ro
m
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
, 
p
a
re
n
ts
 a
n
d
 v
ic
ti
m
s
 a
t 
a
ll 
p
a
rt
s
 o
f 
th
e
 Y
O
S
 w
o
rk
 

s
p
e
c
tr
u
m
 f
ro
m
 t
h
o
s
e
 a
t 
ri
s
k
 o
f 
o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 o
r 
a
n
ti
-s
o
c
ia
l 
b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 
to
 t
h
o
s
e
 l
e
a
v
in
g
 c
u
s
to
d
y
. 

 F
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 f
ro
m
 c
h
ild
re
n
 &
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 o
n
 Y
IS
P
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 v
e
ry
 p
o
s
it
iv
e
 a
n
d
 i
s
 l
o
c
a
te
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
e
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 i
n
 

a
u
tu
m
n
 2
0
0
7
. 
T
h
is
 a
ls
o
 g
a
in
e
d
 t
h
e
 r
e
c
o
g
n
it
io
n
 o
f 
th
e
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
r 
w
h
o
 v
is
it
e
d
 c
h
ild
re
n
, 
p
a
re
n
ts
 a
n
d
 Y
IS
P
 S
ta
ff
 i
n
 s
p
ri
n
g
 

2
0
0
8
 t
o
 d
is
c
u
s
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
s
it
iv
e
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 o
f 
th
is
 p
ro
je
c
t.
 A
 n
o
ta
b
le
 p
u
b
lic
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 w
h
e
re
 a
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
rs
o
n
 h
a
s
 

g
o
n
e
 o
n
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
c
o
u
rs
e
s
 t
o
 o
th
e
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
 r
e
c
e
iv
in
g
 p
u
b
lic
 a
c
c
la
m
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
h
is
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
tu
rn
 a
ro
u
n
d
. 

46



W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 –
  
V
.4
 

3
7

F
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 
fr
o
m
 
P
a
re
n
ts
 
is
 
e
x
tr
e
m
e
ly
 
p
o
s
it
iv
e
. 
G
ro
u
p
 
fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 
re
p
o
rt
s
 
9
9
%
 
s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 
w
it
h
 
in
p
u
t 
&
 
le
a
rn
in
g
. 
T
h
is
 
in
c
lu
d
e
s
 
7
8
%
 

s
a
ti
s
fa
c
to
ry
 o
r 
p
o
s
it
iv
e
 w
it
h
 a
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
2
1
.5
%
 v
e
ry
 p
o
s
it
iv
e
. 
In
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 f
ro
m
 p
a
re
n
ts
 d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
 t
h
a
t 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
is
 g
o
o
d
 

w
it
h
 S
ta
ff
 p
re
s
e
n
ti
n
g
 a
s
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
a
b
le
. 
P
a
re
n
ts
’ 
a
s
k
in
g
 f
o
r 
c
o
n
ta
c
t 
to
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 a
ft
e
r 
o
rd
e
rs
 h
a
v
e
 e
n
d
e
d
 i
s
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 p
ro
m
is
in
g
. 

 V
ic
ti
m
s
 o
f 
Y
o
u
th
 C
ri
m
e
 a
re
 r
e
p
o
rt
in
g
 c
o
n
s
is
te
n
tl
y
 h
ig
h
 l
e
v
e
ls
 o
f 
s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
h
e
y
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
. 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r 
o
n
ly
 a
ro
u
n
d
 3
0
%
 o
f 

v
ic
ti
m
s
 c
h
o
o
s
e
 t
o
 b
e
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 a
n
d
 o
f 
th
e
s
e
 8
6
%
 c
o
m
m
e
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
ir
 e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
. 

 D
u
ri
n
g
 2
0
0
7
 t
h
e
 Y
O
S
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 a
 t
im
e
 l
im
it
e
d
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
w
it
h
 f
a
it
h
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 p
ro
je
c
t.
 T
h
is
 p
ro
je
c
t 
a
im
e
d
 t
o
 r
a
is
e
 a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 o
f 

th
e
 y
o
u
th
 j
u
s
ti
c
e
 s
y
s
te
m
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 d
if
fe
re
n
t 
fa
it
h
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 i
n
 W

o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
. 
S
o
m
e
 w
o
rk
 r
e
s
u
lt
in
g
 f
ro
m
 t
h
is
 

p
ro
je
c
t 
is
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
in
g
 i
n
 K
id
d
e
rm
in
s
te
r.

 

C
6
.2
 I
d
e
n
ti
fy
 r
is
k
s
 t
o
 f
u
tu
re
 d
e
li
v
e
ry
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 p
la
n
s
 t
o
 o
v
e
rc
o
m
e
 t
h
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 r
is
k
s
 

R
is
k
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 C
ri
te
ri
a
 

O
w
n
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

U
n
fa
m
ili
a
ri
ty
 w
it
h
 B
re
a
c
h
 h
e
a
ri
n
g
s
 b
y
 

in
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
m
a
g
is
tr
a
te
s
 i
s
 l
e
a
d
in
g
 t
o
 l
a
c
k
 

o
f 
k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 &
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 

th
e
 r
o
b
u
s
tn
e
s
s
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s

 

E
a
c
h
 T
e
a
m
 t
o
 b
ri
e
f 
Y
o
u
th
 

P
a
n
e
ls
 o
n
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
b
re
a
c
h
e
s
 

&
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 t
w
ic
e
 a
 y
e
a
r 

M
a
g
is
tr
a
te
s
 r
e
p
o
rt
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 

s
c
o
re
s
 i
n
 a
n
n
u
a
l 
fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
. 
Im
p
ro
v
e
d
 

c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 w
o
rk
 o
f 
th
e
 

Y
O
S
, 
m
a
in
ta
in
in
g
 

c
o
n
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
 r
a
te
, 
a
n
d
 

e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
rs
o
n
  
is
 m
e
t.
 

A
re
a
 T
e
a
m
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 

 

3
1
/3
/0
9
 

  

S
o
m
e
 M
a
g
is
tr
a
te
s
 a
re
 r
e
p
o
rt
in
g
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 

d
o
n
’t
 k
n
o
w
 t
h
e
 l
e
v
e
ls
 o
f 
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 o
f 
Y
O
S
 

a
d
m
in
is
te
re
d
 o
rd
e
rs
 

 

E
a
c
h
 T
e
a
m
 t
o
 b
ri
e
f 
Y
o
u
th
 

P
a
n
e
ls
 o
n
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 o
f 
Y
O
S
 

o
rd
e
rs
 t
w
ic
e
 a
 y
e
a
r 

 

M
a
g
is
tr
a
te
s
 r
e
p
o
rt
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 

s
c
o
re
s
 i
n
 a
n
n
u
a
l 
fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
. 

 

A
re
a
 T
e
a
m
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 

3
1
/3
/0
9
 

L
a
c
k
 o
f 
a
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 

m
e
a
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
m
e
d
ia
 c
o
v
e
ra
g
e
 i
s
 l
o
w
 w
it
h
 

m
o
s
t 
s
to
ri
e
s
 r
e
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

b
e
in
g
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
. 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 &
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 
a
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
 p
o
s
it
iv
e
 Y
O
S
 m
e
d
ia
 

c
o
v
e
ra
g
e
 t
o
 4
 s
to
ri
e
s
 a
 y
e
a
r 

D
H
O
S
 

3
1
/1
0
/0
8
 

 

L
im
it
e
d
 v
ic
ti
m
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 R
J
 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
v
ic
ti
m
 

in
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t.
 

3
5
%
 o
f 
v
ic
ti
m
s
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
, 

im
p
ro
v
e
d
 s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 

v
ic
ti
m
s
, 
im
p
ro
v
e
d
 a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 

o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 o
f 
th
e
 

c
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
s
 o
f 
th
e
ir
 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
. 

R
J
 L
e
a
d
 

3
1
/3
/0
9
 

47



W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 –
  
V
.4
 

3
8

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 n
o
t 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
 u
s
e
rs
 n
e
e
d
s
. 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 n
o
t 
re
s
p
o
n
d
in
g
 t
o
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
r 

re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
. 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

u
s
e
rs
 a
n
d
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
r 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 

s
tr
a
te
g
y
 

  

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 i
n
 

p
la
c
e
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
. 

G
re
a
te
r 
p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 

a
n
d
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 i
n
 i
n
fo
rm
in
g
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
. 

D
H
O
S
 

3
1
/3
/0
9
 

C
6
.3
 I
d
e
n
ti
fy
 w
o
rk
fo
rc
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
s
 t
o
 o
v
e
rc
o
m
e
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
s
 t
o
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

S
k
il
ls
 t
o
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
G
ro
u
p
 

A
c
ti
o
n
  

O
w
n
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 &
 

p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 s
k
ill
s
 

 

A
re
a
 T
e
a
m
 M
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 

&
 S
e
n
io
r 
M
a
n
a
g
e
rs

 

P
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
M
e
d
ia
/p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 t
ra
in
in
g
 f
o
r 

a
ll 
M
a
n
a
g
e
rs

 

D
H
O
S

 
3
1
/1
/0
9

 

C
6
.4
 Y
J
B
 r
is
k
 t
o
 f
u
tu
re
 d
e
li
v
e
ry
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

      
   

48



W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 –
  
V
.4
 

3
9

D
ir
e
c
t/
In
d
ir
e
c
t 
R
e
s
to
ra
ti
v
e
 J
u
s
ti
c
e
 W
o
rk
 2
0
0
7
-2
0
0
8

1
0

4
8

2
2

7
9

4
8

5
9

1
8
6

0

2
0

4
0

6
0

8
0

1
0
0

1
2
0

1
4
0

1
6
0

1
8
0

2
0
0

H
e
re
fo
rd

N
o
rt
h
 W

o
rc
s

S
o
u
th
 W

o
rc
s

Y
O
S
 T
o
ta
l

V
ic
ti
m
s
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
n
g
 i
n
 a
 D
ir
e
c
t 
R
e
s
to
ra
ti
v
e
 P
ro
c
e
s
s

V
ic
ti
m
s
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
n
g
 i
n
 a
n
 I
n
d
ir
e
c
t 
R
e
s
to
ra
ti
v
e
 P
ro
c
e
s
s

 

S
E
C
T
IO
N
 C
7
 –
 I
M
P
R
O
V
IN
G
 V
IC
T
IM
 S
A
T
IS
F
A
C
T
IO
N
 

C
7
.1
 A
s
s
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 e
x
te
n
t 
to
 w
h
ic
h
 t
h
e
 Y
O
T
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 h
a
s
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
d
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
in
g
 s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C
ri
m
in
a
l 
J
u
s
ti
c
e
 

S
y
s
te
m
 f
o
r 
th
o
s
e
 w
h
o
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 v
ic
ti
m
s
 o
f 
y
o
u
th
 c
ri
m
e
 

 O
v
e
r 
th
e
 p
a
s
t 
1
2
 m
o
n
th
s
 t
h
e
re
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 a
n
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
v
ic
ti
m
s
 b
e
in
g
 c
o
n
ta
c
te
d
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 l
e
v
e
ls
 

o
f 
s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 h
a
v
e
 r
is
e
n
 a
ls
o
. 
In
 2
0
0
6
/0
7
 1
6
.2
%
 o
f 
v
ic
ti
m
s
 w
e
re
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 r
e
s
to
ra
ti
v
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 t
o
 2
7
.6
%
 i
n
 2
0
0
7
/0
8
. 

T
h
is
 i
s
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
a
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
ta
rg
e
t 
o
f 
2
5
%
. 
W
h
e
re
 v
ic
ti
m
s
 h
a
v
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 1
0
0
%
 w
e
re
 s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
. 

 P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 l
e
v
e
ls
 h
a
v
e
 c
o
n
s
is
te
n
tl
y
 b
e
e
n
 m
e
t 
a
n
d
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
a
re
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
in
g
 t
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
. 
F
a
c
to
rs
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
n
g
 t
o
 t
h
is
 a
re
 t
h
e
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 

o
f 
d
e
d
ic
a
te
d
 
v
ic
ti
m
 
c
o
n
ta
c
t 
o
ff
ic
e
rs
 
w
it
h
in
 
a
re
a
 
te
a
m
s
, 
im
p
ro
v
e
d
 
re
c
o
rd
in
g
 
a
n
d
 
a
n
 
im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
, 
w
h
ic
h
 
is
 
m
o
n
it
o
re
d
 
b
y
 
th
e
 

In
te
rn
a
l 
R
J
 &
 V
ic
ti
m
 W

o
rk
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
G
ro
u
p
. 
T
h
is
 g
ro
u
p
 c
o
n
s
is
ts
 o
f 
th
e
 L
e
a
d
 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 
fo
r 
R
J
 &
 V
ic
ti
m
s
, 
V
ic
ti
m
 O
ff
ic
e
rs
. 
R
J
 

O
ff
ic
e
r,
 
R
e
p
a
ra
ti
o
n
 
O
ff
ic
e
r,
 
le
a
d
 
M
a
n
a
g
e
r 
fo
r 
R
e
fe
rr
a
l 
O
rd
e
rs
 
a
n
d
 
re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 
fr
o
m
 
th
e
 
3
 
A
re
a
 
Y
O
T
’s
. 
A
s
 
a
 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 
w
e
 
a
re
 

c
o
m
p
lia
n
t 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 C
o
d
e
s
 o
f 
P
ra
c
ti
c
e
 f
o
r 
V
ic
ti
m
s
 o
f 
C
ri
m
e
 b
u
t 
a
g
a
in
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
is
 g
ro
u
p
 w
e
 h
a
v
e
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 

o
u
r 
le
a
fl
e
ts
 a
n
d
 o
u
r 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 o
th
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 V
ic
ti
m
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
. 

 
                     

R
e
s
to
ra
ti
v
e
 J
u
s
ti
c
e
 W
o
rk
 a
s
 %
 o
f 
T
o
ta
l 
C
lo
s
e
d
 D
is
p
o
s
a
ls
 

2
0
0
7
-2
0
0
8

4
3
.2
%

1
7
.4
%

2
6
.8
%

2
7
.6
%

0
%

5
%

1
0
%

1
5
%

2
0
%

2
5
%

3
0
%

3
5
%

4
0
%

4
5
%

5
0
%

H
e
re
fo
rd

N
o
rt
h
 W

o
rc
s

S
o
u
th
 W

o
rc
s

Y
O
S
 T
o
ta
l

49



W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 –
  
V
.4
 

4
0

  W
h
ils
t 
c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 o
u
r 
in
d
ir
e
c
t 
R
J
 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 f
a
r 
o
u
tw
e
ig
h
s
 o
u
r 
d
ir
e
c
t 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
, 
s
o
m
e
 e
x
c
e
lle
n
t 
d
ir
e
c
t 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 p
la
c
e
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 

s
e
c
u
re
 e
s
ta
te
, 
re
fe
rr
a
l 
p
a
n
e
ls
, 
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 a
n
d
 r
e
ta
il 
a
n
d
 b
o
th
 l
o
c
a
l 
A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 a
n
d
 P
ri
v
a
te
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 H
o
m
e
s
. 
A
ls
o
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
d
ir
e
c
t 

re
p
a
ra
ti
o
n
 p
la
c
e
m
e
n
ts
 i
s
 a
ls
o
 s
te
a
d
ily
 i
n
c
re
a
s
in
g
 a
s
 v
ic
ti
m
s
 g
a
in
 c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
e
 c
a
n
 o
ff
e
r 
to
 t
h
e
m
. 

 T
h
e
 Y
O
S
 s
ta
ff
 C
o
n
fe
re
n
c
e
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r 
w
a
s
 d
e
d
ic
a
te
d
 t
o
 R
J
 a
n
d
 V
ic
ti
m
s
, 
w
h
ic
h
 h
ig
h
lig
h
te
d
 t
h
e
 w
o
rk
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 b
y
 t
h
e
 R
J
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
in
 

re
la
ti
o
n
 
to
 
in
tr
o
d
u
c
in
g
 
R
J
 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 
in
to
 
L
A
 
C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 
h
o
m
e
s
 
in
 
W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 
a
n
d
 
th
e
 
o
n
g
o
in
g
 
w
o
rk
 
o
f 
th
e
 
V
ic
ti
m
 
O
ff
ic
e
rs
 
in
 

a
d
d
it
io
n
 t
o
 s
p
e
a
k
e
rs
 w
it
h
 a
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
ro
fi
le
 i
n
 R
J
 w
o
rk
. 
T
h
is
 r
a
is
e
d
 a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 t
o
 a
ll 
le
v
e
ls
 o
f 
s
ta
ff
 a
n
d
 f
ro
m
 t
h
a
t 
c
o
n
fe
re
n
c
e
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 

o
f 
in
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 r
e
s
u
lt
e
d
 e
.g
. 
a
n
 o
p
t 
o
u
t 
v
ic
ti
m
 l
e
a
fl
e
t 
w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 s
e
n
t 
to
 v
ic
ti
m
s
 a
t 
th
e
 v
e
ry
 s
ta
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 a
 v
id
e
o
 m
e
s
s
a
g
in
g
 

fa
c
ili
ty
 w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
o
r 
te
a
m
s
 t
o
 u
s
e
 w
it
h
 v
ic
ti
m
s
. 

 C
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 o
u
r 
R
J
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 V
ic
ti
m
 P
o
lic
y
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 i
n
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 i
n
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 o
u
r 
p
re
v
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
 w
o
rk
 a
ro
u
n
d
 A
B
C
s
/A
S
B
O
s
 a
n
d
 

th
e
 n
e
w
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 o
u
r 
v
ic
ti
m
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
In
 t
h
e
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 L
A
A
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 t
a
rg
e
t 
to
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 l
o
w
 l
e
v
e
ls
 o
f 
c
ri
m
e
, 
d
is
o
rd
e
r 
a
n
d
 a
n
ti
 

s
o
c
ia
l 
b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 
th
a
t 
th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
Y
O
T
 a
lo
n
g
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 p
o
lic
e
, 
lo
c
a
l 
fo
ru
m
s
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 w
ill
 w
o
rk
 t
o
g
e
th
e
r 
to
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
. 

S
im
ila
rl
y
, 
in
 W

o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 R
e
s
o
lu
ti
o
n
 S
c
h
e
m
e
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 i
n
to
 f
o
r 
d
e
a
lin
g
 w
it
h
 l
o
w
 l
e
v
e
l 
c
ri
m
e
 a
n
d
 d
is
o
rd
e
r.
  

  
  
  
  

T
h
e
 L
o
c
a
l 
C
ri
m
in
a
l 
J
u
s
ti
c
e
 B
o
a
rd
 i
s
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 a
 V
ic
ti
m
 a
n
d
 W

it
n
e
s
s
 S
u
b
 G
ro
u
p
 t
o
 l
o
o
k
 a
t 
V
ic
ti
m
 s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 L
e
a
d
 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

fo
r 
R
J
 &
 V
ic
ti
m
s
 w
ill
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
t 
Y
O
S
 o
n
 t
h
is
 i
n
 f
u
tu
re
. 

C
7
.2
 I
d
e
n
ti
fy
 r
is
k
s
 t
o
 f
u
tu
re
 d
e
li
v
e
ry
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 p
la
n
s
 t
o
 o
v
e
rc
o
m
e
 t
h
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 r
is
k
s
  

R
is
k
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 C
ri
te
ri
a
 

O
w
n
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

C
a
p
a
c
it
y
 a
n
d
 S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
ili
ty
 f
o
r 
m
o
re
 d
ir
e
c
t 

(&
 i
n
d
ir
e
c
t)
 R
J
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 i
n
 c
o
re
 Y
O
S
 a
n
d
 

p
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 w
o
rk
 

R
J
 &
 V
ic
ti
m
 T
ra
in
in
g
 P
a
c
k
 

 
3
5
%
 o
f 
v
ic
ti
m
s
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
, 

im
p
ro
v
e
d
 s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 

v
ic
ti
m
s
, 
im
p
ro
v
e
d
 a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 

o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 o
f 
th
e
 

c
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
s
 o
f 
th
e
ir
 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
. 
 

D
H
O
S
/ 

L
e
a
d
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

3
1
/3
/0
9
 

C
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 Y
O
S
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
/s
ta
ff
 

ro
le
s
 a
n
d
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 

w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 v
ic
ti
m
s

 

R
J
 a
n
d
 V
ic
ti
m
 G
ro
u
p
 t
o
 

m
o
n
it
o
r.
  

S
u
p
e
rv
is
o
rs
 t
o
 m
o
n
it
o
r 

th
ro
u
g
h
 s
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
. 

    

S
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
V
ic
ti
m
s
 

m
a
in
ta
in
e
d
 a
t 
a
 h
ig
h
 l
e
v
e
l.

 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
 

 G
ro
u
p
 

3
1
/1
/ 
0
9

 

50



W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 –
  
V
.4
 

4
1

C
7
.3
 I
d
e
n
ti
fy
 w
o
rk
fo
rc
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
s
 t
o
 o
v
e
rc
o
m
e
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
s
 t
o
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

S
k
il
ls
 t
o
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
G
ro
u
p
 

A
c
ti
o
n
  

O
w
n
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

R
J
 a
n
d
 V
ic
ti
m
 a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 

A
ll 
Y
O
S
 s
ta
ff
, 
 

S
e
le
c
te
d
 P
a
n
e
l 

m
e
m
b
e
rs
 &
 

C
S
O
s
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 t
ra
in
in
g
 o
n
 t
h
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
R
J
 

P
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 a
n
d
 v
ic
ti
m
 a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 

D
H
O
S
 

b
y
 3
1
/3
/0
9
 

C
7
.4
 Y
J
B
 r
is
k
 t
o
 f
u
tu
re
 d
e
li
v
e
ry
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

 

  

51



W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 –
  
V
.4
 

4
2

 

S
E
C
T
IO
N
 D
 –
 B
U
S
IN
E
S
S
 C
H
A
N
G
E
 A
N
D
 I
N
N
O
V
A
T
IO
N
 

D
1
 D
e
s
c
ri
b
e
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 o
r 
in
n
o
v
a
ti
o
n
 –
 C
ri
m
in
a
l 
J
u
s
ti
c
e
: 
S
im
p
le
, 
S
p
e
e
d
y
, 
S
u
m
m
a
ry
 

F
ro
m
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
8
, 
y
o
u
th
 c
o
u
rt
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 E
n
g
la
n
d
 a
n
d
 W
a
le
s
 w
il
l 
b
e
 a
d
o
p
ti
n
g
, 
th
ro
u
g
h
 a
 p
h
a
s
e
d
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
, 
a
 r
e
v
is
e
d
 m
o
d
e
l 
o
f 

th
e
 e
s
ta
b
li
s
h
e
d
 c
o
u
rt
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 a
d
u
lt
 m
a
g
is
tr
a
te
s
 c
o
u
rt
. 
S
im
p
le
 S
p
e
e
d
y
 S
u
m
m
a
ry
 J
u
s
ti
c
e
 (
C
J
S
S
S
) 
is
 b
a
s
e
d
 u
p
o
n
 t
h
re
e
 

p
ri
n
c
ip
le
s
: 

 -
 b
e
tt
e
r 
p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
a
te
 p
re
p
a
ra
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
fi
rs
t 
h
e
a
ri
n
g
 i
n
 c
o
u
rt
 

 -
 e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
a
t 
p
le
a
s
 a
re
 h
e
a
rd
 a
t 
fi
rs
t 
h
e
a
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 g
u
il
ty
 p
le
a
s
 a
re
 d
e
a
lt
 w
it
h
 o
n
 t
h
e
 d
a
y
 

 -
 c
o
n
te
s
te
d
 t
ri
a
ls
 s
h
o
u
ld
 p
ro
c
e
e
d
 s
tr
a
ig
h
t 
to
 t
ri
a
l 
w
it
h
in
 a
 r
e
a
s
o
n
a
b
le
 t
im
e
fr
a
m
e
. 

 T
h
e
 R
e
fe
rr
a
l 
O
rd
e
r 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
 r
e
m
a
in
s
 u
n
c
h
a
n
g
e
d
 a
s
 m
o
s
t 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
re
 d
e
a
lt
 w
it
h
 o
n
 t
h
e
ir
 f
ir
s
t 
a
p
p
e
a
ra
n
c
e
 h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
th
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

c
h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 a
n
d
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 f
o
r 
e
a
c
h
 Y
O
T
 w
il
l 
v
a
ry
 a
c
c
o
rd
in
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
ir
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
a
g
re
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
ir
 l
o
c
a
l 

y
o
u
th
 c
o
u
rt
. 

In
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 
o
f 
C
J
S
S
S
 
in
 
th
e
 
y
o
u
th
 
C
o
u
rt
s
 
a
c
ro
s
s
 
th
is
 
Y
O
S
 
a
re
a
, 
c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
s
 
in
 
S
o
u
th
 
W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 
Y
o
u
th
 
C
o
u
rt
 
o
n
 
1
 
O
c
to
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
,f
o
llo
w
e
d
 b
y
 H
e
re
fo
rd
 Y
o
u
th
 C
o
u
rt
 o
n
 1
5
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
a
n
d
 K
id
d
e
rm
in
s
te
r 
a
n
d
 B
ro
m
s
g
ro
v
e
 a
n
d
 R
e
d
d
it
c
h
 y
o
u
th
 C
o
u
rt
s
 o
n
 2
9
 a
n
d
 3
0
 O
c
to
b
e
r 

re
s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
. 
 R
e
g
u
la
r 
M
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 s
e
t 
u
p
 a
t 
a
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 a
n
d
 l
o
c
a
l 
le
v
e
l 
in
v
o
lv
in
g
 a
ll 
o
f 
th
e
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

p
la
n
s
 a
g
re
e
d
, 
w
it
h
 m
in
o
r 
v
a
ri
a
ti
o
n
s
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 a
re
a
s
 t
o
 a
d
d
re
s
s
 l
o
c
a
l 
is
s
u
e
s
. 

W
e
s
t 
M
e
rc
ia
 p
o
lic
e
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 s
e
n
d
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 c
h
a
rg
e
d
 (
Y
O
T
 1
) 
to
 t
h
e
 Y
O
S
 v
ia
 s
e
c
u
re
 E
-m
a
il,
 t
h
u
s
 g
iv
in
g
 o
p
ti
m
u
m
 t
im
e
 f
o
r 

k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 o
f 
th
e
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
rs
o
n
 t
o
 
b
e
 c
h
e
c
k
e
d
 o
n
 Y
O
S
 s
y
s
te
m
s
 
a
n
d
 w
it
h
 
p
a
rt
n
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
. 
 T
h
e
 
Y
O
S
 h
a
s
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 Y
O
IS
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 

c
o
m
p
u
te
r 
s
y
s
te
m
s
 a
t 
e
a
c
h
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
u
rt
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 a
 s
e
c
u
re
 n
e
tw
o
rk
. 
 T
h
is
 w
ill
 e
n
a
b
le
 s
p
e
e
d
y
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 a
b
ili
ty
 t
o
 p
re
p
a
re
 

F
a
s
t 
D
e
liv
e
ry
 R
e
p
o
rt
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 c
o
u
rt
. 
 T
e
m
p
la
te
s
 f
o
r 
F
a
s
t 
D
e
liv
e
ry
 R
e
p
o
rt
s
 a
re
 b
e
in
g
 c
re
a
te
d
 a
n
d
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 b
y
 m
id
 A
u
g
u
s
t 
in
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 

e
n
a
b
le
 s
ta
ff
 t
o
 f
a
m
ili
a
ri
s
e
 t
h
e
m
s
e
lv
e
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
m
. 

 P
o
lic
e
 w
ill
 c
h
a
rg
e
 a
ll 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 t
h
e
 m
o
rn
in
g
 h
e
a
ri
n
g
s
 i
n
 o
rd
e
r 
th
a
t 
p
le
a
s
 c
a
n
 b
e
 e
n
te
re
d
 a
n
d
 m
a
tt
e
rs
 s
to
o
d
 d
o
w
n
 f
o
r 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
to
 b
e
 

c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 p
re
p
a
re
d
 f
o
r 
th
e
 a
ft
e
rn
o
o
n
 h
e
a
ri
n
g
s
. 
  

 C
ro
w
n
 P
ro
s
e
c
u
ti
o
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 w
ill
 m
a
k
e
 d
is
c
lo
s
u
re
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 t
o
 Y
O
S
 a
n
d
 d
e
fe
n
c
e
 2
4
 h
o
u
rs
 b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 h
e
a
ri
n
g
 i
n
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 a
s
s
is
t 
th
e
 

s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
 o
f 
p
le
a
s
 a
t 
th
e
 f
ir
s
t 
h
e
a
ri
n
g
. 

 T
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
d
e
q
u
a
te
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 a
t 
a
ll 
o
f 
th
e
 c
o
u
rt
 b
u
ild
in
g
s
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 b
e
 i
n
te
rv
ie
w
e
d
 a
n
d
 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
. 

 N
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 Y
O
S
 s
ta
ff
in
g
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 u
s
in
g
 d
a
ta
 f
ro
m
 a
 t
h
re
e
 m

o
n
th
 p
e
ri
o
d
. 
 S
ta
ff
 w
ill
 b
e
 b
ri
e
fe
d
 d
u
ri
n
g
 A
u
g
u
s
t 
a
n
d
 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r.
 I
t 
is
 e
s
ti
m
a
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
7
5
%
 o
f 
c
a
s
e
s
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 r
e
q
u
ir
in
g
 a
 P
re
-S
e
n
te
n
c
e
 R
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
b
le
 t
o
 b
e
 d
e
a
lt
 w
it
h
 u
s
in
g
 F
a
s
t 
D
e
liv
e
ry
 

R
e
p
o
rt
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
 d
a
y
. 

52



W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 –
  
V
.4
 

4
3

D
2
 I
d
e
n
ti
fy
 r
is
k
s
 t
o
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 o
r 
in
n
o
v
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 p
la
n
s
 t
o
 o
v
e
rc
o
m
e
 t
h
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 r
is
k
s
  

R
is
k
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 C
ri
te
ri
a
 

O
w
n
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

O
c
c
a
s
io
n
s
 w
h
e
n
 

th
e
re
 i
s
 a
 h
ig
h
 

n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
 r
e
q
u
ir
in
g
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

p
re
p
a
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
F
a
s
t 

d
e
liv
e
ry
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 

 

S
u
c
h
 o
c
c
a
s
io
n
s
 t
o
 b
e
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 f
ro
m
 

c
o
u
rt
 l
is
ti
n
g
s
 a
n
d
 

a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
s
ta
ff
 r
o
s
te
re
d
 t
o
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 a
t 
c
o
u
rt
. 

A
ll 
re
q
u
e
s
ts
 f
o
r 
F
a
s
t 
D
e
liv
e
ry
 R
e
p
o
rt
s
 

b
e
in
g
 m
e
t.
, 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 b
e
in
g
 d
e
a
lt
 

w
it
h
 a
s
 s
o
o
n
 a
s
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 

c
h
a
rg
e
. 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t,
 B
a
il 
a
n
d
 

C
o
u
rt
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 A
re
a
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
. 

Im
m
e
d
ia
te
 

M
a
g
is
tr
a
te
s
 m
is
s
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 

o
f 
s
e
ri
o
u
s
n
e
s
s
 a
s
 

“s
o
 s
e
ri
o
u
s
” 
th
u
s
 

n
e
c
e
s
s
it
a
ti
n
g
 a
 

P
S
R
, 
w
h
e
re
 a
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

s
e
n
te
n
c
e
 i
s
 

e
v
e
n
tu
a
lly
 m
a
d
e
. 

 

J
o
in
t 
tr
a
in
in
g
 w
it
h
 c
o
u
rt
 

s
ta
ff
 t
o
 m
a
g
is
tr
a
te
s
 i
n
 

o
rd
e
r 
to
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
is
 r
is
k
. 

 R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
a
n
y
 i
n
c
id
e
n
c
e
s
 

a
ft
e
r 
6
 m
o
n
th
s
. 

N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
s
u
c
h
 i
n
c
id
e
n
c
e
s
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 

to
 a
 m
in
im
u
m
. 
M
a
in
ta
in
in
g
/r
e
d
u
c
in
g
 

th
e
 p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
s
 o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

s
e
n
te
n
c
e
d
 t
o
 c
u
s
to
d
y
. 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t,
 B
a
il 
a
n
d
 

C
o
u
rt
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 A
re
a
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
. 

F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
0
9
 

D
3
 I
d
e
n
ti
fy
 w
o
rk
fo
rc
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
s
 t
o
 o
v
e
rc
o
m
e
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
s
 t
o
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

S
k
il
ls
 t
o
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
G
ro
u
p
 

A
c
ti
o
n
  

O
w
n
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

E
n
s
u
re
 a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 o
f 
C
J
S
S
S
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

Y
O
S
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 

A
L
L
 s
ta
ff
 

B
ri
e
fi
n
g
 t
o
 a
ll 
s
ta
ff
 r
e
 C
J
S
S
S
 i
n
 Y
o
u
th
 

C
o
u
rt
 a
n
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 Y
O
S
 

p
ra
c
ti
c
e
. 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t

, 
B
a
il 
a
n
d
 

C
o
u
rt
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

A
re
a
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
. 

3
1
 A
u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
0
8
 

F
a
m
ili
a
ri
ty
 w
it
h
 F
a
s
t 
d
e
liv
e
ry
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

fo
rm
a
t.
 

Y
O
S
 s
ta
ff
 w
h
o
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 c
o
u
rt
 d
u
ty
 

In
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 b
ri
e
fi
n
g
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
e
a
m
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
. 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t

, 
B
a
il 
a
n
d
 

C
o
u
rt
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

A
re
a
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
. 

3
0
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 

53



W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 –
  
V
.4
 

4
4

D
4
 Y
J
B
 r
is
k
 t
o
 f
u
tu
re
 d
e
li
v
e
ry
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

 

 

54



W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 –
  
V
.4
 

4
5

  S
E
C
T
IO
N
 D
 –
 B
U
S
IN
E
S
S
 C
H
A
N
G
E
 A
N
D
 I
N
N
O
V
A
T
IO
N
 

D
1
 D
e
s
c
ri
b
e
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 o
r 
in
n
o
v
a
ti
o
n
 –
 Y
o
u
th
 R
e
h
a
b
il
it
a
ti
o
n
 O
rd
e
r 
a
n
d
 Y
o
u
th
 J
u
s
ti
c
e
: 
T
h
e
 S
c
a
le
d
 A
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 

 Y
o
u
th
 J
u
s
ti
c
e
: 
th
e
 S
c
a
le
d
 A
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 i
s
 d
e
s
ig
n
e
d
 t
o
 a
s
s
is
t 
y
o
u
th
 j
u
s
ti
c
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 d
ir
e
c
t 
ti
m
e
 a
n
d
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 t
o
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
ly
, 
in
 a
c
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
ir
 r
is
k
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t,
 Y
O
T
s
 w
il
l 
b
e
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 s
c
a
le
d
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 m
o
d
e
l 
fr
o
m
 A
p
ri
l 

2
0
0
9
, 
w
h
ic
h
 w
il
l 
c
o
in
c
id
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
s
 a
ri
s
in
g
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 C
ri
m
in
a
l 
J
u
s
ti
c
e
 a
n
d
 I
m
m
ig
ra
ti
o
n
 A
c
t.
  
T
h
e
 m
o
s
t 

s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
y
o
u
th
 j
u
s
ti
c
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 A
c
t 
re
la
te
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 Y
o
u
th
 R
e
h
a
b
il
it
a
ti
o
n
 O
rd
e
r 
(Y
R
O
).
 

 T
h
e
 
C
ri
m
in
a
l 
J
u
s
ti
c
e
 
a
n
d
 I
m
m
ig
ra
ti
o
n
 A
c
t 
2
0
0
8
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
e
s
 
th
e
 g
e
n
e
ri
c
 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 s
e
n
te
n
c
e
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 o
ff
e
n
d
e
r,
 
th
e
 
Y
o
u
th
 R
e
h
a
b
ili
ta
ti
o
n
 

O
rd
e
r.
 T
h
is
 o
rd
e
r 
re
p
la
c
e
s
 m
o
s
t 
o
f 
th
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 b
a
s
e
d
 c
o
u
rt
 o
rd
e
rs
 w
it
h
 a
 g
e
n
e
ri
c
 o
rd
e
r 
c
o
m
p
ri
s
in
g
 u
p
 t
o
 1
4
 d
if
fe
re
n
t 
re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
. 

T
h
e
 s
c
a
le
d
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
, 
d
u
e
 t
o
 b
e
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 a
t 
th
e
 s
a
m
e
 t
im
e
 a
s
 t
h
e
 Y
R
O
, 
a
llo
w
s
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 f
re
q
u
e
n
c
y
 o
f 
c
o
n
ta
c
t 
s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 t
o
 b
e
 

v
a
ri
e
d
 a
c
c
o
rd
in
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 l
e
v
e
ls
 o
f 
ri
s
k
 o
n
 t
h
e
 b
a
s
is
 o
f 
m
o
re
 i
n
te
n
s
iv
e
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 g
re
a
te
r 
fr
e
q
u
e
n
c
y
 o
f 
c
o
n
ta
c
t 
s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 f
o
r 

h
ig
h
 r
is
k
 c
a
s
e
s
. 

T
h
e
 s
c
a
le
d
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 i
s
 s
im
ila
r 
to
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
 l
e
d
 c
a
s
e
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 w
it
h
in
 W

o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 Y
O
S
. 

T
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
, 
h
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 d
o
 n
o
t 
a
llo
w
 t
h
e
 v
a
ri
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 a
c
c
o
rd
in
g
 t
o
 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 r
is
k
 l
e
v
e
ls
. 
 T
h
e
 b
a
s
ic
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 

o
f 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
ri
s
k
 a
n
d
 m
a
p
p
in
g
 c
o
n
te
n
t 
a
n
d
 i
n
te
n
s
it
y
 o
f 
in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 a
re
, 
th
e
re
fo
re
, 
a
lr
e
a
d
y
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
. 

T
h
e
 Y
R
O
 w
ill
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
 a
 m
o
re
 t
a
rg
e
te
d
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 i
n
 p
re
-s
e
n
te
n
c
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 a
n
d
 b
o
th
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 
th
e
 Y
R
O
 a
n
d
 

th
e
 s
c
a
le
d
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 w
ill
 h
a
v
e
 t
o
 b
e
 i
n
fo
rm
e
d
 b
y
 a
 c
o
m
p
re
h
e
n
s
iv
e
 a
n
d
 a
c
c
u
ra
te
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
u
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 A
s
s
e
t 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
to
o
l.
 A
n
 a
u
d
it
 o
f 

A
s
s
e
ts
 c
o
n
d
u
c
te
d
 i
n
 e
a
rl
y
 2
0
0
8
 r
e
v
e
a
le
d
 i
n
c
o
n
s
is
te
n
c
ie
s
 i
n
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
q
u
a
lit
y
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
A
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 f
o
r 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
, 
th
e
re
fo
re
, 
to
 

e
n
s
u
re
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
th
ro
u
g
h
 t
ra
in
in
g
, 
im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 q
u
a
lit
y
 a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 

th
e
 a
s
s
e
t 
q
u
a
lit
y
 a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
. 

T
h
e
 Y
O
S
 h
a
s
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
 t
h
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 D
V
D
 b
a
s
e
d
 A
s
s
e
t 
tr
a
in
in
g
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
lly
 d
e
s
ig
n
e
d
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
s
k
ill
s
. 

D
2
 I
d
e
n
ti
fy
 r
is
k
s
 t
o
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 o
r 
in
n
o
v
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 p
la
n
s
 t
o
 o
v
e
rc
o
m
e
 t
h
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 r
is
k
s
  

R
is
k
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 C
ri
te
ri
a
 

O
w
n
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

C
u
rr
e
n
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 

R
is
k
 p
o
lic
y
 a
n
d
 

ri
s
k
 l
e
d
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 

d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 
fi
t 
w
it
h
 

s
c
a
le
d
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 

g
u
id
a
n
c
e

 

M
O
R
 p
o
lic
y
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 a
n
d
 

re
v
is
e
d
 w
h
e
n
 f
in
a
l 
Y
J
B
 

s
c
a
le
d
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 c
a
s
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 

p
u
b
lis
h
e
d

 

R
e
v
is
e
d
 M
O
R
 a
n
d
 C
a
s
e
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 G
u
id
a
n
c
e
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
. 

H
O
S

 
3
1
/3
/0
9

 

55



W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 –
  
V
.4
 

4
6

D
3
 I
d
e
n
ti
fy
 w
o
rk
fo
rc
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
s
 t
o
 o
v
e
rc
o
m
e
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
s
 t
o
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

S
k
il
ls
 t
o
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
G
ro
u
p
 

A
c
ti
o
n
  

O
w
n
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

U
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 o
f 
S
c
a
le
d
 

A
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 a
n
d
 Y
R
O

 

M
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 

P
ra
c
ti
ti
o
n
e
rs

 

Y
o
u
th
 J
u
s
ti
c
e
: 
A
 s
c
a
le
d
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 a
n
d
 

th
e
 Y
R
O
 t
ra
in
in
g
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
 b
y
 Y
J
B
 

fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 O
U

 

D
H
O
S

 
3
1
/3
/0
9

 

U
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 o
f 
n
e
w
 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 

P
ra
c
ti
ti
o
n
e
rs
 

In
te
rn
a
l 
b
ri
e
fi
n
g
s
 o
n
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 

a
n
d
 f
lo
w
 c
h
a
rt
s
 

IP
M
 

3
1
/3
/0
9
 

U
s
e
 o
f 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
to
 l
in
k
 

in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 t
o
 r
is
k
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
rs
  

P
ra
c
ti
ti
o
n
e
rs
 

U
s
in
g
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
to
o
ls
 –
 Y
J
B
 t
ra
in
in
g
 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
 f
ro
m
 O
U
 

 In
te
rn
a
l 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
tr
a
in
in
g
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
 D
V
D
 

D
H
O
S
 

3
1
/3
/0
9
 

D
4
 Y
J
B
 r
is
k
 t
o
 f
u
tu
re
 d
e
li
v
e
ry
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

      
  

56



W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 –
  
V
.4
 

4
7

 

S
E
C
T
IO
N
 D
 –
 B
U
S
IN
E
S
S
 C
H
A
N
G
E
 A
N
D
 I
N
N
O
V
A
T
IO
N
 

D
1
 D
e
s
c
ri
b
e
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 o
r 
in
n
o
v
a
ti
o
n
 –
 W
o
rk
fo
rc
e
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

D
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 n
e
w
 l
o
c
a
l 
fo
c
u
s
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 w
o
rk
fo
rc
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
in
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 i
n
 y
o
u
th
 j
u
s
ti
c
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
Y
O
T
s
 w
il
l 
b
e
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 O
p
e
n
 U
n
iv
e
rs
it
y
 (
O
U
) 
u
s
in
g
 l
o
c
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
ts
 i
n
 2
0
0
9
–
1
1
, 
m
a
in
ta
in
in
g
 a
n
 e
q
u
iv
a
le
n
t 
le
v
e
l 
o
f 
w
o
rk
fo
rc
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 Y
J
B
 d
u
ri
n
g
 2
0
0
8
/0
9
. 

 In
 2
0
0
9
/1
0
 a
n
d
 1
0
/1
1
 t
h
e
 Y
O
S
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 m
a
in
ta
in
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
in
v
e
s
tm
e
n
t 
in
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 N
Q
F
 c
o
u
rs
e
s
 a
s
 t
h
e
 Y
J
B
 m
a
k
e
s
 i
n
 

2
0
0
8
/0
9
. 
In
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 p
re
p
a
re
 f
o
r 
th
is
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 t
h
e
 Y
O
S
 w
ill
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 a
 c
le
a
r 
p
ic
tu
re
 o
f 
th
o
s
e
 s
ta
ff
 w
h
o
 h
a
v
e
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 N
Q
F
 

q
u
a
lif
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
. 
 

T
h
e
re
 a
re
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
im
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 Y
O
S
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
 o
f 
d
ir
e
c
t 
c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 o
f 
th
e
 N
Q
F
 c
o
u
rs
e
s
 f
ro
m
 2
0
0
9
/1
0
. 
T
h
e
 Y
O
S
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 h
a
s
 

a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
s
ta
ff
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
in
g
 t
h
e
 O
U
 F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 D
e
g
re
e
 i
n
 Y
o
u
th
 J
u
s
ti
c
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 f
in
a
l 
le
v
e
l 
2
 m
o
d
u
le
 w
ill
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 m
e
t 
b
y
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
, 
a
s
 

w
ill
 a
n
y
o
n
e
 c
o
m
m
e
n
c
in
g
 t
h
e
 N
Q
F
 c
o
u
rs
e
s
 d
u
ri
n
g
 2
0
0
9
/1
1
. 
In
 a
d
d
it
io
n
 t
o
 t
h
is
 f
o
u
r 
s
ta
ff
 a
re
 c
o
m
p
le
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 N
T
U
 F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 D
e
g
re
e
 i
n
 Y
o
u
th
 

J
u
s
ti
c
e
 a
n
d
 a
re
 b
e
in
g
 o
ff
e
re
d
 t
h
e
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 t
o
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 a
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
m
o
d
u
le
 t
o
 a
c
q
u
ir
e
 a
 B
A
 (
H
o
n
s
) 
d
e
g
re
e
 i
n
 Y
o
u
th
 J
u
s
ti
c
e
. 
It
 i
s
 u
n
lik
e
ly
 t
h
a
t 

th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 p
a
rt
n
e
r 
fu
n
d
in
g
 t
o
 a
llo
w
 t
h
e
 t
ra
in
in
g
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
to
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 r
e
s
u
lt
 w
ill
 b
e
 l
e
s
s
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
v
a
ila
b
le
 t
o
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 

in
te
rn
a
l 
tr
a
in
in
g
. 
In
 t
h
is
 c
o
n
te
x
t 
th
e
 i
n
 k
in
d
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 p
a
rt
n
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
y
 t
ra
in
in
g
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 w
ill
 b
e
c
o
m
e
 i
n
c
re
a
s
in
g
ly
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
t.
  
 

T
h
e
 Y
O
S
 h
a
s
 a
 s
tr
o
n
g
 p
re
s
e
n
c
e
 a
t 
th
e
 R
e
g
io
n
a
l 
Y
J
B
 H
R
 a
n
d
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 F
o
ru
m
 a
n
d
 m
a
in
ta
in
s
 g
o
o
d
 l
in
k
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 Y
J
B
 R
e
g
io
n
a
l 
W
o
rk
fo
rc
e
 

A
d
v
is
o
r,
 a
llo
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 Y
O
S
 t
o
 b
e
 f
u
lly
 i
n
fo
rm
e
d
 o
f 
th
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 Y
J
B
’s
 W

o
rk
fo
rc
e
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
. 
 I
n
 p
re
p
a
ra
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
d
ir
e
c
t 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 h
a
s
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 l
in
k
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 O
U
 a
t 
a
 r
e
g
io
n
a
l 
le
v
e
l 
v
ia
 t
h
e
 r
e
g
io
n
a
l 
H
R
 a
n
d
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 F
o
ru
m
. 

T
h
e
 Y
O
S
 w
e
lc
o
m
e
s
 t
h
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 Y
o
u
th
 J
u
s
ti
c
e
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
b
y
 t
h
e
 O
U
, 
w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 e
x
p
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 e
-l
e
a
rn
in
g
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 o
f 

s
ta
ff
. 
 T
h
is
 h
a
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
o
f 
re
d
u
c
in
g
 t
h
e
 c
o
s
t 
to
 t
h
e
 Y
O
S
 o
f 
th
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
IN
S
E
T
 t
ra
in
in
g
 m
o
d
u
le
s
, 
w
h
ic
h
 h
a
v
e
 p
re
v
io
u
s
ly
 b
e
e
n
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 o
f 
e
x
te
rn
a
l 
tr
a
in
e
rs
. 

 D
2
 I
d
e
n
ti
fy
 r
is
k
s
 t
o
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 o
r 
in
n
o
v
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 p
la
n
s
 t
o
 o
v
e
rc
o
m
e
 t
h
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 r
is
k
s
  

R
is
k
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 C
ri
te
ri
a
 

O
w
n
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

T
ra
in
in
g
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
n
o
t 
b
e
in
g
 

s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
to
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
s
ta
ff

 

A
u
d
it
 t
o
 d
e
te
rm
in
e
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

s
ta
ff
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
in
g
 N
Q
F
 c
o
u
rs
e
s
 

w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
 Y
O
S
 i
n
v
e
s
tm
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 p
ro
je
c
te
d
 c
o
u
rs
e
 p
la
c
e
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts

 

Id
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 

fo
r 
0
9
/1
0
 a
n
d
 1
0
/1
1
 o
f 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 o
f 
th
e
 Y
J
B
 W

o
rk
fo
rc
e
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
. 

D
H
O
S

 
3
0
/0
9
/0
8

 

57



W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 –
  
V
.4
 

4
8

A
u
d
it
 o
f 
tr
a
in
in
g
 o
f 
s
ta
ff
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 u
p
 

to
 d
a
te
 t
ra
in
in
g
 r
e
c
o
rd
s
. 

Y
O
S
 t
ra
in
in
g
 p
la
n
s
 f
o
r 

2
0
0
9
/1
1
 n
o
t 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ta
l 
n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
n
d
 s
ta
ff
 

E
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
in
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
le
a
rn
in
g
 n
e
e
d
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 a
p
p
ra
is
a
l 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
 

O
u
tl
in
e
 w
o
rk
fo
rc
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
 

in
 p
la
c
e
 f
o
r 
2
0
0
9
 -
 2
0
1
1
 

D
H
O
S
 

3
1
/1
2
/0
8
 

D
3
 I
d
e
n
ti
fy
 w
o
rk
fo
rc
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
s
 t
o
 o
v
e
rc
o
m
e
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
s
 t
o
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

S
k
il
ls
 t
o
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
G
ro
u
p
 

A
c
ti
o
n
  

O
w
n
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

 F
u
ll 
ra
n
g
e
 o
f 
s
k
ill
s
 n
e
e
d
e
d
 t
o
 

d
e
liv
e
r 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s

 

A
ll 
s
ta
ff

 
A
ll 
s
ta
ff
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 a
n
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
n
e
e
d
s
 

to
 b
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
. 

A
ll 
lin
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
rs

 

3
0
/0
9
/0
8

 

D
4
 Y
J
B
 r
is
k
 t
o
 f
u
tu
re
 d
e
li
v
e
ry
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

      
  

58



W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 –
  
V
.4
 

4
9

 

S
E
C
T
IO
N
 E
1
 –
 W
O
R
K
F
O
R
C
E
 D
E
V
E
L
O
P
M
E
N
T
  

E
1
.1
 A
s
s
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 e
x
te
n
t 
to
 w
h
ic
h
 t
h
e
 Y
O
T
 W
o
rk
fo
rc
e
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 h
a
s
 h
e
lp
e
d
 t
h
e
 Y
O
T
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
 m
a
n
a
g
e
 

ri
s
k
s
 t
o
 f
u
tu
re
 d
e
li
v
e
ry
 

 W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 &
 
H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 
Y
O
S
 i
s
 w
o
rk
in
g
 t
o
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
 
to
 t
h
e
 d
if
fe
re
n
t 
n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
tw
o
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 a
re
a
s
. 
E
a
c
h
 a
re
a
 h
a
s
 d
if
fe
re
n
t 

s
tr
u
c
tu
re
s
 &
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
ir
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
. 
Y
O
S
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
re
 e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 w
it
h
 b
o
th
 a
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 i
n
 i
n
te
g
ra
te
d
 w
o
rk
fo
rc
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 s
e
e
k
in
g
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
Y
O
S
 S
ta
ff
 w
h
e
th
e
r 
c
o
re
 o
r 
s
e
c
o
n
d
e
d
 a
re
 a
b
le
 t
o
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 
jo
in
t 
s
k
ill
s
 t
ra
in
in
g
 e
n
v
is
a
g
e
d
 b
y
 b
o
th
 t
h
e
 D
C
S
F
 

&
 t
h
e
 Y
J
B
. 

O
v
e
r 
th
e
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r 
Y
O
S
 j
o
b
 d
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
re
 i
s
 a
 c
a
re
e
r 
p
a
th
 t
h
a
t 
c
a
n
 b
e
 f
o
llo
w
e
d
 f
ro
m
 s
e
s
s
io
n
a
l 
w
o
rk
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 t
o
 q
u
a
lif
ie
d
 Y
O
S
 o
ff
ic
e
r.
 T
h
is
 h
a
s
 a
ls
o
 a
llo
w
e
d
 f
o
r 
c
le
a
re
r 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 p
a
th
s
 t
o
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
ro
le
s
, 
lin
k
in
g
 i
n
te
rn
a
l 
tr
a
in
in
g
, 
le
v
e
ls
 o
f 
e
x
te
rn
a
l 

q
u
a
lif
ic
a
ti
o
n
 &
 p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
l 
q
u
a
lif
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
 w
id
e
s
t 
c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
s
k
ill
s
 &
 k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 c
a
n
 b
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 f
o
r 
e
a
c
h
 r
o
le
 w
it
h
in
 a
 

c
o
n
s
is
te
n
t 
fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
. 

D
u
ri
n
g
 2
0
0
8
/9
 e
a
c
h
 L
o
c
a
l 
A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 a
re
a
 i
s
 r
e
fi
n
in
g
 t
h
e
ir
 i
n
te
g
ra
te
d
 w
o
rk
fo
rc
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
, 
h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
th
e
s
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
, 
it
 i
s
 c
le
a
r 
th
a
t 
Y
O
S
 

S
ta
ff
 w
ill
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
: 
 

•
 
S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 

•
 
C
o
m
m
o
n
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

•
 
T
a
rg
e
te
d
 Y
o
u
th
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

•
 
D
iv
e
rs
it
y
 

•
 
T
h
e
 s
c
a
le
d
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 

•
 
T
h
e
 Y
o
u
th
 R
e
h
a
b
ili
ta
ti
o
n
 O
rd
e
r 

 

In
 a
d
d
it
io
n
, 
th
e
s
e
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 n
e
e
d
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 Y
O
S
: 

  

•
 
 I
n
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

•
 
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

•
 
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

•
 
 I
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 

•
 
 C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 s
k
ill
s
  
  

  

59



W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 –
  
V
.4
 

5
0

S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 

B
o
th
 c
o
u
n
ti
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 b
a
s
ic
 s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
, 
w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 h
e
lp
fu
l 
to
 a
 c
ro
s
s
 a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
T
h
e
 Y
O
S
 h
a
s
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 a
n
 a
u
d
it
 

o
f 
s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
, 
w
h
ic
h
 h
a
s
 l
e
d
 t
o
 n
e
w
 s
in
g
le
 a
g
e
n
c
y
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 a
n
d
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 
re
fr
e
s
h
e
r 
tr
a
in
in
g
 f
o
r 
m
a
n
y
 s
ta
ff
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
is
 

h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 p
a
rt
ly
 m
e
t 
th
ro
u
g
h
 t
ra
in
in
g
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 l
a
u
n
c
h
 o
f 
th
e
 n
e
w
 Y
O
S
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
. 
 

C
o
m
m
o
n
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 

E
a
c
h
 c
o
u
n
ty
 h
a
s
 s
lig
h
tl
y
 d
if
fe
re
n
t 
a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
e
s
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
ri
n
g
 C
A
F
. 
Y
O
S
 h
a
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 w
h
e
re
 C
A
F
 i
s
 l
ik
e
ly
 t
o
 f
it
 a
lo
n
g
s
id
e
 b
o
th
 Y
O
S
 &
 Y
IS
P
 

w
o
rk
. 
S
ta
ff
 a
re
 d
u
e
 t
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 m
u
lt
i 
a
g
e
n
c
y
 C
A
F
 t
ra
in
in
g
 i
n
 b
o
th
 c
o
u
n
ti
e
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 
th
e
 a
u
tu
m
n
 o
f 
2
0
0
8
. 

T
a
rg
e
te
d
 Y
o
u
th
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

A
s
 t
h
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
T
Y
S
 o
c
c
u
rs
 Y
O
S
 S
ta
ff
 w
ill
 n
e
e
d
 b
ri
e
fi
n
g
s
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
y
 a
re
 c
le
a
r 
a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
ir
 p
a
rt
 i
n
 t
h
e
 d
if
fe
ri
n
g
 s
tr
a
te
g
ie
s
 i
n
 e
a
c
h
 

c
o
u
n
ty
. 

D
iv
e
rs
it
y
 

P
re
v
io
u
s
 d
iv
e
rs
it
y
 t
ra
in
in
g
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 p
o
o
rl
y
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 a
n
d
 l
a
c
k
in
g
 r
e
le
v
a
n
c
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
th
e
 a
re
a
. 
Y
O
S
 a
re
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 t
o
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

m
o
re
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 t
ra
in
in
g
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 s
e
s
s
io
n
s
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 T
ra
v
e
lle
rs
. 

T
h
e
 S
c
a
le
d
 A
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 a
n
d
 Y
o
u
th
 R
e
h
a
b
il
it
a
ti
o
n
 O
rd
e
r 

T
h
e
 Y
O
S
 w
ill
 b
e
 u
ti
lis
in
g
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
rs
e
s
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 O
U
 b
y
 t
h
e
 Y
J
B
. 
 T
h
e
re
 a
re
 t
w
o
 c
o
u
rs
e
s
, 
b
o
th
 c
o
v
e
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 c
o
re
 e
le
m
e
n
ts
 o
f 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t,
 t
h
e
 s
c
a
le
d
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 Y
R
O
. 
T
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
c
o
u
rs
e
, 
a
c
a
d
e
m
ic
a
lly
 a
c
c
re
d
it
e
d
, 
is
 a
im
e
d
 a
t 
e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
d
 a
n
d
 s
e
n
io
r 
s
ta
ff
. 
T
h
e
 

s
e
c
o
n
d
 c
o
u
rs
e
, 
w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 c
o
m
p
le
te
ly
 w
e
b
 b
a
s
e
d
, 
is
 a
im
e
d
 a
t 
a
ll 
p
ra
c
ti
ti
o
n
e
rs
 

In
 a
d
d
it
io
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 O
U
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 r
o
u
te
s
 i
t 
is
 p
la
n
n
e
d
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 j
o
in
t 
tr
a
in
in
g
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
rt
s
 i
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 l
a
te
r 
p
a
rt
 o
f 
2
0
0
8
/9
 

In
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

T
h
e
 Y
O
S
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 a
n
d
 r
e
v
is
e
d
 i
ts
 I
n
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 P
o
lic
y
 d
u
ri
n
g
 2
0
0
7
. 
 I
n
 2
0
0
8
/0
9
 i
t 
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 t
o
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 
c
e
n
tr
a
l 
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o
f 
in
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

(p
re
v
io
u
s
ly
 m
o
n
it
o
re
d
 a
t 
a
 l
o
c
a
l 
te
a
m
 l
e
v
e
l)
. 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 A
s
s
e
t 
IN
S
E
T
 t
ra
in
in
g
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 r
e
g
u
la
rl
y
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 t
h
e
 r
e
c
e
n
t 
A
s
s
e
t 
a
u
d
it
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 
o
n
g
o
in
g
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
tr
a
in
in
g
 i
n
 

o
rd
e
r 
to
 e
n
s
u
re
 c
o
n
s
is
te
n
c
y
. 
T
h
e
 Y
O
S
 i
s
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 i
ts
 o
w
n
 i
n
te
ra
c
ti
v
e
 D
V
D
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
tr
a
in
in
g
 p
a
c
k
a
g
e
. 
T
h
is
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 a
n
d
 t
ra
in
in
g
 

ro
lle
d
 o
u
t 
in
 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 
s
ix
 m
o
n
th
s
 o
f 
th
e
 y
e
a
r.
 T
h
is
 w
ill
 b
e
 c
o
m
p
lim

e
n
te
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 O
U
 c
o
u
rs
e
 t
o
 p
re
p
a
re
 s
ta
ff
 f
o
r 
th
e
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 Y
R
O
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 s
c
a
le
d
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
. 

E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

T
h
e
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 V
ie
w
p
o
in
t 
s
y
s
te
m
  
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
s
 t
h
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 &
 t
ra
in
in
g
 o
f 
c
h
a
m
p
io
n
s
 f
o
r 
e
a
c
h
 T
e
a
m
, 
tr
a
in
e
d
 i
n
 d
e
p
th
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

V
ie
w
p
o
in
t 
a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
a
ll 
Y
O
S
 O
ff
ic
e
rs
 a
n
d
 s
p
e
c
ia
lis
ts
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 b
a
s
ic
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 t
h
e
m
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 &
 P
a
re
n
ts
 i
n
 a
c
c
e
s
s
in
g
 

&
 u
s
in
g
 V
ie
w
p
o
in
t.
 

60



W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 –
  
V
.4
 

5
1

In
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 

T
h
e
 Y
O
S
 h
a
s
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
 a
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
tr
a
in
in
g
 o
n
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
ra
in
in
g
 m

o
s
t 
p
ra
c
ti
ti
o
n
e
rs
 i
n
 t
h
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
 “
P
a
th
w
a
y
s
 P
lu
s
” 
a
 

c
o
g
n
it
iv
e
-b
e
h
a
v
io
u
ra
l 
o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 w
h
ic
h
 a
s
 b
e
e
n
 e
v
a
lu
a
te
d
 a
s
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 i
n
 r
e
d
u
c
in
g
 r
is
k
. 
 I
n
 2
0
0
8
/0
9
 i
t 
is
 p
la
n
n
e
d
 t
o
 

p
ro
v
id
e
 r
e
fr
e
s
h
e
r 
tr
a
in
in
g
 i
n
 m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 i
s
s
u
e
s
, 
g
ro
u
p
 w
o
rk
 s
k
ill
s
, 
th
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
T
ie
r 
2
 s
u
b
s
ta
n
c
e
 m
is
u
s
e
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 R
J
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 

a
n
d
 v
ic
ti
m
 a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
. 

C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 

T
ra
in
in
g
 i
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 s
k
ill
s
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 f
o
r 
s
ta
ff
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 t
h
e
m
 t
o
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
 t
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
in
te
rn
a
l 

c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 
a
n
d
 
e
x
te
rn
a
l 
k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 
o
f 
Y
O
S
 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 
&
 
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
. 
T
ra
in
in
g
 
in
 
n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
 
&
 
b
ro
k
e
ra
g
e
 
s
k
ill
s
 
h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n
 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 
fo
r 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 N
g
a
g
e
 s
ta
ff
 t
o
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 m
a
x
im
u
m
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 e
n
g
a
g
e
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 E
T
E
. 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 P
a
n
e
l 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
T
ra
in
in
g
  

T
h
e
 Y
O
S
 a
n
n
u
a
lly
 r
u
n
 t
ra
in
in
g
 f
o
r 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 P
a
n
e
l 
m
e
m
b
e
rs
. 
In
 2
0
0
8
/0
9
 t
h
is
 i
s
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 P
a
n
e
l 

M
e
m
b
e
rs
 w
ill
 b
e
 l
o
s
t 
d
u
e
 t
h
e
ir
 h
a
v
in
g
 s
e
rv
e
d
 t
h
e
 m
a
x
im
u
m
 p
e
ri
o
d
 o
f 
tw
o
 t
h
re
e
 y
e
a
r 
te
rm
s
. 
 

E
1
.2
 I
d
e
n
ti
fy
 r
is
k
s
 t
o
 w
o
rk
fo
rc
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 p
la
n
s
 t
o
 o
v
e
rc
o
m
e
 t
h
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 r
is
k
s
 

R
is
k
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 C
ri
te
ri
a
 

O
w
n
e
r 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

N
o
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 

le
v
e
ls
 o
f 
d
iv
e
rs
it
y
 

tr
a
in
in
g
 f
o
r 
fr
o
n
t 

lin
e
 s
ta
ff
 

S
o
m
e
 r
o
b
u
s
t 
a
n
d
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 

d
iv
e
rs
it
y
 t
ra
in
in
g

 

A
ll 
s
ta
ff
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 t
ra
in
in
g
 w
h
ic
h
 

fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 s
h
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 
to
 

th
e
ir
 d
a
y
 t
o
 d
a
y
 w
o
rk
. 
E
n
s
u
re
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 f
ro
m
 B
M
E
 g
ro
u
p
s
 a
re
 

m
e
t,
 r
e
d
u
c
in
g
 a
n
y
 d
is
p
ro
p
o
ti
o
n
a
lit
y
. 

D
H
O
S

 
3
1
/3
/0
9

 

T
ra
in
in
g
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
n
o
t 

b
e
in
g
 s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
to
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 

s
ta
ff

 

A
u
d
it
 t
o
 d
e
te
rm
in
e
 t
h
e
 

n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
s
ta
ff
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
in
g
 N
Q
F
 c
o
u
rs
e
s
 

w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
 Y
O
S
 

in
v
e
s
tm
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

p
ro
je
c
te
d
 c
o
u
rs
e
 p
la
c
e
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts

 

Id
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 

fo
r 
0
9
/1
0
 a
n
d
 1
0
/1
1
 o
f 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 o
f 
th
e
 Y
J
B
 W

o
rk
fo
rc
e
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
. 

D
H
O
S

 
3
0
/0
9
/0
8

 

E
1
.3
 Y
J
B
 r
is
k
 t
o
 f
u
tu
re
 d
e
li
v
e
ry
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

O
c
c
a
s
io
n
s
 w
h
e
n
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 h
ig
h
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
yo
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 r
e
q
u
ir
in
g
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 p
re
p
a
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
F
a
s
t 
d
e
liv
e
ry
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
  

     

61



W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 –
  
V
.4
 

5
2

S
E
C
T
IO
N
 E
2
 -
 R
IS
K
 T
O
 F
U
T
U
R
E
 D
E
L
IV
E
R
Y
 A
S
S
E
S
S
M
E
N
T
 S
U
M
M
A
R
Y
 

E
2
.1
 C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 f
ro
m
 r
is
k
 t
o
 f
u
tu
re
 d
e
li
v
e
ry
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
fr
o
m
 Y
O
T
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
b
o
a
rd
 c
h
a
ir
 

 T
h
e
 Y
o
u
th
 O
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 h
a
s
 h
a
d
 a
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
y
e
a
r,
 i
m
p
ro
v
in
g
 i
ts
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 f
ro
m
 L
e
v
e
l 
3
 t
o
 L
e
v
e
l 
4
 a
n
d
 a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 L
e
v
e
l 
5
 f
o
r 

b
o
th
 K
P
I 
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 c
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
. 
O
u
r 
p
ri
n
c
ip
a
l 
a
im
 i
s
 t
o
 p
re
v
e
n
t 
o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 a
n
d
 a
n
 i
m
p
re
s
s
iv
e
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

n
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
fi
rs
t 
ti
m
e
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r.
 T
h
e
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
th
e
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
tr
a
in
in
g
 o
r 

e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re
 i
s
 a
ls
o
 w
o
rt
h
y
 o
f 
n
o
te
 r
is
in
g
 f
ro
m
 6
6
.4
%
 i
n
 2
0
0
6
/0
7
 t
o
 7
8
.7
%
 i
n
 2
0
0
8
/0
9
. 
T
h
e
s
e
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
re
 a
 

c
re
d
it
 t
o
 b
o
th
 t
h
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 a
n
d
 s
ta
ff
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 

T
h
e
 Y
O
S
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 b
e
 w
e
ll 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
y
 p
a
rt
n
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 s
ta
ff
, 
c
a
s
h
 a
n
d
 i
n
-k
in
d
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
s
 d
e
s
p
it
e
 t
h
e
 c
h
a
lle
n
g
in
g
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
lo
c
a
lly
. 
A
s
 a
 p
u
b
lic
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
e
 r
e
c
o
g
n
is
e
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 v
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 
m
o
n
e
y
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
e
 d
e
liv
e
r 
a
n
d
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

re
m
a
in
s
 a
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 f
o
r 
th
e
 B
o
a
rd
. 
 

A
s
 e
v
e
r 
m
u
c
h
 r
e
m
a
in
s
 t
o
 b
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
in
g
 y
e
a
r.
 O
u
r 
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a
re
 t
h
e
 p
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 o
f 
o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
, 
th
e
 p
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 o
f 
re
-

o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 a
n
d
 e
n
g
a
g
in
g
 y
o
u
n
g
 o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
 i
n
 E
T
E
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
. 
W
e
 e
x
p
e
c
t 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 b
e
 f
u
lly
 e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
In
te
g
ra
te
d
 a
n
d
 

T
a
rg
e
te
d
 Y
o
u
th
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 a
s
 a
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
B
o
a
rd
 w
e
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 d
e
fi
n
in
g
 o
u
r 
re
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
 w
it
h
 

th
e
 t
w
o
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 T
ru
s
ts
. 
 

T
h
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
d
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
tr
a
v
e
l 
fo
r 
th
e
 Y
O
S
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 v
e
ry
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
in
g
 a
n
d
 w
e
 a
re
 c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
t 
th
a
t 
o
u
r 
im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 a
s
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
in
 t
h
is
 

Y
o
u
th
 J
u
s
ti
c
e
 P
la
n
 w
ill
 e
n
s
u
re
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
th
ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 
2
0
0
8
/0
9
 a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 Y
O
S
 w
ill
 d
e
liv
e
r 
o
n
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 f
o
r 

c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
. 

         E
2
.2
 Y
J
B
 r
is
k
 t
o
 f
u
tu
re
 d
e
li
v
e
ry
 s
u
m
m
a
ry
 c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

62



W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 –
  
V
.4
 

5
3

      E
2
.3
 R
e
v
ie
w
 a
n
d
 s
ig
n
-o
ff
 

N
a
m
e
: 

R
ic
h
a
rd
 H
u
b
b
a
rd
 

J
o
b
 T
it
le
 

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
C
h
ild
re
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 

W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 C
o
u
n
ty
 C
o
u
n
c
il.
 

D
a
te
 

      
N
a
m
e
: 

S
h
a
ro
n
 M
e
n
g
h
in
i 

J
o
b
 T
it
le
 

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
C
h
ild
re
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 

H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 

D
a
te
 

      
N
a
m
e
: 

D
a
v
id
 C
h
a
n
tl
e
r 

J
o
b
 T
it
le
 

C
h
ie
f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
, 
W
e
s
t 
M
e
rc
ia
 

P
ro
b
a
ti
o
n
 T
ru
s
t.
 

D
a
te
 

      
N
a
m
e
: 

S
h
a
ro
n
 G
ib
b
o
n
s
 

J
o
b
 T
it
le
 

C
h
ie
f 
In
s
p
e
c
to
r,
 W

e
s
t 
M
e
rc
ia
 

C
o
n
s
ta
b
u
la
ry
. 

D
a
te
 

      
N
a
m
e
: 

Y
v
o
n
n
e
 C
lo
w
s
le
y
 

J
o
b
 T
it
le
 

D
e
p
u
ty
 D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 &
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
, 
H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 P
C
T
. 

D
a
te
 

      
N
a
m
e
: 

S
a
n
d
ra
 R
o
te
 

J
o
b
 T
it
le
 

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
C
lin
ic
a
l 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t,
 

W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 P
C
T
. 

D
a
te
 

      
                 

S
E
C
T
IO
N
 F
 –
 L
E
S
S
O
N
S
 L
E
A
R
N
T
 F
R
O
M
 C
O
M
P
L
E
T
IN
G
 T
H
E
 Y
O
U
T
H
 J
U
S
T
IC
E
 P
L
A
N
N
IN
G
 T
O
O
L
 

63



W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 –
  
V
.4
 

5
4

F
1
 W
h
a
t 
w
e
re
 t
h
e
 m
o
s
t 
v
a
lu
a
b
le
 f
e
a
tu
re
s
 o
f 
th
e
 y
o
u
th
 j
u
s
ti
c
e
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 a
n
d
 t
o
o
l?
 

T
h
e
 s
e
lf
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
 o
f 
“w
h
e
re
 w
e
 a
re
” 
a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
  
w
a
s
 f
e
lt
 t
o
 b
e
 u
s
e
fu
l,
 b
u
t 
n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 b
u
ilt
 u
p
o
n
 t
o
 b
e
c
o
m
e
 a
 m
o
re
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

p
la
n
n
in
g
 t
o
o
l,
 s
e
e
 F
2
. 
 

F
2
 W
h
a
t 
c
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 f
u
rt
h
e
r?
 

T
h
is
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 h
a
s
 c
o
n
c
e
n
tr
a
te
d
, 
in
 d
e
ta
il,
 o
f 
w
h
e
re
 w
e
 a
re
 n
o
w
 a
n
d
 w
h
e
re
 w
e
 h
a
v
e
 c
o
m
e
 f
ro
m
 b
u
t 
d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 
d
e
ta
il 
w
h
e
re
 w
e
 w
a
n
t 
to
 b
e
. 

G
re
a
te
r 
e
m
p
h
a
s
is
 o
n
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 a
n
d
 w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
a
n
ts
 t
o
 b
e
 i
n
 t
e
rm
s
 o
f 
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 i
n
 

a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
o
u
ld
 
e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
. 
 
A
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 i
n
 t
e
rm
s
 o
f 
m
it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 r
is
k
s
 l
e
n
d
s
 i
ts
e
lf
 t
o
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
  
m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 o
f 
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 n
o
t 
m
e
a
s
u
re
 o
f 
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 i
n
 t
e
rm
s
 o
f 
o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
. 

F
3
 W
h
a
t 
e
ls
e
 w
o
u
ld
 y
o
u
 l
ik
e
 t
o
 b
e
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 n
e
x
t 
y
e
a
r’
s
 y
o
u
th
 j
u
s
ti
c
e
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
?
 

T
h
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 n
e
e
d
s
 a
 f
o
c
u
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 b
e
 m
a
d
e
 –
 w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
a
n
ts
 t
o
 b
e
. 

T
h
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 o
f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 m
o
re
 f
o
c
u
s
e
d
 o
n
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
, 
th
e
ir
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 a
n
d
 v
ic
ti
m
s
. 

F
4
 D
o
 y
o
u
 h
a
v
e
 a
n
y
 o
th
e
r 
c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
?
 

T
h
e
 t
im
in
g
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 d
id
 n
o
t 
fi
t 
w
it
h
 o
th
e
r 
p
la
n
n
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 l
o
c
a
lly
. 
T
h
e
 g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 l
a
c
k
e
d
 c
la
ri
ty
 o
f 
w
h
a
t 
w
a
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
. 
T
h
e
 l
a
te
 

re
le
a
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 t
o
o
l 
m
e
a
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
th
is
 p
la
n
 w
ill
 n
o
t 
b
e
 a
g
re
e
d
 u
n
ti
l 
s
ix
 m
o
n
th
s
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 y
e
a
r 
it
 r
e
la
te
s
 t
o
. 
Id
e
a
lly
 n
e
w
 g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 p
la
n
 

fo
rm
a
t 
n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 b
e
 r
e
le
a
s
e
d
 i
n
 A
u
tu
m
n
, 
s
o
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 c
a
n
 s
ta
rt
 t
h
e
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 e
a
rl
y
 w
it
h
 e
n
o
u
g
h
 t
im
e
 f
o
r 
m
e
a
n
in
g
fu
l 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t,
 

p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
. 
T
h
is
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
p
ie
c
e
 o
f 
w
o
rk
, 
a
n
d
 i
n
 t
e
rm
s
 o
f 
p
la
n
n
in
g
 a
 m
o
re
 

m
e
d
iu
m
 t
e
rm
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 m
o
re
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 a
n
d
 w
e
 w
o
u
ld
, 
th
e
re
fo
re
, 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 o
f 
a
 t
h
re
e
 y
e
a
r 
p
la
n
 w
it
h
 a
n
n
u
a
l 
u
p
d
a
te
s
. 

 

64



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from  
Richard Ball, Interim Head of Highways on 01432 260965 

  
SDRCabinetReport11908finalamendments29080.doc 
 

SERVICE DELIVERY REVIEW 

PORTFOLIO RESPONSIBILITY: CORPORATE STRATEGY  
AND FINANCE 

CABINET 11 SEPTEMBER 2008 

 

Wards Affected 

County-wide  

Purpose 

To consider the recommendations of the Service Delivery Review of the Council’s 
Service Delivery Partnership with Amey and seek approval to commence formal 
negotiations regarding a preferred model of future service delivery. 

Key Decision  

This is not a Key Decision. 
 

Recommendation(s) 

THAT (a) the final report of the Service Delivery Review be noted; 

(b) Officers be authorised to commence formal negotiations with Amey 
to secure changes to the partnership to reflect a preferred model of 
service delivery whilst also addressing where possible anomalies 
and weaknesses in the current contractual arrangements; 

(c) The Herefordshire Model of service delivery, as outlined in this 
report, be pursued as the preferred model and used as the basis for 
negotiations. Under this model, subject to successful negotiations, 
Amey would take on the relevant Council staff responsible for these 
areas under TUPE arrangements; 

(d) Asset Management and Property Services be excluded from the 
negotiation whilst a wider review of the property estate and its 
management is carried out and that this is completed by the end of 
March 2009; 

(e) A report be submitted to Cabinet on conclusion of the negotiations 
and the negotiation of the preferred model in (c) above does not 
restrict the recommendation of a different model if it is clear that this 
would be in the Council’s best interests.  

 

AGENDA ITEM 5

65



Reasons 

The Service Delivery Review has sought to review alternative forms of delivery with a 
view to identifying ways of securing annual savings of £1million and improving the quality 
and level of service.  The approach outlined in this report is considered to offer the 
potential to achieve these objectives and approval is sought to enter into formal 
negotiations with Amey. 

Considerations 

Background 

1. In November 2007 a review was commenced to examine ways of improving the 
Council’s Service Delivery Partnership arrangements with AMEY (incorporating 
Amey Wye Valley and Amey Consulting, formerly Owen Williams).  The review 
was carried out jointly with AMEY with the overall aim, of reviewing the Council’s 
approach to delivering services through the existing Service Delivery Partnership 
and identify opportunities to enable the Council to deliver a better service for less 
cost. 

2. Two key objectives were set for the review.  These were: 

1. To review alternative forms of delivery with a view to securing annual savings 
to the Council of a minimum of £1 million. 

2. To improve current quality and level of service. 

3. The scope of the review has encompassed all elements of the scope of the 
existing Service Delivery Partnership and the results of the review presented in 
full in the report entitled “Phase 2 Report, Service Delivery Review – Review of 
Herefordshire Council’s Strategic Partnership Agreement with Amey”.  A copy of 
this report is attached at Appendix 3. 

4. Any changes to the current arrangements arising from the review would be by 
agreement between Amey and the Council and would not require a re-
procurement process. 

5. A Project Board has been chaired by the Director of Environment and Culture 
and Project Team was led by the Interim Head of Highways.   This drew together 
the necessary expertise and knowledge from across the existing partnership and 
included representation from all the main service areas within the Council that 
could potentially be affected by the outcome of the review.  Membership of the 
Board included the Director of Environment and Culture, Director of Resources 
and Director of Regeneration. 

6. Cabinet is invited to consider the recommendations of the review and authorise 
officers to commence formal negotiations with Amey to secure improvements to 
the partnership and make appropriate consequential revisions and improvements 
to the current contractual arrangements. 

66



Involving Staff and Stakeholders 

7. The review has sought to involve staff and stakeholders within the council to 
provide appropriate opportunities for all views to be considered.  The Board and 
the Project Team included representation from all relevant directorates and 
services.   In addition, considerable efforts have been made to ensure all staff 
that could potentially be affected by the adoption of any new arrangements have 
been kept informed of progress with the review and had opportunity to express 
their views.   

8. A communications strategy and plan was developed with the Communications 
Team to coordinate and ensure information was made available to staff at the 
appropriate times during the review in a form that was understandable and 
accessible.  Activities in this regard have included regular newsletters, Service 
Delivery Review Online publication on the council’s Intranet and face-to-face 
briefings. 

9. A Staff Focus Group was also established to provide a further opportunity for 
staff to be involved in the review.  Representatives from this group and unions 
were invited to attend Project Board and Project Team meetings and to provide 
challenge at key stages in the review process. 

10. In addition to these opportunities to contribute to the review, a series of 
independently facilitated sessions were held with staff within Highways & 
Transportation, Parks and Countryside and Asset Management and Property 
Services.  These sessions sought views and ideas regarding what is going well, 
what is not going so well and what could be improved and how.  The output from 
these sessions was very useful in highlighting the issues that need to be 
addressed and informed the review.  

Member Involvement 

11. The draft final report of the review was reported to Strategic Monitoring 
Committee on the 13th June 2008 seeking their views to help inform the 
completion of the review and the preparation of a report to Cabinet.  The minutes 
of the meeting are attached at Appendix 1.   

12. The Committee asked that all Members of the Council be given the opportunity to 
comment on the draft report and that the Committee be given the opportunity to 
consider the report that would be presented to Cabinet in advance of a decision 
being taken.  The Interim Head of Highways wrote to all Members on 24th June 
2008 enclosing and inviting comment on the report considered by Strategic 
Monitoring Committee.  The comments received are attached at Appendix 2. 

13. The comments focus mainly around concerns regarding current quality of service 
delivery, value for money and a wish to see improvement.  These comments 
have been considered in completing the final report. 

67



The review process 

14. The review was undertaken in two phases.  These were as follows: 

Phase 1: review of a wide range of options against key criteria. 

Phase 2: detailed review of remaining options selected from Phase 1. 

Phase 1  

15. During phase 1 a long list of delivery options was developed which identified 18 
possible alternatives.  These options were defined and described by the project 
team to enable an assessment to be made of whether the options were likely to 
deliver the objectives set for the review.   

16. In order to assess the long list of options to go forward to more detailed review in 
phase 2, scoring criteria were developed to filter out options that were unlikely to 
meet the objectives of the review or those options that would not be deliverable.   

17. The assessment was carried out in three stages and subjected to challenge by 
the Staff Focus Group.  All options were initially scored by a sub-group of the 
project team and a detailed rationale presented to explain their approach to 
scoring each individual criterion. The project team reviewed this draft assessment 
and recommended revisions for consideration by the Board.   

18. The Staff Focus Group were then given the opportunity to review the provisional 
shortlist.  Whilst the group did not propose any further changes to the scoring of 
the options, they did ask that an alternative approach to delivery be included, 
based on the approach adopted by Gloucestershire County Council.  
Gloucestershire adopted a strategic approach and established a single delivery 
organisation without staff transfer taking place and staff remaining employees of 
their original employer. 

19. The shortlist taken forward for more detailed analysis in phase 2 of the review 
was: 

Improved Business as Usual which would look to improve the current 
agreement with extra bonus and penalty payments; 

Managing Agent Model that would shift the partnership interface to give greater 
responsibility for planning to Amey; 

Integrated Services Model with services delivered by an integrated organisation 
staffed by employees of both Amey and Herefordshire Council and managed by 
a single manager reporting to both organisations. 

Phase 2  

20. Phase 2 of the review has considered the shortlisted options in more detail to 
identify a potential model for future implementation in Herefordshire.   

21. In January 2008 the Audit Commission published the report “For better or worse: 
Value for money in strategic service-delivery partnerships.” This was a timely 
publication for the review and provides a framework to help councils manage and 

68



assess the performance of Strategic Service Partnerships. It divides the benefits 
that can be derived from strategic partnerships into ‘core’ and ‘additional’ benefits 
and identifies the factors that are important in delivering each.   The Phase 2 
assessment has drawn heavily on the direction provided by the Audit 
Commission report.  The report has therefore been structured into sections that 
examine the extent to which the different model options could contribute to 
achieving the benefits that the Audit Commission identified can be derived from 
strategic partnerships. 

22. Analysis of the managing agent and integrated service models has been based 
on analysis of reference sites: Bedfordshire for the managing agent model and 
Gloucestershire for the integrated services model.  

23. The Phase 2 document presents the results of the detailed assessment of the 
shortlisted model options.  It identifies the significant differences between the 
three main models in terms of the extent to which they would meet the objectives 
of the review. In drawing together this analysis the report describes the principles 
that it is recommended should underpin a Herefordshire model of service delivery 
drawing together the best aspects of the shortlisted options.  It is not intended to 
be the mandate for negotiations and does not disclose anything regarding the 
Council’s point of view that would hamper or restrict the ability of future 
negotiations to deliver the best possible deal for Herefordshire. 

24. The overall conclusions are summarised within the Executive Summary of the 
report highlighting the elements that should form part of a Herefordshire model of 
service delivery that would be most likely to achieve the aims of the review.   

Recommendations of the Service Delivery Review 

25. The final report recommends that a Herefordshire model of service delivery 
comprising the following key elements would be most likely to achieve the aims 
of the review. 

Recommendations for the Herefordshire Model  

• An integrated service delivery organisation that allows efficient service delivery 

• A strategic interface between the two organisations that encourages performance measures based on 
outcomes for the citizens of Herefordshire   

• A rigorous performance management scheme to ensure that the partnership can demonstrate the extent 
to which it is driving improved outcomes for the people of Herefordshire. This performance management 
scheme will be capable of demonstrating both quality of service and value for money. It will: 

§ Define performance measures linked to the service delivery plan 

§ Drive outcomes that help deliver the Community Strategy for Herefordshire 

§ Recognise the need to drive key outcomes that cut across Directorates 

§ Ensure that the partnership can demonstrate value for money 

• A link between the level of performance attained and both profitability and contract extensions; ensuring 
that there are consequences for both good and poor performance 

• A performance management regime that drives continuous improvement and learning from experience; 
both successes and mistakes 

• Encouragement of a strong local influence on service delivery by including, for example, the watchman 
scheme and locally allocated budgets for delivery of locally important schemes 

69



26. The review identified two alternative staffing options for delivering an integrated 
organisation for service delivery. These are:   

a. The service delivery organisation is staffed by Amey employees.  

b. The service delivery organisation is staffed by both Amey and 
Herefordshire Council employees working in mixed teams.  

27. The Project Board considered the relative merits of the alternative staffing 
arrangements.  The key pros and cons as considered by the Board have been 
summarised below: 

Summary of Key Pros and Cons of the model options considered by the Project 
Board 

Model Pros Cons 

Improved 
Business as 
Usual 

Only requires limited renegotiation and change to 
the Council’s organisation. 
 
Strengthened client team could help overcome 
areas of disagreement in current arrangements. 
 
Little disruption for staff 
 

Estimated savings do not meet review objectives 
 
Unlikely to deliver significant improvements in 
service 
 
Complex accountability for service delivery 
remains 
 
Unlikely to secure cultural change that is required 
 

Managing 
Agent (staff 
transfer to 
Amey) 

A straightforward contractual relationship 
 
Clear accountability for service delivery 
 
Single, integrated service delivery team  
 
Amey have good experience of implementing 
MAC contracts for highways 
 
Amey has significant experience of successful 
TUPE transfers, over 6000 of their 9000 staff 
having transferred from the public sector 
 
Cultural change may be easier and quicker within 
a single employer 

The process of tupe-ing staff could be disruptive 
 
Transferring some staff from the council would 
lead to a loss of knowledge that could limit 
options for delivery in the future 
 
Some key staff may not wish to transfer to Amey 
and may choose to seek alternative employment  
 
Council has no direct control over performance of 
staff 
 
Council reliant on Amey for management of 
reputational risk 
 
Parts of the model will be new for both Amey and 
the Council and there is a risk that a suitable 
agreement cannot be defined and agreed 

Integrated 
Services 
(Staff 
continue to 
be employed 
by current 
employer with 
integrated 
management) 

Clear accountability for service delivery 
 
Single, integrated service delivery team  
 
Reflects the approach adopted by the Council and 
PCT 
 
Retains flexibility in the future – potentially more 
readily adaptable to changes, both external and 
within the Council/PCT 
 
Has potential to apply different approaches for 
different service streams 
 

A cooperative approach to  HR support would be 
required, which might require more resource 
 
Integration could be slower than in the Managing 
Agent model 
 
Management of mixed teams of Amey and council 
staff will be more complex  
 
Achieving cultural change could take longer and 
be more complex  
 
The model will be new for both Amey and the 
Council and there is a risk that it will be difficult to 

70



Implementation could be phased and is likely to 
be achievable earlier than the managing agent 
approach 
 
No tupe would mean less disruption for staff 
 
Council retains more control over performance of 
some service delivery staff through its 
performance management procedures 
 
Potential benefits from shared organisational 
learning (Amey and Council/PCT) 

define a suitable agreement 

 

28. Given the pros and cons of each approach, the Project Board considered that the 
only model that could potentially be applied to all service areas at that time was 
the integrated services model. Therefore, with a view to taking a consistent 
approach across all service areas and considering the relative merits of the 
different options, the Board considered that the approach for recommendation to 
Cabinet would be: 

a. A Herefordshire Model as outlined in the report with integrated staffing 
arrangements established through integrated teams and management 
rather than through staff transfer, along the lines of the Integrated 
Services model 

b. That this approach be subject to a review of performance after 18 months 
of operation to establish whether any further change should be made. 

29. Such an approach was considered to be consistent with that being taken by the 
Council in relation to establishing integrated working arrangements with other 
partners such as the PCT. 

30. However, consultation on the draft of this report highlighted a number of 
concerns about the practicality of the integrated services model, its ability to 
deliver the cultural change required across all partners and concerns about 
including Asset Management and Property Services at this point.  At the time the 
Board made its recommendations Amey had indicated that they would require a 
single approach applied across all service areas.  Since then Amey has 
submitted a proposal suggesting the establishment of a managing agent 
arrangement without the Asset Management and Property Services elements 
pending a further review of this service alone. The potential savings that have 
been identified during the review do not relate to Asset Management and 
Property Services.  Following consideration of these factors, it is recommended 
that:  

a. A Managing Agent model is used as the basis for negotiations covering 
highways and related work (i.e. grounds maintenance, street and toilet 
cleansing and public rights of way). Amey would take on the Council staff 
responsible for these areas under TUPE arrangements, the details of 
which would be determined through the proposed negotiations. It is 
important to note, however, that the negotiation proposed above does not 
in any way restrict the negotiating team in recommending a different 
model if, during the course of the negotiations, it is clear that this would 

71



be in the Council’s best interests. 

b. Asset Management and Property Services would be excluded from the 
negotiation whilst a wider review of the property estate and its 
management is undertaken by the end of March 2009 

c. Work presently carried out for Asset Management and Property Services 
would be for the present time be excluded from the establishment of 
Managing Agent arrangements and would be carried on in the present 
form, pending the recommendations of the wider review 

Next Steps 

31. Subject to Cabinet endorsing the recommendation of this report, formal 
negotiations would be undertaken with Amey to secure improvements to the 
partnership.  These would seek to agree appropriate revisions and improvements 
to the current contractual arrangements that would be needed to enable the 
implementation of the preferred model.  In anticipation of the need to undertake 
formal negotiations, initial preparations have begun to ensure the Council is in a 
position to undertake successful negotiations.  This has included the 
establishment of a project board drawing membership from the relevant directors.   

32. It is anticipated that preparations for the negotiations, the establishment and 
training of the council’s negotiation team will take place during September and 
early October with formal negotiations following in October / November.  Subject 
to the satisfactory completion of these negotiations, a report will be prepared for 
consideration by Cabinet reporting the outcome of the negotiations and seeking 
approval to proceed.   Subject to the above, it is anticipated that the new 
arrangements could be put in place for the start of the next financial year in April 
2009. 

33. In order to ensure the Council takes a sound approach to the negotiations with 
Amey, external procurement expertise has been appointed to assist with the 
preparations for the negotiations, train and, if necessary, support the negotiation 
team during negotiations.  The negotiation team may also need to draw on 
internal and external technical, financial and legal advice during the negotiations. 
The cost of renegotiating the contract is estimated to be £200,000 including 
consultancy fees for external legal and contract renegotiation advice.   

Conclusion 

34. This report is due to be considered by Strategic Monitoring Committee at the 
meeting of that Committee on 10th September 2008.  The views expressed by the 
committee on this report will be reported verbally to Cabinet. 

35. The Service Delivery Review has taken a comprehensive approach to 
considering the different approaches that could be taken to future service delivery 
within the context of seeking to identify the potential for achieving savings and 
improving services.  Cabinet is invited to consider the recommendations of the 
review, authorise officers to enter formal negotiations with Amey and confirm 
their preferred approach for future service delivery as a basis for those 
negotiations.  

72



Financial Implications 

The Herefordshire model of service delivery (based around the Managing Agent contract 
model as outlined in this report) is recommended as the basis for negotiation with Amey.  
It is expected to deliver annual savings ranging from £800,000 to £1,018,000 a year.  
The same range of savings is predicted with the integrated services model, whilst the 
improved business as usual model is expected to deliver £568,000 of savings a year. 
 
Securing the savings identified under each model is not guaranteed.  Whilst care has 
been taken in preparing these estimates, delivering these savings would be subject to 
successful negotiation and implementation of the model of service delivery chosen in 
partnership with Amey.  Once the one-off costs of renegotiating the contract have been 
recovered, the council would have the opportunity to decide how to reinvest the cash 
savings released by the new model of service delivery. 
 
The cost of renegotiating the contract – whichever model of service delivery is chosen – 
is estimated to be £200,000 including consultancy fees for external legal and contract 
renegotiation advice.  This cost pressure was not identified and included in the Medium 
Term Financial Management Strategy 2008 – 2011 (MTFMS) approved by full Council in 
March 2008.  It can however be met from additional treasury management gains in the 
current financial year that the Financial Services team expects to deliver over and above 
the increased target already set for it in the MTFMS. 
 
The one-off costs of implementing the chosen model of service delivery will vary with the 
model chosen.  The improved business as usual model is likely to be least costly as the 
staffing implications will be more limited.  The Herefordshire model of service delivery is 
likely to be the most costly as it involves the most significant amount of change for 
existing employees.  Neither the one-off costs of implementing the chosen model of 
service delivery or the allocation of potential savings to council priorities is currently 
included in the MTFMS.   
 
Phase 3 of the Service Delivery Review project deals with the contract re-negotiation 
issues.  The estimates for potential savings and the one-off costs of implementing the 
chosen model of service delivery will be further refined as part of this process.  As 
outlined elsewhere in this report, officers will report on the outcome of the renegotiations 
and the financial business case in order to seek formal approval for moving into the 
implementation phase of the project and inclusion of the estimates in the MTFMS. 

 

Legal Implications 

None as a result of this report.   

Legal advice has indicated that, subject to the scope of the current contractual 
arrangements not being extended it is acceptable to renegotiate the terms of the current 
arrangements with Amey without the need for re-procurement.  Legal advice will be 
available throughout the proposed negotiations to ensure the approach being taken is 
acceptable from a legal perspective. 

Risk Management 

The Service Delivery Review has taken a comprehensive approach to reviewing the 

73



alternative options for future service delivery to help identify the appropriate way forward.  
In order to ensure effective negotiations and minimise risk, external procurement advice 
has been identified and appropriate legal, financial and technical advice will be drawn 
upon as required in preparation for and during negotiations. 

Alternative Options 

Alternative options and their implications are presented within Appendix 3 of this report. 

Consultees 

The approach taken to involving stakeholders is outlined above.  Consultations have 
taken place during the review with all members of the Council, staff within potentially 
affected services and Amey. 

Appendices 

Appendix 1 – Extract from Minutes of Strategic Monitoring Committee 16th June 2008 

Appendix 2 – Further comments on draft Phase 2 Report received from Members 

Appendix 3 - “Phase 2 Report, Service Delivery Review – Review of Herefordshire 
Council’s Strategic Partnership Agreement with Amey” 

Background Papers 

None identified. 

74



Appendix 1 – Extract from Minutes of Strategic Monitoring 
Committee 16th June 2008 

The Committee’s views were invited on the draft recommendations from the Service 
Delivery Review of the Council’s Service Delivery Partnership with Amey Wye Valley Ltd. 

A draft report on Phase 2 of the review had been circulated separately to the Committee. 
  
The Director of Environment and Culture introduced the report.  He said that a great deal 
of work had gone into the review, reflecting the importance attached to addressing the 
Partnership’s shortcomings in delivering services that were highly visible to the public.  
The future emphasis needed to be on addressing issues as they arose, quickly and 
efficiently. 

The Acting Head of Highways and Transportation presented the detail of the report.  The 
two stated objectives of the review were to review alternative forms of delivery with a 
view to securing annual savings to the Council of £1 million and to improve the current 
level and quality of service.  He explained how the review had been conducted and how 
18 possible delivery options had been reduced to 3: the improved business as usual 
model; the managing agent model, which would give greater responsibility for planning 
to Amey; and the integrated services model, with services delivered by an integrated 
organisation staffed by employees of both Amey and Herefordshire Council and 
managed by a single manager reporting to both organisations. 
The aim was to develop a model tailored to meeting the needs of Herefordshire.  It had 
been concluded that the improved business as usual model would not achieve the 
degree of improvement or level of savings required.  The other two models offered a 
potential basis for negotiation. 
He emphasised the extent to which the financial savings were estimates and dependent 
on successful implementation of the model and could not be guaranteed. 
He also drew attention to the appendices to the report setting out the scope of the 
contract, a description of the 3 shortlisted service models, a summary of the methods 
used in estimating potential staff savings and the Amey capability statement. 
In the course of discussion the following principal points were made: 
·       In response to a question, the principle of the “watchman” scheme it was proposed to 

include in the Herefordshire service model was explained.  The scheme was in place 
in Bedfordshire and had improved links with local communities, providing a single 
local contact with a delegated budget and a remit to target resources. 

·         A number of examples were given of where service was not currently being 
delivered to the required standard by Amey. 

·         There was discussion of how savings could be achieved without an adverse effect 
on service delivery.  The Director said that the savings were to be achieved without 
reducing service.  There was considerable duplication of effort at the moment with an 
unnecessary degree of checking.  Where there was a clear outcome to be achieved, 
as in the emergency response to the 2007 summer flooding, the partnership worked 
well.  That was the approach that needed to be fostered. 

·         It was noted that Bedfordshire, where the managing agent model, involving Amey, 
was used, had invested £4 million to generate improvement in its services.  This 

75



approach seemed to contrast with the reduction in costs envisaged by the Council in 
Herefordshire in circumstances where services were not being provided to an 
appropriate standard with the existing level of resources.  The Director replied that 
the relevant Council Services had a higher Comprehensive Performance 
Assessment rating than Bedfordshire’s had had at the time.  He reiterated that the 
aim of the review was to deliver better value for money, both reducing cost and 
increasing quality.  It was highlighted that if the potential savings could be realised 
this would provide the Council with an opportunity to consider reinvesting in 
additional service provision. 

·         It was stated that Members had evidence of schemes carried out by Amey costing 
far in excess of what they would cost in the market place.  In this context the 
apparent intention to achieve savings by reducing the level of challenge of contract 
costs was questioned. 

·         The Director said that challenge by the client side was critical to the delivery of any 
future service model.  A key part of the negotiations would centre on market rates.  
He considered that comparative information on schemes could be obtained to ensure 
that there could be appropriate challenge of costs. 

·         A Member observed that the fundamental problem with the Partnership’s operation 
appeared to be the interface between the Council and Amey.  This suggested that 
the managing agent model might offer the best way forward.  

·         It was noted that the report referred to the need to correct examples of poor 
relationships between Council staff and Amey staff.  This had been commented on in 
the Committee’s scrutiny review of the Partnership completed in 2006.  It was 
disappointing to see that this issue remained unresolved.  The Director said that the 
review acknowledged the need to effect change in working relationships to deliver 
service improvement in the next five years of the contract’s life. 
It was suggested that it was important that action was taken now to seek to improve 
relationships and not just await the outcome of the review.  In reply it was said that 
the review had provided an opportunity to explain the type of behaviours that were 
expected and a number of quick wins had been identified and acted upon.  
Anomalies in the current contract would be removed and robust action taken to 
counter inappropriate behaviour.  

·         Members highlighted that the need for senior management commitment to 
partnership working should not be singled out as a requirement because it was clear 
that commitment by all was required. 

·         Reference was made to the comment in the Audit Commission’s report on value for 
money in strategic partnerships that, “very few strategic partnerships have achieved 
financial benefits.” 

·         Concern was expressed at the late delivery of invoices in relation to the street 
lighting service and the impact on the Council’s final accounts. 

·         That the views of Councillors should have been sought as part of the process.  
Attention was drawn to the examples of poor service by Amey that Members found in 
their wards.  The Director said that he would welcome Member input into the review.  
Members proposed that the views of all Members should be invited. 

76



·         It was suggested that the Committee should have been provided with more detail on 
how the estimated savings were to be achieved.  The Director said that a large part 
of any savings would be a result of reductions in staff costs because this currently 
accounted for a large proportion of expenditure.  It was premature at this stage to 
speculate on the detail.  This would emerge during the negotiations. 

  
·         That whilst the phase 2 review report was good it did not address sufficiently the 

commercial environment and the fact that in entering negotiations Amey would not 
accept a reduction in their profit. 

·         A further question was asked about Bedfordshire’s contract with Amey.  The Director 
said that the contract was not seen as a blueprint but suggested some possible 
approaches.  He acknowledged Amey’s motive was to make profit.  The key was to 
ensure that profit was dependent on delivery.  The Bedfordshire contract focused on 
outcomes. There was provision in their agreement for a series of one-year 
extensions to be added the original 10-year contract as an incentive for Amey to 
deliver on target.  Any such extension awarded by Bedfordshire was dependent on 
satisfactory yearly performance outturns.  The Director indicated that such a 
framework could encourage capital investment by Amey as they would then be able 
to plan for recouping their outlay in the medium and long term. 

·         An interpolation of the information on the projected savings suggested a 50% 
chance of £800k being achieved and a 10% chance of £1million. 

·         The Cabinet Member (Corporate and Customer Services and Human Resources) 
commented that the eventual solution needed to be robust to meet the challenges 
that lay ahead.  She emphasised the need to insist on staff complying with the 
Council’s requirements in seeking to develop partnership working. 

The Chief Executive summed up the position, emphasising the need for an effective 
partnership relationship in which there could be confidence in service delivery.  This 
would involve the Council as client undertaking some benchmarking against market 
rates.  However, excessive supervision would not work.  The contractor should be 
judged on outcome and price. 
The Committee considered its further involvement in consideration of this issue, 
agreeing that it would wish to have a further opportunity to comment prior to a decision 
being made by Cabinet. 
RESOLVED: 
That   (a)  the depth and breadth of the preliminary stage of the review and the 

involvement of the Committee be welcomed; 
(b)   reassurance be provided that any watchman scheme will include Local 

Member views as a matter of course; 
(c)   it be recognised that relationships between the two organisations and 

unity of culture are key and that where bad practice is identified this 
should be remedied on an ongoing basis; 

(d)    all Members be invited to comment on the review; and 
77



(e)   that the Committee should be provided with a further opportunity to 
comment on the review prior to recommendations being considered by 
Cabinet.  

 

78



Appendix 2 – Further comments on draft Phase 2 Report 
received from Members 

Cllr Chris Chappell 

I am not certain of your timetable but I would like the Audit & Corporate Governance 
Committee to have sight of report before being finalised!    The scheduled next meeting 
of the A&CG Committee is 25/0908.  If this is a difficulty for you please discuss with me. 

Cllr Phil Edwards 

Comments circulated at SMC 13th June 2008  
Main Report paras: 
3. SMC found difficulty in commenting on this review without being provided relevant 
information regarding the Scope for the existing Service Delivery Partnership and the 
scope for this particular exercise albeit some detail was eventually found at the end of 
the 46-page report. 
i.e. Aiming to secure annual savings to the Council of a minimum of £1 million is difficult 
to place into context without approximate overall annual values of the contract being 
declared. If this not be possible, why not use percentage savings criteria. 
No annual ‘uplifts’ or contract inflation percentages are declared within the Report. 
Objectives to improve on current quality and level of service should be treated as ‘the 
norm’ for partners working within a standard Performance Management Framework! 
5. This Review could have benefited from Elected Members input during the process, if 
they had been approached. 
11. It would have been helpful for SMC to have been provided with general outputs 
derived from the independently facilitated sessions held for Staff who directly inputted 
into the process. 
12. SMC cannot comment on 16 of the 18 initial service delivery options forwarded as no 
details have been provided to the Committee. 
16. It is noted that the Staff Focus Group requested that the Integrated Service Model 
i.e. Gloucestershire, be considered. 
18. SMC endorses full use be made of the Audit Commission Report titled “for better or 
worse, Value for Money in Strategic Service Partnerships” in striving to find model 
options which could contribute greater benefits for Herefordshire. Their findings (page 
46) listing that “very few strategic partnerships have achieved financial benefits” is seen 
as disappointing. 
21. The Executive Summary which highlights elements recommended to form part of a 
Herefordshire Model of Service Delivery should ensure the Watchman scheme allows for 
Local Member inputting. 
Executive Summary 
Para 7. Whilst it is noted that both the Bedfordshire (managing agent) and the 
Gloucestershire (integrated services model) appear to fit the ‘savings’ objective there is 
no evidenced based detail to support this theory. 
Conclusions – The Herefordshire Model 
Para 10. The Fundamentals listed as essential toward good partnership working are 
agreed but ‘senior management commitment’ should not necessarily be singled out for 
mention, better to simply stress ‘total commitment by all’ to partnership working. 
Overview of the Project 
Para 27. Whilst this Draft Review indicates the Bedfordshire model offers a lesser 
service range of business areas no mention is made of Herefordshire having an option 
to re-look at the current range of services provided. The Herefordshire model needs to 
establish the range of services to be provided, staff levels and relevant accommodation.  

79



Performance Management 
The Committee agrees with the comment (Fundamentals on page 43) that “the vision of 
The Herefordshire Service Delivery Partnership developed in 2003 has not been 
realised” and further agrees the listed framework of good foundations be negotiated. 
Appendix D 
It is noted that the listed improvements taking place throughout Bedfordshire  (CPA 
rating 0 to 3) benefited by kick starting of additional £4 million. 
Herefordshire’s current on the ground reality is (in some areas) that; 

• Smashed glass remains on urban street kerbs & footway, sometimes for months. 

• Grass areas heavily weed infested and left to reseed. 

• Weeds now excel on kerbs & pavements partially due to seed from non-mown 
areas. 

• Council HQ at Brockington display bed of weeds at main entrance now seen as 
norm! 

• Verbal advice of urban fortnightly grass cutting yet June 2008 some just received 
first cut. 

• Children play in the streets as play areas not mown. 

• Examples of damaged street signs, litter bins, loose kerbs many months overdue 
repairs. 

• Street surface dressing around parked vehicles & into kerb drains. 

• Public & Member quotes of repaired potholes failing within hours of repair. 

•  Graffiti accelerating whilst Streetscene await graffiti buster service, etc. 
SMC 130608 PJE 

Cllr Mrs P Andrews 

  
Richard - regarding the Amey contract  - from the point of view of councillors it is simply 
not delivering. Just who monitors job quality? And I understand that their charges are 
well above what local firms would charge for the same work. I do not have enough 
technical knowledge to decide which proposal would offer the best way forward  - all that 
I ask is that whatever solution is chosen by the current administration it offers both a 
better quality of service and better value for money. 
 

Cllr Mark Hubbard 

As Ward Cllr for central ward I welcome the Service Delivery Review of the Councils 
Service Delivery Partnership with Amey. 
The partnership contracts are described as services provided by Amey Wye Valley and 
Amey Consulting formerly Owen Williams. 
I note and welcome the objectives to improve and find costs savings and also to improve 
and ensure better quality of projects and project service delivery. 
As the report appendices have no reference numbers, cross referencing my comments 
to these reports is likely to be confusing to the reader, therefore I have set out below 
general points that apply to the entire set of documents and do make reference where 
possible to the appendix and page number. Also I include a conclusion at the end and 
recommendations throughout my summary report. 
Feedback 
General Points  
1/The review of the service seeks to identify costs savings and improvement in quality. 
Yet cost and quality are of course linked. In my view the report does not investigate fully 
quality control mechanisms and the affect of reduced costs on such quality. Cost, Quality 
and Project Time are linked; generally it is possible to deliver two out of the three. The 

80



SDR does not in my opinion explore exactly where and how quality and project time will 
be measured against cost saving. 
2/The alternative Service Delivery Models considered refer in most part to highway 
matters. The Bedford Model is to be welcomed, however it only investigates 
improvements to transport and highway service delivery. What about the other aspects 
of the partnered services, it is a mistake to assume that the Bedford model will also work 
in other areas of delivery in partnered services. For example architectural services, 
building maintenance, grounds maintenance and the design quality of the street scene 
and built environment.  
3/The review of the Councils Service Delivery Partnership with Amey does not go far 
enough to review past projects. Hightown and Eign Gate Street scene are projects 
where considerable public disquiet and mis-trust of the partnered service was promoted. 
In the eyes of the public these projects were poorly designed and executed and thus 
strike right at the heart of the service partnership. These projects need to be reviewed 
and the problems identified and fixed. 
4/ The review of the Councils Service Delivery Partnership with Amey Wye Valley does 
not focus sufficiently on the Amey Consulting partnership. Quality of public realm and 
architectural services is omitted from the review completely. Cost savings are instead 
centred on staffing issues, management issues and other models for partnership. They 
do not centre on specification standards and quality. For example the council needs to 
recognise that when it is paying for gold it is getting gold not iron. This can only be 
measured when mechanisms bring to light the specification and quality of projects. High 
Town is a good example – Brass letters falling out of paving demonstrates this project 
lacks best value. This stems from a lack in specification quality being held in view during 
the beginning of the procurement and partnership on that particular project. Traditional 
tendering procedures whereby the design of a project is fully costed and specified prior 
to going out to tender leading to selection of a contractor, would have produced a better 
result. In my view the service partnership fails this authority when it comes to 
architectural services and quality. 
5/The slow creep of additional services added to the Amey a service contract is more a 
business model promoted by Amey to secure ever-greater services from Local 
Authorities. This is not necessarily the best route to deliver cost savings and quality. 
Architectural Services, Street Scene Projects and Maintenance of Heritage Buildings are 
in my view areas that should be omitted from the Amey service contracts. Other more 
suitable tendering procedures exist in the private sector and this will give the Authority 
better delivery of quality and accountability. The absence of architectural competition, 
the endless creep of road signage and the lack of care and maintenance of the county’s 
heritage assets are all areas where public mistrust of the authority can be improved 
considerably in terms of improvements to quality and ultimately cost saving. In my view 
this aspect of service should be passed to outside service providers and tendered on a 
project-by-project basis. 
6/ I would recommend that the architectural services element of service delivery be 
omitted from the Amey Consulting contract. This is better procured through other 
methods as laid down by government and promoted by the Royal Institute of British 
Architects RIBA, and the Architects Registration Board ARB, which is governed by and 
regulated by an act of parliament. Amey Consulting formerly Owen Williams in my view 
does not retain good quality architectural services and broadly originates from road 
engineering. This is where the authority fails to deliver better quality buildings, and public 
realm in the eyes of the public. 
Appendix A 
Page 1 
The scope of the contract covers areas, which are practical and sensible for partnered 
delivery for example, materials testing, traffic engineering and technical services. 

81



However some areas of the service contract require ideological input from the public 
authority and these are areas where the Amey service contract fails the authority. For 
example highway design and the promotion of shared space, infrastructure development 
and modal shift scenario planning, architectural quality of public buildings including 
schools i.e. Riverside primary school is a good example of lack of design quality right at 
the heart of the education of young people. 
I question how are Design Briefs written? 
I question how are Service Orders made? 
Page 5 
Specialist Works 
This paragraph in my view sums up where the service partnership fails the authority. 
This promotes a catchall cover-all eventuality arrangement. There are no clear 
mechanisms of writing a brief or managing cost and quality. Sustainability is mentioned 
and of course misused. 
Page 6 
The Highway Service 
The authority through this service contract does not appear to be able to promote better 
highway design quality or any particular project aspiration or ideology. For example the 
highway statement of works centre around the everyday issues, yet they do not appear 
to be able to promote or list services that work towards shared spaces and better street 
scene environments, this is where the authority will find and identify better quality in the 
eyes of the public. 
Page 8 
The Facilities Management Service 
This promotes in my view a totally unacceptable form of care for our heritage assets. 
The conservation and care of heritage is a specialist area. The service contract either 
totally ignores these repairs stacking up a greater maintenance liability or it conducts 
such repairs and fails to deliver on quality given that Amey services do not have the 
skills sets required.  
In my view this aspect of facilities management should be passed to outside service 
providers and tendered on a project by project basis. 
Page 10 
The Facilities Management Service Para 3.1.1.a 
 
The Civic Estate highlighted under The Schedule 10 is omitted from circulation therefore 
I cannot comment.  
Page 11 
3.1.2.a  Preamble 2nd para. 
In developing a plan for the “Contractor to extend its role in delivering a wider range of 
new build and asset replacement works” how does the authority ensure quality delivery 
mechanisms are applied? 
Appendix B 
Page 3 
Improved Business as Usual 
The models will need to also examine the mechanisms for the delivery of quality. The 
adjustments promoted by the alternative models do not go far enough to examine the 
need for better quality of delivery in public buildings and care for our heritage assets. 
The model highlights a large number of client officers are involved in ordering. This 
implies a greater need for staff training and management to ensure consistent quality 
and cost control. 
I would recommend that the architectural services element of service delivery be omitted 
from the Amey Consulting contract, particularly with regard to the design of public realm 
and heritage building projects. This is better procured through other methods as laid 

82



down by government and promoted by the Royal Institute of British Architects RIBA, and 
the Architects Registration Board ARB, which is governed by and regulated by an act of 
parliament. Amey Consulting formerly Owen Williams, in my view, does not retain good 
quality architectural services and broadly stem from road engineering. This is where the 
authority fails to deliver better quality in the eyes of the public. 
Page 4 
Control of cost and quality on service projects cannot come from incentive payments.  
How are costs tested in the market place to promote real rather than artificial value? 
How are better labour rates measured, this implies that sampling of the market place 
takes place. How does this occur? Are some external contracts let, or let on a dummy 
false basis to sample the market place? 
How is specification and quality audited and controlled by the service partnership? 
These are all important questions that remain unanswered in the paperwork I have 
received. 
Page 5 
I welcome the management structure that introduces a Cabinet Member, the director of 
environment, the Watchman and management representatives. I also recommend that a 
scrutiny committee perhaps with external professional involvement be assigned with the 
role of scrutinising measurement and performance indicators annually. 
I welcome all service staff employed by Amey.  
I welcome all foundation roles employed by Herefordshire Council. 
I welcome the service delivery and foundation organisation being set at a strategic and 
high level in the authority. Clear accountability must also come with this. 
Page 6 
I am concerned that extensions to the contract will be used as an incentive for 
successful delivery of performance indicators.  This will promote the setting of low 
standards in order to further extend the contract and will not necessarily promote best 
value or quality service delivery.  I agree that this is an incredibly blunt tool for offering 
reward to the contractor. 
Page 8 
Performance targets that are changed mid way through will lead to lack of clarity and 
responsibility. This is where accountability within management, project quality and cost 
suffers. Who will scrutinise or authorise a shift in performance quality. If the authority is 
paying for gold it should expect gold not iron. 
Page 9 
Much of this management structure appears unclear and therefore unworkable. No one 
can work for two bosses clear management structure, responsibility and accountability 
must be promoted. 
Reward payments through contract extension imply a mechanism to promote a fiddle 
and fudge in the performance indicators. This should be avoided. 
Amey performance based upon mixed teams of Amey and Council staff implies no 
improvement in service from what is currently a confused muddle. 
Appendix D 
Page 1 
Amey appear to gloss over their obligations to other service areas out side of road 
engineering and highway matters.  
Greater scrutiny of service needs to centre on for example, Grounds Maintenance, 
Architectural Services, Street Scene and Building Maintenance. 
Amey state the Bedford model as good example for improvement to service. Yet the 
service improvement is narrow and limited only to one aspect that of Highway services. 
Conclusion 
The Partnership Service contract with Amey is not popular within the county. Local 
businesses and local service providers feel excluded and locked out. This lock out is for 

83



what is in effect decades. 
The fact that the Local Authority is a major employer and lets contracts of considerable 
value it could engage the community more if it were to let more of its contracts to local 
businesses.  
A bottom up approach to service delivery will ensure that the Authority works with its 
community to raise, standards, technologies, training and knowledge. The service 
partnership with Amey transfers considerable funds to outside the county and the public 
are left wanting more in terms of value for money and quality. This vicious cycle 
promotes local contempt for the authority. 
The Authority should re consider the whole partnership experiment and re consider 
fundamental changes to it. The partnership contract does not promote best value, quality 
or local community engagement; these are areas where changes must be made. 
The partnership contract promotes a distant authority that appears to have no regard for 
local community or local businesses. 
Should the authority wish to seek greater quality in project delivery it should seek the re 
engagement of its community and local business. 

Cllr Mrs Sylvia Daniels 

 
I am sorry to be negative however the service that we get is appalling, one of my 
reasons is relating to the service we are not getting is that on a regular occasions in the 
play areas there is a great deal of broken glass and other discarded rubbish where small 
children and their parents/carers are picnicking with their youngsters. 
ALL play areas should be monitored and dealt with early in the mornings, I have been 
approached by many mums and dads informing me that they no longer have any faith in 
the Council as they have no duty of care for the people using their facilities, also the 
toilets in the car park next to the swimming baths is appalling and is known for Drug 
dealers using the facility. 
Also In my opinion the gates should be monitored to make sure that the springs are tight 
and easily opened by little ones. 
Sorry to be negative but we get the angry people before us. 

Cllr Mrs Anne Gray 

 

Good Morning, Re the above. Have Impact Risk Assessments been done regarding the 
above, are they available for the following. Equality and Diversity. I note the policy but ---
The concerns of the workforce at present working for Herefordshire Council and the 
impact of being TUPED over. Also the concerns of many that this workforce would be 
working for a ' for profit' regime and not for the people who pay their council tax to HC for 
a service delivered by a work force who are accountable to them, not a private company. 
This service is one of the measuring sticks that the general public use when gauging 
how well a council is performing. At present there are some of the services performed by 
Amey that have deteriorated considerable in the last quarter, is this because of cost 
cutting or staff moral. 
  

Cllr WJ Walling 

First of all I have to apologise for not meeting your deadline of 7th July in making my 
response to your memorandum dated 24th June.  Frankly, I find it very difficult to respond 
constructively.  I don’t feel, even after reading your paper that I have sufficient 
information to comment constructively.  All I can say is what Amey undertakes that is 
readily observable, for example, street cleaning, grass cutting, tending of flower beds is 

84



not done at all well and the inadequacy of what they are doing is frequently commented 
upon by members of the public. 
There needs to be a re-appraisal of their operations, of that there can be no doubt at all.  
Of the two examples quoted in your memorandum ir Bedfordshire and Gloucestershire I 
tend to favour Bedfordshire option but very tentatively because, as I have said earlier, I 
don’t feel I have sufficient information. 

 
 

 
 

85



Appendix 3:  

“Phase 2 Report, Service Delivery Review – Review of 
Herefordshire Council’s Strategic Partnership Agreement with 
Amey” 

86



 S
D

R
 P

h
a
s
e
 2

 R
e
p
o
rt

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 1

 o
f 

5
5
 

 

R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il
’s
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
  

w
it
h
 A
m
e
y
 

 

D
e
fi
n
it
io
n
 o
f 
th
e
 D
e
s
ir
e
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 M
o
d
e
l 

 

F
in
a
l 
R
e
p
o
rt
 F
o
r 
C
a
b
in
e
t 
 

1
1
th
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
  

 

 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 D
e
li
v
e
ry
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

P
h
a
s
e
 2
 R
e
p
o
rt

 

87



 S
D

R
 P

h
a
s
e
 2

 R
e
p
o
rt

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 2

 o
f 

5
5
 

T
a

b
le

 o
f 
C

o
n

te
n

ts
 

E
X

E
C

U
T

IV
E

 S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

3
 

O
V

E
R

V
IE

W
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..
..

.1
0
 

C
O

N
C

L
U

S
IO

N
S

 –
 T

H
E

 H
E

R
E

F
O

R
D

S
H

IR
E

 M
O

D
E

L
..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
.2

3
 

F
IN

D
IN

G
S

..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..
..

.3
1
 

P
O

T
E

N
T

IA
L
 S

T
A

F
F

 I
M

P
L
IC

A
T

IO
N

S
..
..

..
..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..
..

.3
5
 

F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 S

A
V

IN
G

S
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..
..

.3
9
 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
S

..
..
..

..
..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
.4

3
 

IN
V

E
S

T
M

E
N

T
 I

N
 I

N
F

R
A

S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

E
..

..
..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..
..
.4

6
 

T
R

A
N

S
F

E
R

 O
F

 L
E

A
R

N
IN

G
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..

4
7
 

R
E

S
P

O
N

S
IV

E
N

E
S

S
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..

4
8
 

P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..

5
0
 

S
H

A
R

IN
G

 F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 B

E
N

E
F

IT
S
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..
..

..
..
..

5
4
 

A
P
P
E
N
D
IC
E
S
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
5
5
 

 

 

 

88



 S
D

R
 P

h
a
s
e
 2

 R
e
p
o
rt

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 3

 o
f 

5
5
 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 S
u

m
m

a
ry

 

P
ro
je
c
t 
A
im
s
 a
n
d
 O
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
 

1
 

T
h
e
 a

im
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

is
 t

o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
n
d
 t

o
 

id
e
n
ti
fy

 a
 p

re
fe

rr
e
d
 o

p
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

c
a
n
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
 b

e
tt
e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 f

o
r 

le
s
s
 c

o
s
t.

 

2
 

T
h
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

ll 
a
re

a
s
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 a

im
 o

f 
d
e
fi
n
in

g
 a

 s
o
lu

ti
o
n
 “

th
e
 H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 m

o
d
e
l”
 t

h
a
t 

b
ri
n
g
s
 t

o
g
e
th

e
r 

th
e
 

b
e
s
t 

fe
a
tu

re
s
 o

f 
a
ll 

th
e
 m

o
d
e
ls

 s
tu

d
ie

d
. 

T
h
e
 H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 m

o
d
e
l 

is
 i

n
te

n
d
e
d
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 s
o
lu

ti
o
n
 t

h
a

t 
is

 s
u
it
a
b
le

 f
o
r 

a
ll 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

re
a
s
 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 i

n
 t

h
e
 s

c
o
p
e
 o

f 
th

e
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
t.

 A
ll 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

re
a
s
 i

n
 t

h
e
 s

c
o
p
e
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

c
o
u
ld

, 
th

e
re

fo
re

, 
b
e
 i

n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i

n
 t

h
e
 s

u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t 

n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
. 

3
 

T
h
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 w

a
s
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 t

o
 e

x
a
m

in
e
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 f

o
rm

s
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 w
it
h
 a

 v
ie

w
 t

o
 i

d
e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 a

n
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 f

o
r 

th
e
 f

u
tu

re
 t

h
a
t 

w
o
u
ld

 m
e
e
t 
th

e
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 o

f:
 

8
4
.a

 
s
e
c
u
ri
n
g
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
s
a
v
in

g
s
 t
o
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

o
f 

a
 m

in
im

u
m

 o
f 

£
1
 m

ill
io

n
; 

a
n
d
, 

8
4
.b

 
im

p
ro

v
in

g
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

q
u
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e

 

4
 

T
h
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

in
 t

w
o
 p

h
a
s
e
s
. 

 T
h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

p
h
a
s
e
 a

im
e
d
 t

o
 l
o
o
k
 a

t 
a
s
 w

id
e
 a

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
o
p
ti
o
n
s
 a

s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
. 

It
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

 l
o
n
g
 

lis
t 

o
f 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
e
s
 t

o
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 a
n
d

 a
 s

e
t 

o
f 

c
ri
te

ri
a
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e
re

 u
s
e
d
 t

o
 s

h
o
rt

lis
t 

a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

o
p
ti
o
n
s
. 

T
h
e
 s

h
o
rt

lis
t 

c
o
n
ta

in
e
d
 

th
o
s
e
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

te
a
m

, 
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

b
o
a
rd

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 s

ta
ff

 f
o
c
u
s
 g

ro
u
p
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 h

a
d
 t

h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
to

 m
e
e
t 

th
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 

o
f 

th
e
 
re

v
ie

w
. 

P
h
a
s
e
 
2
 
o
f 

th
e
 
re

v
ie

w
 
h
a
s
 
c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 
th

e
 
s
h
o
rt

lis
te

d
 
o
p
ti
o
n
s
 
in

 
m

o
re

 
d
e
ta

il 
to

 
id

e
n
ti
fy

 
a
 
p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 

m
o
d
e
l 

fo
r 

fu
tu

re
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 i
n
 H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
. 

5
 

It
 w

a
s
 r

e
c
o
g
n
is

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

b
o
a
rd

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 r

e
n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
 w

o
u
ld

 n
e
e
d
 t

o
 c

o
v
e
r 

th
e
 w

h
o
le

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 o

f 
a
n
o
m

a
lie

s
 t

h
a
t 
e
x
is

t 
in

 t
h
e
 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 
a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

. 
 

M
o
d
e
ls
 I
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 A
n
a
ly
s
is
 

6
 

E
ig

h
te

e
n
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
 w

e
re

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 a

 l
o
n
g
 l
is

t 
o

f 
o
p
ti
o
n
s
. 

T
h
e
s
e
 w

e
re

 t
h
e
n
 t

e
s
te

d
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

a
 s

e
t 

o
f 

k
e
y
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 t

h
a
t 

re
d
u
c
e
d
 t

h
e
 s

h
o
rt

lis
t 

to
, 

e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
lly

, 
tw

o
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
. 

A
 t

h
ir
d
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i

d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 s

ta
ff

 f
o
c
u
s
 g

ro
u
p
 t

a
s
k
e
d
 w

it
h

 c
h
a
lle

n
g
in

g
 t

h
e
 s

h
o
rt

lis
ti
n
g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
. 

T
h
is

 t
h
ir
d
 o

p
ti
o
n
 o

p
e
ra

te
s
 i
n
 a

 s
im

ila
r 

w
a
y
 t

o
 t

h
e
 m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 a

g
e
n
t 

m
o
d
e
l 
b
u
t 

in
v
o
lv

e
s
 C

o
u
n
c
il,

 A
m

e
y
 W

y
e

 V
a
lle

y
 a

n
d
 A

m
e
y
 C

o
n
s
u
lt
in

g
 s

ta
ff

 
b
e
in

g
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
 a

s
 a

 s
in

g
le

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
. 

T
h
is

 P
h
a
s
e
 2

 r
e
p
o
rt

, 
th

e
re

fo
re

, 
e
x
a
m

in
e
s
 t

h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
fu

tu
re

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 A

m
e
y
 W

y
e
 V

a
lle

y
 a

n
d
 A

m
e
y
 C

o
n
s
u
lt
in

g
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 

th
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 m

o
d
e
ls

 (
w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 d

e
s
c
ri
b
e
d
 i

n
 m

o
re

 d
e
ta

il 
in

 
A

p
p
e
n
d
ix

 B
):

  

8
4
.a

 
Im

p
ro

v
e
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 
a
s
 u

s
u
a
l 

(i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 B

A
U

) 
w

h
ic

h
 w

o
u
ld

 l
o
o
k
 t

o
 i

m
p
ro

v
in

g
 t

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
 e

x
tr

a
 b

o
n
u
s
 a

n
d
 

89



 S
D

R
 P

h
a
s
e
 2

 R
e
p
o
rt

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 4

 o
f 

5
5
 

p
e
n
a
lt
y
 p

a
y
m

e
n
ts

  

8
4
.b

 
Im

p
le

m
e
n
ti
n
g
 
a
 
m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 
a
g
e
n
t 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

(m
a
n
a
g
in

g
 
a
g
e
n
t)

 
th

a
t 

w
o
u
ld

 
s
h
if
t 

th
e
 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
in

te
rf

a
c
e
 
to

 
g
iv

e
 
a
 
g
re

a
te

r 
re

s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o
r 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 t
o
 A

m
e
y
 W

y
e
 V

a
lle

y
 a

n
d
 A

m
e
y
 C

o
n
s
u
lt
in

g
. 

 

8
4
.c

 
Im

p
le

m
e
n
ti
n
g
 a

 m
a
n
a
g
in

g
 a

g
e
n
t 

ty
p
e
 m

o
d
e
l 
b
u
t 

w
it
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 b

y
 a

n
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 s

ta
ff

e
d
 b

y
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
e
s
 o

f 
b
o
th

 A
m

e
y
 

W
y
e
 V

a
lle

y
, 
A

m
e
y
 C

o
n
s
u
lt
in

g
 a

n
d
 H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
 b

y
 a

 s
in

g
le

 m
a
n
a
g
e
r 

re
p
o
rt

in
g
 t
o
 b

o
th

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 (

in
te

g
ra

te
d
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
) 

7
 

A
n
a
ly

s
is

 
o
f 

th
e
 
m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 
a
g
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 
in

te
g
ra

te
d
 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 
m

o
d
e
ls

 
h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n
 
b
a
s
e
d
 
o
n
 
a
n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 

re
fe

re
n
c
e

 s
it
e
s
: 

B
e
d
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
 
fo

r 
th

e
 

m
a
n
a
g
in

g
 a

g
e
n
t 

m
o
d
e
l 
a
n
d
 G

lo
u
c
e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 i
n

te
g
ra

te
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 m

o
d
e
l.
  

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
a
v
in
g
s
 

8
 

T
h
e
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 b

ro
a
d
 e

s
ti
m

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
o
s
s
ib

le
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 t

h
a
t 

c
o
u
ld

 a
ri
s
e
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 

m
o
d
e
ls

 b
e
in

g
 a

p
p
lie

d
. 

 T
h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 f

o
r 

e
a
c
h
 m

o
d
e
l 
is

 s
h
o
w

n
 i
n
 t

h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 t

a
b
le

. 
 

90



 S
D

R
 P

h
a
s
e
 2

 R
e
p
o
rt

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 5

 o
f 

5
5
 

T
o
ta
l 
E
s
ti
m
a
te
d
 S
a
v
in
g
s

0

2
0
0

4
0
0

6
0
0

8
0
0

1
,0

0
0

1
,2

0
0

Im
p
ro

v
e
d
 B

A
U

M
a
n
a
g
in

g
 A

g
e
n
t

In
te

g
ra

te
d
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

Savings (£k)

L
o
w

 E
s
ti
m

a
te

H
ig

h
 E

s
ti
m

a
te

R
e
q
u

ir
e

d
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 -

 £
1

m

 

F
ig
u
re
 1
 E

s
ti
m
a
te
d
 S

a
v
in
g
s
 F
o
r 
E
a
c
h
 M

o
d
e
l 

91



 S
D

R
 P

h
a
s
e
 2

 R
e
p
o
rt

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 6

 o
f 

5
5
 

C
o
n
c
lu
s
io
n
s
 

In
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

9
 

T
h
is

 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 d

e
s
c
ri
b
e
s
 t

h
e
 p

ri
n
c
ip

le
s
 t

h
a
t 

it
 i

s
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 s

h
o
u
ld

 u
n
d
e
rp

in
 t

h
e
 H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 m

o
d
e
l 

th
a
t 

c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 p

u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 

n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 A

m
e
y
. 

It
 i

s
 n

o
t 

in
te

n
d
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 t

h
e

 m
a
n
d
a
te

 f
o
r 

n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 

d
is

c
lo

s
e
 a

n
y
th

in
g
 a

b
o
u
t 

th
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 p

o
in

t 
o
f 

v
ie

w
 t

h
a
t 

w
o
u
ld

 h
a
m

p
e
r 

o
r 

re
s
tr

ic
t 

th
e
 n

e
g
o
ti
a
ti
n
g
 t

e
a
m

’s
 a

b
ili

ty
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 b

e
s
t 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 d

e
a
l 
fo

r 
H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
. 

1
0
 

T
h
e
 f

e
a
tu

re
s
 t

h
a
t 

w
e
 w

o
u
ld

 l
ik

e
 t

o
 s

e
e
 i
n
 H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 m

o
d
e
l 
a
re

 d
e
s
c
ri
b
e
d
 b

e
lo

w
. 

T
h
e
s
e
 f

e
a
tu

re
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 b

y
 a

n
a
ly

s
in

g
 t

h
re

e
 

a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 m
o
d
e
ls

: 
im

p
ro

v
e
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

s
 u

s
u
a
l,
 t

h
e
 m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 a

g
e
n
t 

m
o
d
e
l 
u
s
e
d
 b

y
 B

e
d
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 A

m
e
y
 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 m

o
d
e
l 
u
s
e
d
 b

y
 G

lo
u
c
e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 W

S
 A

tk
in

s
. 

F
u
n
d
a
m
e
n
ta
ls
 

1
1
 

W
e
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 c

e
rt

a
in

 t
h
a
t 

k
e
y
 p

e
o
p
le

 i
n
 b

o
th

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 w

ill
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 m

o
d
e
l 

s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
tl
y
 t

o
 m

a
k
e
 i

t 
w

o
rk

. 
T

h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 m
o
d
e
l,
 

th
e
re

fo
re

, 
n
e
e
d
s
 t

o
 s

a
ti
s
fy

 a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

s
o
m

e
ti
m

e
s
 c

o
n
fl
ic

ti
n
g
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

. 
T

h
e
s
e
 a

re
: 

8
4
.a

 
S

e
n
io

r 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t’
s
 a

p
p
e
ti
te

 f
o
r 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
in

 e
a
c
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

re
a
 

8
4
.b

 
T

h
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r’
s
 d

e
s
ir
e
 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 a

 b
ro

a
d
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h
ip

 d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 a

 w
id

e
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

8
4
.c

 
T

h
e
 m

o
s
t 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

w
a
y
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
  

1
2
 

T
h
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

u
n
d
e
rl
y
in

g
 t

h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 n
e
e
d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 w

e
ll 

c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

p
le

te
. 

  

O
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
in
te
rf
a
c
e
 

1
3
 

O
u
r 

a
n
a
ly

s
is

 s
u
g
g
e
s
ts

 t
h
a
t 

h
a
v
in

g
 a

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 i
n
te

rf
a
c
e
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 o

ff
e
rs

 t
h
e
 g

re
a
te

s
t 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 f

o
r 

s
a
v
in

g
s
. 

A
n
 i

n
te

g
ra

te
d
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 i

m
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 i

n
 e

it
h
e
r 

th
e
 m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 a

g
e
n
t 

o
r 

in
te

g
ra

te
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 m

o
d
e
l 

a
p

p
e
a
rs

 t
o
 b

e
 t

h
e
 m

o
s
t 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

a
llo

w
in

g
 b

e
tt

e
r 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 a

 g
re

a
te

r 
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t

o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 s
y
n
e
rg

ie
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

S
ta
ff
in
g
 m
o
d
e
l 

1
4
 

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 t
w

o
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 m

o
d
e
ls

 f
o
r 

d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 t

h
a
t 

s
h
o
u
ld

 f
o
rm

 a
 s

u
it
a
b
le

 b
a
s
is

 f
o
r 

n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
: 

8
4
.a

 
T

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 i

s
 s

ta
ff

e
d
 b

y
 A

m
e
y
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
e
s
. 

T
h
is

 i
s
 t

h
e
 l
e
a
s
t 

ri
s
k
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
. 

It
 i
s
 a

 p
ro

v
e
n
 m

o
d
e
l 
th

a
t 

w
ill

 
m

in
im

is
e
 t

h
e
 r

is
k
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 c

u
lt
u
ra

l 
p
ro

b
le

m
s
 (

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
) 

w
ill

 p
re

v
e
n
t 

th
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts

. 

8
4
.b

 
T

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 s

ta
ff

e
d
 b

y
 b

o
th

 A
m

e
y
 a

n
d
 H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s
 w

o
rk

in
g
 i
n
 m

ix
e
d
 t
e
a
m

s
. 
T

h
e
re

 
is

 a
 r

is
k
 t

h
a
t 

m
ix

e
d
 t

e
a
m

s
 w

o
rk

 l
e
s
s
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 i
f 

a
 c

o
m

m
o
n
 c

u
lt
u
re

 c
a
n
n
o
t 

b
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
. 

T
h
is

 r
is

k
 i

s
, 

p
e
rh

a
p
s
, 

g
re

a
te

s
t 

in
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

w
h
e
re

 t
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

re
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 t

w
o
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 i

s
 p

o
o
r.

 H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
e
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 w

o
u
ld

 r
e
d
u

c
e
 t

h
e
 d

is
ru

p
ti
o
n
 t

o
 s

ta
ff

, 

92



 S
D

R
 P

h
a
s
e
 2

 R
e
p
o
rt

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 7

 o
f 

5
5
 

c
o
u
ld

 p
ro

v
id

e
 s

o
m

e
 s

m
a
ll 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
s
a
v
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 c

o
u

ld
 a

llo
w

 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 m
o
d
e
l 
to

 b
e
 p

u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e
 m

o
re

 q
u
ic

k
ly

. 
  

1
5
 

T
h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
ill

 n
e
e
d
 t

o
 b

u
ild

 a
 c

u
lt
u
re

 b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 t

ru
s
ti
n
g
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 i

n
d
iv

id
u
a
ls

. 
O

n
 t

h
e
 o

n
e
 h

a
n
d
, 

th
e
 s

in
g
le

 e
m

p
lo

y
e
r 

m
o
d
e
l 
s
im

p
lif

ie
s
 t

h
e
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

th
a

t 
w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
. 

O
n
 t

h
e
 o

th
e
r 

h
a
n
d
, 

m
ix

e
d
 t

e
a
m

s
 c

o
u
ld

 b
ri
n
g
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 

s
tr

e
n
g
th

s
 a

n
d
 

p
e
rs

p
e
c
ti
v
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

c
o
u
ld

 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

. 

1
6
 

T
h
e
 c

h
o
ic

e
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
in

g
 m

o
d
e
l,
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

, 
c
o
m

e
s
 d

o
w

n
 t

o
 w

e
ig

h
in

g
 u

p
 t

h
e
 a

d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
s
 o

f 
e
a
c
h
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t

o
g
e
th

e
r 

w
it
h
 a

 r
e
a
lis

ti
c
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

w
h
e
th

e
r 

m
ix

e
d
 t

e
a
m

s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 m

a
d
e
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 i
n
 H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
. 

  
F

o
llo

w
in

g
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 

th
e
 p

ro
s
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
s
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
e
s
 

a
n
d
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 m

a
d
e
 d

u
ri
n
g
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 d

ra
ft

 o
f 

th
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

, 
th

e
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 o

u
tl
in

e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 t

a
b
le

 b
e
lo

w
 i
s
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
. 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

1
7
 

Id
e
a
lly

 t
h
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

s
y
s
te

m
 s

h
o
u
ld

  

8
4
.a

 
L
in

k
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

fr
a
m

e
w

o
rk

 

8
4
.b

 
H

a
v
e
 a

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 t

o
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
n
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

8
4
.c

 
L
in

k
 b

o
th

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
p
ro

fi
ta

b
ili

ty
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

e
x
te

n
s
io

n
 t

o
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

8
4
.d

 
In

c
lu

d
e
 a

n
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 c

lie
n
t 

s
id

e
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

n
d
 v

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o
n
e
y
 

1
8
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 r

e
ly

 o
n
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 b
e
h
a
v
io

u
rs

 o
n
 b

o
th

 s
id

e
s
. 

In
 a

d
d
it
io

n
 t

o
 a

 s
tr

o
n
g
 c

lie
n
t 

te
a
m

 t
o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
w

e
 n

e
e
d
 a

 m
e
th

o
d
 

o
f 

id
e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 a

n
d
 c

o
rr

e
c
ti
n
g
 p

o
o
r 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 b
e
h
a

v
io

u
rs

 b
o
th

 b
y
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
a
n
d
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il.

 

1
9
 

T
h
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

m
u
s
t 

a
llo

w
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 b

e
 f

le
x
ib

le
 i

n
 i

ts
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t

o
 n

e
w

 o
r 

e
x
tr

a
o
rd

in
a
ry

 c
ir
c
u
m

s
ta

n
c
e
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 

v
a
ri
e
d
 a

s
, 

fo
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

, 
c
h
a
n
g
in

g
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
g
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

p
o
lic

y
 o

r 
u
n
e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 f

lo
o
d
in

g
. 

  

S
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
r 
in
p
u
t 
a
n
d
 b
e
s
t 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

2
0
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

s
ta

ff
 
a
lr
e
a
d
y
 
e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 
lo

c
a
l 

in
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n

t 
in

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 
d
e
liv

e
ry

 
th

ro
u
g
h
 
P

a
ri
s
h
 
In

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
, 

P
a
ri
s
h
 
L
e
n
g
th

m
a
n
’s

 
s
c
h
e
m

e
, 

S
p
e
e
d
 

In
d
ic

a
ti
o
n
 D

e
v
ic

e
, 

a
tt

e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 a

t 
P

A
C

T
s
, 

re
g
u
la

r 
m

e
e

ti
n
g
 w

it
h
 P

C
s
, 

P
a
ri
s
h
 w

a
lk

a
b
o
u
t,

 
M

e
m

b
e
rs

 b
ri
e
fi
n
g
s
, 

w
o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 c

h
a
ri
ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 e

tc
. 

a
c
ro

s
s
 w

h
o
le

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
c
o
u
n
c
il 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

2
1
 

A
n
y
 n

e
w

 a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

s
h
o
u
ld

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
M

e
m

b
e
r,

 p
a
ri
s
h
 c

o
u
n
c
il,

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
r 

a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
r 

in
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 o

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

. 
A

m
e
y
 

o
p
e
ra

te
 a

 s
c
h
e
m

e
, 

th
e
 w

a
tc

h
m

a
n
 s

c
h
e
m

e
, 

in
 B

e
d
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e
 t

h
a
t 

o
ff

e
rs

 l
o
c
a
l 
s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 a
n
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 w

a
y
 t

o
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

. 
T

h
e
 

w
a
tc

h
m

a
n
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
s
 l
in

k
s
 w

it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 o

ff
e
rs

 a
 w

a
y
 f

o
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 t
o
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

. 
A

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 i
t 
is

 f
o
u
n
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
in

g
 a

g
e
n
t 

m
o
d
e
l,
 
th

is
 
s
c
h
e
m

e
 
c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 i

n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
d
 i

n
to

 a
n
y
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 m

o
d
e
ls

 a
n
d
, 

th
e
re

fo
re

, 
s
h
o
u
ld

 f
o
rm

 p
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 

H
e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 a

n
d
 s

tr
e
n
g
th

e
n
 l
in

k
s
 w

it
h
 s

ta
k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

. 

2
2
 

E
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 a

re
 b

o
th

 i
n
fo

rm
a
l:
 w

it
h
 t

h
e

 e
m

p
h
a
s
is

 o
n
 A

m
e
y
 b

e
in

g
 p

ro
a
c
ti
v
e
 i
n
 s

e
e
k
in

g
 v

ie
w

s
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 o

n
e
-t

o
-o

n
e
 

c
o
n
v
e
rs

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 s

u
rv

e
y
s
; 

a
n
d
 f

o
rm

a
l,
 w

it
h
 l
o
c
a
lly

 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 b

u
d
g
e
ts

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

s
c
h
e
m

e
s
 e

x
is

t 
to

 t
a
c
k
le

 l
o
c
a
l 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
. 
  

93



 S
D

R
 P

h
a
s
e
 2

 R
e
p
o
rt

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 8

 o
f 

5
5
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 M
o
d
e
l 

 R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 M
o
d
e
l 
 

T
h
e
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 

T
h
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 R
e
v
ie

w
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
s
 t

h
a
t 

a
 t

a
ilo

re
d
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 b

e
 t

a
k
e
n
 t

o
 e

a
c
h
 a

re
a
. 

T
h
e
s
e
 a

re
: 

 

•
 

A
 M

a
n
a
g
in

g
 A

g
e
n
t 

m
o
d
e
l 
is

 u
s
e
d
 a

s
 t

h
e
 b

a
s
is

 f
o
r 

n
e
g

o
ti
a
ti
o
n
s
 c

o
v
e
ri
n
g
 h

ig
h
w

a
y
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
la

te
d
 w

o
rk

 (
i.
e
. 

g
ro

u
n
d
s
 

m
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
, 

s
tr

e
e
t 

a
n
d
 
to

ile
t 

c
le

a
n
s
in

g
 
a
n
d
 
p
u
b
lic

 
ri
g
h
ts

 
o
f 

w
a
y
).

 
A

m
e
y
 
w

o
u
ld

 
ta

k
e
 
o
n
 
th

e
 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

s
ta

ff
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

th
e
s
e
 a

re
a
s
 u

n
d
e
r 

T
U

P
E

 a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

  

•
 

A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 P

ro
p
e
rt

y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 e

x
c
lu

d
e
d
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 n

e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
 w

h
ils

t 
a
 w

id
e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 

p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 e

s
ta

te
 a

n
d
 i
ts

 m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

is
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 b

y
 t

h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
9
  

•
 

W
o
rk

 p
re

s
e
n
tl
y
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

fo
r 

A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d

 P
ro

p
e
rt

y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 e

x
c
lu

d
e
d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 p

re
s
e
n

t 
ti
m

e
 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 M

a
n
a
g
in

g
 A

g
e
n
t 

a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

n
 i

n
 t

h
e
 p

re
s
e
n
t 

fo
rm

, 
p
e
n
d
in

g
 t

h
e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 w

id
e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 

 

T
h
e
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 

H
e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 

m
o
d
e
l 

F
o
r 

a
ll 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

re
a
s
 t

h
e
 n

e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 s
e
e
k
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 m

o
d
e
l 
in

c
lu

d
e
s
: 

•
 

A
n
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
t 

a
llo

w
s
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 

•
 

A
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 i
n
te

rf
a
c
e
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t
h
e
 t
w

o
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

fo
r 

th
e
 c

it
iz

e
n
s
 o

f 
H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
  

 

•
 

A
 r

ig
o
ro

u
s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

s
c
h
e
m

e
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 c
a
n
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 t
h
e
 e

x
te

n
t 

to
 

w
h
ic

h
 i
t 

is
 d

ri
v
in

g
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 p

e
o
p
le

 o
f 

H
e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
. 

T
h
is

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

s
c
h

e
m

e
 

w
ill

 b
e
 c

a
p
a
b
le

 o
f 

d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
ti
n
g
 b

o
th

 q
u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

n
d
 v

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o
n
e
y
. 

It
 w

ill
: 

-
 D

e
fi
n
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 l
in

k
e
d
 t
o
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 p
la

n
 

-
 D

ri
v
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 t

h
a
t 
h
e
lp

 d
e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
 f

o
r 

H
e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 

-
 R

e
c
o
g
n
is

e
 t

h
e
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 d

ri
v
e
 k

e
y
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 t

h
a
t 
c
u
t 

a
c
ro

s
s
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
 

-
 E

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 c
a
n
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 v
a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o
n
e
y
 

•
 

A
 l

in
k
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 l

e
v
e
l 

o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

tt
a
in

e
d
 a

n
d
 b

o
th

 p
ro

fi
ta

b
ili

ty
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

e
x
te

n
s
io

n
s
; 

e
n
s
u
ri

n
g
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
re

 a
re

 c
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
s
 f

o
r 

b
o
th

 g
o
o
d
 a

n
d
 p

o
o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

•
 

A
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

re
g
im

e
 t

h
a
t 

d
ri
v
e
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u

o
u
s
 i

m
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 l

e
a
rn

in
g
 f

ro
m

 e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
; 

b
o
th

 

94



 S
D

R
 P

h
a
s
e
 2

 R
e
p
o
rt

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 9

 o
f 

5
5
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 m

is
ta

k
e
s
 

•
 

E
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

a
 s

tr
o
n
g
 l
o
c
a
l 
in

fl
u
e
n
c
e
 o

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 b
y
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
, 

fo
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

, 
th

e
 w

a
tc

h
m

a
n
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 

a
n
d
 l
o
c
a
lly

 a
llo

c
a
te

d
 b

u
d
g
e
ts

 f
o
r 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

lo
c
a
lly

 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 

s
c
h
e
m

e
s
 

 

 

95



 S
D

R
 P

h
a
s
e
 2

 R
e
p
o
rt

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 1

0
 o

f 
5
5
 

O
v
e

rv
ie

w
 

P
ro
je
c
t 
A
im
s
 a
n
d
 O
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
 

2
3
 

T
h
e
 a

im
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

is
 t

o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
n
d
 t

o
 

id
e
n
ti
fy

 a
 p

re
fe

rr
e
d
 o

p
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

c
a
n
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
 b

e
tt
e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 f

o
r 

le
s
s
 c

o
s
t.

 

2
4
 

T
h
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 w

a
s
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 t

o
 e

x
a
m

in
e
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 f

o
rm

s
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 w
it
h
 a

 v
ie

w
 t

o
 i

d
e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 a

n
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 f

o
r 

th
e
 f

u
tu

re
 t

h
a
t 

w
o
u
ld

 m
e
e
t 
th

e
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 o

f:
 

8
4
.a

 
 s

e
c
u
ri
n
g
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
s
a
v
in

g
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

o
f 

a
 m

in
im

u
m

 o
f 

£
1
 m

ill
io

n
; 

a
n
d
, 

8
4
.b

 
im

p
ro

v
in

g
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

q
u
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e

 

2
5
 

T
h
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

in
 t

w
o
 p

h
a
s
e
s
. 

 T
h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

p
h
a
s
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

 l
o
n
g
 l
is

t 
o
f 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
e
s
 t

o
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 t
h
a
t 

w
e
re

 
e
x
a
m

in
e
d
 a

t 
a
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 l
e
v
e
l 
to

 p
ro

d
u
c
e
 a

 s
h
o
rt

lis
t 

o
f 

o
p
ti
o
n
s
 t

h
a
t 

if
 w

a
s
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 h

a
v
e
 t

h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
to

 m
e
e
t 

th
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 
re

v
ie

w
. 

 
P

h
a
s
e
 

2
 

o
f 

th
e
 

re
v
ie

w
 

h
a
s
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 

th
e
 
s
h
o
rt

lis
te

d
 
o
p
ti
o
n
s
 
in

 
m

o
re

 
d
e
ta

il 
to

 
id

e
n
ti
fy

 
a

 
p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 

m
o
d
e
l 

fo
r 

fu
tu

re
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 i
n
 H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
. 

2
6
 

It
 w

a
s
 r

e
c
o
g
n
is

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

b
o
a
rd

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 r

e
n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
 w

o
u
ld

 n
e
e
d
 t

o
 c

o
v
e
r 

th
e
 w

h
o
le

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 o

f 
a
n
o
m

a
lie

s
 t

h
a
t 
e
x
is

t 
in

 t
h
e
 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 
a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

. 
T

h
e
re

 i
s
, 

h
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 n
o
 a

s
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 m
o
d
e
l 
w

ill
 w

o
rk

 i
n
 t

h
e
 s

a
m

e
 w

a
y
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

re
a
s
. 

P
u
rp
o
s
e
 o
f 
th
is
 D
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 

2
7
 

T
h
is

 d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

p
re

s
e
n
ts

 t
h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 o

f 
th

e
 P

h
a
s
e
 2

 d
e
ta

ile
d
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 s

h
o
rt

lis
te

d
 m

o
d
e
l 

o
p
ti
o
n
s
. 

 I
t 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
s
 t

h
e
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 

d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 t

h
re

e
 m

a
in

 m
o
d
e
ls

 i
n
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
th

e
 e

x
te

n
t 

to
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e
y
 w

o
u
ld

 m
e
e
t 

th
e
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
. 

In
 d

ra
w

in
g
 

to
g
e
th

e
r 

th
is

 a
n
a
ly

s
is

 t
h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
s
 k

e
y
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 r

e
g
a
rd

in
g
 t

h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

a
 H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 m

o
d
e
l 

o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 
d
ra

w
in

g
 t

o
g
e
th

e
r 

th
e
 b

e
s
t 

a
s
p
e
c
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 m

o
d
e
l 
o
p
ti
o
n
s
. 

 I
t 

is
 i
n
te

n
d
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

 w
ill

 b
e
 u

s
e
d
 t

o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 C

a
b
in

e
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 f

u
tu

re
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t
o
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 i
n
 H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
. 

  
 

2
8
 

T
h
is

 i
s
 a

 t
e
c
h
n
ic

a
l 
re

p
o
rt

 e
x
p
lo

ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
fu

tu
re

 d
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

H
e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 A

m
e
y
 W

y
e
 V

a
lle

y
 a

n
d
 

A
m

e
y
 C

o
n
s
u
lt
in

g
. 
It

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 p

re
p
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 i
n
p
u
t 

fr
o
m

 A
m

e
y
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

a
 j
o
in

t 
re

v
ie

w
. 
T

h
e
 j
o
in

t 
re

v
ie

w
 a

ls
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 e

x
te

n
s
iv

e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
 s

ta
k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il.

  

M
e
m
b
e
r 
In
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 

2
9
 

T
h
e
 d

ra
ft

 f
in

a
l 

re
p
o
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 w

a
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t

o
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 o

n
 t

h
e
 1

3
th

 J
u
n

e
 2

0
0
8
 s

e
e
k
in

g
 t

h
e
ir
 v

ie
w

s
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 
in

fo
rm

 t
h
e
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 p

re
p
a
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 r

e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 C

a
b
in

e
t.

 

96



 S
D

R
 P

h
a
s
e
 2

 R
e
p
o
rt

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 1

1
 o

f 
5
5
 

3
0
 

T
h
e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 a

s
k
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

a
ll 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 b
e
 g

iv
e
n
 t

h
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t

o
 c

o
m

m
e
n
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 d

ra
ft

 r
e
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 b

e
 g

iv
e
n
 t

h
e
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t

o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

th
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

 t
h
a
t 

w
o
u
ld

 b
e
 p

re
s
e
n
te

d
 t

o
 C

a
b
in

e
t 

in
 a

d
v
a
n
c
e
 o

f 
a
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 b

e
in

g
 t

a
k
e
n
. 

 T
h
e
 I

n
te

ri
m

 H
e
a
d
 o

f 
H

ig
h
w

a
y
s
 

w
ro

te
 t

o
 a

ll 
M

e
m

b
e
rs

 o
n
 2

4
th

 J
u
n
e
 2

0
0
8
 e

n
c
lo

s
in

g
 a

n
d
 i
n
v
it
in

g
 c

o
m

m
e
n
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

 c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 S

tr
a

te
g
ic

 M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
. 

 

3
1
 

T
h
e
 c

o
m

m
e
n
ts

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 f

o
c
u
s
s
e
d
 m

a
in

ly
 a

ro
u
n
d
 c

o
n

c
e
rn

s
 r

e
g
a
rd

in
g
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

q
u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

, 
v
a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o
n
e
y
 a

n
d
 a

 w
is

h
 t

o
 s

e
e
 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t.
 T

h
e
s
e
 c

o
m

m
e
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 i
n

 f
in

a
lis

in
g
 t

h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

. 

O
v
e
rv
ie
w
 o
f 
th
e
 P
ro
je
c
t 

3
2
 

T
h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 

is
 a

 r
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 A

m
e
y
 W

y
e
 V

a
lle

y
 a

n
d
 A

m
e
y
 C

o
n
s
u
lt
in

g
. 

A
ll 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 

d
e
liv

e
re

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
e
re

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
, 

th
e
s
e
 a

re
: 

o
 

R
e
a
c
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 r

o
u
ti
n
e
 h

ig
h
w

a
y
s
 m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 

o
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
d
 h

ig
h
w

a
y
s
 w

o
rk

s
 

o
 

W
in

te
r 

m
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
  

o
 

G
ro

u
n
d
s
 m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 

o
 

S
tr

e
e
t 

c
le

a
n
s
in

g
 

o
 

T
o
ile

t 
c
le

a
n
s
in

g
 

o
 

R
e
c
y
c
lin

g
 

o
 

S
tr

e
e
t 

lig
h
ti
n
g
 

o
 

C
o
u
ri
e
r 

o
 

P
ri
n
ti
n
g
 

o
 

V
e
h
ic

le
 m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 

o
 

S
ig

n
 m

a
n
u
fa

c
tu

re
 

o
 

B
u
ild

in
g
 m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 

o
 

B
u
ild

in
g
 c

le
a
n
in

g
 

o
 

E
v
e
n
t 

c
a
te

ri
n
g
  

o
 

E
m

e
rg

e
n
c
y
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 

o
 

E
n
g
in

e
e
ri
n
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 f

o
r 

p
o
lic

y
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t,

 d
e
s
ig

n
 

a
n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
 

P
u
b
lic

 R
ig

h
ts

 o
f 

W
a
y
 

 

3
3
 

F
u
rt

h
e
r 

d
e
ta

ils
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

a
re

 l
is

te
d
 i
n
 A

p
p
e
n
d
ix

 A
. 

3
4
 

T
h
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 c

o
n
d
u
c
te

d
 i
n
 t

h
re

e
 p

h
a
s
e
s
: 
 

8
4
.a

 
P

h
a
s
e
 1

 s
o
u
g
h
t 

to
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 a
 w

id
e
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
e
s

1
 a

n
d
 a

 s
e
t 

o
f 

c
ri
te

ri
a

2
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

w
h
ic

h
 t

h
e
y
 c

o
u
ld

 b
e
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
 P

ro
je

c
t 
fi
le

: 
S

D
R

 P
h
a
s
e
 1

 O
p
ti
o

n
 L

is
t 
v
2
 0

 

97



 S
D

R
 P

h
a
s
e
 2

 R
e
p
o
rt

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 1

2
 o

f 
5
5
 

ju
d
g
e
d
. 

If
 i
t 

w
a
s
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 o

p
ti
o
n
 c

o
u
ld

 n
o
t 

m
e
e
t 

a
n
y
 o

n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 c

ri
te

ri
o
n
 t
h
e
n
 i
t 

w
a
s
 n

o
t 

s
h
o
rt

lis
te

d
. 

 

8
4
.b

 
P

h
a
s
e
 2

 (
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

p
h
a
s
e
) 

h
a
s
 t

a
k
e
n
 t

h
e
s
e
 s

h
o
rt

lis
te

d
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 d

e
fi
n
e
d
 t

h
e
 m

o
d
e
l 
th

a
t,

 i
t 

is
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
, 

is
 b

e
s
t 

s
u
it
e
d
 t

o
 

H
e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
: 

th
e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 M

o
d
e
l.
 T

h
is

 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 m

o
d
e
l 
is

 d
e
s
c
ri
b
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 o

f 
th

is
 r

e
p
o
rt

. 

8
4
.c

 
P

h
a
s
e
 3

 w
ill

 p
ro

v
id

e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 t

h
e
 n

e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o

n
s
 a

im
e
d
 a

t 
s
e
c
u
ri
n
g
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
 A

m
e
y
 t

o
 i

m
p
le

m
e

n
t 

th
e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 

m
o
d
e
l.
 

3
5
 

E
ig

h
te

e
n
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
 w

e
re

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i

n
 a

 l
o
n
g
 l

is
t 

o
f 

o
p
ti
o
n
s
. 

T
h
e
s
e
 w

e
re

 t
h
e
n
 t

e
s
te

d
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

a
 s

e
t 

o
f 

c
ri
te

ri
a
 w

h
ic

h
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 t

h
e
 s

h
o
rt

lis
t 

o
f,

 
e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
lly

, 
tw

o
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
. 

A
 t

h
ir
d
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i

d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 s

ta
ff

 f
o
c
u
s
 g

ro
u
p
 t

a
s
k
e
d
 w

it
h

 c
h
a
lle

n
g
in

g
 t

h
e
 s

h
o
rt

lis
ti
n
g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
. 

T
h
is

 t
h
ir
d
 o

p
ti
o
n
 o

p
e
ra

te
s
 i

n
 a

 s
im

ila
r 

w
a
y
 t

o
 t

h
e
 m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 a

g
e
n
t 

m
o
d
e
l 

b
u
t 

in
v
o
lv

e
s
 t

h
e
 s

e
c
o
n
d
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

C
o
u
n
c
il,

 A
m

e
y
 W

y
e
 V

a
lle

y
 a

n
d
 

A
m

e
y
 C

o
n
s
u
lt
in

g
 s

ta
ff

 i
n
to

 a
 n

e
w

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
. 

T
h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

, 
th

e
re

fo
re

, 
e
x
a
m

in
e
s
 t

h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
fu

tu
re

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 

th
e
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 m

o
d
e
ls

 (
w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 d

e
s
c
ri
b
e
d
 i
n
 m

o
re

 d
e
ta

il 
in

 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 B
):

  

8
4
.a

 
Im

p
ro

v
e
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 
a
s
 u

s
u
a
l 

(i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 B

A
U

) 
w

h
ic

h
 w

o
u
ld

 l
o
o
k
 t

o
 i

m
p
ro

v
in

g
 t

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
 e

x
tr

a
 b

o
n
u
s
 a

n
d
 

p
e
n
a
lt
y
 p

a
y
m

e
n
ts

  

8
4
.b

 
Im

p
le

m
e
n
ti
n
g
 
a
 
m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 
a
g
e
n
t 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

(m
a
n
a
g
in

g
 
a
g
e
n
t)

 
th

a
t 

w
o
u
ld

 
s
h
if
t 

th
e
 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
in

te
rf

a
c
e
 
to

 
g
iv

e
 
a
 
g
re

a
te

r 
re

s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o
r 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 t
o
 A

m
e
y
 W

y
e
 V

a
lle

y
 a

n
d
 A

m
e
y
 C

o
n
s
u
lt
in

g
. 

 

8
4
.c

 
Im

p
le

m
e
n
ti
n
g
 a

 m
a
n
a
g
in

g
 a

g
e
n
t 

ty
p
e
 m

o
d
e
l 
b
u
t 

w
it
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 b

y
 a

n
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 s

ta
ff

e
d
 b

y
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
e
s
 o

f 
b
o
th

 A
m

e
y
 

a
n
d
 H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
 b

y
 a

 s
in

g
le

 m
a
n
a
g
e
r 

re
p
o
rt

in
g
 t

o
 b

o
th

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 (

in
te

g
ra

te
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
) 

3
6
 

T
h
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 

in
te

n
ti
o
n
 w

a
s
 t

o
 s

e
le

c
t 

a
 s

h
o
rt

lis
t,

 e
x
a
m

in
e
 t

h
e
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 c

h
o
o
s
e
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
m

. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 i
n
 e

x
a
m

in
in

g
 t

h
e
 l

o
n
g
 l

is
t 

o
f 

o
p
ti
o
n
s
 i

t 
b
e
c
a
m

e
 c

le
a
r 

th
a
t 

th
e
re

 w
e
re

 c
e
rt

a
in

 a
s
p

e
c
ts

 o
f 

a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

o
p
ti
o
n
s
 t

h
a
t 

w
e
re

 a
tt
ra

c
ti
v
e
 e

v
e
n
 i

n
 t

h
o
s
e
 t

h
a
t 

w
o
u
ld

 n
o
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
ir
 

o
w

n
 m

e
e
t 

th
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 w

e
re

, 
th

e
re

fo
re

, 
re

je
c
te

d
. 

T
h
e
s
e
 e

le
m

e
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 b
e
e
n
 t

a
k
e
n
 i

n
to

 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 

in
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 t

h
e
 H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 m

o
d
e
l.
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

2
 P

ro
je

c
t 
fi
le

: 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 R
e

v
ie

w
 P

h
a
s
e
 1

 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 C

ri
te

ri
a
 v

e
rs

io
n
 1

.2
 2

9
-1

1
-0

7
 

98



 S
D

R
 P

h
a
s
e
 2

 R
e
p
o
rt

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 1

3
 o

f 
5
5
 

   3
7
 

T
h
e
 m

o
s
t 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

d
e
c
is

io
n
s
 t

o
 b

e
 m

a
d
e
 i

n
 d

e
fi
n
in

g
 t

h
e
 f

u
tu

re
 

H
e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
m

o
d
e
l 

a
re

 
re

p
re

s
e
n
te

d
 

b
y
 

th
e
 

th
re

e
 

m
o
d
e
ls

: 
im

p
ro

v
e
d
 B

A
U

, 
m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 a

g
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 i

n
te

g
ra

te
d

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

T
h
e
 d

ia
g
ra

m
 o

p
p
o
s
it
e
 s

h
o
w

s
 t

h
e
 t

w
o
 m

a
in

 a
x
e
s
 o

f 
d
e
c
is

io
n
: 

 

8
4
.a

 
W

h
e
th

e
r 

to
 s

e
t 

th
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 i
n
te

rf
a
c
e
 a

t 
a
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 
o
r 

ta
c
ti
c
a
l 
le

v
e
l 
 

8
4
.b

 
W

h
e
th

e
r 

to
 

h
a
v
e
 

a
n
 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 

o
f 

m
ix

e
d
 

H
e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 A

m
e
y
 s

ta
ff

 o
r 

tr
a
n
s
fe

r 
th

e
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 s
ta

ff
 t

o
 A

m
e
y
 

        3
8
 

T
h
e
 a

tt
ra

c
ti
v
e
 f

e
a
tu

re
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 o

th
e
r 

m
o
d
e

ls
 c

o
u
ld

 b
e
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
d
 i
n
to

 a
n
y
 o

f 
th

e
 t

h
re

e
 m

a
in

 m
o
d
e
ls

. 
 

3
9
 

T
h
e
 b

e
s
t 

m
o
d
e
l 
fo

r 
H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 m

a
y
 a

ls
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 f

e
a
tu

re
s
 f

ro
m

 a
c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
th

e
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 p

h
a
s
e
 1

 s
u
c
h
 a

s
: 

8
4
.a

 
F

ro
m

 B
e
d
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
  

- 
th

e
 m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 a

g
e
n
t 

e
le

m
e
n

t,
 t

h
e
 w

a
tc

h
m

a
n
-i
n
-c

h
ie

f 
ro

le
, 

th
e
 t

h
in

 c
lie

n
t 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 t

h
e
 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r,
 s

ta
k
e
h
o
ld

e
r 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

b
y
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
(n

o
t 

a
 f

u
n
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

b
u
t 

o
f 

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
),

 t
h
e
 f

o
c
u
s
 o

n
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
, 

th
e
 

n
e
tw

o
rk

 b
o
a
rd

 

8
4
.b

 
F

ro
m

 N
o
rt

h
 L

a
n
a
rk

s
h
ir
e
 -

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

fo
c
u
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 j
o
in

t 
v
e
n
tu

re
's

 p
ro

fi
ta

b
ili

ty
 (

a
n
d
 i
ts

 c
o
n
tr

ib
u

ti
o
n
 t
o
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
) 

a
n
d
 a

s
 a

 t
o
o
l 
fo

r 
re

ta
in

in
g
/i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 l
o
c
a
l 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 

8
4
.c

 
F

ro
m

 C
u
m

b
ri
a
 -

 l
o
c
a
l 
a
re

a
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 i
n
fo

rm
in

g
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
d
e
c
is

io
n
s
 

F
ig
u
re
 1
 A
x
e
s
 o
f 
d
e
c
is
io
n
 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

in
te

rf
a

c
e

S
ta

ff
 m

o
d

e
l

M
A

C

Im
p

ro
v
e

d
 B

A
U

H
y
b

ri
d

M
A

C
S

e
c
o
n

d
m

e
n
t

T
U

P
E

Strategic Tactical

99



 S
D

R
 P

h
a
s
e
 2

 R
e
p
o
rt

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 1

4
 o

f 
5
5
 

4
0
 

C
ru

c
ia

lly
, 

th
e
 m

o
d
e
l 
a
n
d
 f

e
a
tu

re
s
 c

h
o
s
e
n
 a

s
 t

h
e
 p

re
fe

rr
e
d
 m

o
d
e
l 
m

u
s
t 

s
ti
ll 

d
e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
a
im

 o
f 

th
e
 p

ro
je

c
t.

 

4
1
 

T
h
is

 d
ia

g
ra

m
 b

e
lo

w
 s

h
o
w

s
 a

n
o
th

e
r 

v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 d

if
fe

re
n
c
e
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 t

h
re

e
 m

o
d
e
ls

 s
c
h
e
m

a
ti
c
a
lly

. 
G

e
n

e
ra

lly
 i
n
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 B

A
U

 m
o
d
e
l 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

ta
k
e
s
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o
r 

c
o
n
v
e
rt

in
g
 i

ts
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 a
im

s
 i

n
to

 p
la

n
s
, 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 a
n
d
 t

ra
c
k
in

g
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 o

f 
jo

b
s
. 

O
n
e
 a

re
a
 

w
h
e
re

 t
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 i
s
 i
n

 a
g
re

e
in

g
 a

 b
e
tt

e
r 

s
e
t 

o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 t

o
 b

e
 a

g
re

e
d
 w

it
h
 A

m
e
y
. 

 

4
2
 

T
h
e
 m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 a

g
e
n
t 

m
o
d
e
l 

b
ri
n
g
s
 
th

e
 i

n
te

rf
a
c
e
 
u
p
 
a
 l

e
v
e
l 

a
n
d
 a

llo
w

s
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

to
 c

o
n
c
e
n
tr

a
te

 o
n
 d

e
s
c
ri
b
in

g
 i

ts
 a

im
s
 i

n
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
. 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
w

ill
 
b
e
 b

a
s
e
d
 
o
n
 i

m
p
ro

v
in

g
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 i

n
d
ic

a
te

d
 b

y
 a

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 a
n
d
 

o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
. 

 

4
3
 

T
h
e
 i

n
te

g
ra

te
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 m

o
d
e
l 

in
 e

s
s
e
n
c
e
 o

p
e
ra

te
s
 a

t 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 i
n
te

rf
a
c
e
 l

e
v
e
l 

a
s
 t

h
e
 m

a
n
a

g
in

g
 a

g
e
n
t 

m
o
d
e
l 

b
u
t 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
s
 a

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 s

ta
ff

e
d
 b

y
 a

 m
ix

tu
re

 o
f 
A

m
e
y
 W

y
e
 V

a
lle

y
, 
A

m
e
y
 C

o
n
s
u
lt
in

g
 a

n
d
 H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

s
ta

ff
. 
T

h
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 w

o
u
ld

 a
ls

o
 b

e
 i

n
te

g
ra

te
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
r 

ro
le

 b
e
in

g
 c

o
m

b
in

e
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 A

m
e
y
 g

e
n
e
ra

l 
m

a
n
a
g
e
r 

ro
le

. 
In

 
th

is
 
m

o
d
e
l 

th
e
 
s
in

g
le

 
m

a
n
a
g
e
r 

w
o
u
ld

 
b
e
 
re

s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 
to

 
A

m
e
y
 
fo

r 
th

e
 
p
ro

fi
ta

b
ili

ty
 
o
f 

th
e
 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

a
n
d
 
to

 
th

e
 
c
o
u
n
c
il 

fo
r 

o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 v

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o
n
e
y
. 

 

100



 S
D

R
 P

h
a
s
e
 2

 R
e
p
o
rt

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 1

5
 o

f 
5
5
 

 
 

F
ig
u
re
 2
 O

rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
In
te
rf
a
c
e
s
 

101



 S
D

R
 P

h
a
s
e
 2

 R
e
p
o
rt

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 1

6
 o

f 
5
5
 

C
u
rr
e
n
t 
S
it
u
a
ti
o
n
 

4
4
 

T
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 J

a
rv

is
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 c

a
m

e
 i

n
to

 e
ff

e
c
t 

o
n
 1

s
t  S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
3
. 

T
h
e
 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

w
a
s
 l

e
t 

fo
r 

a
n
 i

n
it
ia

l 
1
0
 y

e
a
r 

p
e
ri
o
d
 w

it
h

 t
h
e
 o

p
ti
o
n
 t

o
 e

x
te

n
d
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

fo
r 

a
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

1
0
 y

e
a
rs

. 
T

h
e
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

s
e
t 

u
p
 a

 j
o
in

t 
v
e
n
tu

re
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

w
h
ic

h
 a

re
 d

e
s
c
ri
b
e
d
 i
n
 A

p
p
e
n
d
ix

 A
. 

4
5
 

B
e
fo

re
 t

h
e
 j
o
in

t 
v
e
n
tu

re
 w

a
s
 p

u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e
 t

h
e
s
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 h

a
d
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 b

y
 a

 d
ir
e
c
t 

w
o
rk

s
 o

rg
a
n

is
a
ti
o
n
, 

H
C

S
. 
T

h
e
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 

H
e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 H

C
S

 w
a
s
 p

o
o
r 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
re

 w
e

re
 d

o
u
b
ts

 a
b
o
u
t 

th
e
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 o

f 
H

C
S

’s
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
. 

4
6
 

S
in

c
e
 1

s
t  S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
3
 t

h
e
 s

it
u
a
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 j

o
in

t 
v
e
n
tu

re
 h

a
s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

e
d
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ri
ly

 i
n
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
d
a
y
 t

o
 d

a
y
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 i
n
 

m
o
s
t 

a
re

a
s
. 

4
7
 

T
h
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 A
g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
 O

w
e
n
 W

ill
ia

m
s
 c

a
m

e
 i

n
to

 b
e
in

g
 a

t 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 t

im
e
 a

s
 t

h
e
 j

o
in

t 
v
e
n

tu
re

. 
It

s
 a

im
 w

a
s
 t

o
 c

re
a
te

 t
h
e
 

H
e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

. 
It

 i
d
e
n

ti
fi
e
d
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
o
rk

in
g
 a

s
: 

“P
a
rt

n
e
ri
n
g
 i

n
v
o
lv

e
s
 t

w
o
 o

r 
m

o
re

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 w

o
rk

in
g
 

to
g
e
th

e
r 

to
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 a

g
re

e
in

g
 m

u
tu

a
l 
o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
, 

d
e
v
is

in
g
 w

a
y
s
 f

o
r 

re
s
o
lv

in
g
 a

n
y
 d

is
p
u
te

s
, 

c
o
m

m
it
ti
n
g
 t

h
e
m

s
e
lv

e
s
 t

o
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t,

 m
e
a
s
u
ri
n
g
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 a

n
d
 s

h
a
ri

n
g
 t

h
e
 g

a
in

s
.”

  

4
8
 

T
h
e
 v

is
io

n
 o

f 
th

re
e
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 w

o
rk

in
g
 i
n
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 i
s
 d

e
s
c
ri
b
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 d

ia
g
ra

m
 b

e
lo

w
. 

T
h
e
 l
a
c
k
 o

f 
tr

u
s
t 
b
e
tw

e
e
n
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
o
rk

in
g
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

, 
o
r 

la
c
k
 
o
f 

w
ill

in
g
n
e
s
s
 
to

 
w

o
rk

 
in

 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

, 
h
a
s
 
m

e
a
n
t 

th
a
t 

th
e
 
h
o
p
e
d
 
fo

r 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 
o
f 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
w

o
rk

in
g
 
h
a
v
e
 
n
o
t 

m
a
te

ri
a
lis

e
d
. 

T
h
e
 H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

s
ta

ff
 f

o
c
u
s
 g

ro
u
p
 c

o
m

m
e
n
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
O

w
e
n
 W

ill
ia

m
s
 h

a
s
 g

e
n
e
ra

lly
 n

o
t 
b
e
e
n
 u

p
 t
o
 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

. 
 

4
9
 

N
o
t 

s
u
rp

ri
s
in

g
ly

, 
g
iv

e
n
 t

h
e
 l
a
c
k
 o

f 
th

e
 u

n
d
e
rp

in
n
in

g
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
o
rk

in
g
, 

th
e
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

h
a
s
 n

o
t 

le
d

 t
o
 t

h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
. 

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 a
ls

o
 a

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
is

s
u
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

a
re

 b
a
rr

ie
rs

 t
o
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t,

 f
o
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

: 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

is
 n

o
t 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 l
in

k
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
ts

, 
th

e
re

 i
s
 a

 l
a
c
k
 o

f 
tr

u
s
t 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

, 
th

e
 p

a
y
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 
o
v
e
rl
y
 c

o
m

p
le

x
, 

th
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 c

o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
w

o
rk

s
 a

n
d
 I

T
 i
s
 n

o
t 

in
te

g
ra

te
d
. 

5
0
 

F
u
rt

h
e
rm

o
re

, 
th

e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

c
re

a
te

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 l
a
tt

e
r 

p
a
rt

 o
f 

2
0
0
3
 h

a
d
 s

o
m

e
 f

la
w

s
 t

h
a
t 

w
e
re

 k
n
o
w

n
 a

b
o
u
t 

b
u
t 

n
o
t 

re
m

o
v
e
d
. 

T
h
e
s
e
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 r

a
te

s
 

th
a
t 

d
id

 n
o
t 

re
fl
e
c
t 

th
e
 c

o
s
t 

o
f 

p
ro

v
id

in
g
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 (

s
o
m

e
 b

e
n
e
fi
ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il;

 s
o
m

e
 b

e
n
e
fi
ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r)
 a

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 f

o
r 

w
h
ic

h
 

ra
te

s
 h

a
d
 n

o
t 

b
e
e
n
 a

g
re

e
d
. 

It
 w

a
s
 a

s
s
u
m

e
d
 (

o
r 

h
o
p
e
d

) 
th

a
t 

th
e
s
e
 a

n
o
m

a
lie

s
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 i
s
o
la

te
d
 a

n
d
 f

ix
e
d
 a

s
 t

h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
. 

In
 

fa
c
t 

th
e
re

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 f

e
w

 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

s
in

c
e
 i
ts

 s
ig

n
in

g
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
s
e
 f

la
w

s
 a

n
d
 a

n
o
m

a
lie

s
 a

re
 u

s
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
is

 d
a
y
 t

o
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 t
h
e
 

u
n
fa

ir
 n

a
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

(a
lo

n
g
s
id

e
 r

e
a
l 
e
x
a
m

p
le

s
 n

o
 d

o
u
b
t)

. 

5
1
 

T
h
e
 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
w

a
s
 
n
o
t 

h
e
lp

e
d
 
b
y
 
th

e
 
g
o
in

g
s
 
o
n
 
a
t 

th
e
 
p
a
re

n
t 

c
o
m

p
a
n
y
 
o
f 

H
e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 
J
a
rv

is
 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

T
h
e
s
e
 
a
re

 
d
o
c
u
m

e
n
te

d
 

e
ls

e
w

h
e
re

 b
u
t 
m

a
y
 h

a
v
e
 l
e
d
 t
o
 a

 f
o
c
u
s
 o

n
 c

a
s
h
 g

e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 r

a
th

e
r 

th
a
n
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.

 

5
2
 

In
 2

0
0
6
 t

h
e
 j
o
in

t 
v
e
n
tu

re
 w

a
s
 s

o
ld

 b
y
 J

a
rv

is
 t

o
 A

m
e
y
 L

o
c
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t.
 T

h
e
 n

e
w

 o
w

n
e
rs

, 
w

h
o
 h

a
v
e
 a

ls
o
 t

a
k
e
n
 o

v
e
r 

O
w

e
n
 W

ill
ia

m
s
 (

n
o
w

 
A

m
e
y
 C

o
n
s
u
lt
in

g
),

 h
a
v
e
 t

a
k
e
n
 p

a
rt

 i
n
 t
h
is

 r
e
v
ie

w
. 
T

h
e
y
 a

re
 k

e
e
n
 t
o
 r

e
n
e
g
o
ti
a
te

 t
h
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 
in

to
 a

 f
o
rm

 t
h
a
t 
b
e
tt

e
r 

s
u
it
s
 t
h
e
m

s
e
lv

e
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il,

 r
e
m

o
v
in

g
 t

h
e
 a

n
o
m

a
lie

s
 a

n
d
 f

la
w

s
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 l

o
o
k
in

g
 t

o
 b

u
ild

 t
h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 t
h
a
t 

w
a
s
 i

n
te

n
d
e
d
 b

u
t 

n
e
v
e
r 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
. 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

is
, 

th
e
re

fo
re

, 
in

 t
h
e
 p

o
s
it
io

n
 o

f 
h
a
v
in

g
 a

 s
e
c
o
n
d
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t
o
 c

re
a
te

 t
h
e
 H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

, 
a
lb

e
it
 w

it
h
 s

o
m

e
 c

o
n
s
tr

a
in

ts
 i
m

p
o
s
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 n

e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
. 

 

102



 S
D

R
 P

h
a
s
e
 2

 R
e
p
o
rt

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 1

7
 o

f 
5
5
 

Jo
int

Ve
nt
ur
e 

Co
nt
rac

to
r

C
li
e
n
t

Co
ns
ult
an
t

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

B
o
a
rd Service Delivery

H
E
R
E
F
O
R
D
S
H
IR
E

C
H
.0
8
2
.1
8
.6
.0
3
 R
2

E
xt
er
na
l 

S
up
pl
y 
C
ha
in

E
xt
er
n
al
 

S
u
pp
ly
 C
ha
in

E
x
te
rn
a
l 

S
u
p
p
ly
 

C
h
a
in

R
ea

ct
iv
e 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

W
or

ki
ng

 

Tea
m

s

P
ro

-a
ct

iv
e 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

W
or

ki
ng

 

Tea
m

s

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

a
n
d

 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 

R
e
v
ie

w

Jo
int

Ve
nt
ur
e 

Co
nt
rac

to
r

C
li
e
n
t

Co
ns
ult
an
t

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

B
o
a
rd Service Delivery

H
E
R
E
F
O
R
D
S
H
IR
E

C
H
.0
8
2
.1
8
.6
.0
3
 R
2

E
xt
er
na
l 

S
up
pl
y 
C
ha
in

E
xt
er
n
al
 

S
u
pp
ly
 C
ha
in

E
x
te
rn
a
l 

S
u
p
p
ly
 

C
h
a
in

R
ea

ct
iv
e 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

W
or

ki
ng

 

Tea
m

s

P
ro

-a
ct

iv
e 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

W
or

ki
ng

 

Tea
m

s

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

a
n
d

 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 

R
e
v
ie

w

 

F
ig
u
re
 3
 H

e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 S

e
rv
ic
e
 D

e
li
v
e
ry
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

103



 S
D

R
 P

h
a
s
e
 2

 R
e
p
o
rt

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 1

8
 o

f 
5
5
 

C
ri
te
ri
a
 f
o
r 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
  

5
3
 

In
 

J
a
n
u
a
ry

 
2
0
0
8
 

th
e
 

A
u
d
it
 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 

th
e
 

re
p
o
rt

 
“F

o
r 

b
e
tt

e
r 

o
r 

w
o
rs

e
: 

V
a
lu

e
 

fo
r 

m
o
n
e
y
 

in
 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
-d

e
liv

e
ry

 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
.”

 T
h
is

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 a

 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 t
o
 h

e
lp

 c
o

u
n
c
ils

 m
a
n
a
g
e
 a

n
d
 a

s
s
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
. 
It

 d
iv

id
e
s
 

th
e
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 t
h
a
t 

c
a
n
 b

e
 d

e
ri
v
e
d
 f

ro
m

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 i
n
to

 ‘
c
o
re

’ 
a
n
d
 ‘
a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l’ 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 a
n
d

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
s
 t

h
e
 f

a
c
to

rs
 t

h
a
t 

a
re

 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 

in
 d

e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 e

a
c
h
. 

T
h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

 w
a
s
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 a

n
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 w

o
rt

h
 m

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 £

2
.6

 b
ill

io
n
, 

w
it
h
 i

n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

v
a
lu

e
s
 

ra
n
g
in

g
 f

ro
m

 £
5
0
 m

ill
io

n
 t

o
 £

4
2
5
 m

ill
io

n
. 

T
h
is

 r
e
p
o

rt
 d

ra
w

s
 h

e
a
v
ily

 o
n
 t

h
e
 d

ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 r

e
p
o
rt

; 
m

a
n
y
 o

f 
th

e
 

d
ia

g
ra

m
s
 a

n
d
 a

rg
u
m

e
n
ts

 b
e
lo

w
 a

re
 d

ra
w

n
 d

ir
e
c
tl
y
 f

ro
m

 i
t.
  

5
4
 

A
c
c
o
rd

in
g
 t

o
 t
h
e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
, 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 h

a
v
e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 t

h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

. 

 

F
ig
u
re
 4
 P

a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 B

e
n
e
fi
ts
 

5
5
 

N
o
t 

a
ll 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 h

a
v
e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 t

h
e
s
e
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

. 
T

h
e
 g

ra
p
h
 b

e
lo

w
 s

h
o
w

s
 h

o
w

 t
h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 s

tu
d
y
 f

a
re

d
. 

104



 S
D

R
 P

h
a
s
e
 2

 R
e
p
o
rt

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 1

9
 o

f 
5
5
 

 

F
ig
u
re
 5
 P

a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 s
tu
d
y
 

5
6
 

T
h
e
 f

a
c
to

rs
 t

h
a
t 

a
re

 c
o
m

m
o
n
 t

o
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 t

h
a
t 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
 c

o
re

 b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 a
re

: 
e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 r

is
k
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t,

 r
o
b
u
s
t 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t,

 
c
lie

n
t 

s
id

e
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
, 

e
n
a
b
lin

g
 f

le
x
ib

ili
ty

. 
 I

t 
is

 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 

th
a
t 

a
n
y
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

H
e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 t

a
k
e
s
 a

c
c
o
u
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
s
e
 l

e
s
s
o
n
s
 l

e
a
rn

t 
a
n
d
 t

h
a
t 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 m
e
a
s
u
re

s
 a

re
 p

u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e
 t

o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 b

o
th

 t
h
e
s
e
 c

o
re

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 o
f 

w
o
rk

in
g
 i

n
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

. 

5
7
 

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 a
re

 d
e
liv

e
re

d
 b

y
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 w

it
h
: 

fl
e
x
ib

ili
ty

, 
tr

u
s
t,

 a
n
d
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 i
n
c
e
n
ti
v
e
s
. 

105



 S
D

R
 P

h
a
s
e
 2

 R
e
p
o
rt

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 2

0
 o

f 
5
5
 

 

F
ig
u
re
 6
 R

e
a
li
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 o
f 
S
S
P
s
 

5
8
 

A
n
 i

m
p
ro

v
e
d
 w

a
y
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g
 w

ill
 a

ls
o
 b

e
 c

ru
c
ia

l.
 W

h
e
n
 l

o
o
k
in

g
 a

t 
P

u
b
lic

 P
ri
v
a
te

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 t

h
e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 f

o
u
n
d
 t

h
a
t 

s
h
a
re

d
 

o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

s
 w

e
re

 k
e
y
 t

o
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
. 

 

106



 S
D

R
 P

h
a
s
e
 2

 R
e
p
o
rt

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 2

1
 o

f 
5
5
 

 

F
ig
u
re
 7
 F
a
c
to
rs
 i
n
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 

5
9
 

T
h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 t

o
 t

a
k
e
 i

n
to

 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 

th
e
 f

in
d
in

g
s
 o

f 
th

e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
. 

It
 i

s
 d

iv
id

e
d
 i

n
to

 s
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 t

h
a
t 

in
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te

 t
h
e
 

a
b
ili

ty
 o

f 
e
a
c
h
 m

o
d
e
l 
to

 d
e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 b
e

n
e
fi
ts

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 e

n
a
b
le

rs
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 c
u
lt
u
re

. 
 

6
0
 

T
h
e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 r

e
p
o
rt

, 
th

e
 e

x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 a

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 s
u
p
p
lie

r 
a
n
d
 f

e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 s

ta
ff

 a
ll 

p
o
in

t 
to

 t
h
e
 n

e
e
d
 f

o
r 

th
re

e
 

a
re

a
s
 t

h
a
t 

n
e
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 w

it
h
 e

q
u
a
l 
v
ig

o
u
r 

a
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

is
 r

e
v
ie

w
: 

8
4
.a

 
C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 

–
 t

h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

b
o
th

 p
a
rt

ie
s
 h

a
v
e
 s

h
a
re

d
 g

o
a
ls

, 
to

 
a
llo

w
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

to
 f

o
c
u
s
 o

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 t

h
e
 f

le
x
ib

ili
ty

 t
o
 b

e
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
iv

e
 t

o
 c

h
a
n
g

in
g
 p

o
lic

y
 g

o
a
ls

 

8
4
.b

 
C
li
e
n
t 
In
te
rf
a
c
e
 –

 t
h
e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 g

o
o
d
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

m
a

n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
s
 b

e
in

g
 k

e
y
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 c

o
re

 b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

3
. 

T
h
e
 p

e
o
p
le

 i
n
 t

h
e
 i
n
te

rf
a
c
e
 w

ill
 a

ls
o
 h

e
lp

 d
e
liv

e
r 

b
e
tt

e
r 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
o
rk

in
g
 

8
4
.c

 
C
u
lt
u
re

 –
 t

h
e
 s

p
ir
it
 o

f 
th

e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 i
s
 c

ru
c
ia

l 
to

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 t

h
e
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts

. 
T

h
e
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
a
l 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

th
a
t 

is
 

n
e
e
d
e
d
 t

o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 t

h
is

 s
p
ir
it
 w

ill
 b

e
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
in

g
 b

e
h
a
v
io

u
rs

 b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 t

e
a
m

 v
a
lu

e
s
 a

n
d
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

3
 T

h
e
 O

G
C

 b
e

n
c
h

m
a
rk

 c
o
s
t 

fo
r 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 c

lie
n

t 
in

te
rf

a
c
e
 i
s
 2

%
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 
v
a
lu

e
  

107



 S
D

R
 P

h
a
s
e
 2

 R
e
p
o
rt

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 2

2
 o

f 
5
5
 

S
tr
u
c
tu
re
 o
f 
th
e
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

6
1
 

T
h
e
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
s
 i

n
 t

h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 a
re

 l
a
rg

e
ly

 b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 t
h
a
t 

c
a
n
 b

e
 d

e
ri
v
e
d
 f

ro
m

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 p
a

rt
n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 (

a
s
 i

d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i

n
 t

h
e
 A

u
d
it
 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 r

e
p
o
rt

).
  

6
2
 

T
h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

 s
ta

rt
s
 b

y
 s

u
m

m
a
ri
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 t

h
a
t 
h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 d

ra
w

n
 b

y
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ri
n
g
 h

o
w

 e
a
c
h
 m

o
d
e
l 
w

o
u
ld

 d
ri
v
e
 t

h
e
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

. 

6
3
 

T
h
e
 
‘P

o
te

n
ti
a
l 

S
ta

ff
 
Im

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
’ 

s
e
c
ti
o
n
 
d
o
e
s
 
n
o
t 

re
la

te
 
to

 
o
n
e
 
o
f 

th
e
 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 
id

e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 
b
y
 
th

e
 
A

u
d
it
 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 
b
u
t 

e
x
p
lo

re
s
 
th

e
 

im
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
e
a
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 m

o
d
e
ls

. 

o
 

C
o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 

o
 

F
in

d
in

g
s
 

o
 

P
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
S

ta
ff

 I
m

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 

o
 

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
S

a
v
in

g
s
 

o
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 I

m
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 

o
 

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

in
 I

n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

o
 

T
ra

n
s
fe

r 
o
f 

L
e
a
rn

in
g
 

o
 

B
e
tt

e
r 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
 

S
h
a
ri
n
g
 F

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
B

e
n
e
fi
ts

 

6
4
 

E
a
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
s
 c

o
n
ta

in
s
 a

n
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
, 

a
 t
a
b
le

 c
o
n
ta

in
in

g
 a

 s
u
m

m
a
ry

 o
f 

th
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
e
x
p
e
c
te

d
, 

a
 c

o
m

m
e
n
ta

ry
 d

ra
w

in
g
 t
o
g
e
th

e
r 

th
e
 

im
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
im

p
le

m
e
n
ti
n
g
 e

a
c
h
 m

o
d
e
l 

a
n
d
 c

o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
s
. 

T
h
e
 c

o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 

th
e
 b

ro
a
d
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 t

h
a
t 

w
ill

 b
e
 m

a
d
e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

c
re

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
 m

a
n
d
a
te

. 

108



 S
D

R
 P

h
a
s
e
 2

 R
e
p
o
rt

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 2

3
 o

f 
5
5
 

C
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 –

 T
h

e
 H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h

ir
e

 M
o

d
e

l 

In
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

6
5
 

T
h
is

 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 d

e
s
c
ri
b
e
s
 t

h
e
 p

ri
n
c
ip

le
s
 t

h
a
t 

it
 i

s
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 s

h
o
u
ld

 u
n
d
e
rp

in
 t

h
e
 H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 m

o
d
e

l 
th

a
t 

c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 p

u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 

n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 A

m
e
y
. 

It
 i

s
 n

o
t 

in
te

n
d
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 t

h
e

 m
a
n
d
a
te

 f
o
r 

n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 

d
is

c
lo

s
e
 a

n
y
th

in
g
 a

b
o
u
t 

th
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 p

o
in

t 
o
f 

v
ie

w
 t

h
a
t 

w
o
u
ld

 h
a
m

p
e
r 

o
r 

re
s
tr

ic
t 

th
e
 n

e
g
o
ti
a
ti
n
g
 t

e
a
m

’s
 a

b
ili

ty
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 b

e
s
t 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 d

e
a
l 
fo

r 
H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
. 

6
6
 

T
h
e
 f

e
a
tu

re
s
 t

h
a
t 

w
e
 w

o
u
ld

 l
ik

e
 t

o
 s

e
e
 i
n
 H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 m

o
d
e
l 
a
re

 d
e
s
c
ri
b
e
d
 b

e
lo

w
. 

T
h
e
s
e
 f

e
a
tu

re
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 b

y
 a

n
a
ly

s
in

g
 t

h
re

e
 

a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 m
o
d
e
ls

: 
im

p
ro

v
e
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

s
 u

s
u
a
l,
 t
h
e
 m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 a

g
e
n
t 
m

o
d
e
l 
u
s
e
d
 b

y
 i
n
 B

e
d
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 A

m
e
y
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 

in
te

g
ra

te
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 m

o
d
e
l 
u
s
e
d
 b

y
 G

lo
u
c
e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 W

S
 A

tk
in

s
. 

F
u
n
d
a
m
e
n
ta
ls
 

6
7
 

W
e
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 c

e
rt

a
in

 t
h
a
t 

k
e
y
 p

e
o
p
le

 i
n
 b

o
th

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 w

ill
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 m

o
d
e
l 

s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
tl
y
 t

o
 m

a
k
e
 i

t 
w

o
rk

. 
T

h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 m
o
d
e
l,
 

th
e
re

fo
re

, 
n
e
e
d
s
 t

o
 s

a
ti
s
fy

 a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

s
o
m

e
ti
m

e
s
 c

o
n
fl
ic

ti
n
g
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

. 
T

h
e
s
e
 a

re
: 

8
4
.a

 
S

e
n
io

r 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t’
s
 a

p
p
e
ti
te

 f
o
r 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
in

 e
a
c
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

re
a
 

8
4
.b

 
T

h
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r’
s
 d

e
s
ir
e
 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 a

 b
ro

a
d
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h
ip

 d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 a

 w
id

e
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

8
4
.c

 
T

h
e
 m

o
s
t 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

w
a
y
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
  

6
8
 

T
h
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

u
n
d
e
rl
y
in

g
 t

h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 n
e
e
d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 w

e
ll 

c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

p
le

te
. 

  

O
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
in
te
rf
a
c
e
 

6
9
 

O
u
r 

a
n
a
ly

s
is

 s
u
g
g
e
s
ts

 t
h
a
t 

h
a
v
in

g
 a

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 i
n
te

rf
a
c
e
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 o

ff
e
rs

 t
h
e
 g

re
a
te

s
t 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 f

o
r 

s
a
v
in

g
s
. 

A
n
 i

n
te

g
ra

te
d
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 i

m
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 u

s
in

g
 e

it
h
e
r 

th
e
 m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 a

g
e
n
t 

o
r 

in
te

g
ra

te
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 m

o
d
e
l 

is
 t

h
e
 m

o
s
t 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

a
llo

w
in

g
 

b
e
tt

e
r 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 a

 g
re

a
te

r 
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 s
y
n
e
rg

ie
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

S
ta
ff
in
g
 m
o
d
e
l 

7
0
 

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 t
w

o
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 m

o
d
e
ls

 f
o
r 

d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 t

h
a
t 

s
h
o
u
ld

 f
o
rm

 a
 s

u
it
a
b
le

 b
a
s
is

 f
o
r 

n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
: 

8
4
.a

 
T

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 s

ta
ff

e
d
 b

y
 A

m
e
y
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
e
s
. 

F
o
r 

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 t

h
is

 i
s
 a

 p
ro

v
e
n
 m

o
d

e
l 
th

a
t 
w

ill
 m

in
im

is
e
 t
h
e
 r

is
k
 

th
a
t 

th
e
 c

u
lt
u
ra

l 
p
ro

b
le

m
s
 (

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
) 

w
ill

 p
re

v
e
n
t 

th
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 d
e
liv

e
ri
n

g
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts

. 

8
4
.b

 
T

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 s

ta
ff

e
d
 b

y
 b

o
th

 A
m

e
y
 a

n
d
 H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s
 w

o
rk

in
g
 i
n
 m

ix
e
d
 t
e
a
m

s
. 
T

h
e
re

 

109



 S
D

R
 P

h
a
s
e
 2

 R
e
p
o
rt

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 2

4
 o

f 
5
5
 

is
 a

 r
is

k
 t

h
a
t 

m
ix

e
d
 t

e
a
m

s
 w

o
rk

 l
e
s
s
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 i
f 

a
 c

o
m

m
o
n
 c

u
lt
u
re

 c
a
n
n
o
t 

b
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
. 

T
h
is

 r
is

k
 i

s
, 

p
e
rh

a
p
s
, 

g
re

a
te

s
t 

in
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

w
h
e
re

 t
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

re
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 t

w
o
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 i

s
 p

o
o
r.

 H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
e
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 w

o
u
ld

 r
e
d
u

c
e
 t

h
e
 d

is
ru

p
ti
o
n
 t

o
 s

ta
ff

, 
c
o
u
ld

 p
ro

v
id

e
 s

o
m

e
 s

m
a
ll 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
s
a
v
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 a

llo
w

s
 t

h
e
 n

e
w

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 m
o
d
e
l 
to

 b
e
 p

u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e
 m

o
re

 q
u
ic

k
ly

. 
  

7
1
 

T
h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
ill

 n
e
e
d
 t

o
 b

u
ild

 a
 c

u
lt
u
re

 b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 t

ru
s
ti
n
g
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 i

n
d
iv

id
u
a
ls

. 
O

n
 t

h
e
 o

n
e
 h

a
n
d
, 

th
e
 s

in
g
le

 e
m

p
lo

y
e
r 

m
o
d
e
l 
s
im

p
lif

ie
s
 t

h
e
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

th
a

t 
w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
. 

O
n
 t

h
e
 o

th
e
r 

h
a
n
d
, 

m
ix

e
d
 t

e
a
m

s
 c

o
u
ld

 b
ri
n
g
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 

s
tr

e
n
g
th

s
 a

n
d
 

p
e
rs

p
e
c
ti
v
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

c
o
u
ld

 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

. 

7
2
 

T
h
e
 c

h
o
ic

e
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
in

g
 m

o
d
e
l,
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

, 
c
o
m

e
s
 d

o
w

n
 t

o
 w

e
ig

h
in

g
 u

p
 t

h
e
 a

d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
s
 o

f 
e
a
c
h
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t

o
g
e
th

e
r 

w
it
h
 a

 r
e
a
lis

ti
c
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

w
h
e
th

e
r 

m
ix

e
d
 t

e
a
m

s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 m

a
d
e
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 i
n
 H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
. 

  
T

h
e
 p

ro
s
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 a

re
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 b

e
lo

w
. 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

7
3
 

Id
e
a
lly

 t
h
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

s
y
s
te

m
 s

h
o
u
ld

  

8
4
.a

 
L
in

k
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

fr
a
m

e
w

o
rk

 

8
4
.b

 
H

a
v
e
 a

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 t

o
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
n
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

8
4
.c

 
L
in

k
 b

o
th

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
p
ro

fi
ta

b
ili

ty
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

e
x
te

n
s
io

n
 t

o
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

8
4
.d

 
In

c
lu

d
e
 a

n
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 c

lie
n
t 

s
id

e
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

n
d
 v

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o
n
e
y
 

7
4
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 r

e
ly

 o
n
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 b
e
h
a
v
io

u
rs

 o
n
 b

o
th

 s
id

e
s
. 

In
 a

d
d
it
io

n
 t

o
 a

 s
tr

o
n
g
 c

lie
n
t 

te
a
m

 t
o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
w

e
 n

e
e
d
 a

 m
e
th

o
d
 

o
f 

id
e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 a

n
d
 c

o
rr

e
c
ti
n
g
 p

o
o
r 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 b
e
h
a

v
io

u
rs

 b
o
th

 b
y
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
a
n
d
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il.

 

7
5
 

T
h
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

m
u
s
t 

a
llo

w
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 b

e
 f

le
x
ib

le
 i
n
 i
ts

 a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t

o
 n

e
w

 o
r 

e
x
tr

a
o
rd

in
a
ry

 c
ir
c
u
m

s
ta

n
c
e
s
 a

s
 v

a
ri
e
d
 a

s
 

c
h
a
n
g
in

g
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
g
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
p
o
lic

y
 o

r 
u
n
e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 f

lo
o
d
in

g
. 

  

S
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
r 
in
p
u
t 
a
n
d
 b
e
s
t 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

7
6
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

s
ta

ff
 
a
lr
e
a
d
y
 
e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 
lo

c
a
l 

in
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n

t 
in

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 
d
e
liv

e
ry

 
th

ro
u
g
h
 
P

a
ri
s
h
 
In

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
, 

P
a
ri
s
h
 
L
e
n
g
th

m
a
n
’s

 
s
c
h
e
m

e
, 

S
p
e
e
d
 

In
d
ic

a
ti
o
n
 D

e
v
ic

e
, 

a
tt

e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 a

t 
P

A
C

T
s
, 

re
g
u
la

r 
m

e
e

ti
n
g
 
w

it
h
 P

C
s
, 

P
a
ri
s
h
 
w

a
lk

a
b
o
u
t,

 
M

e
m

b
e
rs

 b
ri
e
fi
n
g
s
, 

w
o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 c

h
a
ri
ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 e

tc
. 

a
c
ro

s
s
 w

h
o
le

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
c
o
u
n
c
il 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

7
7
 

A
n
y
 n

e
w

 a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

s
h
o
u
ld

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
M

e
m

b
e
r,

 p
a
ri
s
h
 c

o
u
n
c
il,

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
r 

a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
r 

in
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 o

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

. 
A

m
e
y
 

o
p
e
ra

te
 a

 s
c
h
e
m

e
, 

th
e
 w

a
tc

h
m

a
n
 s

c
h
e
m

e
, 

in
 B

e
d
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e
 t

h
a
t 

o
ff

e
rs

 l
o
c
a
l 
s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 a
n
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 w

a
y
 t

o
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

. 
T

h
e
 

w
a
tc

h
m

a
n
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
s
 l
in

k
s
 w

it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 o

ff
e
rs

 a
 w

a
y
 f

o
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 t
o
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

. 
A

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 i
t 
is

 f
o
u
n
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
in

g
 a

g
e
n
t 

m
o
d
e
l,
 
th

is
 
s
c
h
e
m

e
 
c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 i

n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
d
 i

n
to

 a
n
y
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 m

o
d
e
ls

 a
n
d
, 

th
e
re

fo
re

, 
s
h
o
u
ld

 f
o
rm

 p
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 

H
e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 a

n
d
 s

tr
e
n
g
th

e
n
 l
in

k
s
 w

it
h
 s

ta
k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

. 

7
8
 

T
h
e
 
W

a
tc

h
m

a
n
 
e
n
g
a
g
e
s
 
w

it
h
 
lo

c
a
l 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

, 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
, 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 
u
s
e
rs

, 
p
a
ri
s
h
 
c
o
u
n
c
ils

, 
th

e
 
H

ig
h
w

a
y
s
 
A

g
e
n
c
y
, 

M
P

s
 
a
n
d
 
k
e
y
 
lo

c
a
l 

110



 S
D

R
 P

h
a
s
e
 2

 R
e
p
o
rt

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 2

5
 o

f 
5
5
 

s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

. 
T

h
is

 
e
n
a
b
le

s
 A

m
e
y
 t

o
 a

lig
n
 l

o
n
g
-t

e
rm

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 
d
e
liv

e
ry

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 p

la
n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 l

o
c
a
l 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 w

it
h
 u

s
e
r 

n
e
e
d
s
. 

7
9
 

E
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 a

re
 b

o
th

 i
n
fo

rm
a
l:
 w

it
h
 t

h
e

 e
m

p
h
a
s
is

 o
n
 A

m
e
y
 b

e
in

g
 p

ro
a
c
ti
v
e
 i
n
 s

e
e
k
in

g
 v

ie
w

s
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 o

n
e
-t

o
-o

n
e
 

c
o
n
v
e
rs

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 s

u
rv

e
y
s
; 

a
n
d
 f

o
rm

a
l,
 w

it
h
 l
o
c
a
lly

 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 b

u
d
g
e
ts

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

s
c
h
e
m

e
s
 e

x
is

t 
to

 t
a
c
k
le

 l
o
c
a
l 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
. 
  

8
0
 

W
h
y
 i

t 
w

o
rk

s
: 

T
h
e
 W

a
tc

h
m

a
n
 r

o
le

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 a

 n
o
n
-b

u
re

a
u
c
ra

ti
c
, 

in
fo

rm
a
l 

m
e
th

o
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 w

h
ic

h
 A

m
e
y
 k

e
e

p
s
 i

n
 t

o
u
c
h
 w

it
h
 a

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

, 
w

h
e
n
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

, 
e
n
a
b
lin

g
 a

 f
a
ir
 a

p
p

ro
a
c
h
 t

h
a
t 

c
a
n
 t

a
k
e
 o

n
 b

o
a
rd

 a
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
v
ie

w
s
 w

it
h
o

u
t 

lo
n
g
 d

ra
w

n
-o

u
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
. 

T
h
e
 

W
a
tc

h
m

a
n
 h

a
s
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 o

f 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a

re
 a

c
tu

a
lly

 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 

8
1
 

A
m

e
y
’s

 w
a
tc

h
m

a
n
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 a

ls
o
 o

ff
e
rs

 a
 g

o
o
d
 m

o
d
e
l 

fo
r 

tr
a
n
s
fe

rr
in

g
 l

e
a
rn

in
g
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 w

it
h
 A

m
e
y
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
ts

. 
T

h
is

 c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

c
o
m

b
in

e
d
 w

it
h
 b

e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 s

h
a
ri
n
g
 b

y
 t

h
e
 c

lie
n
t 

te
a
m

 w
it
h
 a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 o

u
ts

id
e
 t

h
is

 g
ro

u
p
. 

M
o
d
e
l 
P
ro
s
 a
n
d
 C
o
n
s
 

M
o
d
e
l 

P
ro
s
 

C
o
n
s
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
d
 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

a
s
 

U
s
u
a
l 

O
n
ly

 
re

q
u
ir
e
s
 
lim

it
e
d
 
re

n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 
to

 
th

e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
. 

 S
tr

e
n
g
th

e
n
e
d
 c

lie
n
t 

te
a
m

 c
o
u
ld

 h
e
lp

 o
v
e
rc

o
m

e
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 
d
is

a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

in
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

. 

 L
it
tl
e
 d

is
ru

p
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

s
ta

ff
 

 

E
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 d

o
 n

o
t 

m
e
e
t 

re
v
ie

w
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 

 U
n
lik

e
ly

 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

 C
o
m

p
le

x
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ta

b
ili

ty
 f

o
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 r
e
m

a
in

s
 

 U
n
lik

e
ly

 t
o
 s

e
c
u
re

 c
u
lt
u
ra

l 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d

 

 

M
a
n
a
g
in

g
 

A
g
e
n
t 

(s
ta

ff
 

tr
a
n
s
fe

r 
to

 
A

m
e
y
) 

A
 s

tr
a
ig

h
tf

o
rw

a
rd

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
tu

a
l 
re

la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip

 

 C
le

a
r 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ta

b
ili

ty
 f

o
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 

 S
in

g
le

, 
in

te
g
ra

te
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 t
e
a
m

  

 A
m

e
y
 

h
a
v
e
 

g
o
o
d
 

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 

o
f 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ti
n
g
 

M
A

C
 

T
h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
tu

p
e
-i
n
g
 s

ta
ff

 c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 d

is
ru

p
ti
v
e
 

 T
ra

n
s
fe

rr
in

g
 s

o
m

e
 s

ta
ff

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

w
o
u
ld

 l
e
a
d

 t
o
 a

 l
o
s
s
 

o
f 

k
n
o
w

le
d
g
e
 t
h
a
t 
c
o
u
ld

 l
im

it
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 i
n
 t
h
e
 f

u
tu

re
 

 S
o
m

e
 k

e
y
 s

ta
ff

 m
a
y
 n

o
t 

w
is

h
 t

o
 t

ra
n
s
fe

r 
to

 A
m

e
y
 a

n
d
 m

a
y
 

c
h
o
o
s
e
 t
o
 s

e
e
k
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

 

111



 S
D

R
 P

h
a
s
e
 2

 R
e
p
o
rt

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 2

6
 o

f 
5
5
 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 f
o
r 

h
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 

 A
m

e
y
 

h
a
s
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 

o
f 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
T

U
P

E
 

tr
a
n
s
fe

rs
, 

o
v
e
r 

6
0
0
0
 

o
f 

th
e
ir
 

9
0
0
0
 

s
ta

ff
 

h
a
v
in

g
 

tr
a
n
s
fe

rr
e
d
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 p

u
b
lic

 s
e
c
to

r 

 C
u
lt
u
ra

l 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 

m
a
y
 

b
e
 

e
a
s
ie

r 
a
n
d
 

q
u
ic

k
e
r 

w
it
h
in

 
a
 

s
in

g
le

 e
m

p
lo

y
e
r 

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 n

o
 d

ir
e
c
t 

c
o
n
tr

o
l 
o
v
e
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

re
lia

n
t 

o
n
 A

m
e
y
 f

o
r 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

re
p
u
ta

ti
o

n
a
l 
ri
s
k
 

 P
a
rt

s
 

o
f 

th
e
 

m
o
d
e
l 

w
ill

 
b
e
 

n
e
w

 
fo

r 
b
o
th

 
A

m
e
y
 

a
n
d
 

th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
is

k
 t

h
a
t 

a
 s

u
it
a
b
le

 a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

c
a
n
n
o
t 

b
e
 d

e
fi
n
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

g
re

e
d
 

In
te

g
ra

te
d
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

(S
ta

ff
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 

to
 

b
e
 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
d
 

b
y
 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
r 

w
it
h
 

in
te

g
ra

te
d
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t)

 

C
le

a
r 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ta

b
ili

ty
 f

o
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 

 S
in

g
le

, 
in

te
g
ra

te
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 t
e
a
m

  

 R
e
fl
e
c
ts

 t
h
e
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 a

d
o
p
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 P

C
T

 

 R
e
ta

in
s
 f

le
x
ib

ili
ty

 i
n
 t

h
e
 f

u
tu

re
 –

 p
o
te

n
ti
a
lly

 m
o
re

 r
e
a
d
ily

 
a
d
a
p
ta

b
le

 
to

 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
, 

b
o
th

 
e
x
te

rn
a
l 

a
n
d
 

w
it
h
in

 
th

e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il/

P
C

T
 

 H
a
s
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 

to
 a

p
p
ly

 d
if
fe

re
n
t 

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
e
s
 f

o
r 

d
if
fe

re
n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 s

tr
e
a
m

s
 

 Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

c
o
u
ld

 
b
e
 

p
h
a
s
e
d
 

a
n
d
 

is
 

lik
e
ly

 
to

 
b
e
 

a
c
h
ie

v
a
b
le

 e
a
rl
ie

r 
th

a
n
 t

h
e
 m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 a

g
e
n
t 

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h

 

 N
o
 t

u
p
e
 w

o
u
ld

 m
e
a
n
 l
e
s
s
 d

is
ru

p
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

s
ta

ff
 

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

re
ta

in
s
 m

o
re

 c
o
n
tr

o
l 

o
v
e
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
s
o

m
e
 

A
 c

o
o
p
e
ra

ti
v
e
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t

o
  

H
R

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 w
o
u
ld

 b
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
, 

w
h
ic

h
 m

ig
h
t 

re
q
u
ir
e
 m

o
re

 r
e
s
o
u
rc

e
 

 In
te

g
ra

ti
o
n
 

c
o
u
ld

 
b
e
 

s
lo

w
e
r 

th
a
n
 

in
 

th
e
 
M

a
n
a
g
in

g
 

A
g

e
n
t 

m
o
d
e
l 

 M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

m
ix

e
d
 t

e
a
m

s
 o

f 
A

m
e
y
 a

n
d
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

s
ta

ff
 w

ill
 

b
e
 m

o
re

 c
o
m

p
le

x
  

 A
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 
c
u
lt
u
ra

l 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 
c
o
u
ld

 
ta

k
e
 
lo

n
g
e
r 

a
n
d
 b

e
 m

o
re

 
c
o
m

p
le

x
  

 T
h
e
 m

o
d
e
l 

w
ill

 b
e
 n

e
w

 f
o
r 

b
o
th

 A
m

e
y
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 

th
e
re

 
is

 
a
 
ri
s
k
 
th

a
t 

it
 
w

ill
 
b
e
 
d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 
to

 
d
e
fi
n
e
 
a
 
s
u
it
a
b
le

 
a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

112



 S
D

R
 P

h
a
s
e
 2

 R
e
p
o
rt

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 2

7
 o

f 
5
5
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 
s
ta

ff
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 

it
s
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 

 P
o
te

n
ti
a
l 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 
fr

o
m

 
s
h
a
re

d
 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
a
l 

le
a
rn

in
g
 

(A
m

e
y
 a

n
d
 C

o
u
n
c
il/

P
C

T
) 

 R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

8
2
. 
G

iv
e
n
 t

h
e
 p

ro
s
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
s
 o

f 
e
a
c
h
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
, 

th
e
 P

ro
je

c
t 

B
o
a
rd

 c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 o

n
ly

 m
o
d
e
l 
th

a
t 

c
o

u
ld

 p
o
te

n
ti
a
lly

 b
e
 a

p
p
lie

d
 t

o
 a

ll 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 

a
re

a
s
 a

t 
th

a
t 

ti
m

e
 w

a
s
 t

h
e
 i

n
te

g
ra

te
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 m

o
d
e
l.
 T

h
e
re

fo
re

, 
w

it
h
 a

 v
ie

w
 t

o
 t

a
k
in

g
 a

 c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t 

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

re
a
s
 a

n
d
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 r

e
la

ti
v
e
 m

e
ri
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 

o
p

ti
o
n
s
, 

th
e
 B

o
a
rd

 c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 f

o
r 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 C

a
b
in

e
t 

w
o
u
ld

 b
e
: 

a
. 

A
 H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 M

o
d
e
l 
a
s
 o

u
tl
in

e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

 w
it
h
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 s

ta
ff

in
g
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 t

e
a
m

s
 a

n
d
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

ra
th

e
r 

th
a
n
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 s

ta
ff

 t
ra

n
s
fe

r,
 a

lo
n

g
 t

h
e
 l
in

e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 I

n
te

g
ra

te
d
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 m

o
d
e
l 

b
. 

T
h
a
t 

th
is

 a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 b

e
 s

u
b
je

c
t 

to
 a

 r
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

ft
e
r 

1
8
 m

o
n
th

s
 o

f 
o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
 t

o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 w

h
e
th

e
r 

a
n
y
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

c
h
a
n
g
e
 

s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 m

a
d
e
. 

8
3
. 
S

u
c
h
 a

n
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 w

a
s
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
t 

w
it
h
 t

h
a
t 

b
e
in

g
 t

a
k
e
n
 b

y
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

in
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
in

g
 i

n
te

g
ra

te
d
 w

o
rk

in
g
 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 w
it
h
 o

th
e
r 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 s
u
c
h
 a

s
 t

h
e
 P

C
T

. 

8
4
. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 d

ra
ft

 o
f 

th
is

 r
e
p
o

rt
 h

ig
h
lig

h
te

d
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s
 a

b
o
u
t 

th
e
 p

ra
c
ti
c
a
lit

y
 o

f 
th

e
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 m

o
d
e
l,
 i
ts

 
a
b
ili

ty
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 c

u
lt
u
ra

l 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
n
d
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 a

b
o
u
t 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 A

s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 P

ro
p
e
rt

y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

t 
th

is
 p

o
in

t.
  

A
t 

th
e
 t

im
e
 t

h
e
 B

o
a
rd

 m
a
d
e
 i
ts

 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 A

m
e
y
 h

a
d
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
y
 w

o
u
ld

 r
e
q
u
ir
e

 a
 s

in
g
le

 a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 a

p
p
lie

d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 

a
ll 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

re
a
s
. 

 S
in

c
e
 t

h
e
n
 A

m
e
y
 h

a
s
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 a

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
s
u
g
g
e
s
ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

a
 m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 a

g
e
n
t 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
o
u
t 

th
e
 

A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 P

ro
p
e
rt

y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 e

le
m

e
n
ts

 p
e
n

d
in

g
 a

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

is
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

lo
n
e
. 

T
h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 t

h
a
t 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 d

o
 n

o
t 

re
la

te
 t

o
 A

s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 P

ro
p
e
rt

y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

 F
o
llo

w
in

g
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 f

a
c
to

rs
, 

it
 i

s
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 t
h
a
t:

  

8
4
.a

 
A

 M
a
n
a
g
in

g
 A

g
e
n
t 

m
o
d
e
l 
is

 u
s
e
d
 a

s
 t

h
e
 b

a
s
is

 f
o

r 
n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
s
 c

o
v
e
ri
n
g
 h

ig
h
w

a
y
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
la

te
d
 w

o
rk

 (
i.
e
. 

g
ro

u
n
d
s
 m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
, 

s
tr

e
e
t 

a
n
d
 t

o
ile

t 
c
le

a
n
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 p

u
b
lic

 r
ig

h
ts

 o
f 

w
a

y
).

 A
m

e
y
 w

o
u
ld

 t
a
k
e
 o

n
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

s
ta

ff
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

th
e
s
e
 a

re
a
s
 u

n
d
e
r 

T
U

P
E

 
a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

  

8
4
.b

 
A

s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 P

ro
p
e
rt

y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 e

x
c
lu

d
e
d
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 n

e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
 w

h
ils

t 
a
 w

id
e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 e

s
ta

te
 

a
n
d
 i
ts

 m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

is
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 b

y
 t

h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
9
 

113



 S
D

R
 P

h
a
s
e
 2

 R
e
p
o
rt

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 2

8
 o

f 
5
5
 

8
4
.c

 
W

o
rk

 p
re

s
e
n
tl
y
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

fo
r 

A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
a
n
d
 P

ro
p
e
rt

y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 p

re
s
e
n
t 

ti
m

e
 b

e
 e

x
c
lu

d
e
d
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

M
a
n
a
g
in

g
 A

g
e
n
t 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

n
 i

n
 t

h
e
 p

re
s
e
n
t 

fo
rm

, 
p
e
n
d
in

g
 t

h
e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

w
id

e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 

 

C
a

b
in

e
t 

R
e
p

o
rt

N
e

g
o
ti
a
ti
o

n
Im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o

n

R
e
v
ie

w
Im

p
le

m
e
n
t 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s

S
e
p
 2

0
0

8

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 a

n
d
 

re
la

te
d

 w
o

rk

A
s
s
e
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e
m

e
n

t 

a
n

d
 P

ro
p

e
rt

y
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d

e
d
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h

It
 i
s
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
a
 r

e
p
o
rt

 w
ill

 b
e
 p

re
s
e
n
te

d
 t
o
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
o
n
 1

1
th

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 w

it
h
 a

 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
h
a

t:

•
A

 M
a
n
a
g
in

g
 A

g
e
n
t 
m

o
d
e
l 
is

 u
s
e
d
 a

s
 t
h
e
 b

a
s
is

 f
o
r 

n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
s
 c

o
v
e
ri
n
g
 h

ig
h
w

a
y
s
 a

n
d
 

re
la

te
d
 w

o
rk

•
T

h
e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 
A

M
P

S
 b

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

re
s
e
n
t 
fo

rm
, 
p
e

n
d
in

g
 a

 w
id

e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 

fu
n
c
ti
o
n

 b
y
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il

 

114



 S
D

R
 P

h
a
s
e
 2

 R
e
p
o
rt

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 2

9
 o

f 
5
5
 

F
ig
u
re
 8
 S

u
m
m
a
ry
 o
f 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 M
o
d
e
l 

 R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 M
o
d
e
l 
 

T
h
e
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 

T
h
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 R
e
v
ie

w
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
s
 t

h
a
t 

a
 t

a
ilo

re
d
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 b

e
 t

a
k
e
n
 t

o
 e

a
c
h
 a

re
a
. 

T
h
e
s
e
 a

re
: 

 

•
 

A
 M

a
n
a
g
in

g
 A

g
e
n
t 

m
o
d
e
l 
is

 u
s
e
d
 a

s
 t

h
e
 b

a
s
is

 f
o
r 

n
e
g

o
ti
a
ti
o
n
s
 c

o
v
e
ri
n
g
 h

ig
h
w

a
y
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
la

te
d
 w

o
rk

 (
i.
e
. 

g
ro

u
n
d
s
 

m
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
, 

s
tr

e
e
t 

a
n
d
 
to

ile
t 

c
le

a
n
s
in

g
 
a
n
d
 
p
u
b
lic

 
ri
g
h
ts

 
o
f 

w
a
y
).

 
A

m
e
y
 
w

o
u
ld

 
ta

k
e
 
o
n
 
th

e
 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

s
ta

ff
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

th
e
s
e
 a

re
a
s
 u

n
d
e
r 

T
U

P
E

 a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

  

•
 

A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 P

ro
p
e
rt

y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 e

x
c
lu

d
e
d
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 n

e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
 w

h
ils

t 
a
 w

id
e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 

p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 e

s
ta

te
 a

n
d
 i
ts

 m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

is
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 b

y
 t

h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
9
 

•
 

W
o
rk

 p
re

s
e
n
tl
y
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

fo
r 

A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d

 P
ro

p
e
rt

y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 e

x
c
lu

d
e
d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 p

re
s
e
n

t 
ti
m

e
 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

M
a
n
a
g
in

g
 A

g
e
n
t 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

n
 i
n
 t

h
e
 p

re
s
e
n
t 

fo
rm

, 
p
e
n

d
in

g
 

th
e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 w

id
e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 

 

T
h
e
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 

H
e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 

m
o
d
e
l 

F
o
r 

a
ll 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

re
a
s
 t

h
e
 n

e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 s
e
e
k
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 m

o
d
e
l 
in

c
lu

d
e
s
: 

•
 

A
n
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
t 

a
llo

w
s
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 

•
 

A
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 i
n
te

rf
a
c
e
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t
h
e
 t
w

o
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

fo
r 

th
e
 c

it
iz

e
n
s
 o

f 
H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
  

 

•
 

A
 r

ig
o
ro

u
s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

s
c
h
e
m

e
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 c
a
n
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 t
h
e
 e

x
te

n
t 

to
 

w
h
ic

h
 i
t 

is
 d

ri
v
in

g
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 p

e
o
p
le

 o
f 

H
e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
. 

T
h
is

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

s
c
h

e
m

e
 

w
ill

 b
e
 c

a
p
a
b
le

 o
f 

d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
ti
n
g
 b

o
th

 q
u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

n
d
 v

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o
n
e
y
. 

It
 w

ill
: 

-
 D

e
fi
n
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 l
in

k
e
d
 t
o
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 p
la

n
 

-
 D

ri
v
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 t

h
a
t 
h
e
lp

 d
e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
 f

o
r 

H
e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 

-
 R

e
c
o
g
n
is

e
 t

h
e
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 d

ri
v
e
 k

e
y
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 t

h
a
t 
c
u
t 

a
c
ro

s
s
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
 

-
 E

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 c
a
n
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 v
a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o
n
e
y
 

•
 

A
 l

in
k
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 l

e
v
e
l 

o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

tt
a
in

e
d
 a

n
d
 b

o
th

 p
ro

fi
ta

b
ili

ty
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

e
x
te

n
s
io

n
s
; 

e
n
s
u
ri

n
g
 t

h
a
t 

115



 S
D

R
 P

h
a
s
e
 2

 R
e
p
o
rt

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 3

0
 o

f 
5
5
 

th
e
re

 a
re

 c
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
s
 f

o
r 

b
o
th

 g
o
o
d
 a

n
d
 p

o
o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

•
 

A
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

re
g
im

e
 t

h
a
t 

d
ri
v
e
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u

o
u
s
 i

m
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 l

e
a
rn

in
g
 f

ro
m

 e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
; 

b
o
th

 
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 m

is
ta

k
e
s
 

•
 

E
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

a
 s

tr
o
n
g
 l
o
c
a
l 
in

fl
u
e
n
c
e
 o

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 b
y
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
, 

fo
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

, 
th

e
 w

a
tc

h
m

a
n
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 

a
n
d
 l
o
c
a
lly

 a
llo

c
a
te

d
 b

u
d
g
e
ts

 f
o
r 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

lo
c
a
lly

 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 

s
c
h
e
m

e
s
 

 

 

116



 S
D

R
 P

h
a
s
e
 2

 R
e
p
o
rt

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 3

1
 o

f 
5
5
 

F
in

d
in

g
s
 

C
a
te
g
o
ri
e
s
 

8
2
 

T
h
e
 f

in
d
in

g
s
 f

ro
m

 e
a
c
h
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
 i

n
 t

h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 e
x
p
lo

re
 h

o
w

 t
h
e
 m

o
d
e
ls

 s
tu

d
ie

d
 o

p
e
ra

te
. 

T
h
e
 f

in
d
in

g
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

n
a
ly

s
e
d
 i

n
 t

h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 

c
a
te

g
o
ri
e
s
: 

8
4
.a

 
F

u
n
d
a
m

e
n
ta

ls
 –

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
o
rk

in
g
 

8
4
.b

 
O

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
in

te
rf

a
c
e
 –

 t
a
c
ti
c
a
l 
o
r 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 l
e
v
e
l 

8
4
.c

 
S

ta
ff

in
g
 m

o
d
e
l 
–
 w

h
o
 e

m
p
lo

y
s
 s

ta
ff

 i
n
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 

8
4
.d

 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

–
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
in

g
 a

n
d
 r

e
w

a
rd

in
g
 g

o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

8
4
.e

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
r 

in
p
u
t 

a
n
d
 b

e
s
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 –

 o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

lo
c
a
l 
in

fl
u
e
n
c
e
 

8
4
.f
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 –

 m
a
n
a
g
in

g
 t

h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 

F
u
n
d
a
m
e
n
ta
ls
 

8
3
 

T
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

s
it
u
a
ti
o
n
 s

u
g
g
e
s
ts

 t
h
a
t,

 w
h
a
te

v
e
r 

m
o

d
e
l 

o
f 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 i
s
 p

u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e
, 

th
e
re

 a
re

 a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

fu
n
d
a
m

e
n
ta

l 
b
u
ild

in
g
 b

lo
c
k
s
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 f

o
r 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
. 

W
e
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 h

a
v
e
 a

 r
e
a
lis

ti
c
 a

p
p
re

c
ia

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 t

h
in

g
s
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 d

e
fi
n
e
 t

h
e
 b

e
s
t 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 m

o
d
e
l 
fo

r 
e
a
c
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

a
re

a
. 

T
h
e
 f

u
n
d
a
m

e
n
ta

ls
 a

re
: 

8
4
.a

 
A

n
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
, 
s
h
a
re

d
 b

y
 a

ll 
in

v
o
lv

e
d
, 
o
f 

h
o
w

 t
h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 i
s
 m

e
a
n
t 

to
 w

o
rk

 

8
4
.b

 
C

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
to

 t
h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
t 

s
e
n
io

r 
le

v
e
ls

 i
n
 b

o
th

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 

8
4
 

T
h
e
 c

h
o
ic

e
 o

f 
m

o
d
e
l 
w

ill
 n

e
e
d
 t
h
e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 l
o
c
a
l 
s
e
n
io

r 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t;

 t
h
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 w

ill
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
 t

h
e
ir
 a

c
ti
v
e
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
m

e
n
t.

  

O
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
In
te
rf
a
c
e
 

8
5
 

T
h
e
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 s
u
g
g
e
s
ts

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 m

o
d

e
l 

s
h
o
u
ld

 s
e
t 

th
e
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
a
l 

in
te

rf
a
c
e
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 a

t 
th

e
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 l
e
v
e
l.
 T

h
is

 p
u
ts

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 a

n
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
t 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 o

ff
e
rs

 t
h
e
 b

e
s
t 
c
h
a
n
c
e
 o

f 
im

p
ro

v
in

g
 t
h
e
 c

u
lt
u
re

 i
n
 

th
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

. 
 

8
6
 

T
h
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

s
 u

s
u
a
l 
m

o
d
e
l 
d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 

m
e

e
t 

th
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 r
e
v
ie

w
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 c

ri
te

ri
o
n
. 

It
 i
s
, 

th
e
re

fo
re

 n
o
t 

a
 s

u
it
a
b
le

 b
a
s
is

 f
o
r 

re
n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
. 

A
n
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 a

n
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 

d
ri
v
e
r 

o
f 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 i
n
 t

h
o
s
e
 m

o
d
e
ls

 t
h
a
t 

m
e
e
t 

th
e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 c

ri
te

ri
o
n
. 

8
7
 

T
h
e
 m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 a

g
e
n
t 

o
r 

in
te

g
ra

te
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 m

o
d
e
ls

 w
ill

 m
a
k
e
 i

t 
e
a
s
ie

r 
to

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 

a
n
y
 i

m
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 b

y
 A

m
e
y
’s

 w
a
tc

h
m

a
n
 

117



 S
D

R
 P

h
a
s
e
 2

 R
e
p
o
rt

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 3

2
 o

f 
5
5
 

s
c
h
e
m

e
 a

s
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
is

 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

. 

8
8
 

C
re

a
ti
n
g
 a

n
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 r

e
d
u
c
e
s
 t

h
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 c

a
u
s
e
d
 b

y
 p

o
o
r 

c
ro

s
s
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
w

o
rk

in
g
. 

S
ta
ff
in
g
 M
o
d
e
l 

8
9
 

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 t
w

o
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 m

o
d
e
ls

 f
o
r 

d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
: 

8
4
.a

 
T

h
e
 m

a
n
a
g
in
g
 a
g
e
n
t 
m
o
d
e
l 

in
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 s

ta
ff

 i
s
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
d
 b

y
 A

m
e
y
. 

F
o
r 

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 t

h
is

 i
s
 a

 
p
ro

v
e
n
 m

o
d
e
l 

th
a
t 

w
ill

 m
in

im
is

e
 t

h
e
 r

is
k
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 c

u
lt
u
ra

l 
p
ro

b
le

m
s
 (

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
) 

w
ill

 p
re

v
e
n
t 

th
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts

. 

8
4
.b

 
T

h
e
 
in
te
g
ra
te
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 
m
o
d
e
l 

is
 
s
ta

ff
e
d
 b

y
 A

m
e
y
 W

y
e
 V

a
lle

y
, 

A
m

e
y
 C

o
n
s
u
lt
in

g
 a

n
d

 H
e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s
. 

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
is

k
 t

h
a
t 

m
ix

e
d
 t

e
a
m

s
 w

o
rk

 l
e
s
s
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 i
f 

a
 c

o
m

m
o
n
 c

u
lt
u
re

 c
a
n
n
o
t 

b
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
. 

T
h
is

 r
is

k
 i

s
, 

p
e
rh

a
p
s
, 

g
re

a
te

s
t 

in
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

h
e
re

 t
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

re
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e

 t
w

o
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 i
s
 p

o
o
r.

 H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
e
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 w

o
u
ld

 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t

h
e
 d

is
ru

p
ti
o
n
 t

o
 

s
ta

ff
, 

c
o
u
ld

 p
ro

v
id

e
 s

o
m

e
 s

m
a
ll 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
s
a
v
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 a

llo
w

s
 t

h
e
 n

e
w

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 m
o
d
e
l 
to

 b
e
 p

u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e
 m

o
re

 q
u
ic

k
ly

. 
 

9
0
 

T
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 

le
d
 t

o
 g

o
o
d
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
o
rk

in
g
. 

It
 i

s
 l

ik
e
ly

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 i

m
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

s
 u

s
u
a
l 

m
o
d
e
l 

w
ill

 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 s

u
ff

e
r 

fr
o
m

 l
a
c
k
 o

f 
tr

u
s
t 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t
h
e
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
e
s
 i
n
 e

a
c
h
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
. 

9
1
 

T
h
e
 m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 a

g
e
n
t 

m
o
d
e
l 
p
ro

v
id

e
s
 t
h
e
 s

im
p
le

s
t 

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t

o
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
s
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 s
ta

ff
 w

ill
 b

e
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
d
 b

y
 

a
 s

in
g
le

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
. 

9
2
 

T
h
e
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 m

o
d
e
l 
is

 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
in

 G
lo

u
c
e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 b

u
t 

re
lie

s
 o

n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 a

 s
in

g
le

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
c
u
lt
u
re

 w
it
h
 a

 m
ix

e
d
 s

ta
ff

. 
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

9
3
 

B
o
th

 t
h
e
 m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 a

g
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 m

o
d
e
ls

 f
e
a
tu

re
 s

tr
o
n
g
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

s
c
h
e
m

e
s
. 

T
h
e
s
e
 c

o
u
ld

 b
e
 l
in

k
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

fr
a
m

e
w

o
rk

 w
h
ic

h
 w

ill
 a

lig
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
e
s
. 

  

9
4
 

M
e
a
s
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r’
s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

a
g
re

e
d
 i

n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 i

n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i

n
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 p
la

n
s
 w

o
u
ld

 h
e
lp

 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
 s

p
e
n
d
 a

n
d
 e

n
s
u
re

 k
e
y
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

re
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
. 

9
5
 

A
 s

tr
o
n
g
 a

n
d
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

s
y
s
te

m
 i

s
 m

o
re

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

in
 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 t

o
 i

m
p
ro

v
e
 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
. 

T
h
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

s
 u

s
u
a
l 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

m
o
d
e
l 
o
ff

e
rs

 l
it
tl
e
 i
n
c
e
n
ti
v
e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
to

 i
n
v
e
s
t.

 

9
6
 

T
h
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

m
u
s
t 

a
llo

w
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 b

e
 f

le
x
ib

le
 i
n
 i
ts

 a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t

o
 n

e
w

 o
r 

e
x
tr

a
o
rd

in
a
ry

 c
ir
c
u
m

s
ta

n
c
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 c

o
u
ld

 
b
e
 a

s
 v

a
ri
e
d
 a

s
 c

h
a
n
g
in

g
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
g
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

p
o
lic

y
 o

r 
u
n
e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 f

lo
o
d
in

g
. 

 

9
7
 

In
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 b

e
tt

e
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
w

e
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
: 

8
4
.a

 
H

a
v
e
 a

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 b
u
ilt

 o
n
 a

 w
e
ll 

c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

8
4
.b

 
H

a
v
e
 a

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

s
c
h
e
m

e
 t
h
a
t 

re
w

a
rd

s
 g

o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 p

e
n
a
lis

e
s
 p

o
o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

 

118



 S
D

R
 P

h
a
s
e
 2

 R
e
p
o
rt

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 3

3
 o

f 
5
5
 

8
4
.c

 
E

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
re

 a
re

 c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t 

m
e
a
s
u
re

s
 o

f 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 b
a
s
e
lin

e
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

w
h
ic

h
 t

o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

a
n
y
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 i

n
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 

re
s
u
lt
 f

ro
m

 a
n
y
 a

g
re

e
d
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 

8
4
.d

 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 s
e
t 

o
f 

d
e
s
ir
e
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 a

 s
e
t 

o
f 

in
d
ic

a
to

rs
 t

o
 m

e
a
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
re

le
v
a
n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

re
a
s
 t

h
a
t 

re
fl
e
c
t 

th
e
 c

u
s
to

m
e
r 

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 

8
4
.e

 
U

s
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

e
x
te

n
s
io

n
s
 t

o
 r

e
w

a
rd

 g
o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t

o
 a

v
o
id

 “
a
s
s
e
t 

s
w

e
a
ti
n
g
” 

to
w

a
rd

s
 t

h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

p
e
ri
o
d
 

8
4
.f
 

R
e
m

o
v
e
 t

h
e
 a

n
o
m

a
lie

s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
ti
n

g
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
t 

8
4
.g

 
In

c
lu

d
e
 a

n
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 c

lie
n
t 

s
id

e
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

n
d
 v

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o
n
e
y
 

9
8
 

It
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 m

o
re

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 t

o
 l
in

k
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
d
e

liv
e
ry

 t
o
 b

o
th

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

e
x
te

n
s
io

n
 a

n
d
 p

ro
fi
t 

(a
s
 i
n

 t
h
e
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 m

o
d
e
l)
 r

a
th

e
r 

th
a
n
 

ju
s
t 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

e
x
te

n
s
io

n
s
 (

a
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 a

g
e
n
t 

m
o
d
e
l)
. 

 

9
9
 

O
n
e
 
o
f 

th
e
 
le

s
s
o
n
s
 
o
f 

th
e
 
la

s
t 

fi
v
e
 
y
e
a
rs

 
is

 
th

a
t 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 
re

ly
 
o
n
 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 
b
e
h
a
v
io

u
rs

 
o
n
 
b
o

th
 
s
id

e
s
. 

In
 
a
d
d
it
io

n
 
to

 
a
 
s
tr

o
n
g
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

s
y
s
te

m
 f

o
r 

th
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
w

e
 n

e
e
d
 a

 m
e
th

o
d
 o

f 
id

e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 a

n
d
 c

o
rr

e
c
ti
n
g
 p

o
o
r 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 b
e
h
a
v
io

u
rs

 b
o
th

 b
y
 

th
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
a
n
d
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il.

 W
e
 n

e
e
d
 g

o
o
d
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 g

o
o
d
 c

lie
n
t 

b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r.

 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 U
s
e
r 
In
p
u
t 
a
n
d
 B
e
s
t 
P
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

1
0
0
 I

m
p
ro

v
e
d
 
lo

c
a
l 

M
e
m

b
e
r,

 
p
a
ri
s
h
 
c
o
u
n
c
il,

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 
u
s
e
r 

a
n
d
 
o
th

e
r 

s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
r 

in
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 
o
n
 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 
d
e
liv

e
ry

 
is

 
a
n
 
im

p
o
rt

a
n
t 

a
re

a
 
fo

r 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.

 A
m

e
y
 o

p
e
ra

te
 a

 s
c
h
e
m

e
, 

th
e
 w

a
tc

h
m

a
n
 s

c
h
e
m

e
, 

in
 B

e
d
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
 t

h
a
t 

o
ff

e
rs

 l
o
c
a
l 
s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 a
n
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 w

a
y
 t

o
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

. 
T

h
e
 w

a
tc

h
m

a
n
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 i

m
p
ro

v
e
s
 l

in
k
s
 w

it
h
 l

o
c
a
l 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 o

ff
e
rs

 a
 w

a
y
 f

o
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 t
o
 i

n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

. 
A

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 i

t 
is

 f
o
u
n
d
 i

n
 t

h
e
 m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 a

g
e
n
t 

m
o
d
e
l,
 t

h
is

 s
c
h
e
m

e
 c

o
u
ld

 b
e
 i

n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
d
 i

n
to

 a
n
y
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 m

o
d
e
ls

 a
n
d
, 

th
e
re

fo
re

, 
s
h
o
u
ld

 f
o
rm

 p
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
. 

1
0
1
 T

h
e
 
W

a
tc

h
m

a
n
 
e
n
g
a
g
e
s
 
w

it
h
 
lo

c
a
l 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

, 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
, 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 
u
s
e
rs

, 
p
a
ri
s
h
 
c
o
u
n
c
ils

, 
th

e
 
H

ig
h
w

a
y
s
 
A

g
e
n
c
y
, 

M
P

s
 
a
n
d
 
k
e
y
 
lo

c
a
l 

s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

. 
T

h
is

 
e
n
a
b
le

s
 A

m
e
y
 t

o
 a

lig
n
 l

o
n
g
-t

e
rm

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 
d
e
liv

e
ry

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 p

la
n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 l

o
c
a
l 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 w

it
h
 u

s
e
r 

n
e
e
d
s
. 

1
0
2
 E

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 a

re
 b

o
th

 i
n
fo

rm
a
l:
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 e

m
p
h
a
s
is

 o
n
 A

m
e
y
 b

e
in

g
 p

ro
a
c
ti
v
e
 i
n
 s

e
e
k
in

g
 v

ie
w

s
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 o

n
e
-t

o
-o

n
e
 

c
o
n
v
e
rs

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 s

u
rv

e
y
s
; 

a
n
d
 f

o
rm

a
l,
 w

it
h
 l
o
c
a
lly

 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 b

u
d
g
e
ts

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

s
c
h
e
m

e
s
 e

x
is

t 
to

 t
a
c
k
le

 l
o
c
a
l 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
. 
  

1
0
3
 W

h
y
 i

t 
w

o
rk

s
: 

T
h
e
 W

a
tc

h
m

a
n
 r

o
le

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 a

 n
o
n
-b

u
re

a
u
c
ra

ti
c
, 

in
fo

rm
a
l 

m
e
th

o
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 w

h
ic

h
 A

m
e
y
 k

e
e
p
s
 i

n
 t

o
u
c
h
 w

it
h
 a

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

, 
w

h
e
n
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

, 
e
n
a
b
lin

g
 a

 f
a
ir
 a

p
p

ro
a
c
h
 t

h
a
t 

c
a
n
 t

a
k
e
 o

n
 b

o
a
rd

 a
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
v
ie

w
s
 w

it
h
o

u
t 

lo
n
g
 d

ra
w

n
-o

u
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
. 

T
h
e
 

W
a
tc

h
m

a
n
 h

a
s
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 o

f 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a

re
 a

c
tu

a
lly

 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 

1
0
4
 A

m
e
y
’s

 w
a
tc

h
m

a
n
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 a

ls
o
 o

ff
e
rs

 a
 g

o
o
d
 m

o
d
e
l 

fo
r 

tr
a
n
s
fe

rr
in

g
 l

e
a
rn

in
g
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 w

it
h

 A
m

e
y
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
ts

. 
T

h
is

 c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

c
o
m

b
in

e
d
 w

it
h
 b

e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 s

h
a
ri
n
g
 b

y
 t

h
e
 c

lie
n
t 

te
a
m

 w
it
h
 a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 o

u
ts

id
e
 t

h
is

 g
ro

u
p
. 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
u
c
tu
re
 

119



 S
D

R
 P

h
a
s
e
 2

 R
e
p
o
rt

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 3

4
 o

f 
5
5
 

1
0
5
 T

h
e
 i

n
te

g
ra

te
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 m

o
d
e
l 

c
o
m

b
in

e
s
 t

h
e
 C

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r’
s
 g

e
n
e
ra

l 
m

a
n
a
g
e
r 

a
n
d
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
r 

ro
le

. 
It

 c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 s

e
e
n
 a

s
 t

h
e
 

n
e
x
t 

s
te

p
 i
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 a

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 b

ri
n

g
in

g
: 

8
4
.a

 
G

re
a
te

r 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts

: 
o
n
e
 p

e
rs

o
n
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ta

b
le

 f
o
r 

d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 b

o
th

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 p

ro
fi
ta

b
ili

ty
 

8
4
.b

 
G

re
a
te

r 
ri
s
k
s
: 

if
 t

h
e
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 t

e
a
m

s
 c

a
n
n
o
t 

b
e
 m

a
d
e
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 t
h
e
n
 i
t 

m
a
y
 b

e
 a

n
 u

n
d
o
a
b
le

 j
o
b
 

1
0
6
 T

h
e
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 e

n
s
u
re

s
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 a

im
s
 o

f 
th

e
 t

w
o
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 a

lig
n
e
d
 a

n
d
 w

it
h
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

d
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

th
e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 o

w
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 p
la

n
s
. 

 

120



 S
D

R
 P

h
a
s
e
 2

 R
e
p
o
rt

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 3

5
 o

f 
5
5
 

P
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
S

ta
ff
 I
m

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
 

In
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

1
0
7
 T

h
is

 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 d

e
s
c
ri
b
e
s
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 s

ta
ff

 o
f 

e
a
c
h
 m

o
d
e
l.
 T

h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
s
ta

ff
 t
ra

n
s
fe

rs
, 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 p

o
s
ts

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
o
f 

e
a
c
h
 m

o
d
e
l 
to

 d
ri
v
e
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.

  

1
0
8
 T

h
e
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t

a
k
e
n
 t

o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 t

h
e
 l
ik

e
ly

 s
ta

ff
 i
m

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 
m

o
d
e
ls

 i
s
 o

u
tl
in

e
d
 i
n
 A

p
p
e
n
d
ix

 C
. 

 

A
n
a
ly
s
is
 o
f 
th
e
 I
m
p
a
c
ts
 

Im
p
a
c
t 

Im
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

a
u
 

M
a
n
a
g
in

g
 a

g
e
n
t 

In
te

g
ra

te
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

1
. 

S
ta

ff
 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
 

A
s
 
th

e
 
w

a
y
 
o
f 

w
o
rk

in
g
 
w

o
u
ld

 
re

m
a
in

 
b
ro

a
d
ly

 
th

e
 

s
a
m

e
 

u
n
d
e
r 

th
is

 
m

o
d
e
l,
 

th
e
re

 a
re

 l
im

it
e
d
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

s
ta

ff
 

re
la

te
d
 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 

s
a
v
in

g
s
. 

 
A

s
 

s
u
c
h
, 

th
e
re

 
w

o
u
ld

 
o
n
ly

 
b
e
 

a
 

m
a
rg

in
a
l 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

in
 

p
o
s
ts

 
a
c
ro

s
s
 

th
e
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

. 

 

C
o
n
s
o
lid

a
ti
n
g
 

th
e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 l

e
a
d
 t

o
 m

o
re

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 

d
e
liv

e
ry

. 
W

h
ils

t 
m

a
in

ta
in

in
g
 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 

le
v
e
ls

 
o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 
d
e
liv

e
ry

, 
it
 i

s
 

e
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 

th
a
t 

th
is

 
w

o
u
ld

 
le

a
d
 

to
 
a
n
 

o
v
e
ra

ll 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

in
 

p
o
s
ts

 
a
c
ro

s
s
 

th
e
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 i
n
 a

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 
a
 
d
e
d
ic

a
te

d
 
s
in

g
le

 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

te
a
m

 
w

o
u
ld

 
n
e
e
d
 
to

 
b
e
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 
re

p
re

s
e
n
ti
n
g
 
a
 
c
le

a
r 

s
h
if
t 

fr
o
m

 
s
u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 

to
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t.

  
 

S
ta

ff
 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
 

w
o
u
ld

 
c
o
m

e
 

fr
o
m

 
im

p
ro

v
e
d
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 i

n
c
lu

d
in

g
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 

le
v
e
ls

 
o
f 

s
u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 

a
n
d
 

in
 

th
e
 

re
q
u
is

it
io

n
in

g
 

a
n
d
 

p
a
y
m

e
n
t 

m
e
c
h
a
n
is

m
s
 f

o
r 

w
o
rk

. 

 

O
v
e
ra

ll 
im

p
a
c
ts

 
a
re

 
a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 
to

 
b
e
 

s
im

ila
r 

to
 t

h
e
 m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 a

g
e
n
t 

m
o
d
e
l.
  

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 
b
y
 

c
o
n
s
o
lid

a
ti
n
g
 

th
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
, 

it
 

m
a
y
 

a
ls

o
 

le
a
d
 

to
 

a
 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

o
f 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 

th
e
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

. 

 

2
. 

C
h
a
n
g
in

g
 

n
a
tu

re
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 
T

h
is

 
im

p
ro

v
e
d
 

in
te

rf
a
c
e
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 

th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 

A
m

e
y
 

is
 

in
te

n
d
e
d
 

to
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 

im
p
ro

v
e
d
 

b
e
h
a
v
io

u
rs

 
o
n
 

A
 

g
re

a
te

r 
e
m

p
h
a
s
is

 
o
n
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

ra
th

e
r 

th
a
n
 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 
w

ill
 
in

c
re

a
s
e
 
th

e
 
n
e
e
d
 
fo

r 

Im
p
a
c
ts

 
a
re

 
s
im

ila
r 

to
 

th
e
 
m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 

a
g
e
n
t 

m
o
d
e
l,
 a

n
d
…

 

121



 S
D

R
 P

h
a
s
e
 2

 R
e
p
o
rt

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 3

6
 o

f 
5
5
 

Im
p
a
c
t 

Im
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

a
u
 

M
a
n
a
g
in

g
 a

g
e
n
t 

In
te

g
ra

te
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

b
o
th

 
s
id

e
s
. 

T
h
is

 
w

ill
 

m
a
k
e
 

th
e
 

in
te

ra
c
ti
o
n
s
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 

th
e
 

tw
o
 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 m

o
re

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
t 
a
n
d
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 

th
e
 

v
o
lu

m
e
 

o
f 

ro
u
ti
n
e
 

a
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
 

ta
s
k
s
. 

th
e
 

m
e
a
s
u
re

m
e
n
t 

o
f 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

a
n
d
 

b
e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g
 o

f 
c
o
s
ts

 a
n
d
 r

a
te

s
. 

A
 

m
o
re

 
e
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

c
o
u
ld

 a
llo

w
 a

 g
re

a
te

r 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

s
ta

ff
 t
o
 

b
e
 a

s
s
ig

n
e
d
 t
o
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

. 

In
te

g
ra

te
d
 

w
o
rk

in
g
 

w
it
h
 

m
ix

e
d
 

A
m

e
y
 

W
y
e
 

V
a
lle

y
, 

A
m

e
y
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
in

g
 

a
n
d
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 

te
a
m

s
 

c
o
u
ld

 
e
n
a
b
le

 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 

A
m

e
y
 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s
 

to
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
 

a
 

w
id

e
r 

s
k
ill

s
 b

a
s
e
 

3
. 

O
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
a
l 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

A
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

o
f 

c
u
lt
u
ra

l 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 i
s
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

T
h
e
 

p
e
n
a
lt
ie

s
 

a
n
d
 

b
o
n
u
s
e
s
 

c
o
u
ld

 
e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 

im
p
ro

v
e
d
 

b
e
h
a
v
io

u
rs

 
a
n
d
, 

th
e
re

fo
re

, 
s
o
m

e
 
im

p
ro

v
e
d
 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
w

o
rk

in
g
 

It
 s

e
e
m

s
 u

n
lik

e
ly

, 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
a
t 

s
m

a
ll 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 
to

 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
tu

a
l 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 
w

ill
 

le
a
d
 

to
 

ra
d
ic

a
lly

 
im

p
ro

v
e
d
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
o
rk

in
g
 

T
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

in
te

rf
a
c
e
 i

s
 s

e
t 

a
t 

v
a
ri
o
u
s
 

le
v
e
ls

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 t
o
 t

h
e
 t

a
c
ti
c
a
l 

b
u
t 

w
o
rk

s
 b

e
s
t 

a
t 

th
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 l
e
v
e
l4

 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 b

y
 A

m
e
y
 

a
n
d
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

m
o
n
it
o
re

d
 

a
n
d
 

m
e
a
s
u
re

d
 

b
y
 

th
e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il.

 
T

h
is

 
s
im

p
lif

ie
s
 t

h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
a
l 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 
w

o
u
ld

 
b
e
 
d
o
n
e
 
a
c
c
o
rd

in
g
 
to

 
A

m
e
y
’s

 
v
a
lu

e
s
 

w
h
ile

 
th

e
 

c
lie

n
t 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 

w
ill

 
o
p
e
ra

te
 

a
c
c
o
rd

in
g
 

to
 

th
e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 

v
a
lu

e
s
 

In
 B

e
d
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
 A

m
e
y
 h

a
v
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 

a
n
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 
c
u
lt
u
re

 
fr

o
m

 
a
 

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 
u
n
d
e
rp

e
rf

o
rm

in
g
 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
. 

S
in

g
le

 
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 

s
im

p
le

r 
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
a
l 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
 

th
e
 

c
o
o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
 

o
f 

th
e
 

e
m

p
lo

y
in

g
 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
  

T
h
e
re

 
is

 
th

e
 

p
o
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 
th

a
t 

th
e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

w
ill

 
b
e
n
e
fi
t 

fr
o
m

 
a
 

m
ix

 
o
f 

c
u
lt
u
re

s
: 

d
e
d
ic

a
ti
o
n
 

to
 

p
u
b
lic

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 

a
n
d
 c

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
fo

c
u
s
. 

 

In
 

G
lo

u
c
e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 

th
e
 

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 

o
f 

m
ix

e
d
 t

e
a
m

s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 g

o
o
d
. 

 

T
a
b
le
 1
 I
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 s
ta
ff
 

Im
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 

1
0
9
 T

h
e
 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
is

 
u
n
lik

e
ly

 
to

 
d
e
liv

e
r 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 
w

it
h
o
u
t 

th
e
 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

tr
u
s
t 

b
e
tw

e
e

n
 
in

d
iv

id
u
a
ls

. 
It

 
is

 
c
le

a
r 

fr
o
m

 
th

e
 

e
x
a
m

in
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 b

e
s
t 

p
e
rf

o
rm

in
g
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
, 

a
n

d
 t

h
e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 r

e
p
o
rt

, 
th

a
t 

g
e
tt

in
g
 t

h
e
 r

ig
h
t 

c
u
lt
u
re

 i
s
 a

 k
e
y
 e

le
m

e
n
t 

fo
r 

th
e
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
. 

It
 i
s
, 

th
e
re

fo
re

, 
im

p
o
rt

a
n
t 

th
a
t 
th

e
 m

o
d
e
l 
p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 f

o
r 

H
e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 c

a
n
 f

o
s
te

r 
a
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 c

u
lt
u
re

. 
 

1
1
0
 T

h
e
 w

o
rk

in
g
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 s

tr
a
in

e
d
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 l
a
s
t 

fi
v
e
 y

e
a
rs

 a
n
d

 i
t 

h
a
s
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 c

le
a
r 

d
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 

th
a
t 

th
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

tr
u
s
t 

d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 

e
x
is

t.
 T

h
e
re

 a
re

 p
ro

b
a
b
ly

 m
a
n
y
, 

m
a
n
y
 r

e
a
s
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

th
is

 b
u
t,

 u
n
d
o
u
b
te

d
ly

, 
a
m

o
n
g
 t

h
e
m

 a
re

 a
 p

o
o
rl
y
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

4
 I

n
 a

re
a

s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 w

in
te

r 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 e

m
e
rg

e
n
c
y
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
, 

w
h

e
re

 a
ll 

p
a

rt
ie

s
 s

im
p
ly

 f
o
c
u

s
 o

n
 g

e
tt
in

g
 t

h
e
 j
o
b

 d
o
n

e
 w

e
ll,

 a
s
 o

p
p
o

s
e
d

 t
o
 d

e
b
a
ti
n
g
 t

h
e

 p
ri
c
e
 

in
 d

e
ta

il.
 

122



 S
D

R
 P

h
a
s
e
 2

 R
e
p
o
rt

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 3

7
 o

f 
5
5
 

c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 e

x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 J

a
rv

is
 o

f 
a
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

th
a
t 
w

a
s
 d

is
tr

a
c
te

d
 b

y
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
ro

b
le

m
s
 t
h
a
t 
h
a
d
 

n
o
th

in
g
 t

o
 d

o
 w

it
h
 H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
. 

 

1
1
1
 T

h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

d
is

tr
u
s
t 

th
a
t 

h
a
s
 b

u
ilt

 u
p
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 l
a
s
t 

fi
v
e
 y

e
a
rs

 i
n
 s

o
m

e
 a

re
a
s
 s

u
g
g
e
s
ts

 t
h
a
t 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

s
 u

s
u
a
l 
m

o
d
e
l 
is

 u
n
lik

e
ly

 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 

im
p
ro

v
e
d
 w

o
rk

in
g
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

s
 t

h
a
t 

a
re

 c
le

a
rl
y
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d
. 

 

1
1
2
 T

h
e
 m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 a

g
e
n
t 

m
o
d
e
l 
s
e
p
a
ra

te
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 f
ro

m
 a

 c
lie

n
t 

fu
n
c
ti
o
n
 t

h
a
t 

w
o
u
ld

 d
e
fi
n
e
 p

o
lic

y
, 

s
e
t 

ta
rg

e
ts

 a
n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
. 

O
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
is

 s
im

p
lif

ie
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h

e
 c

le
a
r 

s
e
p
a
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
ro

le
s
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 t
w

o
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 A

m
e
y
 h

a
v
e
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

d
 t
h
a
t 

th
e
y
 c

a
n
 m

a
k
e
 t

h
is

 m
o
d
e
l 
w

o
rk

 f
o
r 

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 i
n
 B

e
d
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
. 

It
 w

o
u
ld

 i
n
v
o
lv

e
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

s
ta

ff
 t

ra
n
s
fe

rr
in

g
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

to
 A

m
e
y
 a

n
d
 

th
is

 w
ill

, 
in

e
v
it
a
b
ly

, 
c
a
u
s
e
 s

o
m

e
 d

is
ru

p
ti
o
n
. 

1
1
3
 T

h
e
 B

e
d
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

o
n
ly

 d
e
liv

e
rs

 p
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 i

n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i

n
 t

h
e
 H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir

e
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
t.

 H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 a
s
s
u
m

in
g
 t

h
e
 

c
o
m

p
e
te

n
c
ie

s
 e

x
is

t 
w

it
h
in

 A
m

e
y
 L

o
c
a
l 

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

it
 s

e
e
m

s
 r

e
a
s
o
n
a
b
le

 t
o
 e

x
p
e
c
t 

th
a
t 

th
e
y
 c

o
u
ld

 a
ls

o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 c
u
lt
u
re

 o
f 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
d
e
liv

e
ry

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 f

u
ll 

ra
n
g
e
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

 

1
1
4
 T

h
e
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 m

o
d
e
l 
c
o
u
ld

 o
ff

e
r 

th
e
 a

d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 a

g
e
n
t 

m
o
d
e
l 
b
u
t 

w
it
h
o
u
t 

th
e
 d

is
ru

p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
T

U
P

E
 t

ra
n
s
fe

rs
. 

T
h
is

 
w

o
u
ld

 a
llo

w
 u

s
 t

o
 p

u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e
 a

n
 i

n
te

g
ra

te
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 m

o
re

 q
u
ic

k
ly

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 m

a
n
a
g

in
g
 a

g
e
n
t 

m
o
d
e
l.
 T

h
e
 e

x
a
m

p
le

 o
f 

G
lo

u
c
e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 s

h
o
w

s
 t
h
a
t 

th
is

 m
o
d
e
l 
c
a
n
 w

o
rk

 a
n
d
 t

h
a
t,

 m
o
re

o
v
e
r,

 m
ix

e
d
 t

e
a
m

s
 c

a
n
 o

ff
e
r 

a
d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
s
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 a

g
e
n
t 

m
o
d
e
l.
  

1
1
5
 C

o
m

b
in

in
g
 t

h
e
 C

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r’
s
 g

e
n
e
ra

l 
m

a
n
a
g
e
r 

a
n
d
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
r 

ro
le

s
 i
s
 a

n
 i
n
te

g
ra

l 
p
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 m

o
d
e
l 
a
n
d
 

w
o
u
ld

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
 a

 h
ig

h
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

tr
u
s
t 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 t

w
o

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
. 

It
 r

e
lie

s
 o

n
 t

h
e
re

 b
e
in

g
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 a

 m
a
n
a
g
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 r

ig
h
t 
q
u
a
lit

y
 w

h
o
 t
ru

s
te

d
 

b
y
 b

o
th

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 c

a
p
a
b
le

 o
f 

d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 t

h
e

 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 a

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
. 

  
 

1
1
6
 T

h
e
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 m

o
d
e
l 
c
o
u
ld

 a
llo

w
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

to
 m

a
in

ta
in

 a
 w

id
e
r 

ra
n
g
e
 o

f 
s
k
ill

s
 w

it
h
in

 i
ts

 s
ta

ff
 w

h
ile

 g
a
in

in
g
 t

h
e
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 

o
f 

w
o
rk

in
g
 

a
lo

n
g
 s

id
e
 a

 c
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
lly

 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
. 

It
 c

o
u
ld

 a
ls

o
 b

e
 p

u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e
 m

o
re

 q
u
ic

k
ly

, 
a
s
 t

h
e
re

 w
o
u
ld

 b
e
 l
e
s
s
 n

e
e
d
 f

o
r 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
, 

a
n
d
 a

t 
a
 l
o
w

e
r 

c
o
s
t,

 a
s
 t

h
e
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
r 

o
f 

T
U

P
E

 t
ra

n
s
fe

rr
e
d
 s

ta
ff

 p
a
y
 a

 p
re

m
iu

m
 o

n
 p

e
n
s
io

n
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
s
. 

 

1
1
7
 T

h
e
re

 a
re

 a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

ri
s
k
s
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 i

n
te

g
ra

te
d

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 m

o
d
e
l:
 i

t 
w

ill
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
lly

 b
e
 a

 b
ig

g
e
r 

c
h
a

lle
n
g
e
 t

o
 g

e
t 

m
ix

e
d
 t

e
a
m

s
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 d
u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 l
a
c
k
 o

f 
a
 s

in
g
le

 c
u
lt
u
re

; 
It

 w
ill

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
 a

 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 

to
 t

h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 o
n
 b

o
th

 s
id

e
s
 a

n
d
 a

t 
a
ll 

le
v
e
ls

. 
 

1
1
8
 T

h
e
 i

n
te

g
ra

te
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 m

o
d
e
l 

s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

s
 a

 p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 

a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 a

g
e
n

t 
m

o
d
e
l 

w
h
ic

h
 c

o
u
ld

 o
ff

e
r 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts

  
if
: 

8
4
.a

 
It

 i
s
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 t
h
a
t 

m
ix

e
d
 t

e
a
m

s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 m

a
d
e
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
ly

. 

8
4
.b

 
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 b

e
lie

v
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 t

h
e
 w

ill
in

g
n
e
s
s
 o

n
 b

o
th

 s
id

e
s
 a

n
d
 a

t 
a
ll 

le
v
e
ls

 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 t

h
e
 m

ix
e
d
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 w

o
rk

. 

F
in
d
in
g
s
 

O
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
In
te
rf
a
c
e
 

1
1
9
 T

h
e
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 s
u
g
g
e
s
ts

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 m

o
d
e
l 

s
h
o
u
ld

 s
e
t 

th
e
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
a
l 

in
te

rf
a
c
e
 b

e
tw

e
e
n

 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 

123



 S
D

R
 P

h
a
s
e
 2

 R
e
p
o
rt

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 3

8
 o

f 
5
5
 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 a

t 
th

e
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 l
e
v
e
l.
 T

h
is

 p
u
ts

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 a

n
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
t 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 o

ff
e
rs

 t
h
e
 b

e
s
t 
c
h
a
n
c
e
 o

f 
im

p
ro

v
in

g
 t
h
e
 c

u
lt
u
re

 i
n
 

th
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

. 
 

S
ta
ff
in
g
 M
o
d
e
l 

1
2
0
 T

h
e
re

 a
re

 t
w

o
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 m

o
d
e
ls

 f
o
r 

d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g

 t
h
e
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
: 

8
4
.a

 
T

h
e
 m
a
n
a
g
in
g
 a
g
e
n
t 
m
o
d
e
l 

in
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 s

ta
ff

 i
s
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
d
 b

y
 A

m
e
y
. 

T
h
is

 i
s
 a

 p
ro

v
e
n
 m

o
d
e
l 
fo

r 
H

ig
h
w

a
y
s
 
th

a
t 

w
ill

 
m

in
im

is
e
 
th

e
 
ri
s
k
 
th

a
t 

th
e
 
c
u
lt
u

ra
l 

p
ro

b
le

m
s
 
(i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 
b
y
 
th

e
 
A

u
d
it
 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
) 

w
ill

 
p
re

v
e
n
t 

th
e
 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts

. 

8
4
.b

 
T

h
e
 
in
te
g
ra
te
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 
m
o
d
e
l 

is
 
s
ta

ff
e
d
 b

y
 A

m
e
y
 W

y
e
 V

a
lle

y
, 

A
m

e
y
 C

o
n
s
u
lt
in

g
 a

n
d

 H
e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s
. 

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
is

k
 t

h
a
t 

m
ix

e
d
 t

e
a
m

s
 w

o
rk

 l
e
s
s
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 i
f 

a
 c

o
m

m
o
n
 c

u
lt
u
re

 c
a
n
n
o
t 

b
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
. 

T
h
is

 r
is

k
 i

s
, 

p
e
rh

a
p
s
, 

g
re

a
te

s
t 

in
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

h
e
re

 t
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

re
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e

 t
w

o
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 i
s
 p

o
o
r.

 H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
e
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 w

o
u
ld

 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t

h
e
 d

is
ru

p
ti
o
n
 t

o
 

s
ta

ff
, 

c
o
u
ld

 p
ro

v
id

e
 s

o
m

e
 s

m
a
ll 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
s
a
v
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 a

llo
w

s
 t

h
e
 n

e
w

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 m
o
d
e
l 
to

 b
e
 p

u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e
 m

o
re

 q
u
ic

k
ly

. 
 

1
2
1
 T

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 

le
d
 t

o
 g

o
o
d
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
o
rk

in
g
. 

It
 i

s
 l

ik
e
ly

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 i

m
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

s
 u

s
u
a
l 

m
o
d
e
l 

w
ill

 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 s

u
ff

e
r 

fr
o
m

 l
a
c
k
 o

f 
tr

u
s
t 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t
h
e
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
e
s
 i
n
 e

a
c
h
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
. 

1
2
2
 T

h
e
 m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 a

g
e
n
t 

m
o
d
e
l 
p
ro

v
id

e
s
 t
h
e
 s

im
p
le

s
t 

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t

o
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
s
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 s
ta

ff
 w

ill
 b

e
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
d
 b

y
 

a
 s

in
g
le

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
. 

1
2
3
 T

h
e
 i

n
te

g
ra

te
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 m

o
d
e
l 

is
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
in

 G
lo

u
c
e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
. 

 H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 i
t 

re
lie

s
 o

n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 a

 s
in

g
le

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
a
l 

c
u
lt
u
re

 w
it
h
 a

 
m

ix
e
d
 s

ta
ff

. 
 

 

124



 S
D

R
 P

h
a
s
e
 2

 R
e
p
o
rt

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 3

9
 o

f 
5
5
 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
S

a
v
in

g
s
  

In
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

1
2
4
 T

h
is

 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 d

e
s
c
ri
b
e
s
 t

h
e
 w

a
y
 i
n
 w

h
ic

h
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
a
v
in

g
s
 c

o
u
ld

 b
e
 m

a
d
e
 b

y
 e

a
c
h
 m

o
d
e
l.
 B

ro
a
d
 i
n
it
ia

l 
e
s
ti
m

a
te

s
 o

f 
p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
s
a
v
in

g
s
 h

a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

c
o
s
ts

. 
T

h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
s
a
v
in

g
s
 t

h
a
t 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 t

h
a
t 

c
o
u
ld

 a
ri
s
e
 f

ro
m

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 

th
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
o
s
ts

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
, 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 c

o
s
ts

 t
h
a
t 

d
o
 n

o
t 

re
la

te
 t

o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d

 p
o
s
ts

 a
n
d
 e

x
tr

a
 r

e
v
e
n
u
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 

(w
h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 t

re
a
te

d
 a

s
 t

h
o
u
g
h
 t

h
e
y
 a

re
 s

a
v
in

g
s
).

  

1
2
5
 S

e
c
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 u

n
d
e
r 

e
a
c
h
 m

o
d
e

l 
is

 n
o
t 

g
u
a
ra

n
te

e
d
. 

 W
h
ils

t 
c
a
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 t

a
k
e
n
 i
n

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 t

h
e
s
e
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

s
, 

d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 

th
e
s
e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 s

u
b
je

c
t 

to
 t

h
e
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
n
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 m
o
d
e
l,
 t

h
e
 d

e
ta

il 
o
f 

n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
 A

m
e
y
 r

e
g
a
rd

in
g
 

th
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 a

n
d
 g

o
o
d
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
o
rk

in
g
. 

 I
f 

th
e
s
e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
, 

th
is

 w
o

u
ld

 a
ls

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

w
it
h
 

th
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t

o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

re
in

v
e
s
ti
n
g
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 t

h
a

t 
a
re

 r
e
le

a
s
e
d
 t

o
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

  

S
o
u
rc
e
 o
f 
F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
a
v
in
g
s
 

1
2
6
 O

n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 a

im
s
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 i

s
 t

o
 i

d
e
n
ti
fy

 h
o
w

 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 t

h
e
 c

o
s
t 

o
f 

d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 v

a
ri
o
u
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 i

n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i

n
 t

h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

. 
T

h
e
 

c
ri
te

ri
o
n
 f

ro
m

 p
h
a
s
e
 1

 o
f 

th
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
a
s
 t

h
a
t 

fo
r 

a
 m

o
d
e
l 
to

 b
e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 i
n
 p

h
a
s
e
 2

 i
t 

o
u
g
h
t 

to
 b

e
 c

a
p
a
b
le

 o
f 

d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 

£
1
m

 o
f 

re
a
l 

lo
n
g
 t

e
rm

 s
a
v
in

g
s
. 

B
o
th

 m
o
d
e
ls

 b
ro

u
g
h
t 

fo
rw

a
rd

 f
ro

m
 p

h
a
s
e
 1

 w
e
re

 s
c
o
re

d
 a

m
b
e
r 

o
n
 t

h
is

 c
ri
te

ri
o
n
 i

m
p
ly

in
g
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

te
a
m

 
c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 t

h
a
t 

b
o
th

 h
a
d
 t

h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
to

 d
e
liv

e
r 

th
is

 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

s
a
v
in

g
s
. 

T
h
e
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 m

o
d
e
l,
 h

a
v
in

g
 s

im
ila

r 
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
 

to
 t
h
e
 m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 a

g
e
n
t 

m
o
d
e
l,
 a

ls
o
 h

a
s
 t

h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
to

 p
ro

v
id

e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
. 

1
2
7
 T

h
e
 a

im
 o

f 
th

is
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 t

o
 e

x
a
m

in
e
 t

h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
o
f 

e
a
c
h
 m

o
d
e
l 
to

 d
e
liv

e
r 

s
a
v
in

g
s
. 

T
h
e
 a

re
a
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 a
re

 s
u
m

m
a
ri
s
e
d
 i
n
 

th
e
 t
a
b
le

 b
e
lo

w
. 

  

 S
o
u
rc
e
 

o
f 

s
a
v
in
g
s
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
d
 b
a
u
 

M
a
n
a
g
in
g
 a
g
e
n
t 

In
te
g
ra
te
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

1
. 

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

in
 s

ta
ff

 c
o
s
ts

5
 

A
s
 t

h
e
 w

a
y
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g
 w

o
u
ld

 r
e
m

a
in

 t
h
e
 

s
a
m

e
 u

n
d
e
r 

th
is

 m
o
d
e
l 
th

e
re

 a
re

 l
im

it
e
d
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 i

n
 s

ta
ff

 c
o
s
ts

. 
 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 
it
 
is

 
e
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 
th

a
t 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 

B
y
 

c
o
n
s
o
lid

a
ti
n
g
 

th
e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 t

h
e
 m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 a

g
e
n
t 

m
o
d
e
l 

o
ff

e
rs

 t
h
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t

o
 r

e
m

o
v
e
 s

o
m

e
 

o
f 

th
e
 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 

in
e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
 

a
n
d
 

T
h
e
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
s
a
v
in

g
s
 a

re
 t

h
e
 

s
a
m

e
 a

s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 M

a
n
a
g
in

g
 A

g
e
n
t 

m
o
d
e
l 

o
f 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 £

4
0
0
,0

0
0
 a

n
d
 £

6
5
0
,0

0
0
. 

 I
n
 

a
d
d
it
io

n
 

to
 

th
e
 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 

th
a
t 

c
a
n
 

b
e
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

5
 N

O
T

E
: 
 A

ll 
s
ta

ff
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e

 o
n

 c
o
s
ts

 a
t 
2
6
.5

%
 

125



 S
D

R
 P

h
a
s
e
 2

 R
e
p
o
rt

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 4

0
 o

f 
5
5
 

S
o
u
rc
e
 

o
f 

s
a
v
in
g
s
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
d
 b
a
u
 

M
a
n
a
g
in
g
 a
g
e
n
t 

In
te
g
ra
te
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 

o
f 

u
p
 

to
 

£
2
0
0
,0

0
0
 

c
o
u
ld

 
b
e
 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
. 

 

d
u
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
. 

T
h
e
 

e
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 

a
re

 
b
e
tw

e
e
n
 

£
4
0
0
,0

0
0
 

a
n
d
 

£
6
5
0
,0

0
0
. 

 

g
a
in

e
d
 

fr
o
m

 
c
o
n
s
o
lid

a
ti
n
g
 
th

e
 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 

th
e
 

in
te

g
ra

te
d
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

m
o
d
e
l 

w
o
u
ld

 
h
a
v
e
 

a
 

s
m

a
ll 

s
a
v
in

g
 i
n
 p

e
n
s
io

n
 p

re
m

iu
m

s
6
. 

 

2
. 

G
ri
tt

e
r 

fl
e
e
t 

A
n
a
ly

s
is

 c
a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

b
y
 A

m
e
y
 w

in
te

r 
m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 v

e
h
ic

le
 e

x
p
e
rt

: 
T

h
e
re

 a
re

 1
7
 g

ri
tt

e
rs

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 o

n
 l

e
a
s
e
 p

u
rc

h
a
s
e
 o

v
e
r 

8
 

y
e
a
rs

. 
In

it
ia

l 
re

p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

6
 o

f 
th

e
 g

ri
tt

e
rs

 w
it
h
 d

u
a
l 

u
s
e
 v

e
h
ic

le
s
 a

s
 t

h
e
y
 c

o
m

e
 u

p
 f

o
r 

re
n
e
w

a
l 

w
o
u

ld
 r

e
le

a
s
e
 a

 t
o
ta

l 
o
f 

£
6
0
,0

0
0
. 

T
h
e
re

 m
a
y
 b

e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 r

e
s
u
lt
in

g
 f

ro
m

 r
e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

v
e
h
ic

le
s
 b

u
t 

th
is

 w
o
u
ld

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
 s

u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
l 

d
e
ta

ile
d
 

w
o
rk

 a
n
d
 i
s
 t
o
 b

e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 n

e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n

s
. 

E
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
s
a
v
in

g
s
 (

n
o
t 

d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 m

o
d
e

l 
s
e
le

c
te

d
) 

is
 £

6
0
k
. 

3
. 

D
a
m

a
g
e
 

to
 

Im
m

o
b
ile

 
P

ro
p
e
rt

y
 C

la
im

s
 

T
h
is

 i
s
 a

n
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t

o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 r

e
v
e
n
u
e
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 r

e
c
o
v
e
ry

 o
f 

c
o
s
ts

 f
o
r 

d
a
m

a
g
e
 t

o
 h

ig
h
w

a
y
s
, 

s
tr

e
e
t 

lig
h
ti
n
g
, 

s
ig

n
a
g
e
 e

tc
 

fr
o
m

 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
ls

 a
n
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s

7
. 

T
w

o
 f

u
ll 

ti
m

e
 p

o
s
ts

 w
o
u
ld

 b
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t

o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 t

h
is

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 f

u
n
d
e
d
 f

ro
m

 
th

e
 
s
a
v
in

g
s
. 

D
e
d
ic

a
te

d
 
s
ta

ff
 
c
a
n
 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
 
w

o
rk

in
g
 
re

la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip

s
 
w

it
h
 
p
o
lic

e
 
a
n
d
 
in

s
u
ra

n
c
e
 
c
o
m

p
a
n
ie

s
 
a
n
d

 
w

o
u
ld

 
m

a
k
e
 

re
c
o
v
e
ry

 m
o
re

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
. 

 

E
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
s
a
v
in

g
s
 (

n
o
t 

d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 m

o
d
e

l 
s
e
le

c
te

d
) 

is
 £

3
0
8
k
. 

T
a
b
le
 2
 F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 

Im
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 

1
2
8
 T

h
e
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i

n
 r

o
le

s
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 i

m
p
ro

v
e

d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

s
 u

s
u
a
l 

is
 m

a
rg

in
a
l.
 T

h
e
 m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 a

g
e
n
t 

m
o
d
e
l,
 b

y
 c

o
n
s
o
lid

a
ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
, 

re
m

o
v
e
s
 s

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 i
n
e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 s

y
s
te

m
. 

F
in

a
lly

 t
h
e
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 m

o
d
e
l 
a
llo

w
s
 s

im
ila

r 
s
a
v
in

g
s
 t

o
 

th
e
 m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 a

g
e
n
t 

m
o
d
e
l 

b
u
t 

a
ls

o
 h

a
s
 a

 s
im

p
le

r 
m

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
. 

A
 s

u
m

m
a
ry

 o
f 

th
e
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 u
s
e
d
 i

n
 e

s
ti
m

a
ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 i
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 A

p
p
e
n
d
ix

 C
. 

1
2
9
 T

h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
s
a
v
in

g
s
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 f

o
r 

e
a
c
h
 m

o
d
e
l 
is

 s
h
o
w

n
 i
n
 t

h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 t

a
b
le

. 
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

6
 A

p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 1

%
 o

f 
s
a
la

ry
 c

o
s
ts

 o
f 
T

U
P

E
d
 s

ta
ff

 

7
 

T
h
e

 
e
s
ti
m

a
te

 
h
a
s
 

b
e
e

n
 

p
ro

d
u
c
e
d
 

b
y
 

e
x
tr

a
p
o

la
ti
o

n
 

o
f 

A
m

e
y
’s

 
H

e
rt

fo
rd

s
h
ir

e
 

c
la

im
s
 

e
x
p
e
ri
e

n
c
e

 
to

 
H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 

m
o
d

if
ie

d
 

to
 

re
fl
e
c
t 

th
e
 

s
it
u

a
ti
o

n
 

in
 

H
e

re
fo

rd
s
h
ir

e
. 
 

126



 S
D

R
 P

h
a
s
e
 2

 R
e
p
o
rt

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 4

1
 o

f 
5
5
 

T
o
ta
l 
E
s
ti
m
a
te
d
 S
a
v
in
g
s

0

2
0
0

4
0
0

6
0
0

8
0
0

1
,0

0
0

1
,2

0
0

Im
p
ro

v
e
d
 B

A
U

M
a
n
a

g
in

g
 A

g
e

n
t

In
te

g
ra

te
d

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

Savings (£k)

R
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
s
a

v
in

g
s
 -

 £
1

m

 

F
ig
u
re
 9
 E

s
ti
m
a
te
d
 S

a
v
in
g
s
 F
o
r 
E
a
c
h
 M

o
d
e
l 

127



 S
D

R
 P

h
a
s
e
 2

 R
e
p
o
rt

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 4

2
 o

f 
5
5
 

1
3
0
 T

h
e
 h

ig
h
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 a

g
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 m

o
d
e
ls

 a
re

 t
h
e
 o

n
ly

 o
n
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

m
e
e

t 
th

e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
s
a
v
in

g
s
 c

ri
te

ri
o
n
. 

 

F
in
d
in
g
s
 

O
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
In
te
rf
a
c
e
 

 

1
3
1
 T

h
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

s
 u

s
u
a
l 
m

o
d
e
l 
d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 

m
e
e
t 

th
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 r
e
v
ie

w
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 c

ri
te

ri
o
n
. 

It
 i
s
, 

th
e
re

fo
re

 n
o
t 

a
 s

u
it
a
b
le

 b
a
s
is

 f
o
r 

re
n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
. 

A
n
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 a

n
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 

d
ri
v
e
r 

o
f 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 i
n
 t

h
o
s
e
 m

o
d
e
ls

 t
h
a
t 

m
e
e
t 

th
e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 c

ri
te

ri
o
n
. 

128



 S
D

R
 P

h
a
s
e
 2

 R
e
p
o
rt

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 4

3
 o

f 
5
5
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 I
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 

In
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

1
3
2
 T

h
is

 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 e

x
a
m

in
e
s
 w

h
e
th

e
r 

th
e
re

 a
re

 a
s
p
e
c
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 m

o
d
e
ls

 b
e
in

g
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 t

h
a
t 

w
ill

 d
ri
v
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 i

m
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

. 
T

h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 

d
ri
v
e
rs

 a
re

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 e

a
s
e
 w

it
h
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e
y
 c

a
n
 d

e
liv

e
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
s
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 f

o
r 

e
a
c
h
 m

o
d
e

l.
 

D
ri
v
e
rs
 o
f 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 

D
ri
v
e
rs

 
Im

p
ro

v
e
d
 b

a
u
 

M
a
n
a
g
in

g
 a

g
e
n
t 

In
te

g
ra

te
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

1
. 

Im
p
ro

v
e
d
 

fo
rw

a
rd

 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 
fo

r 
fo

rw
a
rd

 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 

w
o
u
ld

 
re

m
a
in

 
w

it
h
 

H
e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il.

 

A
m

e
y
 W

y
e
 V

a
lle

y
 a

n
d
 A

m
e
y
 C

o
n
s
u
lt
in

g
 

w
o
u
ld

 
b
e
 

in
v
o
lv

e
d
 

in
 

h
e
lp

in
g
 

H
e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
 
it
s
 
lo

n
g
 

te
rm

 
a
im

s
 

a
s
 

th
e
 

o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 

fo
r 

th
e
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
w

ill
 

b
e
 

d
e
fi
n
e
d
 

b
y
 

th
e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

. 

A
s
 t

h
e
 m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 a

g
e
n
t 

m
o
d
e
l 
a
n
d
…

 

T
h
e
 

in
te

g
ra

ti
o
n
 

o
f 

th
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

te
a
m

 
m

a
y
 
fu

rt
h
e
r 

h
e
lp

 
to

 
e
n
s
u
re

 
th

a
t 

th
e
 

a
im

s
 

o
f 

th
e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 

is
 

 
a
lig

n
e
d
 

w
it
h
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

a
im

s
. 

2
. 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s
 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

(s
e
e
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

s
e
c
ti
o
n
) 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
a
l 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

th
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 u

s
e
 

o
f 

s
tr

e
tc

h
in

g
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 b

u
ilt

 i
n
to

 
th

e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

b
o
th

 
p
a
rt

ie
s
. 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

ta
rg

e
ts

 
a
re

 
s
e
t 

b
y
 

a
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
B

o
a
rd

 
to

 
m

a
tc

h
 

th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

fr
a
m

e
w

o
rk

 t
a
rg

e
ts

 (
s
e
t 

fo
r 

th
re

e
 y

e
a
rs

 
a
n
d
 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
 

a
n
n
u
a
lly

 
in

 
th

e
 

lig
h
t 

o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
).

 T
h
e
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 w
ill

 b
e
 l
in

k
e
d
 

to
 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 
o
f 

H
e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 

d
e
s
ir
e
d
 
o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 
a
n
d
 
w

ill
 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 
it
s
 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

A
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

ta
rg

e
ts

 
is

 
lin

k
e
d
 

to
 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

e
x
te

n
s
io

n
s
 

w
h
ic

h
, 

if
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 
ta

rg
e
ts

 
a
re

 
re

a
c
h
e
d
, 

w
ill

 
e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 r
o
lli

n
g
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t.

 

A
m

e
y
 W

y
e
 V

a
lle

y
 a

n
d
 A

m
e
y
 C

o
n
s
u
lt
in

g
 

w
ill

 
c
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 
to

 
th

e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

ta
rg

e
ts

 t
h
a
t 

d
ri
v
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
. 

A
s
 m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 a

g
e
n
t 

m
o
d
e
l 
a
n
d
…

 

A
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

ta
rg

e
ts

 
w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 l

in
k
e
d
 t

o
 b

o
th

 p
ro

fi
ta

b
ili

ty
 a

n
d
 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

e
x
te

n
s
io

n
. 

T
h
is

 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

s
c
h
e
m

e
 

is
 

th
e
 

m
o
s
t 

ro
b
u
s
t 

o
f 

a
ll 

th
e
 m

o
d
e
ls

. 

W
o
rk

in
g
 

in
 

jo
in

t 
te

a
m

s
 

m
a
y
 

h
e
lp

 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s
 

in
v
o
lv

e
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 w
id

e
r 

ra
n
g
e
 o

f 
s
k
ill

s
 

a
n
d
 
k
n
o
w

le
d
g
e
 
w

h
ic

h
 m

a
y
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 

th
e
 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 a

s
 a

 w
h
o
le

. 

129



 S
D

R
 P

h
a
s
e
 2

 R
e
p
o
rt

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 4

4
 o

f 
5
5
 

D
ri
v
e
rs

 
Im

p
ro

v
e
d
 b

a
u
 

M
a
n
a
g
in

g
 a

g
e
n
t 

In
te

g
ra

te
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

T
h
e
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 c
a
n
 a

ls
o
 b

e
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
d
 a

t 
a
 

lo
c
a
l 

le
v
e
l 

b
y
 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

, 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 

a
n
d
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

g
ro

u
p
s
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 

th
e
 

w
a
tc

h
m

a
n
 

s
c
h
e
m

e
 

re
s
u
lt
in

g
 

in
 

im
p
ro

v
e
d
 c

u
s
to

m
e
r 

d
e
liv

e
ry

. 

3
. 

Im
p
ro

v
e
d
 

fo
rw

a
rd

 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

in
g
 
o
f 

p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 

re
la

te
d
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
d
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

in
g
 o

f 
p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 r

e
la

te
d
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 c

o
u
ld

 o
ff

e
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 a
n
d
 h

a
s
 t

h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 

to
 

d
e
liv

e
r 

c
o
s
t 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 
to

 
th

e
 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

. 
 
T

h
ro

u
g
h
 
b

e
tt

e
r 

fo
rw

a
rd

 
p
la

n
n
in

g
, 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 
c
e
rt

a
in

ty
 
c
a
n
 
b
e
 
p
ro

v
id

e
d
 
to

 
th

e
 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
re

g
a
rd

in
g
 t

h
e
 v

a
lu

e
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 b

e
 o

rd
e
re

d
. 

 T
h
is

 w
o
u
ld

 e
n
a
b
le

 m
o
re

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 c

o
u
ld

 
re

d
u
c
e
 t

h
e
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 u

s
e
 s

u
b
-c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

rs
. 

  

W
h
ils

t 
th

e
s
e
 i

m
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 t

a
k
e
n
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 i
n

 a
n
y
 o

f 
th

e
 m

o
d
e
ls

, 
it
 i

s
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 m

o
s
t 

lik
e
ly

 t
o

 b
e
 d

ri
v
e
n
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 
th

ro
u
g
h
 t

h
e
 c

lo
s
e
r 

w
o
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
h
a
t 

w
o
u
ld

 b
e
 p

u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 m

o
d
e
l.
 

T
a
b
le
 3
 S

e
rv
ic
e
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 

Im
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 

1
3
3
 R

e
w

a
rd

in
g
 t

h
e
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
a
tt

a
in

m
e
n
t 

o
f 

ta
rg

e
ts

 b
y
 o

ff
e
ri
n
g
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

e
x
te

n
s
io

n
s
 w

ill
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 A

m
e
y
’s

 a
b
ili

ty
 t

o
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 p
la

n
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 t

h
e
 e

n
d
 

o
f 

th
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t.
 T

h
is

 c
a
n
 b

e
 d

o
n
e
 i
n
 a

n
y
 o

f 
th

e
 m

o
d
e
ls

 t
h
a
t 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

n
a
ly

s
e
d
. 

 

1
3
4
 T

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 d

o
 n

o
t 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

ta
rg

e
ts

 i
s
 r

e
la

te
d
 t

o
 d

e
s
ir
e
d

 o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 r

e
p
la

c
e
d
 w

it
h
 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
 b

a
s
e
d
 t

a
rg

e
ts

. 
T

h
e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 s

u
g
g
e
s
t 

th
a
t 

“w
h
e
re

 p
o
s
s
ib

le
 t

h
e
y
 s

h
o
u
ld

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 f

o
r 

c
o
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 t
h
a
t 

fo
c
u
s
 o

n
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 r

a
th

e
r 

th
a
n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
”8

. 
O

u
tc

o
m

e
 b

a
s
e
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 a
re

 f
e
a
tu

re
s
 o

f 
b
o
th

 t
h
e
 m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 a

g
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 m

o
d
e
ls

. 
 

1
3
5
 T

h
e
 w

a
tc

h
m

a
n
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
s
 l
in

k
s
 w

it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 o

ff
e
rs

 a
 w

a
y
 f

o
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 t
o
 i
n

fl
u
e
n
c
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

. 

1
3
6
 T

h
e
 i

n
te

g
ra

te
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 m

o
d
e
l 

m
a
y
 h

e
lp

 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n

c
il 

a
n
d
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s
 i

n
v
o
lv

e
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 w
id

e
r 

ra
n
g
e
 o

f 
s
k
ill

s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 

th
e
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 a

s
 a

 w
h
o
le

. 

1
3
7
 T

h
e
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

n
e
e
d
s
 t

o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

k
e
y
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
, 

fo
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

 w
h
e
n
 r

e
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
 h

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 w

e
ll 

b
e
in

g
, 

w
h
ic

h
 o

ft
e
n
 l
in

k
 a

c
ro

s
s
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 

d
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
ts

 w
it
h
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
 t

a
k
in

g
 a

 j
o
in

t,
 l
o
n
g
 t

e
rm

 a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 

ta
rg

e
ts

. 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

8
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 “

F
o
r 

B
e
tt
e
r 

o
r 

W
o
rs

e
” 

130



 S
D

R
 P

h
a
s
e
 2

 R
e
p
o
rt

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 4

5
 o

f 
5
5
 

F
in
d
in
g
s
 

O
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
In
te
rf
a
c
e
 

1
3
8
 T

h
e
 m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 a

g
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 i

n
te

g
ra

te
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 m

o
d
e
ls

 w
ill

 m
a
k
e
 i

t 
e
a
s
ie

r 
to

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 

a
n
y
 i

m
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 b

y
 A

m
e
y
’s

 w
a
tc

h
m

a
n
 

s
c
h
e
m

e
 a

s
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
is

 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

. 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

1
3
9
 B

o
th

 t
h
e
 m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 a

g
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 m

o
d
e
ls

 f
e
a
tu

re
 s

tr
o
n
g
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

s
c
h
e
m

e
s
. 

T
h
e
s
e
 c

o
u
ld

 b
e
 l
in

k
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

fr
a
m

e
w

o
rk

 w
h
ic

h
 w

ill
 a

lig
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
e
s
. 

  

1
4
0
 M

e
a
s
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r’
s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

a
g
re

e
d
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 d
e
liv

e
ry

 p
la

n
s
 w

ill
 a

lig
n
 h

e
lp

 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
 s

p
e
n
d
. 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 U
s
e
r 
In
p
u
t 
a
n
d
 B
e
s
t 
P
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

1
4
1
 A

m
e
y
’s

 w
a
tc

h
m

a
n
 w

ill
 e

n
g
a
g
e
 w

it
h
 l

o
c
a
l 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

, 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
, 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

, 
p
a
ri
s
h
 c

o
u
n
c
ils

, 
th

e
 H

ig
h
w

a
y
s
 A

g
e
n
c
y
, 

M
P

s
 a

n
d
 k

e
y
 l
o
c
a
l 

s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 e
n
a
b
le

 A
m

e
y
 t

o
 a

lig
n
 l

o
n
g
-t

e
rm

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 d
e
liv

e
ry

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 p
ri

o
ri
ti
e
s
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 p

la
n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 l

o
c
a
l 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 w

it
h
 u

s
e
r 

n
e
e
d
s
. 

  

131



 S
D

R
 P

h
a
s
e
 2

 R
e
p
o
rt

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 4

6
 o

f 
5
5
 

In
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 I
n

fr
a

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

In
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

1
4
2
 T

h
e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 f

o
u
n
d
 t

h
a
t 

C
o
u
n
c
ils

 h
a
v
e
 a

ls
o
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 t

h
e
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 f
ro

m
 i

n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

in
 i

n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 a

 n
e
w

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

c
e
n
tr

e
; 

re
fu

rb
is

h
e
d
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
; 

o
r 

a
n
 u

p
g
ra

d
e
d
 I

T
 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
. 

S
o
m

e
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 h

a
v
e
 a

ls
o
 a

im
e
d
 t

o
 c

re
a
te

 n
e
w

 j
o
b
s
 i
n
 

th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
re

a
. 

D
ri
v
e
rs

 
Im

p
ro

v
e
d
 b

a
u
 

M
a
n
a
g
in

g
 a

g
e
n
t 

In
te

g
ra

te
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

N
o
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

in
 i

n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

is
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 

T
h
is

 
m

o
d
e
l 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 

th
e
 

in
c
e
n
ti
v
e
 

to
 

in
v
e
s
t 

in
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 
in

fr
a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 
to

 
m

e
e
t 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

ta
rg

e
ts

  

L
in

k
in

g
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t

o
 b

o
th

 p
ro

fi
t 

a
n
d
 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

e
x
te

n
s
io

n
s
 

w
ill

 
fa

c
ili

ta
te

 
th

e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

c
a
s
e
s
 

fo
r 

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

th
a
t 

h
e
lp

s
 

im
p
ro

v
e
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

 

Im
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 

1
4
3
 T

h
e
 l
a
c
k
 o

f 
a
 l
in

k
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 b

e
n
e

fi
t 

re
d
u
c
e
s
 t
h
e
 i
n
c
e
n
ti
v
e
 t

o
 i
n
v
e
s
t 

in
 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

. 

1
4
4
 L

in
k
in

g
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t

o
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

e
x
te

n
s
io

n
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

n
 i
n
c
e
n
ti
v
e
 t

o
 i
n
v
e
s
t 

to
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
. 

1
4
5
 L

in
k
in

g
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t

o
 b

o
th

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

e
x
te

n
s
io

n
 a

n
d
 p

ro
fi
ta

b
ili

ty
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 t

h
e
 b

e
s
t 
in

c
e
n
ti
v
e
 t

o
 i
n

v
e
s
t 

to
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
. 

F
in
d
in
g
s
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

1
4
6
 A

 s
tr

o
n
g
 a

n
d
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

s
y
s
te

m
 i

s
 m

o
re

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

in
 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 t

o
 i

m
p
ro

v
e
 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
. 

T
h
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

s
 u

s
u
a
l 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

m
o
d
e
l 
o
ff

e
rs

 l
it
tl
e
 i
n
c
e
n
ti
v
e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
to

 i
n
v
e
s
t.

 

  

132



 S
D

R
 P

h
a
s
e
 2

 R
e
p
o
rt

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 4

7
 o

f 
5
5
 

T
ra

n
s
fe

r 
o

f 
L

e
a

rn
in

g
 

In
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

1
4
7
 T

h
e
 a

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
th

e
 m

o
d
e
ls

 t
o
 e

a
s
e
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
le

s
s
o
n
s
 l
e
a
rn

e
d
 e

ls
e
w

h
e
re

 i
s
 e

x
a
m

in
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
is

 s
e
c
ti
o
n
. 

D
ri
v
e
rs
 o
f 
tr
a
n
s
fe
r 
o
f 
le
a
rn
in
g
 

D
ri
v
e
rs

 
Im

p
ro

v
e
d
 b

a
u
 

M
a
n
a
g
in

g
 a

g
e
n
t 

In
te

g
ra

te
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

1
. 

L
e
a
rn

in
g
 

le
s
s
o
n
s
 

a
n
d
 

s
p
re

a
d
in

g
 

b
e
s
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 

A
m

e
y
 

o
p
e
ra

te
s
 

a
 

w
a
tc

h
m

a
n
 

s
c
h
e
m

e
. 

T
h
is

 a
im

s
 t

o
 b

o
th

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

s
 

w
it
h
 
lo

c
a
l 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 
a
n
d
 
to

 
s
p
re

a
d
 

b
e
s
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 

b
o
th

 
w

it
h
in

 
th

e
 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

a
n
d
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 
m

a
n
a
g
e
d
 

b
y
 

A
m

e
y
. 

T
h
is

 c
a
n
 b

e
 i

m
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 i

n
 a

n
y
 

m
o
d
e
l 

T
h
e
 

e
a
s
e
 

w
it
h
 

w
h
ic

h
 

th
e
 

w
a
tc

h
m

a
n
 

s
c
h
e
m

e
 

c
a
n
 

m
a
k
e
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

w
ill

 
b
e
 

e
a
s
e
d
 b

y
 h

a
v
in

g
 a

 c
o
n
s
o
lid

a
te

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 m
o
d
e
l 

T
h
e
re

 w
ill

 b
e
 m

o
re

 r
e
a
s
o
n
 f

o
r 

A
m

e
y
 t

o
 

p
u
t 

in
 

p
la

c
e
 

a
n
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 

w
a
tc

h
m

a
n
 

s
c
h
e
m

e
 
if
 
th

e
y
 
a
re

 
s
o
le

ly
 
re

s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 

fo
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

A
s
 

M
a
n
a
g
in

g
 

A
g
e
n
t 

m
o
d
e
l 

b
u
t 

c
o
u
ld

 
re

ta
in

 
g
re

a
te

r 
p
u
b
lic

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 

e
th

o
s
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 m

ix
e
d
 t

e
a
m

s
. 

T
h
e
re

 w
o
u
ld

 a
ls

o
 b

e
 g

re
a
te

r 
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 

fo
r 

th
e
 t

ra
n
s
fe

r 
o
f 

le
a
rn

in
g
 t

o
/f

ro
m

 o
th

e
r 

p
a
rt

s
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 P

C
T

. 

T
a
b
le
 4
 T
ra
n
s
fe
r 
o
f 
le
a
rn
in
g
 

Im
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 

1
4
8
 A

m
e
y
 u

s
e
 t

h
e
 w

a
tc

h
m

a
n
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 t

o
 i

m
p
ro

v
e
 l

o
c
a
l 

re
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

s
 a

n
d
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 s

p
re

a
d
 o

f 
b
e
s
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

. 
T

h
is

 s
c
h
e
m

e
 c

a
n
 b

e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 i
n
 

a
n
y
 o

f 
th

e
 m

o
d
e
ls

 u
n
d
e
r 

in
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
 b

u
t 

w
o
u
ld

 b
e
 e

a
s
e
d
 w

h
e
re

 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 c
o
n
s
o
lid

a
te

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 i

.e
. 

a
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 
in

te
rf

a
c
e
. 

 

F
in
d
in
g
s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
r 
in
p
u
t 

1
4
9
 A

m
e
y
’s

 w
a
tc

h
m

a
n
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 o

ff
e
rs

 a
 g

o
o
d
 m

o
d
e
l 
fo

r 
tr

a
n
s
fe

rr
in

g
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 w

it
h
 A

m
e
y
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
ts

. 
T

h
is

 c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 c

o
m

b
in

e
d
 

w
it
h
 b

e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 s

h
a
ri
n
g
 b

y
 t

h
e
 c

lie
n
t 

te
a
m

 w
it
h
 a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 o

u
ts

id
e
 t

h
is

 g
ro

u
p

. 

133



 S
D

R
 P

h
a
s
e
 2

 R
e
p
o
rt

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 4

8
 o

f 
5
5
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
iv

e
n

e
s
s
 

In
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

1
5
0
 T

h
e
 
A

u
d
it
 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 
fo

u
n
d
 
th

a
t 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 
c
a
n
 
o
ff

e
r 

fl
e
x
ib

ili
ty

 
in

 
a
d
a
p
ti
n
g
 
a
n
d
 
re

s
p
o

n
d
in

g
 
to

 
n
e
w

 
c
ir
c
u
m

s
ta

n
c
e
s
 
m

o
re

 
e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 t
h
a
n
 u

n
d
e
r 

tr
a
d
it
io

n
a
l 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
ti
n
g
 a

rr
a

n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

. 

1
5
1
 R

e
s
p
o
n
s
iv

e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 t

a
c
k
le

 n
e
w

 p
ro

b
le

m
s
 b

y
 s

e
tt
in

g
 u

p
 j
o
in

t 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 w

it
h
 p

e
o
p
le

 f
ro

m
 b

o
th

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
. 

E
a
c
h
 s

id
e
 b

ri
n
g
s
 t

h
e
ir
 o

w
n
 

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 e

x
p
e
rt

is
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 t

e
a
m

 w
h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 a

 s
h

a
re

d
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
. 

T
h
is

 j
o
in

t 
a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t

o
 s

o
lv

in
g
 t

h
e
 p

ro
b
le

m
 c

o
n
tr

a
s
ts

 w
it
h
 v

ie
w

in
g
 a

n
y
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 a

s
 v

a
ri
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t,

 f
o
r 

w
h
ic

h
 t

h
e
re

 s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

 p
ri
c
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
. 

D
ri
v
e
rs
 o
f 
R
e
s
p
o
n
s
iv
e
n
e
s
s
 

D
ri
v
e
rs

 
Im

p
ro

v
e
d
 b

a
u
 

M
a
n
a
g
in

g
 a

g
e
n
t 

In
te

g
ra

te
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

1
. 

Im
p
ro

v
e
d
 

c
ro

s
s
 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 

te
a
m

 w
o
rk

in
g
 

C
ro

s
s
 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
a
l 

w
o
rk

in
g
 
c
a
n
 
a
n
d
 

s
h
o
u
ld

 
b
e
 
im

p
ro

v
e
d
 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
is

 
h
a
s
 

n
o
t 

b
e
e
n
 
d
o
n
e
 
w

e
ll 

in
 
a
ll 

a
re

a
s
 
u
n
d
e
r 

th
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 

 

T
h
e
 m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 a

g
e
n
t 
m

o
d
e
l 
re

d
u
c
e
s
 t
h
e
 

p
ro

b
le

m
s
 

c
a
u
s
e
d
 

b
y
 

p
o
o
r 

c
ro

s
s
 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
a
l 

w
o
rk

in
g
 

b
y
 

c
le

a
rl
y
 

s
e
p
a
ra

ti
n
g
 

th
e
 

c
lie

n
t 

a
n
d
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 t
e
a
m

s
 i
n
to

 t
w

o
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 

T
h
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t

ru
s
t 

in
 t

h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 i
s
 

th
e
n
 
b
u
ilt

 
b
y
 
h
a
v
in

g
 
s
tr

o
n
g
 
c
lie

n
t 

s
id

e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

T
h
is

 m
o
d
e
l 

re
lie

s
 o

n
 c

ro
s
s
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 

te
a
m

s
. 

E
n
g
e
n
d
e
ri
n
g
 t

h
is

 w
a
y
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g
 

w
o
u
ld

 b
e
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
to

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

W
o
rk

in
g
 i

n
 a

 j
o
in

t 
te

a
m

 u
n
d
e
r 

a
 s

in
g
le

 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

s
h
o
u
ld

 
im

p
ro

v
e
 

c
ro

s
s
-

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 t

e
a
m

 w
o
rk

in
g
 

2
. 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

fl
e
x
ib

ili
ty

 
T

h
e
re

 
is

 
n
o
 

re
a
s
o
n
 

w
h
y
 

th
e
 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

c
a
n
n
o
t 

b
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
d
 t

o
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 

c
h
a
n
g
in

g
 

c
ir
c
u
m

s
ta

n
c
e
 b

u
t 

u
n
ti
l 

n
o
w

 t
h
is

 h
a
s
 n

o
t 

b
e
e
n
 d

o
n
e
 

T
h
e
 

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 

is
 

b
a
s
e
d
 

o
n
 

a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 

a
g
re

e
d
 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

w
h
ic

h
 

c
a
n
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
 

o
v
e
r 

ti
m

e
 

b
a
s
e
d
 

o
n
 

a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

a
t 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
b
o
a
rd

 
–
 

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 

o
f 

B
e
d
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
 s

u
g
g
e
s
ts

 t
h
a
t 

th
is

 w
a
y
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g
 c

a
n
 a

ls
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 f

le
x
ib

ili
ty

 a
t 

a
n
 

o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
le

v
e
l 

T
h
e
 

a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 

c
lie

n
t 

a
n
d
 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
in

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
s
 

th
e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 
p
la

n
 

w
h
ic

h
 

is
 

u
s
e
d
 

to
 

s
e
t 

ta
rg

e
ts

 
a
n
d
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

–
 

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 o

f 
G

lo
u
c
e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 s

u
g
g
e
s
ts

 
th

a
t 

th
is

 
w

a
y
 

o
f 

w
o
rk

in
g
 

c
a
n
 

a
ls

o
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 f

le
x
ib

ili
ty

 a
t 

a
n
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
le

v
e
l 

T
a
b
le
 5
 D

ri
v
e
rs
 o
f 
re
s
p
o
n
s
iv
e
n
e
s
s
 

Im
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 

134



 S
D

R
 P

h
a
s
e
 2

 R
e
p
o
rt

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 4

9
 o

f 
5
5
 

1
5
2
 B

o
th

 t
h
e
 m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 a

g
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 m

o
d
e
ls

 f
o
c
u
s
 o

n
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 d

ri
v
e
n
 b

y
 t

h
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 a
im

s
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
e
lp

in
g
 t

o
 c

re
a
te

 a
 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 t
h
a
t 

w
ill

 b
e
 m

o
re

 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
iv

e
 t

o
 c

h
a
n
g
in

g
 c

ir
c
u
m

s
ta

n
c
e
s
. 

1
5
3
 I

f 
in

te
g
ra

te
d
 t

e
a
m

s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 s

h
o
w

n
 t

o
 w

o
rk

, 
th

e
 i

n
te

g
ra

te
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 m

o
d
e
l,
 b

y
 u

s
in

g
 s

e
c
o
n
d
m

e
n
ts

 r
a
th

e
r 

th
a
n
 T

U
P

E
, 

c
o
u
ld

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

’s
 c

ro
s
s
-o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 w

o
rk

in
g
. 

F
in
d
in
g
s
 

O
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
In
te
rf
a
c
e
 

1
5
4
 C

re
a
ti
n
g
 a

n
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 r

e
d
u
c
e
s
 t

h
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 c

a
u
s
e
d
 b

y
 p

o
o
r 

c
ro

s
s
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
w

o
rk

in
g
. 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

1
5
5
 T

h
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

m
u
s
t 

a
llo

w
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 b

e
 f

le
x
ib

le
 i
n
 i
ts

 a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t

o
 n

e
w

 o
r 

e
x
tr

a
o
rd

in
a
ry

 c
ir
c
u
m

s
ta

n
c
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 c

o
u
ld

 
b
e
 a

s
 v

a
ri
e
d
 a

s
 c

h
a
n
g
in

g
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
g
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

p
o
lic

y
 o

r 
u
n
e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 f

lo
o
d
in

g
. 

 

135



 S
D

R
 P

h
a
s
e
 2

 R
e
p
o
rt

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 5

0
 o

f 
5
5
 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

In
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

1
5
6
 T

h
e
 

A
u
d
it
 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 

s
ta

te
 

th
a
t 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 

w
e
re

 
o
ri
g
in

a
lly

 
e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 

to
 

b
ri
n
g
 

im
p
ro

v
e
d
 

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
e
s
 

to
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t.

 T
h
e
y
 w

o
u
ld

 m
o
v
e
 b

e
y
o
n
d
 t
h
e
 t
ra

d
it
io

n
a
l 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
tu

a
l 
a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 o

f 
c
lo

s
e
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
ti
g
h
t 
c
ri
te

ri
a
 t
o
 f
o
c
u
s
 o

n
 m

e
a
s
u
ri
n
g
 

o
u
tp

u
ts

 a
n
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
. 

1
5
7
 T

h
e
y
 
s
ta

te
 
th

a
t 

v
a
ri
a
b
le

s
 
lik

e
 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 
q
u
a
lit

y
 
h
a
v
e
, 

h
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 
p
ro

v
e
d
 
to

 
b
e
 
h
a
rd

 
to

 
m

e
a
s
u
re

 
a
n
d
 
th

e
re

 
h
a
v
e
 
b
e
e
n
 
o
c
c
a
s
io

n
s
 
w

h
e
n
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 m

e
t 

o
n
 p

a
p
e
r,

 b
u
t 

th
e

 c
o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 h

a
d
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 a

b
o
u
t 

th
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 t
h
a
t 

c
a
n
n
o
t 

b
e
 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
ir
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
. 

A
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

D
ri
v
e
rs
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
d
 b
a
u
 

M
a
n
a
g
in
g
 a
g
e
n
t 

In
te
g
ra
te
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

1
. 

M
o
d
e
l 

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 

T
h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 h

a
s
 a

 s
e
t 

o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

ta
rg

e
ts

 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

B
V

P
Is

 
p
re

d
ic

ta
b
ili

ty
 
o
f 

ti
m

e
 
a
n
d
 
c
o
s
t,

 
s
a
fe

ty
, 

s
ic

k
n
e
s
s
 a

b
s
e
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 l
im

it
e
d
 c

u
s
to

m
e
r 

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
. 

T
h
e
 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 
m

e
e
ts

 
m

o
s
t 

o
f 

it
s
 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 
ta

rg
e
ts

 
(b

u
t 

th
e
s
e
 

a
re

 
d
if
fe

re
n
t 

fr
o
m

 
th

e
 

ta
rg

e
ts

 
th

e
 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
is

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t

o
 m

e
e
t)

 

O
u
tc

o
m

e
 b

a
s
e
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

T
h
is

 
d
o
e
s
, 

h
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 
re

ly
 
o
n
 
a
 
s
tr

o
n
g
 

c
lie

n
t 

in
te

rf
a
c
e
 

a
n
d
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 

s
u
p
p
lie

r 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

s
in

c
e
 

th
e
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 

o
f 

s
u
it
a
b
le

 
o
u
tc

o
m

e
 

m
e
a
s
u
re

s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
 

A
s
 m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 a

g
e
n
t 

m
o
d
e
l 
a
n
d
…

 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 m

e
a
s
u
re

d
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
a
 s

e
t 

o
f 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 a
n
d
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 

m
e
a
s
u
re

s
 

d
e
fi
n
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 p
la

n
 

T
h
e
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 p
la

n
 i
s
 p

a
rt

 
o
f 

th
e
 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t.

 
T

h
e
 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
is

 
re

w
a
rd

e
d
 

in
 

lin
e
 

w
it
h
 

th
e
ir
 

a
b
ili

ty
 

to
 

m
e
e
t 

ta
rg

e
ts

 b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 p

la
n
 

C
ro

s
s
 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 

te
a
m

s
 

m
a
y
 
m

a
k
e
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
l 

s
ta

ff
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 m
o
re

 c
o
m

p
le

x
 

2
. 

O
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
d
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 
th

e
 u

s
e
 
o
f 

s
tr

e
tc

h
in

g
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 
c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 b

u
ilt

 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 

a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

b
o
th

 p
a
rt

ie
s
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

ta
rg

e
ts

 
a
re

 
s
e
t 

b
y
 

a
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
B

o
a
rd

 
to

 
m

a
tc

h
 

th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

fr
a
m

e
w

o
rk

 t
a
rg

e
ts

 (
s
e
t 

fo
r 

th
re

e
 y

e
a
rs

 
a
n
d
 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
 
a
n
n
u
a
lly

 
in

 
th

e
 
lig

h
t 

o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
).

 
T

h
e
 

ta
rg

e
ts

 
w

o
u
ld

 
b
e
 

lin
k
e
d
 

to
 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 
o
f 

th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 

T
h
e
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

m
e
a
s
u
re

s
 

a
n
d
 

ta
rg

e
ts

 a
re

 d
e
fi
n
e
d
 i

n
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 p

la
n
 

a
n
d
 

w
ill

 
th

e
re

fo
re

 
b
e
 

p
a
rt

 
o
f 

th
e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

fr
a
m

e
w

o
rk

  

T
h
ro

u
g
h
 

th
e
 

in
te

g
ra

te
d
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t,

 
A

m
e
y
 

W
y
e
 

V
a
lle

y
 

a
n
d
 

A
m

e
y
 

136



 S
D

R
 P

h
a
s
e
 2

 R
e
p
o
rt

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 5

1
 o

f 
5
5
 

d
e
s
ir
e
d
 
o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 
a
n
d
 
w

ill
 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 
it
s
 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
  

A
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 i
s
 

lin
k
e
d
 
to

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

e
x
te

n
s
io

n
s
 w

h
ic

h
, 

if
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 
ta

rg
e
ts

 
a
re

 
re

a
c
h
e
d
, 

w
ill

 
e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 r
o
lli

n
g
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t.
  

It
 

w
o
u
ld

 
b
e
 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 

to
 

a
ls

o
 

in
c
lu

d
e
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
re

w
a
rd

 a
n
d
 /

 o
r 

p
e
n
a
lt
y
. 

A
m

e
y
 

W
y
e
 

V
a
lle

y
 

a
n
d
 

A
m

e
y
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
in

g
 

w
ill

 
c
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 
to

 
th

e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

ta
rg

e
ts

 
th

a
t 

d
ri
v
e
 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

T
h
e
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 c
a
n
 a

ls
o
 b

e
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
d
 a

t 
a
 

lo
c
a
l 

le
v
e
l 

b
y
 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

, 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 

a
n
d
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

g
ro

u
p
s
 

re
s
u
lt
in

g
 

in
 

im
p
ro

v
e
d
 c

u
s
to

m
e
r 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 

A
m

e
y
 

W
y
e
 

V
a
lle

y
 

a
n
d
 

A
m

e
y
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
in

g
 

w
ill

 
b
e
 

in
v
o
lv

e
d
 

in
 

th
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 

p
la

n
. 

T
h
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
r(

s
) 

o
f 

th
e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 a

ls
o
 b

e
 a

n
s
w

e
ra

b
le

 t
o
 

th
e
 
m

e
m

b
e
rs

 
v
ia

 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 
s
c
ru

ti
n
y
 

c
o
m

m
it
te

e
s
 

A
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

ta
rg

e
ts

 
w

ill
 
b
e
 
lin

k
e
d
 
to

 
b
o
th

 
p
ro

fi
ta

b
ili

ty
 
a
n
d
 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

e
x
te

n
s
io

n
. 

T
h
is

 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

s
c
h
e
m

e
 

is
 

th
e
 

m
o
s
t 

ro
b
u
s
t 

o
f 

a
ll 

th
e
 m

o
d
e
ls

 

 

3
. 

F
u
n
d
a
m

e
n
ta

ls
 

T
h
e
 v

is
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 H

e
re

fo
rd

s
h
ir
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 P
a

rt
n
e
rs

h
ip

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
0
3
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 

b
e
e
n
 r

e
a
lis

e
d
. 

T
o
 s

ta
n
d
 a

 c
h
a
n
c
e
 

o
f 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 w

e
 n

e
e
d
 
to

 u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
 w

h
y
 a

n
d
 m

a
k
e
 s

u
re

 t
h
a
t 

a
n
y
 n

e
w

 a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

is
 b

u
ilt

 o
n
 g

o
o
d
 f

o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

T
h
e
s
e
 

fo
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 t

h
in

g
s
 t

h
a
t,

 i
f 

th
e
y
 a

re
 n

o
t 
in

 p
la

c
e
, 

w
ill

 p
u
t 

th
e
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
t 

ri
s
k
. 

T
h
e
y
 a

re
: 

- 
A

 w
e
ll 

c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

- 
G

o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 s

h
o
w

in
g
 w

h
e
re

 w
e
 s

ta
rt

 f
ro

m
 a

n
d
 h

o
w

 w
e
 a

re
 d

o
in

g
 

- 
A

n
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
, 

s
h
a
re

d
 b

y
 a

ll 
in

v
o
lv

e
d
, 

o
f 

h
o
w

 t
h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 i
s
 m

e
a
n
t 

to
 w

o
rk

 

- 
C

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 

to
 t

h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
t 

s
e
n
io

r 
le

v
e
ls

 i
n

 b
o
th

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
  

N
o
n
e
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 f

o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

a
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 f

ir
s
t 

h
a
lf
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t.

  

F
ig
u
re
 1
0
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

Im
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 

1
5
8
 T

h
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
tu

a
l 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

 h
a
v
e
 n

o
t 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 d
ri
v
e
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t.

 I
t 

is
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 

to
 m

o
v
e
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

p
o
s
it
io

n
 o

f 
m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t

o
 a

 m
o
re

 p
ro

a
c
ti
v
e
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 o

f 
m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t

o
 d

ri
v
e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t.
 

137



 S
D

R
 P

h
a
s
e
 2

 R
e
p
o
rt

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 5

2
 o

f 
5
5
 

1
5
9
 T

h
e
 f

o
c
u
s
 o

f 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 s

h
o
u
ld

 m
o
v
e
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 m

e
a
s
u
re

m
e
n
t 

o
f 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 b

e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g
 o

f 
c
o
s
ts

 a
n
d
 r

a
te

s
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 b

e
tt

e
r 

a
lig

n
 t

h
e
 e

ff
o
rt

s
 o

f 
th

e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm

 a
im

s
 a

n
d
 e

n
s
u
re

 b
e
tt

e
r 

v
a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o
n

e
y
. 

 

1
6
0
 I

t 
is

 c
ru

c
ia

l 
th

a
t 

th
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

re
g
im

e
 d

ri
v
e
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 f

ro
m

 p
a
s
t 

m
is

ta
k
e
s
. 

1
6
1
 T

h
e
 n

e
w

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 r

e
g
im

e
 m

u
s
t 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e

 i
n
te

re
s
ts

 o
f 

a
ll 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

re
a
s
 a

re
 a

d
e
q
u
a
te

ly
 r

e
fl
e
c
te

d
. 

A
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 e

x
p
re

s
s
e
d
 

th
a
t 
th

e
 i
n
te

re
s
ts

 o
f 

‘s
m

a
lle

r’
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

it
h
 a

n
 i
n

te
re

s
t 

in
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

w
ill

 c
o
m

e
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 t

o
 H

ig
h
w

a
y
s
 a

s
 i
t 

h
a
s
 t

h
e
 l
a
rg

e
s
t 
s
p
e
n
d
. 

1
6
2
 T

h
e
 r

e
n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
 o

ff
e
rs

 t
h
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t

o
 n

o
t 

o
n
ly

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 h

o
w

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 m

e
a
s
u
re

d
 b

u
t 

a
ls

o
 b

u
ild

 i
n
 t

h
e
 f

le
x
ib

ili
ty

 t
h
a
t 

w
ill

 b
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t

o
 k

e
e
p
 t
h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
. 

1
6
3
 B

u
ild

in
g
 a

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

, 
a
s
 o

p
p
o
s
e
d
 t

o
 d

e
v
is

in
g
 a

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
t,

 w
ill

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
 a

 h
ig

h
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 

fr
o
m

 s
e
n
io

r 
s
ta

ff
 i
n
 b

o
th

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
. 

F
in
d
in
g
s
 

F
u
n
d
a
m
e
n
ta
ls
 

1
6
4
 T

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

s
it
u
a
ti
o
n
 s

u
g
g
e
s
ts

 t
h
a
t,

 w
h
a
te

v
e
r 

m
o
d
e
l 

o
f 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 i
s
 p

u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e
, 

th
e
re

 a
re

 a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

fu
n
d
a
m

e
n
ta

l 
b
u
ild

in
g
 b

lo
c
k
s
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 f

o
r 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
. 

W
e
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 h

a
v
e
 a

 r
e
a
lis

ti
c
 a

p
p
re

c
ia

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 t

h
in

g
s
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 d

e
fi
n
e
 t

h
e
 b

e
s
t 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 m

o
d
e
l 
fo

r 
e
a
c
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

a
re

a
. 

T
h
e
 f

u
n
d
a
m

e
n
ta

ls
 a

re
: 

8
4
.a

 
A

n
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
, 
s
h
a
re

d
 b

y
 a

ll 
in

v
o
lv

e
d
, 
o
f 

h
o
w

 t
h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 i
s
 m

e
a
n
t 

to
 w

o
rk

 

8
4
.b

 
C

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
to

 t
h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
t 

s
e
n
io

r 
le

v
e
ls

 i
n
 b

o
th

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 

1
6
5
 P

ra
g
m

a
ti
c
a
lly

, 
th

e
 c

h
o
ic

e
 o

f 
m

o
d
e
l 
in

 e
a
c
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

re
a
 w

ill
 d

e
p
e
n
d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
to

 t
h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 o
f 
th

e
 s

e
n
io

r 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 t
h
a
t 

a
re

a
. 

If
 t

h
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 a

p
p
e
ti
te

 f
o
r 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
o
rk

in
g
 a

t 
th

e
 m

o
s
t 

s
e
n
io

r 
le

v
e
ls

, 
th

e
n
 t

h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 i
s
 u

n
lik

e
ly

 t
o
 w

o
rk

. 
O

n
 t

h
e
 o

n
e
 h

a
n
d
, 

if
 

th
a
t 

a
p
p
e
ti
te

 d
o
e
s
 e

x
is

t 
th

e
n
 t

h
a
t 

c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 

n
e
e
d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
te

d
 t

o
 a

ll 
s
ta

ff
 i

n
v
o
lv

e
d
 i

n
 t

h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

. 
O

n
 t

h
e
 o

th
e
r 

h
a
n
d
, 

if
 i

t 
d
o
e
s
 n

o
t,
 t

h
e
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

n
e
e
d
s
 t

o
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 

th
e
 d

e
s
ir
e
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 m
o
re

 a
s
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
a
n
d
 c

lie
n
t.

  

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

1
6
6
 I

n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 b

e
tt

e
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

w
e
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
: 

8
4
.a

 
H

a
v
e
 a

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 b
u
ilt

 o
n
 a

 w
e
ll 

c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

8
4
.b

 
H

a
v
e
 a

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

s
c
h
e
m

e
 t

h
a
t 

re
w

a
rd

s
 g

o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 p

e
n
a
lis

e
s
 p

o
o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

 

8
4
.c

 
E

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
re

 a
re

 c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t 

m
e
a
s
u
re

s
 o

f 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 b
a
s
e
lin

e
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

w
h
ic

h
 t

o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

a
n
y
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 i

n
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 

re
s
u
lt
 f

ro
m

 a
n
y
 a

g
re

e
d
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 

8
4
.d

 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 s
e
t 

o
f 

d
e
s
ir
e
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 a

 s
e
t 

o
f 

in
d
ic

a
to

rs
 t

o
 m

e
a
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
re

le
v
a
n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

re
a
s
 t

h
a
t 

re
fl
e
c
t 

th
e
 c

u
s
to

m
e
r 

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 

138



 S
D

R
 P

h
a
s
e
 2

 R
e
p
o
rt

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 5

3
 o

f 
5
5
 

8
4
.e

 
U

s
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

e
x
te

n
s
io

n
s
 t

o
 r

e
w

a
rd

 g
o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t

o
 a

v
o
id

 “
a
s
s
e
t 

s
w

e
a
ti
n
g
” 

to
w

a
rd

s
 t

h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

p
e
ri
o
d
 

8
4
.f
 

R
e
m

o
v
e
 t

h
e
 a

n
o
m

a
lie

s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
ti
n

g
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
t 

8
4
.g

 
In

c
lu

d
e
 a

n
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 c

lie
n
t 

s
id

e
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

n
d
 v

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o
n
e
y
 

1
6
7
 I

t 
w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 m

o
re

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 t

o
 l
in

k
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
d

e
liv

e
ry

 t
o
 b

o
th

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

e
x
te

n
s
io

n
 a

n
d
 p

ro
fi
t 

(a
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 m

o
d
e
l)
 r

a
th

e
r 

th
a
n
 

ju
s
t 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

e
x
te

n
s
io

n
s
 (

a
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 a

g
e
n
t 

m
o
d
e
l)
. 

 

1
6
8
 O

n
e
 
o
f 

th
e
 
le

s
s
o
n
s
 
o
f 

th
e
 
la

s
t 

fi
v
e
 
y
e
a
rs

 
is

 
th

a
t 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 
re

ly
 
o
n
 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 
b
e
h
a
v
io

u
rs

 
o
n
 
b

o
th

 
s
id

e
s
. 

In
 
a
d
d
it
io

n
 
to

 
a
 
s
tr

o
n
g
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

s
y
s
te

m
 f

o
r 

th
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
w

e
 n

e
e
d
 a

 m
e
th

o
d
 o

f 
id

e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 a

n
d
 c

o
rr

e
c
ti
n
g
 p

o
o
r 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 b
e
h
a
v
io

u
rs

 b
o
th

 b
y
 

th
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
a
n
d
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il.

 W
e
 n

e
e
d
 g

o
o
d
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 g

o
o
d
 c

lie
n
t 

b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r.

 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
u
c
tu
re
 

1
6
9
 T

h
e
 i

n
te

g
ra

te
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 m

o
d
e
l 

c
o
m

b
in

e
s
 t

h
e
 C

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r’
s
 g

e
n
e
ra

l 
m

a
n
a
g
e
r 

a
n
d
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
r 

ro
le

. 
It

 c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 s

e
e
n
 a

s
 t

h
e
 

n
e
x
t 

s
te

p
 i
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 a

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 b

ri
n

g
in

g
: 

8
4
.a

 
G

re
a
te

r 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts

: 
o
n
e
 p

e
rs

o
n
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ta

b
le

 f
o
r 

d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 b

o
th

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 p

ro
fi
ta

b
ili

ty
 

8
4
.b

 
G

re
a
te

r 
ri
s
k
s
: 

if
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 t

e
a
m

s
 c

a
n
n
o
t 

b
e
 m

a
d
e
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 t
h
e
n
 i
t 
m

a
y
 b

e
 a

n
 u

n
d
o
a
b
le

 j
o
b
 

1
7
0
 T

h
is

 a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 e

n
s
u
re

s
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 a

im
s
 o

f 
th

e
 t

w
o
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 a

lig
n
e
d
 a

n
d
 w

it
h
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

d
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

th
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 o

w
n
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 p
la

n
s
. 

 

139



 S
D

R
 P

h
a
s
e
 2

 R
e
p
o
rt

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 5

4
 o

f 
5
5
 

S
h

a
ri

n
g

 F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
B

e
n

e
fi
ts

 

T
h
e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 r

e
p
o
rt

 f
o
u
n
d
 t

h
a
t 

v
e
ry

 f
e
w

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 h

a
v
e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 s

h
a
re

d
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts

. 
A

tt
e
m

p
ts

 a
t 

s
h
a
ri
n
g
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
re

w
a
rd

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 r

e
v
e
n
u
e
 s

h
a
ri
n
g
, 

p
ro

fi
t 

s
h
a
ri
n
g
, 

o
r 

th
e
 o

n
-s

e
lli

n
g
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 t
o
 o

th
e
r 

p
u
b
lic

 b
o
d
ie

s
. 

 

S
h
a
ri
n
g
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts

, 
w

h
e
th

e
r 

th
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 j
o
in

t 
v
e
n
tu

re
 o

r 
s
o
m

e
 o

th
e
r 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
t,

 s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 n

e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
 p

h
a
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
. 

  

140



 S
D

R
 P

h
a
s
e
 2

 R
e
p
o
rt

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 5

5
 o

f 
5
5
 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ic
e

s
 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 
A
 
–
 
S
c
o
p
e
 
o
f 
re
v
ie
w
: 
A
m
e
y
 
W
y
e
 
V
a
ll
e
y
 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
e
x
tr
a
c
t 
- 
S
D
A
 
S
c
h
e
d
u
le
 
3
 
- 
W
o
rk
s
 

(P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
d
 W

o
rk
s
 S
p
e
c
ia
li
s
t 
W
o
rk
s
);
 A
m
e
y
 C
o
n
s
u
lt
in
g
 (
O
w
e
n
 W

il
li
a
m
s
) 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
e
x
tr
a
c
t 
- 
s
e
c
ti
o
n
 o
n
 

s
c
o
p
e
  

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 B
 -
 D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 m
o
d
e
ls
 s
tu
d
ie
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 C
 –
 S
u
m
m
a
ry
 o
f 
m
e
th
o
d
 u
s
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 e
s
ti
m
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
o
f 
s
ta
ff
 r
e
la
te
d
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 D
 -
 A
m
e
y
 c
a
p
a
b
il
it
y
 s
ta
te
m
e
n
t 

141



142



SDRPhase2rptAppendixAscopeofcontractsforCabinet0809110.doc - 1 - 

APPENDIX A:  

 
SCOPE OF CONTRACT FOR PROVISION OF TECHNICAL SERVICES 

 

The Scope of this Contract is: 
 

• The provision of engineering services for policy development, 
design and implementation, including transportation and traffic 
engineering, management and control; highway design and 
management; materials testing; general infrastructure development; 
property/architectural services and other associated technical 
services. 

 
These services being: 
 

• for the Employer and usually within the Site as described. 

• as commissioned by the Employer in accordance with this contract 
using the model ‘Service Orders’ and ‘Design Briefs’ detailed herein. 

• provided in accordance with the Outcome Specifications. 
 

 

143



SDRPhase2rptAppendixAscopeofcontractsforCabinet0809110.doc - 2 - 

 

AMEY WYE VALLEY CONTRACT EXTRACT 

Schedule 3 

Works (Programmed Works, Specialist Works)  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

144



SDRPhase2rptAppendixAscopeofcontractsforCabinet0809110.doc - 3 - 

 

WORKS INFORMATION 

 

  CONTENTS 

  1.0  PREAMBLE TO THE WORKS INFORMATION 
(PROGRAMMED WORKS, SPECIALIST WORKS) 

 2.0  THE HIGHWAY SERVICE 
 
 

 3.0  THE FACILITIES MANAGEMENT SERVICE 
 
 

 4.0  THE FLEET MANAGEMENT SERVICE 
 
 
 5.0  THE EMERGENCY PLANNING SERVICE  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

145



SDRPhase2rptAppendixAscopeofcontractsforCabinet0809110.doc - 4 - 

1.0 PREAMBLE TO THE WORKS INFORMATION (PROGRAMMED 
WORK,  

 SPECIALIST WORKS) 

 

For each of the Works ‘streams’ included for in this agreement, this 
section the Works Information, gives details of the following: 

 

 a) Synopsis 

  A synopsis of the Works. 

 

 b) Content 

A summary of the types of activity that the Contractor will be 
required to deliver as part of the Works as described in this 
Schedule. 

 

 c) Baseline Specifications 

The Baseline Specifications for each type of activity are 
identified here. It is intended that these specifications will be the 
starting point, they’re content being developed through the 
Partnership to meet the Outcome Specification. 

 

    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

146



SDRPhase2rptAppendixAscopeofcontractsforCabinet0809110.doc - 5 - 

Definition of Work types 

 

Programmed Works 

 

Programmed Works are those activities, which may be of the type carried out day in, day 
out by the Contractor, but are targeted to deliver solutions that are beyond the 
capabilities of routine means. Such Activities are ‘discrete Schemes’ which are identified 
in a needs based programme of works, thereby promoting the serviceability and 
sustainability of the Site. 

 

Specialist Works 

 

Specialist Works are those activities, which are not of the type carried out day 
in, day out by the Contractor, but are targeted to deliver solutions that are 
beyond the capabilities of routine means. Such Activities are ‘discrete 
Schemes’ or elements of ‘discrete Schemes’ which are identified in a needs 
based programme of works, thereby promoting the serviceability and 
sustainability of the Site. 

 

 

147



SDRPhase2rptAppendixAscopeofcontractsforCabinet0809110.doc - 6 - 

2.0  THE HIGHWAY SERVICE 

 

 a) Synopsis 

The Highway Service encompasses:- 

Highway Maintenance, Bridge Maintenance, Street Cleansing 
and Street Scene functions, Minor Improvement works, Street 
Lighting (set to commence during 2004) upon all Highways 
maintainable at the Public expense (excluding Motorways and 
Trunk Roads), for which The County of Herefordshire District 
Council is The Highway Authority, along with works to the Public 
Rights of Way network as directed by the Council and 
associated works in the County of Herefordshire. 

 b) Baseline Content 

  The activities that may be undertaken as part of the Highway 
Service are as follows: 

  Maintenance including: 

 (a) Patching and repair and maintenance of carriageways, 
footways cycleways and verges as a constituent part of 
(b). 

 (b) All types of carriageway, footway and cycleway 
Reconstruction, Resurfacing and Surface Treatment. 

  (c) Laying or renewing all types of kerbs, edgings, setts, 
blocks and channels as a constituent part of (b). 

   (d) Laying, repairing and renewing of drainage systems. 

   (e) Provision or renewal of all types of safety barrier, guard 
rails and boundary fencing.  

   (f) Supply and erection of all types of roadsigns. 

   (g) The repair and minor reconstruction of all types and sizes 
of highway structures.   

              (h) The provision and renewal of all types of road markings               
and road studs.  

(i) Works upon Public Rights of Way. 

(j)       Other Highway works. 

 

  Improvement Schemes including: 

 

(l) Roadmarking and signing schemes. 

(m)Cycle Network schemes 

(n) Bus Priority schemes 

148



SDRPhase2rptAppendixAscopeofcontractsforCabinet0809110.doc - 7 - 

(o) Footway schemes 

(p) Traffic Calming schemes (including 20mph school zones) 

(q) Public Transport Interchange Improvement schemes 

(r) Bus Shelter, Motorcycle & Cycle Parking Provision 

(s) Safer Routes to School Schemes 

(t) Pedestrian Crossing Schemes 

(u) Pedestrian Route & Disabled Access Improvement Schemes 

(v) Safety Improvement Schemes 

(w) New Road Schemes 

 

  Street Cleansing including: 

 

  (x) Special Events. 

   

 c) Baseline Specifications 

The baseline Specifications for the Highway Service are 
contained in Schedule 03a.  

 

 

149



SDRPhase2rptAppendixAscopeofcontractsforCabinet0809110.doc - 8 - 

3.0 THE FACILITIES MANAGEMENT SERVICE 

 

 a) Synopsis 

The Facilities Management Service encompasses:- 

Building and Property Maintenance works, Building Cleaning, 
Grounds Maintenance, Public Convenience Cleansing, 
Recycling Services, Catering, Printing, Courier and Cemeteries 
Maintenance Services for which The County of Herefordshire 
District Council is the ‘Client’, along with similar works to the 
corporate estate as directed by the Council and associated 
works within and around the County of Herefordshire. 

 b) Content 

  The activities that may be undertaken as part of the Facilities 
Management Service are as follows: 

  Maintenance including: 

(a) Repair to the building fabric, electrics and mechanical 
installations. 

(b) Planned maintenance work including decoration, roofing, 
flooring, plastering, re wiring and new heating 
installations. 

(c) Minor improvements to the building such as shelving, 
new door openings, etc.. 

(d) The planting, establishment of seasonal bedding 
schemes including carpet-bedding designs. 

(e) Reinstatement of grassed areas, shrubberies, rose beds, 
flower beds/carpet beds in special circumstances. 

Catering including: 

(l) Events Catering 

Printing including: 

(aa) Brochures, Maps, Business reports and General print. 

(bb) Loose copies and bound documents in Black and White 
and/or Colour. 

Cemeteries Maintenance: 

(ff) Grave digging, and back-filling to a specified quality 
                      standard.  

(gg) Exhumations when required to a specified quality 
           standard. 

 

  c) Baseline Specifications 

150



SDRPhase2rptAppendixAscopeofcontractsforCabinet0809110.doc - 9 - 

The baseline Specifications for the Facilities Management 
Service are contained in Schedule 03a. 

151



SDRPhase2rptAppendixAscopeofcontractsforCabinet0809110.doc - 10 - 

Schedule 3  

 

Works (Programmed Works, Specialist Works) 

 

Section 3.0 Facilities Management 

 

3.1 Building Services 

 

3.1.1 Transitional 

 

3.1.1.a Preamble 

During the Transitional Period the Contractor will provide the 
activities set out in the following Description of Activities to the Civic 
Estate as detailed in Schedule 10 and that they can be fulfilled 
within the capability of the Workforce as set out in Appendix 1 of 
Schedule 2 in accordance with a monthly workload programme 
agreed with the Employer. 

 

The Employer has agreed to underwrite the full cost of the Building 
Service during the Transitional Period, but to the extent that other 
clients engage the Workforce in this period the staff cost 
component of the external income will be used to offset the cost to 
the Employer of underwriting the Building Service. 

 

During the Transitional Period the Employer and the Contractor will 
agree the specification and price for the Contractor to deliver a 
comprehensive maintenance service to the Civic Estate to 
commence on the 1st April 2004. 

 

3.1.1.b  Description of Services 

 

(i)  Works 

o Redecoration 

o Minor improvements e.g. shelving, doorways, electrical 
adaptations or additions, heating extensions. 

o Minor tasks of asset replacement e.g. luminaire renewal, 
boiler replacement 

 

3.1.2 Steady State 

152



SDRPhase2rptAppendixAscopeofcontractsforCabinet0809110.doc - 11 - 

 

 

 

3.1.2.a  Preamble 

 

During Steady State, which will commence on the 1st April 2004, 
THE CONTRACTOR will provide a comprehensive* building 
management and day to day maintenance service as set out in the 
following Description of Activities in accordance with a monthly 
workload programme agreed with the The Employer. 

 

During Steady State Phase 1 the The Employer and THE 
CONTRACTOR will develop a plan for THE CONTRACTOR to 
extend its role in delivering a wider range of new build and asset 
replacement works.   

 

3.1.2.b Description of Services 

 

 (i) Works 

o Redecoration 

o Minor improvements e.g. shelving, doorways, electrical 
adaptations or additions, fabric and M&E extensions 

o Minor tasks of asset replacement e.g. luminaire renewal, 
boiler replacement 

 

Building Cleansing 

 

3.2.1 Transitional 

 

3.2.1.a Preamble 

 

During the Transitional Period the Contractor will provide the 
activities set out in the following Description of Activities to the Civic 
Estate. 

 

During the Transitional Period the Employer and the Contractor will 
agree a revised specification and price to provide a comprehensive 
Building Cleaning Service to commence on the 1st April 2004. 

 

153



SDRPhase2rptAppendixAscopeofcontractsforCabinet0809110.doc - 12 - 

3.2.1.b  Description of Services 

Planned Reactive and emergency building cleaning activities to the 
internal building fabric within the Civic Estate 

 

3.2.1. c Specification 

 Works Non-Routine 

o Planned building cleaning activities to the internal building 
fabric i.e. Deep Cleaning activities based on frequencies 
currently provided under existing contractual arrangements 
with the Courier 

3.2.1 Transitional  - Not Used 

 

3.2.1 Steady State 

 

3.2.2.a  Preamble 

 

The Contractor will provide a Courier Service as set out in the 
following Description of Activities in accordance with a monthly 
workload programme agreed with the Employer within Hereford 
City and Herefordshire County. 

  

Description of Services 

 

To provide a routine and adhoc business day courier service 
between the Employer’s premises based on two drivers and two 3 
cwt size vans according to an agreed programme of deliveries. 

 

3.2 Catering 

 

3.2.1 Transitional – Not Used 

 

3.2.3 Preamble 

 

3.2.4 Steady State 

 

The Contractor will provide the Programmed Works set out in the 
following Description of Activities to the Civic Estate in accordance with a 
programme agreed with the Employer. 

 

154



SDRPhase2rptAppendixAscopeofcontractsforCabinet0809110.doc - 13 - 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Description of Services 

 

 (i) Works 

 

o Planned and Reactive Catering Service providing selections 
of nutritious and varied meals and snacks taking into account 
the cultural, ethnic and specific medical dietary requirements 
of all customers within the Civic Estate 

 

 Description of Services 

 

 (i) Works 

 

o Provide a selection of nutritious and varied meals and 
snacks taking into account the cultural, ethnic and specific 
medical dietary requirements of all customers building 
cleaning service including: 

• Finger Buffets 

• Fork Buffets 

• Sandwiches, crisps etc. 

• Sandwiches  

• Sweets 

• Drinks 

 

3.2 Print 

 

3.2.1 Transitional – Not Used 

 

3.2.2 Steady State 

 

155



SDRPhase2rptAppendixAscopeofcontractsforCabinet0809110.doc - 14 - 

3.2.3 Preamble 

 

The Contractor will provide the Programmed Works set out in the 
following Description of Activities to the Civic Estate in accordance 
with a programme agreed with the Employer. 

 

Works 

 

o Produce all Employer minutes and agendas  

o Provide Printing, folding and enveloping of the Employer 
wage slips 

o Produce Loose Copies or reports and publicity material for 
the Employer. 

o Provide a "Drilling and binding of booklets and reports 
service to the Employer." 

o Produce a range of Brochures, Maps and reports in Colour 
and or Black & White 

o Size & Number of Documents 

o Confidential shredding facility 

   

 

156



SDRPhase2rptAppendixAscopeofcontractsforCabinet0809110.doc - 15 - 

4.0 FLEET MANAGEMENT SERVICE 

 

 a) Synopsis 

The Fleet Management Service encompasses:- 

Vehicle provision, maintenance and support to the fleet for 
which The County of Herefordshire District Council is the ‘Client’ 
and associated works. 

 

 b) Content 

The activities that may be undertaken as part of the Fleet 
Management Service are as follows: 

(a) A services 

(b) B services 

(c) MOT 

(d) Vehicle inspections 

  (e) General repairs 

 

 c) Baseline Specifications 

The baseline Specifications for the Fleet Management Service 
are contained in Schedule 03a. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

157



158



SDRPhase2rptAppendixBSDRModelDescriptionsversion03562008forCabinet0809110.doc - 1 - 

Appendix B 

 

Service Delivery Review Phase 2 Model Descriptions

159



SDRPhase2rptAppendixBSDRModelDescriptionsversion03562008forCabinet0809110.doc - 2 - 

Contents 

Contents.................................................................................................................... 1 

Model Description ..................................................................................................... 3 

Improved business as Usual.................................................................................. 3 

The model in action – Herefordshire................................................................... 3 

Principles underlying the analysis ...................................................................... 3 

Strengths and weaknesses ................................................................................ 4 

‘Managing agent contract’(MAC) model ................................................................. 4 

The model in action – Bedfordshire Highways.................................................... 4 

Principles underlying the analysis ...................................................................... 5 

Strengths and weaknesses ................................................................................ 6 

Integrated services model...................................................................................... 6 

The model in action – Gloucestershire Highways ............................................... 6 

Principles underlying the analysis ...................................................................... 8 

Strengths and weaknesses ................................................................................ 9 

Method.................................................................................................................... 10 

Improved business as usual ................................................................................ 10 

MAC .................................................................................................................... 10 

Integrated Services.............................................................................................. 10 

 

 

160



SDRPhase2rptAppendixBSDRModelDescriptionsversion03562008forCabinet0809110.doc - 3 - 

Model Description 

Improved business as Usual 

The model in action – Herefordshire  

The improved business as usual (IBAU) option is based on the current service 
delivery arrangements without modification.  

A range of services including highways routine maintenance, programmed highways 
works, grounds maintenance, street cleansing, toilet cleansing, recycling, street 
lighting, courier, printing, vehicle maintenance, sign manufacture, building 
maintenance, building cleaning and event catering are delivered by Amey Wye Valley 
Limited, a joint venture company owned by Amey Infrastructure Services Limited 
(80%) and Herefordshire Council (20%).  

Consultancy services are delivered under a separate contractual arrangement with 
the Owen Williams division of Amey. The range of services include policy 
development, design and implementation, including transportation and traffic 
engineering, management and control; highway design and management; materials 
testing; general infrastructure development; property/architectural services and other 
associated technical services. 

The contractual arrangements are based on the New Engineering Contract (NEC) 
Engineering and Construction Contract; Option A, Priced Contract with Activity 
Schedule, for the Service Delivery Agreement with Amey Wye Valley Limited and the 
NEC Professional Services Contract for the delivery of consultancy services by Owen 
Williams Limited. Both contracts include the partnering provision (Option X). These 
arrangements provide no significant incentives to drive productivity improvements, 
nor do they allow any significant sanctions to be taken for non-delivery.    

Both contracts are for an initial ten-year term with an option to extend for a further ten 
years. Overall contract management for both rests formally with a single individual on 
the client side but in practice a large number of client officers are involved in ordering 
work and monitoring activities conducted under the contract and agreeing the 
amounts to be paid for specific work items. 

Until the commencement of the current review a board, which comprised directors 
from the parent organisations, gave strategic direction to this partnership. The board 
was supported by a partnership project management team, which comprised senior 
managers from each of the partners. 

This model is intended to overcome some of the disadvantages of the existing 
arrangements.  

Principles underlying the analysis 

This section describes the principles underlying the IBAU model. These have been 
used to develop the analysis of the model’s potential to meet the Herefordshire 
service delivery review objectives. 

The features of the model that have been used as assumptions in analysing how it 
meets our objectives are: 

§ Modifications to the contract would be negotiated to allow for a number of 
incentive-based adjustments to the payment mechanism as well as re-
aligning the rates with the actual costs of service provision 

161



SDRPhase2rptAppendixBSDRModelDescriptionsversion03562008forCabinet0809110.doc - 4 - 

§ The current schedule of rates’ deficiencies would be addressed to ensure that 
overall operating margins are maintained but individual rates are adjusted 
such that each business area achieved broadly the same percentage margin 
and prices better reflected the costs of delivering the service 

§ A requirement on the contractor to finalise the account on any particular work 
item within any particular timescale 

§ Market testing for value-for-money 

§ Incentivising lump sum payments to the contractor to improve performance 

§ Alignment of cost efficiency rebates with Gershon efficiency increases 
required of the Council 

§ Provide specific links between performance and payment 

§ Completing the schedule of rates 

§ Clarity over precisely what constitutes routine and reactive works, and what 
constitutes programmed work 

§ The contractor’s fee percentage arrangement to be modified to provide an 
incentive to drive down the costs of externally sourced work 

§ A strengthened and less diffuse client role 

§ A commitment to, and investment in, closer partnership working 

 

Strengths and weaknesses 

Strengths 

§ Known model requiring limited renegotiation and only modest change to the 
Council’s organisation 

§ A strengthened and focused client team should overcome most of the areas 
of disagreement inherent in the current arrangements 

§ No TUPE 

Weaknesses 

§ Although improved, still complex  accountability for service delivery 

 

‘Managing agent contract’ (MAC) model 

The model in action – Bedfordshire Highways 

The MAC model is based on Amey’s partnership with Bedfordshire. This has been 
running since October 2005 and is considered by both Amey and the Council to be a 
success. The partnership combines the roles previously undertaken by the council’s 
highway asset and network management teams with term maintenance service 
delivery. 

Before 2005 the council’s highways had become an important concern for its citizens. 
The quality of the roads was perceived to be poor and the council decided that it 
needed to take action. The action consisted of letting the contract for highways 
services to Amey and a substantial increase in funding (approximately £4m). 

162



SDRPhase2rptAppendixBSDRModelDescriptionsversion03562008forCabinet0809110.doc - 5 - 

A previously underachieving operation has been transformed into one that is 
excelling. The council has gone from one to three stars and Bedfordshire Highways 
has been an important part of this transformation. Although the improvement has 
been achieved with the injection of extra cash, the investment has been well spent, 
the performance has improved, relationships with local communities are good and 
the partnership is clearly working.  

This model delivers more efficient services – better services for less – by putting the 
service delivery into a single organisation. Amey will own the service delivery end to 
end and will take ownership of meeting the performance targets.  

The benefit to Amey of meeting the performance targets is an extension of the 
contract. In Bedfordshire the contract was originally let for five and a half years. The 
first extension of 12 months was awarded in July 2007 reflecting the successful start 
top the partnership. 

An important part of Amey’s service contracts is the Watchman scheme. This 
scheme identifies an individual whose role is to ensure that best practice is spread 
within the service delivery organisation and across Amey. The role is also 
responsible for developing and improving relationships with community groups.  

The partnership is controlled by the Partnership Network Board. This includes the 
cabinet member, the Director of Environment, the Watchman and other 
representatives from Amey and the council. The board is responsible for setting and 
assessing priorities and performance targets. 

The service advisory group produces monthly performance reports showing progress 
towards targets. 

Principles underlying the analysis 

This section describes the principles underlying the MAC model. These have been 
used to develop the analysis of the model’s potential to meet the Herefordshire 
service delivery review objectives. 

The features of the model that have been used as assumptions in analysing how it 
meets our objectives are: 

§ The organisation has been divided into two groups: service delivery roles 
and foundation roles - policy development, strategy, contract management 
and those roles that the council wants or needs to perform itself 

§ This structure has been assumed for each of the services included in the 
contract (Highways, Parks and Countryside and Property Services). In 
Bedfordshire Amey only deliver Highways and, as Bedfordshire is not 
currently a unitary authority, the range of services within Highways is not as 
wide as in Herefordshire. The risk that the model is not suitable for all service 
delivery areas has been mitigated by involving both experts from Amey and 
relevant Herefordshire Council staff 

§ All service delivery staff will be employed by Amey 

§ All foundation roles will be employed by Herefordshire Council 

§ Service delivery staff currently employed by the council will be tuped to the 
new service delivery organisation 

§ The interface between the service delivery and foundation organisation will be 
set at the strategic level i.e. the council will be responsible for objectives and 
strategic plans and Amey will be responsible for planning delivery.  

163



SDRPhase2rptAppendixBSDRModelDescriptionsversion03562008forCabinet0809110.doc - 6 - 

§ A contract management team will be created to ensure quality and value for 
money and police the terms of the contract 

§ Service performance success will be measured by a set of performance 
indicators agreed between the Council and Amey – these may change over 
time by agreement of the controlling board.  FURTHER DETAILS OF 
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS USED TO BE INCLUDED IN FINAL 
REPORT 

§ The council will be responsible for defining and prioritising the performance 
indicators and ensuring that they are in line with its priorities 

§ Successful delivery will be rewarded by 12 month extensions to the contract – 
the current contract will have 5 years to run in September 2008 

§ The foundation staff remaining within the council will define strategy and 
manage the contract  

Strengths and weaknesses 

Strengths 

§ Clear accountability for service delivery 

§ Single, integrated service delivery team  

§ Governance structure that encourages member involvement 

§ Strong relationships with local communities via watchman and area teams 
and dedicated budgets for parish councils 

Weaknesses 

§ Limited incentives for good performance – the contact extension is either 
granted or not, there is no way of giving a reward that is in proportion to the 
level of achievement 

§ The process of tupe-ing staff could be disruptive although Amey has 
significant experience of successful TUPE transfers, over 6000 of their 9000 
staff having transferred from the public sector 

§ Transferring some staff from the council could lead to a loss of knowledge 
that would limit options for delivery in the future 

§ Some staff may not wish to transfer to Amey and may choose to seek 
alternative employment outside of the partnership 

Integrated services model 

The model in action – Gloucestershire Highways 

The integrated services model is based on Gloucestershire County Council’s 
partnership with Atkins. This is in its second year and is considered by both partners 
to be a success. 

A number of highways-related contracts were due for renewal and the county council 
wanted to respond more effectively to changing national and local drivers by 
developing the highways service. The council used a negotiated tender process and 
were looking for a single provider of services, flexibility in contract arrangements and 
an opportunity to have a fresh look at service provision. Its objectives were: 

q To put GCC as a top 5 transport authority in England 

164



SDRPhase2rptAppendixBSDRModelDescriptionsversion03562008forCabinet0809110.doc - 7 - 

q Safer Roads, Better Journeys 

q Serve the people that live and travel in Gloucestershire 

q To provide: 

Ø Customer focussed service delivery 

Ø Service excellence at an affordable price 

Ø Continuous improvement 

Ø Innovation 

Ø Safety for all 

The integrated service brought together people from Halcrow, Ringway, 
Gloucestershire County Council, Gloucester City Council, Atkins and Cheltenham 
Borough Council who are either employed by Atkins or the County Council. 

There are two intriguing aspects to the partnership: an integrated service delivery 
team and an integrated management structure.  

Gloucester Highways has a mixed staff of Atkins and Gloucestershire County Council 
employees. Some jobs are specifically identified as council jobs but, in the main, joint 
teams are encouraged and valued.  

The manager of Gloucestershire Highways manages this joint team and is 
responsible to GCC for performance and to Atkins for profitability.  

The council has recently achieved a 4 star CPA rating and its Environment service 
score has improved from 2 star in 2005 to 4 star and Gloucestershire Highways has 
been an important part of this improvement. 

Key features of the contract are: 

The contract is based on an NEC contract initially let for 5 years with extensions to 7 
and 10, performance a key determinant. The deal features term maintenance work 
and schemes up to value of £500k services delivered at cost. Delivery at cost is 
demonstrated by open book accounting. Profit is only earned through the 
achievement of targets. These are agreed annually and included in the service 
delivery plan. Profit is earned by meeting strategic goals and operational 
performance measures: 

q strategic performance measures include: 

Ø User satisfaction with the network 

Ø User satisfaction with the service 

Ø Reduction in KSIs – people and children 

Ø Hit LTP targets and APR target score 

Ø BVPI scores for road and footway condition 

Ø Deliver Gershon efficiency savings 

q 26 operational performance measures cover: 

Ø Predictability 

165



SDRPhase2rptAppendixBSDRModelDescriptionsversion03562008forCabinet0809110.doc - 8 - 

Ø Serviceability 

Ø Safety 

Ø Sustainability 

Ø Customer Satisfaction 

Ø Culture 

Each performance measure has a payoff curve, which is designed so that achieving 
the required level of performance is stretching. 

There is no penalty for failure except loss of profit. 

Targets can be reviewed and changed to reflect changes in circumstance (e.g. 
responding to major emergencies such as the flooding in 2007). 

There is a pain/gain mechanism with target prices which are updated to reflect any 
proven efficiencies. 

Management arrangements are: 

Single manager for integrated service – three-way contract (council and contractor 
both parties), seconded to council 

q responsible to the contractor for profitability and to the client for performance - 
if the service plan is constructed correctly these objectives should be aligned 

q council head of service 

q member of directorate management team 

q subject to all the requirements of council (e.g. reporting to cabinet/scrutiny) 

q line manages both council and contractor staff (circa 400) 

Service plan the key delivery mechanism for the integrated service and reward 
mechanism for the contractor 

q objectives and targets set by a supervisory board (council cabinet members, 
council director, contractor director), but included in contract for year 1 

q uses council performance management system 

q the construction of the service plan is crucial 

Contract management resource is small - ensuring that the contract terms are being 
followed, that the mechanisms are working and monitoring performance 

This model delivers more efficient services – better services for less – by establishing 
improvement targets for service outcomes and cost. 

Principles underlying the analysis 

This section describes the principles underlying the integrated services model. These 
have been used to develop the analysis of the model’s potential to meet the 
Herefordshire service delivery review objectives. 

166



SDRPhase2rptAppendixBSDRModelDescriptionsversion03562008forCabinet0809110.doc - 9 - 

The features of the model that have been used as assumptions in analysing how it 
meets our objectives are: 

q There will be a management structure that integrates the Contractor’s general 
manager and Council’s service manager roles with all staff reporting to this 
role. Staff would be contracted to both Amey and the council by virtue of their 
original employer or personal choice. 

q The rest of the organisation has been divided into two groups: service 
delivery roles and foundation roles - policy development, strategy, contract 
management and those roles that the council wants or needs to perform itself 

q In Gloucestershire the service only delivers highways and, as Gloucestershire 
is a county council, the range of services within highways is not as wide as in 
Herefordshire.  

q All staff will retain their current employer 

q The interface between the service delivery and foundation organisation will be 
set at the strategic level  

q A small contract management team will be created to ensure quality and 
value for money and police the terms of the contract 

q Services will be delivered at cost 

q Service performance success will be measured by a set of performance 
indicators agreed between the Council and Amey – these may change over 
time by agreement of the controlling board 

q The council will be responsible for defining and prioritising the performance 
indicators and ensuring that they are in line with its priorities; performance 
indicators would have thresholds identifying unacceptable levels of 
performance and exceptional levels of performance 

q Achievement of levels of performance will be rewarded by payment of profit 
and exceptional performance by 12 month extensions to the contract – the 
current contract will have 5 years to run in September 2008 

q The foundation staff within the council will define strategy and manage the 
contract  

Strengths and weaknesses 

Strengths 

q Clear accountability for service delivery 

q Single, integrated service delivery team  

q Governance structure that reflects that within the Council 

q Relationships with local communities and parish councils reflects that of the 
Council 

q Good incentives for performance – in proportion to the level of achievement 

167



SDRPhase2rptAppendixBSDRModelDescriptionsversion03562008forCabinet0809110.doc - 10 - 

q No requirement to tupe staff 

Weaknesses 

q More HR support would be required 

q Integration could be slower than through TUPE 

q Amey performance will depend on mixed teams including council staff 

q Works paid for at cost does not drive efficiencies 

q Achieving cultural change could take longer 

Method 

Improved business as usual 

The improved business as usual model will include: 

§ Those savings identified as part of the service delivery review that do not 
depend on the delivery model 

§ Any savings that can be made as a result of agreed changes to scope 

§ Any other savings that can be made by improved implementation of the 
current arrangements – potentially by implementing bonuses and penalties to 
encourage good behaviour 

§ Service delivery improvements from the ten improvement tasks 

MAC 

A feasible organisational structure has been created. This structure has been 
developed jointly by Herefordshire Council and Amey in consultation with the relevant 
Heads of Service.  

This process has been followed to ensure that the proposed structure is capable of 
delivering the services as now but with an integrated service delivery organisation. 
An appropriate level of contract management has been included in the costing. 

The integrated services model will include savings and service improvements 
identified in the business as usual together with: 

§ Changes is staffing levels identified in the analysis of organisational structure 

§ Improvements expected from the watchman scheme 

§ Reinvestment of any savings above those required by the service delivery 
review 

§ Better alignment of service delivery with service objectives through more 
effective and more flexible performance management 

Integrated Services 

The differences between the MAC model and the integrated services model are: 

§ A mixed staffing model 

§ An integrated management structure 

168



SDRPhase2rptAppendixBSDRModelDescriptionsversion03562008forCabinet0809110.doc - 11 - 

The analysis therefore uses the analysis of the service delivery organisation created 
for the MAC model. To this the following elements have been added: 

§ Additional HR support for the mixed staffing model 

§ Integrated management structure replaces separate Amey and council 
structures 

§ Different contract management structure may be required 

 

 

169



170



Appendix C 
Summary of method used in the estimation of potential savings and staff 
implications of models considered during Phase 2 of Service Delivery 
Review 
 
The likely staff implications of the three model options were developed jointly with Amey based on 
experience in Herefordshire and Bedfordshire, together with an understanding of the Gloucestershire 
Highways.  Consideration was given to the resources required to deliver the same level of service in the 
different models.  Staff implications and likely savings have been assumed to be broadly similar 
between the Managing Agent and Integrated Services model. 
 

Staff implications 
 
Managing Agent / Integrated Services Models 
 
Appropriate functions and associated number of posts were identified from each of the partner 
organisations (Herefordshire Council, Amey Wye Valley, Amey Consulting).  An assessment was made 
of the number of posts that would be required to deliver an integrated approach using the Bedfordshire 
model whilst making adjustments for the differences present within Herefordshire. An allowance was 
made for a number of posts that would be required to support the client contract and partnership 
management arrangements. This process allowed the estimation of the level of reduction in posts that 
could be achieved across the partnership. 
 
Improved Business as Usual 
 
An assessment was made of the areas of service where improved partnership working within the 
current contractual framework could reduce duplication and improve efficiency.  A marginal reduction in 
the number of posts required to deliver the same level of service was identified. 

 
Consequential Financial savings 
 
NOTE:  All staff related savings were calculated based on salary plus on costs at 26.5% of 
salary. 
 
Managing Agent / Integrated Services Model 
 
Three methods of assessing staff savings were used to ensure a more realistic comparison.  Firstly the 
average salary of staff affected from each of the partners was calculated and multiplied by the number 
of staff reduction identified. An allowance was made client management costs.  The second method 
banded existing staff and made a direct comparison between the sum of the median of these bands 
with the sum of the median of the bands of the proposed integrated approach.  This allows any 
variations in grades that might arise from the current to proposed model to be factored in. Thirdly the 
sums of the average bands of proposed functions were compared with the actual current costs. As the 
actual costs are higher (data not available for Amey Consulting) this method returns a saving a higher 
potential saving.  
 
Estimated Potential Savings were identified as a range of £400,000 - £650,000 
 
Improved Business as usual 
 
The potential financial savings were calculated based on existing costs of post within the partnership 
taking into account the current level of costs associated with the use of Agency staff in certain areas. 
 
Estimated potential savings were identified as £200,000 

171



172



Appendix D – Amey Capability Statement 
 
 
 
Amey was founded in 1920 and has been part of Ferrovial since 2003.  From its 
origins as a materials supplier and highways contractor, Amey has evolved to provide 
integrated business and infrastructure services with an impressive PFI and PPP 
capability. We operate in local government, strategic highways, aviation, central 
government, defence, education, and rail markets. Services range from the 
management of large scale transportation infrastructure to the delivery of professional 
and back office services, all of which are underpinned by leading-edge technology and 
a genuine partnering philosophy. 

 
We work with local authorities across the UK, providing a range of infrastructure and 
environment related services that include: delivering and supporting transport 
infrastructure; tailoring and providing solutions to enhance the local environment, and; 
providing and managing property related, education and community facilities. 
We bring extensive experience and transferable skills that Local Authorities can use 
both to help deliver its own corporate and local strategies and to meet the challenges 
of Government policy initiatives. 
 
Working through locally-based teams, we operate at over 100 locations across the UK 
supporting communities by helping to create better, safer and more pleasant 
neighbourhoods through provision of well designed streets, well maintained grounds, 
modern public lighting, integrated highway design, management and maintenance, 
property improvement and maintenance solutions.  The location and customers of our 
partnerships are shown at Appendix 1 
 
We employ approximately 9,000 employees. 
 
Turnover for 2007 was £1.4 billion with profitability at £75 million 
 
We hold a prestigious contract with the Home Office to carry out property services on 
sites supporting the Home Office and Ministry of Justice.  The contract spans five 
years, with a possible two-year extension.  

The contract involves cleaning & housekeeping; mechanical & electrical maintenance; 
grounds maintenance; catering & hospitality; waste management; reception 
management; portering; security; energy management; minor and project works 
management. Amey will carry out the work in London, the South East and Anglia. 

Presentations on our capability to deliver highways, property, grounds and support to 
infrastructure development, have been given to groups of Council staff.   
 
Ability to Deliver Organisational Change 
 
Our approach in Herefordshire would be similar to that we adopt at the 
commencement of any new contract. 
 
We will produce a mobilisation plan based on the information we have gained through 
service delivery, participating in the Service Delivery Review and by discussions with 
client and operational services staff, and deliver that plan using current and transferred 
staff, heavily supported by Amey staff from all relevant functions across the business. 
 
We will expand the current project team based at Thorn and it will remain in place until 
the end of the mobilisation period. Typically this would be 4 to 5 months after the start 
of the new arrangements, but the team would not be withdrawn until we were satisfied 
that it had completed its task.  The role of our team would be to support a smooth 

173



integration, transition to Amey systems and procedures and ensure service delivery.  
Members of the team would cover the following areas: 
 

• Project Management 

• Customer Relations 

• Human Resources 

• Finance  

• Health and Safety 

• Quality and Environment 

• Operational Management 

• Fleet and Plant 

• Performance Management 

• Business Analysis 

• IT 

• Procurement 

• Communications 

• Depots 
 
The roles shown in bold would be the core team, supplemented by the other roles at 
appropriate stages.   
 
The team will be led by an experienced Amey manager, familiar with the services 
being delivered in Herefordshire and with relevant senior level experience in a local 
authority.  The team leader will be accountable for the delivery of the mobilisation but 
also acting as mentor to the transferring staff.  
 
We recognise that mobilisation is a difficult time for transferring staff and we take great 
care to select Amey support staff who are sensitive to their needs and feelings.  
Building effective relationships at an early stage is crucial in ensuring an effective start 
up. 
 
The following is a demonstration of how the integrated approach we propose for 
Herefordshire has delivered improvements in Bedfordshire. 
 
At the start of the Bedfordshire Highways contract Bedfordshire County Council’s CPA 
star rating was 0, the Bedfordshire CC / Amey partnership working was instrumental in 
raising this to a 3 star rating by 2007. This performance was nationally acknowledged 
as ‘one of the fastest improving Authorities in Local Government history’ 
 
Bedfordshire’s Environment Directorate is currently predicting that their individual CPA 
rating for 2008 will be 4 stars.  
 
In the first year of the Contract a survey sent to all parish councils resulted in 57.9% of 
Parish Councils being satisfied with the Bedfordshire Highways services, in 2007 a 
repeat of this survey showed this had risen to 70.9% and in the latest survey this has 
been further improved to 72.4%. This is a very good indicator of performance in an 
area where Bedfordshire CC residents rated Highways as their number one concern in 
a survey undertaken in 2006. 
 
Bedfordshire Highways has developed and enhanced its performance as a ‘One Stop 
Shop’ for highway related matters, recognising the need for service transformation that 
meets the needs of all its valued citizens, businesses and providing a better deal for 
the taxpayer. This has resulted in significant improvements to road conditions across 
Bedfordshire 
 
Bedfordshire Highways were highly commended in the LGC Public and Private 
Partnership Awards 

174



 
In summary; 
 

• Bedfordshire CC is now ranked 9th out of 388 authorities for % PI improved in 
last 3 yrs 

• 86% of PI’s have improved in the last 3 yrs (This is a sustained improvement 
as figures for last year indicate 60% of PI’s improved over the previous year) 

• An efficiency saving of 23% was achieved on first year budgets due to the 
groundbreaking contract with Amey 

• The Department of Transport rated Bedfordshire CC ‘excellent’ in a national 
survey on managing congestion  

• In 2007/08 57km of carriageway was resurfaced with low noise surfacing, this 
brings the total since the start of the contract to 374km. (i.e. over 17.5% of 
Bedfordshire’s roads) 

 

 
View on Deliverability of the Indentified Savings 
 
Integrated Approach 
 
We have worked closely with Council staff to tailor the highways delivery model we 
have successfully implemented in Bedfordshire to the specific characteristics and 
needs of Herefordshire.  In doing so we have been prudent in our assumptions on staff 
savings.  We regard the savings currently identified as a minimum and believe that by 
working co-operatively with the Council further savings can be achieved. 
 
The modest saving indentified for grounds maintenance has been agreed with Council 
staff and is also achievable.   
 
We have been unable to engage constructively with the Council’s property managers 
but believe that the draft structure we have proposed is viable and would deliver the 
identified savings. 
 
Savings other than staff, particularly third party income from insurance claims, have 
been derived by extrapolating from our experiences elsewhere.  Again we have been 
prudent with our assumptions and are confident that they are deliverable. 
 
Improved Business as Usual 
 
The very modest staff savings are deliverable but only with the proviso that the Council 
is able to change its culture from the prevailing “contractual relationship” to one of 
partnership.  We recognise that, as a relic of the Jarvis approach, the behaviour of 
some Amey staff also needs changing.  Our Manager, Mark Thomas, is actively 
working on this with his team. 
 
Transfer of staff 
 
We are firmly convinced that the staffing model with Council staff TUPE transferring to 
Amey is the only approach which will deliver the Council’s objectives of cost savings 
and improvements in service delivery.  The short term avoidance of disturbance to 
staff is outweighed by the other factors. The cultural shift required to operate an 
integrated service will, in our view, be impeded by keeping Council staff under Council 
terms and conditions; if such a shift were easily achievable we would have expected it 
to have been achieved in the last five years.  The potential for equal pay claims is also 
of great concern to us.  
 
Commitment to Working Openly and in Partnership 

175



 
We already give Herefordshire Council full visibility of business plans and performance 
of Amey Wye Valley through the Council’s representation on the Joint Venture Board.  
At an operational level costing information is made available on request.  The difficulty 
AWVL had in providing information from the period under Jarvis ownership has been 
removed with the introduction of the SAP system earlier this year. 
 
We have extensive experience of operating contracts using Target Costs, Gain/Pain 
and Sharing and Open Book Accounting and are committed to giving total visibility to 
the Council of all our operations in Herefordshire i.e. including Amey Consulting 
(formerly Owen Williams). 
 
Target costs at the start of a scheme or a project are developed using a number of 
routes including: 

• An agreed schedule of rates 

• An agreed method of measurement 

• A detailed Bill of Quantities 

• A variation mechanism 
 
Target costs will be agreed between the parties prior to the commencement of the 
works. 
We employ a number of methods to ensure that the prices that are used to derive the 
target cost are sustainable and offer best value for the Council. Methods employed 
include: 
Benchmarking against other contracts 
Checks against managed works contracts 
Checks against pricing books 
Comparisons against previous similar schemes 
Our supply chain quotes will be assessed, in accordance with our existing integrated 
management system (IMS) procedures, on the best combination of quality, capability, 
price and resources. 
 
Our central system for accounting and management, SAP, supports works 
management and budgetary control. SAP is used to capture all costs and allocate 
them to individual works orders. The SAP works order cost details will be available to 
the Council on an Open Book arrangement so that there is full visibility of costs. This 
open book approach is vital for the efficient working of a Target Cost approach. 
 
Amey operates a number of Gain/Pain and sharing arrangements, such arrangements 
encourage and incentives both parties to reduce costs throughout the process from 
identification of a scheme through to completion. Sharing mechanism can be linked to 
actual time or cost parameters which are all monitored and available for interrogation 
at any time by both parties through the open book approach. 
 
We have experience of working within a wide range of gain/pain arrangements all of 
which have benefits for both parties. In general terms we find that that the most 
suitable arrangements are one where there is a stepped increase to the gain and pain 
thresholds. 
 
We will use our group wide SAP system for cost capture and reporting. Costs will be 
allocated on an individual works order bases including time charges, subcontractor 
costs and materials. The SAP cost data will be made available to the Council as and 
when requested so that progress and actual costs can be monitored at any time. Our 
SAP costing system allows for a full drill down to individual time sheets and invoices 
for materials and subcontractors to allow full visibility. 
 

176



Costs on individual schemes are updated on a daily basis which means that individual 
schemes are monitored regularly against the agreed target price. This process allows 
for the site commercial and operational team to monitor closely the actual expenditure 
on the Projects. The contract management team will then be able to identify any 
significant budgeted cost variations are identified and mitigation measures to be put in 
place. Our central single point cost capture and reporting mechanism allows for a rapid 
and timely review of the progress of each Project. 
 
Company Aims, Policies etc 
 
Amey seeks to be the provider of choice for integrated business and infrastructure 
services to the public sector 
 
At Amey we're very proud of the things we do, and we're equally proud of the way in 
which we do them; in this respect we are guided by our values. 
 
These values are not a collection of fashionable phrases from management textbooks 
and they're not a set of 'orders' cascaded down from our senior management. They 
are words drawn directly from hundreds of hours of interviews, surveys, and 
conversations with Amey people about what they think, feel and believe about our 
company. 

These are the things we believe in. This is how we do things. 

 

 
 
Amey operates a comprehensive set of policies which largely mirror those of 
Herefordshire Council.  Attached as an example, as Appendix 2 is our policy on 
Equality and Diversity.  All our policies are available should Herefordshire Council wish 
to see them. 
 

 

177



178



Service Delivery Review Phase 2 Report Appendix D – Amey Capability Statement 

Appendix 1 

 

 

 

Central Government 

Our Successful Partnerships 

Local Government 

Strategic Highways Rail 

179



180



AMEY plc CORPORATE POLICY 

Title: Equality and Diversity Policy 

 

Ref.: PLC-EXEC-008 Rev: 4.0 Date: June 2006 

 

 

 

© Amey plc  Page 1 of 4 
 

 
Service Delivery Review Phase 2 Report Appendix D – Amey Capability Statement Appendix 2

181



AMEY plc CORPORATE POLICY 

Title: Equality and Diversity Policy 

 

Ref.: PLC-EXEC-008 Rev: 4.0 Date: June 2006 

 

 

 

© Amey plc  Page 2 of 4 
 

 
 
 

UNCONTROLLED IF COPIED or PRINTED 
Amey plc and its associated companies are 

not liable for the contents of this document. 

 
 
 

This document is applicable throughout 
Amey plc. 

 
 
 
 

T I T L E 
 
 

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY POLICY 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

04 June 2006 This Policy has replaced Equal Opportunities 
with a major rewrite 

A. Springett G. Duggan 

03 July 2005 Annual Review  G. Duggan M. Ewell 

02 Sept. 2003 Annual Review.  Changed CEO R. Wells M. Ewell 

1 Sept. 2000 Issued for Use J Buchanan BL Staples 

0 May 2000 Drafted.    

Rev. Date Amendment Approved 
By: 

Authorised 
By: 

182



AMEY plc CORPORATE POLICY 

Title: Equality and Diversity Policy 

 

Ref.: PLC-EXEC-008 Rev: 4.0 Date: June 2006 

 

 

 

© Amey plc  Page 3 of 4 
 

Principle 
 
Amey plc is committed to being a fair and inclusive employer which bases all employment decisions 
solely on merit. We will not tolerate unlawful discrimination against an individual on the basis of their 
gender, race, nationality, age, disability, religion or belief, sexual orientation, gender reassignment 
or any other irrelevant factor. 
 
We value all differences within the workplace and consider both visible and non-visible differences 
to be key in developing an innovative and creative working environment. We recognise the benefits 
that a diverse workforce can bring in understanding the needs of a diverse customer and client 
base. 
 
We are committed to complying with relevant employment legislation and codes of practice as a 
minimum benchmark. Wherever possible we strive to exceed legislative requirements by developing 
policies and procedures that help us to achieve our aim of being an Employer of Choice.  
 
 
It is the express policy of Amey plc that: 

 

• All employment related decisions will be fair and transparent, based solely on merit and 
ability to meet the requirements of the job. This applies to external recruitment, internal 
selection and promotion, performance appraisal and training.  

 

• Data relating to the composition of the workforce will be updated regularly to ensure that   all 
management information is accurate. 

 

• We will create a working environment where all employees are valued and respected for 
their unique contribution to the business and are not subject to inappropriate behaviour.  

 

• Immediate action will be taken against any employee, contractor, supplier or agency worker 
who does not comply with this policy and who does not behave in a way that promotes 
equality and diversity. 

 
Supporting Actions 
 
Recruitment and Selection: 
 

• Advertisement of vacancies will aim to be inclusive of all potential applicants by using a 
variety of media. 

• All job descriptions and selection processes will be based solely on skills and attributes that 
are relevant to the role. 

• All staff involved in selection processes will undergo training in the principles of fair selection. 
 
Employment: 
 

• Terms and conditions of employment and provision of benefits will not unfairly disadvantage 
any particular groups.   

• Access to training, development and promotion opportunities will be equal for all and 
selection for these will be based solely on merit. 

 
 
 

183



AMEY plc CORPORATE POLICY 

Title: Equality and Diversity Policy 

 

Ref.: PLC-EXEC-008 Rev: 4.0 Date: June 2006 

 

 

 

© Amey plc  Page 4 of 4 
 

Procurement: 
 

• We consider the principles of equality and diversity to be a mainstream business issue and 
as a consequence will request that all suppliers/contractors demonstrate their commitment to 
the policy area when transacting with Amey.   

 
Seven supporting policies sit beneath Amey’s overarching Equality and Diversity Policy. These 
follow existing/forthcoming legislation and are designed to protect employees from discrimination on 
the basis of: 
 

• Race 

• Gender 

• Disability 

• Religion/Belief 

• Sexual Orientation 

• Age 

•  Gender Re-assignment 
 
We will not tolerate discrimination, harassment, or victimisation on the grounds of any of these issues. 
 
Relevant Definitions 
 
Direct discrimination: Less favourable treatment on the grounds of race, gender, disability, 
religion/belief, sexual orientation, age or gender reassignment. 
 
Indirect discrimination: An apparently neutral condition that is applied equally to everyone but has a 
detrimental impact on a particular group. 
 
Harassment and bullying: Any unwanted behaviour that has the effect of violating dignity or creating 
an intimidating, hostile, degrading, humiliating, or offensive environment. This includes jokes or banter 
and extends to work related environments such as work social events. 
 
Victimisation: Unfavourable treatment specifically as a result of the individual making a claim or 
complaint of discrimination.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Mel Ewell 
Chief Executive 

184



 

 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Rob Reid, Schools Planning & Access Manager 
 on Tel: (01432) 260920 

MinsterCollege0.doc  

MINSTER COLLEGE BUILDING SCHOOLS FOR THE FUTURE 
ONE SCHOOL PATHFINDER – AWARD OF CONTRACT 

PORTFOLIO RESPONSIBILITY: CHILDREN’S SERVICES 
 
CABINET  11 SEPTEMBER 2008  

 

Wards Affected 

Leominster South 
Leominster North 
Golden Cross with Weobley 
Hampton Court 
Upton 

 

Purpose 

To receive and approve the recommendation of the Building Schools for the Future Project 
Board to award the design and build contract for the above scheme to Stepnell Limited.  
  

Key Decision 

This is a Key Decision because it is likely to be significant in terms of its effect on 
communities living or working in Herefordshire in an area comprising of one or more wards. 

It was included in the Forward Plan  

Recommendation 

THAT the recommendation of the Building Schools for the Future (BSF) Project Board, 
to award the design and build contract, for the Minster College Building Schools for 
the Future One School Pathfinder scheme, to Stepnell Limited, is approved.  

Reasons 

The award of the contract will allow the authority to deliver The Minster BSF One School 
Pathfinder design and build project.   

Considerations 

Tender Evaluation: 

1. To deliver this Building Schools for the Future, One School Pathfinder project, the 
local authority opted to procure the new building through a two stage selective 
tendering process.  The authority adopted the National Joint Consultative Committee 
for Building (NJCC) Code of Procedure for Design and Build Contracts and the NJCC 
code of Procedure for Two Stage Selective Tendering. 

2. Tenders were submitted by three contractors on 18th April 2008.  They were Stepnell 
Ltd., Morgan Ashurst plc and Mansell Construction Services Ltd.  Morgan Ashurst plc 

AGENDA ITEM 6

185



returned a compliant and a non-compliant bid. 

3. All of the Bids were disseminated to stakeholders for comment, evaluation and 
information including the Project Board, the Evaluation Team, the Project Team, 
Minster College students and staff.  Membership of these groups is listed at the end 
of this paper.  

 
4. A Presentation Day was held on the 6th May 2008 to give all three contractors an 

opportunity to present their submissions to the School Governors and the Local 
Authority. All three contractors took advantage to this opportunity.  

5. On 8th May 2008 the Evaluation Team met to discuss and evaluate the submissions 
and to agree on the recommendation for the Preferred Bidder for the Minster College 
BSF OSP.  The evaluation criteria are shown at Appendix 1.  The evaluation reports 
are shown at Appendix 2. 

6. Using notes and comments received from a wide range of sources, particularly those 
who had attended the Presentation Day, the Evaluation Team were aware that no 
one Submission contained the definitive solution to the required new school.   

7. Through the Two Stage Design and Build process the second stage design period 
was used to correct and perfect the most advantageous submission to provide the 
right development for the Minster College. 

8. Of the three bids, the Morgan Ashurst bids, both compliant and non-compliant were 
rejected, firstly because of cost and secondly due to insufficient educational design in 
terms of room associations, circulation suitability and lack of suitable landscape 
proposals. 

9. Of the other two bids, Stepnell was within budget, but scored lower on their 
educational suitability whilst Mansell’s bid was over budget but scored higher on their 
educational suitability. 

 
10. The Evaluation Team put forward a proposal to the Project Board that Stepnell 

Limited be appointed as the preferred contractor.  This was because the Stepnell bid 
had outscored Mansell on the Evaluation Matrix and because the second design 
stage offered the opportunity to improve the design of the Stepnell submission. 

11. This proposal was accepted by the Project Board at its meeting on 16th May, with the 
proviso that Stepnell Ltd would improve their design and room layout to the requisite 
educational standard, without exceeding the overall budget for the project, within the 
second design stage, to the satisfaction of the Headteacher and the Project Manager. 
If it should become apparent that such improvement within budget was not going to 
be possible, then the Project Manager was to submit a proposal to the Project Board 
that negotiations should revert to Mansell and that Stepnell be removed as the 
Preferred Bidder. 

12. The Project Board therefore agreed that Mansell Construction Services Ltd. should be 
retained as the Reserve Bidder should it not prove possible for Stepnell to meet the 
required educational standard and cost constraints. Negotiations with Mansell 
Construction would then begin in order to improve the few educational suitability 
issues that would be required on their design and to negotiate to reduce the cost to 
within the Authority’s budget. 

13. On 27th June 2008, the Cabinet Members for Children’s Services and Educational 
Improvement & ICT took a key decision to appoint Stepnell Ltd as the preferred 
contractor so that the Local Authority could enter into contractual negotiations with the 
company and seek the required improvement to the educational suitability of their 
design during the second design stage.  

186



14. Stepnell Ltd has revised its design to the satisfaction of the Headteacher and Project 
Manager.  On 1st July 2008, the revised design was submitted to the Commission for 
Architecture and the Built Environment (CABE).  CABE is a consultee on design.  The 
design has achieved a CABE score of 29.3.  This is very close to the required score 
of 30, so CABE is content that the design is going in the right direction and that any 
weaknesses can be resolved without altering the fundamentals of the design.  
CABE’s comments have been passed to Stepnell Ltd.  

15. The school will be built to a high sustainable standard.  It will meet the British 
Research Establishment Environmental Assessment Method (BREEAM) “Very Good” 
rating.  It will incorporate a sedum roof, a wind turbine and a sophisticated building 
management system to ensure energy efficiency.     

16. Sport England is a statutory consultee and has registered with the local authority that 
it has no objections to the design.  

17. The Building Schools for the Future Project Board has considered the revised design 
and the comments of the Headteacher, Project Manager, CABE and Sport England.   

18. The Project Board recommendation to Cabinet is that Stepnell Ltd be awarded the 
design and build contract for the Minster College Building Schools for the Future One 
School Pathfinder.   

19. A planning application has been submitted and will be considered by the Planning 
Committee on 28th September 2008.  Site set-up is anticipated for October 2008, with 
work to start on site in November 2008.  The scheme is due for completion in 
December 2010.   

Legal Implications 

By adopting the National Joint Consultative Committee for Building (NJCC) Code of 
Procedure for Design and Build Contracts and the NJCC code of Procedure for Two Stage 
Selective Tendering, the authority’s procurement procedure has been robust and fully 
compliant with legal requirements.   

Financial Implications 

The confirmed funding for this scheme, through the Department for Children Schools and 
Families Building Schools for the Future programme, is £20,642,037. 

The price tendered by Stepnell Limited is within the above DCSF funding limit available to 
the local authority. 

The revised design has not resulted in any change to the tendered price and the 
Headteacher is now satisfied that the revised design’s educational suitability is more than 
sufficient. 

Risk Management 

The Project Board receives regular risk assessment reports. The latest is attached as 
Appendix 3 with actions to mitigate risk. 

Alternative Options 

It is in the Council’s discretion not to proceed with the scheme. However, this would leave the 
College in very poor accommodation, with high maintenance and running costs and in a poor 
position to improve performance. Given the recent discussion over pupil numbers and school 
capacity, a smaller school could be built. This would require some redesign work and delay 
the scheme, risking further inflation on building costs. The Whitecross High School 

187



experience does provide evidence that new buildings do attract more students. The 
additional housing allocated under the current UDP to 2025 should also be borne in mind. 

At this stage there are no reasons to make any changes to the project. 

Consultees 

Minster College students 
Minster College staff 
Minster College governors 
 
Project Board 
Sonia Rees  - Director of Resources 
Sharon Menghini - Director of Children’s Services 
Malcolm MacAskill - Head of Asset Management and Property Services 
Richard North  - Headteacher – The Minster College 
 
Evaluation Team 
Richard East  - Project Manager 
Richard North  - Headteacher – The Minster College 
Wendy Boulter - General Inspector Secondary 
Josie Smith  - Accountant (Capital and VAT Services) 
Tony Featherstone - Parks, Countryside and Leisure Development Manager 
 
Other Officers 
Andrew Banks  - Principal Planning Officer 
Colin Birks  - Property Services Manager 
Bryan Williams - Lead Surveyor 
Catherine Taylor - Architect 
Karen Knight  - Manager of Accommodation and Forward Planning 
Rob Reid  - School Planning and Access Manager 
Zita Holmes  - Technical Project Manager – IT Services 
 
School: 
Brigadier Peter Jones  - School Governor 
Felicity Norman  - School Governor 
Bob Miles   - School Governor 
Dave Finch   - School Governor 
Richard North   - Headteacher – The Minster College to 31st August 2008  
 
Authority: 
Malcolm MacAskill  - Head of Asset Management and Property Services 
Colin Birks   - Property Services Manager 
Mark Tansley   - Northern Team Leader – Planning Services 
Andrew Banks   - Principal Planning Officer 
Bryan Williams  - Lead Surveyor 
Josie Smith   - Accountant (Capital and VAT Services) 
Wendy Boulter  - General Inspector Secondary 
Tony Featherstone  - Parks, Countryside and Leisure Development Manager 
Rob Reid   - School Planning and Access Manager 
Catherine Taylor  - Architect 
Richard East   - Project Manager 
 
NB:  Broader community consultation will take place during the design and planning 

application stages.  In the meantime, Minster College has also hosted a display of the 
project in its foyer and invited parents, Leominster Town Council and the wider 
community to view the display.     

 

Appendices 

188



 

Appendix 1 – Tender Evaluation Criteria 

Appendix 2 – Tender Evaluation Reports 

Appendix 3 – Project Board Risk Assessment Report 

Background Papers 

Cabinet Report – 27
th
 March 

Lead Cabinet Members decision notice – 27
th
 June 2008  

 

 

189



190



Appendix 1 

 

THE MINSTER COLLEGE BSF OSP 

TENDER EVALUATION CRITERIA 

14/12/2007 

Evaluation Team 

a: The Team will be comprised of 5 members. These being: 

The Headteacher;: 

An LEA Representative; 

A Financial Representative; 

A Design Representative; and 

A Technical Representative. 

b: All the above will be the “voice” for other stakeholders to feed back on 
proposals. Thus: 

The Headteacher: Representing Students, Staff and Governors; 

An LEA Representative: Representing all Authority Education input; 

A Financial Representative: To check financial information; 

A Design Representative: Representing DQI and Planners; 

A Technical Representative; Representing IT Services and Property 
Services Maintenance input.  

Evaluation Matters 

a: The items identified for evaluation can be broadly divided into: 

 1: Cost: 

  Tender total within Budget; 

Value for money;  

Detail and reasonableness of values input on Contract Sum 
Analysis (CSA); 

General balance overall and elemental cost checks of CSA. 

191



 

2: Design: 

Building aesthetics, (wow factor) and threshold recognition. 

Relationship to environment, complimentary to site; 

Use of space; 

Community inclusion; 

Educational acceptability – form and function – association of 
rooms; 

Circulation suitability; 

Outdoor education areas suitable; 

Employer’s Requirements fully met – number and size of rooms 
– capacity and size; 

Flexibility of Design. 

 

3: Technical: 

 Quality and robustness of the specification – life cycle and life 
span; 

 Maintenance implications of specification and design; 

 IT proposals sufficiency and in accordance with specification; 

Employer’s Requirements fully met – all technical requirements 
and statutory and recommendatory requirements complied with; 

Green and sustainable proposals – energy and water usage 
predictions; 

Service availability and suitability. 

4: Education: 

An over-arching assessment that all of the above proposals are 
acceptable, suitable and usable for the operation of the School 
and Education on the site in general and are positively 
promoting the building as an education establishment and 
enhancing the education of the students as well as enabling 
staff to carry our their functions better and easier, as well as 
providing a community focal point for the site. 

192



  
  

  
 

 
 

A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 2
 

 

  
  

  
 

 
 

 
 

  
  

  
 

 
 

 
 

  
T
H
E
 M
IN
S
T
E
R
 T
E
N
D
E
R
 E
V
A
L
U
A
T
IO
N
 M
A
T
R
IX
 

  
  

  
  

0
8

/0
5

/2
0

0
8

 
  

  
  

  
C

O
S

T
 

D
E

S
IG

N
 

T
E

C
H

N
IC

A
L

 
E

D
U

C
A

T
IO

N
 

  

  
C
O
N
T
R
A
C
T
O
R
 

R
e
f 
N
r:
 

C
1

 
D

1
 

T
1

 
E

1
 

T
O
T
A
L
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
M

a
n

s
e

ll 
C

o
n

s
tr

u
c

ti
o

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 L

td
. 

M
C

B
S

F
-1

A
 

2
0

 
8

5
 

4
2

 
1

8
 

1
6
5
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
M

o
rg

a
n

 A
s

h
u

rs
t 

p
lc

 
M

C
B

S
F

-2
A

 
1

0
 

5
7

 
3

9
 

1
0

 
1
1
6
 

  
  

M
C

B
S

F
-2

B
 

1
0

 
6

3
 

4
0

 
1

4
 

1
2
7
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
S

te
p

n
e

ll 
L

td
. 

M
C

B
S

F
-3

A
 

4
0

 
7

6
 

4
9

 
9

 
1
7
4
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 C
o
n
tr
a
c
to
r 
to
 S
e
c
o
n
d
 P
h
a
s
e
 D
+
B
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

 
 

 
  

P
R
E
F
E
R
R
E
D
 

S
te

p
n

e
ll 

L
td

. 
1
7
4
 

 
 

 
 

  

  
  

  
 

 
 

 
  

R
E
S
E
R
V
E
 

M
a

n
s

e
ll 

C
o

n
s

tr
u

c
ti

o
n

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

 L
td

. 
1
6
5
 

 
 

 
 

  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

 
 

 
 

  
M
a
x
im
u
m
 P
o
s
s
ib
le
 S
c
o
re
  

2
1
0
 

 
 

 
 

 

  
  

  
 

 
 

 
 

 

193



194



Appendix 3 

 

 

The Minster College BSF OSP Risk Register 

22/08/08 

 

1 No Tender returned within Cost Parameters 

Probability:  Extinguished  

Impact: Extinguished 

Concerns: 

Concern about whether a Tender will be received that is within the cost parameters. 

Resolution: 

One Tender returned within Budget. Now down to negotiations within the 2nd stage 
D+B period to negotiate an acceptable outcome with the Preferred Bidder based on 
how well the Tenderers design proposal meets the Brief.  

 

2 No Tender meets brief 

Probability:  Extinguished 

Impact: Extinguished 

Concerns: 

Concern about whether any Tender will be received that meets the brief and is 
acceptable in design terms. 

Resolution: 

It was always likely that Tenders would be received back which did not meet the brief 
in some regard or another. However, with a 2 stage D+B we can now negotiate an 
acceptable outcome with the preferred Tenderer based on how well the Tenderers 
design proposal meets the Brief and how well it sits within the budget. The Brief 
should also be accurate and achievable in the first instance. 

 

 

195



3 Delay in Tender date 

Probability: Extinguished 

Impact: Extinguished 

Concerns: 

The Tender may not go out to the Tenderers as programmed and that this will delay 
the completion of the project. 

Resolution: 

The Tender went out on the 14th December 2007. This risk is now extinguished. 

 

4 The new Minster not occupied by July 2010 

Preferred Bidder   

Probability: Low   

Impact: Medium.  

Concerns: 

Concern about whether the current Project Programme will produce School opening 
date early July 2010. 

Resolution: 

The revised programme for the project currently shows that the new Minster College 
will be open at the start of the Summer Holidays 2010, (July 2010). This enables the 
existing school buildings to be demolished during the Summer holiday period when 
the site is empty. A delay beyond this date would mean that the next available period 
for demolition would be the Christmas holidays 2010 with all the associated 
contractual problems and additional costs, (contract, security and operational) 
involved. The successful Contractor has confirmed the July 2010 date is achievable. 
However, any delay in approvals from Cabinet could jeopardize this by delaying the 
Contract completion, the Start on Site and by, potentially, increasing costs. The 
current programme has sufficient leeway within the Construction period to 
accommodate some programme slippage, but not if there is a deferment in the 
political will to procure the School. [See also Risk Nr. 8.] 

 

 

196



5 Minster Numbers remain at 700 with small 6th Form 

Probability: Medium. 

Impact: Medium. 

Concerns: 

Concern about whether having built a new Minster college for 900 pupils and a 120 
6th Form numbers at the school continue as at present. 

Resolution: 

Having secured funding to a 900 pupils school with 120 place 6th form there is no 
financial risk to the project. The risk remains with the school and the Authority in that 
changing demographics or political decisions may lead to this situation and this will 
then result in higher revenue costs than would have been expected in having to 
maintain, service and run a School, which is too big for the numbers of pupils in it. 

It may be, however, that spare capacity can be used by other groups or community 
organisations. We await the outcome of Schools review for the area. 

 

 

6 Planning called in for Review (3 months delay) 

Probability: Low 

Impact: Medium 

Concerns: 

Concern about whether the Planning Permission could be called in for Judicial 
Review should objections be made to it. 

Resolution: 

This could happen if objectors within the consultation period cannot be satisfied. If an 
official objection is made there is a 3 month window for the scheme to be called in 
and it would remain the Authority’s risk if building were to start prior to this period 
expiring. The Full Planning Application has now been made and has been registered 
as valid. Sport England have written to confirm that they will not be making an 
objection. Full consultation with all interested parties, however, has undoubtedly 
reduced the risk of this happening by keeping people informed and dealing with their 
objections early. 

 

197



 

7 Asbestos level 3 survey results delay demolition of 
Minster 

Probability: Medium 

Impact: Medium 

Concerns: 

There is a risk that because the Level 3 Asbestos Survey cannot happen until the 
Minster has decanted into the new buildings that either the level of Asbestos found 
exceeds the Provisional sum allowed for it’s removal or the scale of the problem 
delays the completion date of the project. 

Resolution: 

The Provisional Sum of £150,000 was allowed for this work within the Tender. The 
Level 3 Survey of the three storey teaching block revealed no reportable Asbestos 
present. This cannot be taken as an indicator for the rest of the Buildings but the 
£150,000 is still intact for this work  

Any delay to the completion of the works will also have a financial effect but in terms 
of the DCSF timetable for completion the new School will already be open and 
should not cause a funding problem. 

 

 

8 Unable to achieve acceptable agreement with selected 
contractor 

Probability: Low 

Impact: Medium 

Concerns: 

Risk that having chosen a preferred Contractor at the end of the first Tender period 
that no agreement can be reached during the second tender period on the contract 
detail. 

Resolution: 

This would result in time delay, however, and this risk can be minimised by having 
robust selection procedures and criteria in place at the end of the first Tender period. 
Liaison to date would indicate that this is no longer a risk to the Contract 

198



9 Existing services insufficient capacity 

Preferred Bidder    

Probability: Low     

Impact: Medium   

Concerns: 

Concern about whether the existing services on site are of sufficient capacity to allow 
the testing and commissioning of the new Minster College buildings whilst the 
existing buildings are still in use. 

Resolution: 

The Recommended Preferred Bidder has allowed for all necessary Service upgrades 
within their Tender. 

 

10 ICT Passive and Active Works and FF&E procurement 
late or insufficient 

Probability: Medium 

Impact: High 

Concerns: 

Concern about the integration of ICT and FF+E into the building fabric. Suitability of 
ducts provided for ICT cables, positioning of sockets and outlets for furniture 
provided. Furniture being the wrong shape or size for the rooms allocated to certain 
specialist subjects, etc. 

Also concern about the uncertainty of Herefordshire Council’s IT Services 
involvement in the project and in what capacity. 

The integration of these elements of the work is a concern in terms of who will 
undertake these works and who will be responsible for ensuring that they are 
sufficient and complaint and also how will these works relate to the main contract in 
terms of attendance, builders work in connection, (holes in walls, plinths, fixings, etc.) 
and storage etc. 

Resolution: 

The Successful Contractor has raised this point and are concerned about the co-
ordination and integration of the ICT and FF+E within the building design. 

Part of the risk has been reduced by instructing the Contractor to allow for Profit and 
attendance on these areas of work within their Contractors Proposals. 

The ICT passive infrastructure is included within the main Contract work and the 
specification for this has been included within the Contract documents. In this case it 
is intended that IT Services will undertake a clerk of work/supervisor role to ensure 

199



sufficiency of the specification and during construction the compliance of the works 
with the specification and with Herefordshire Council existing IT systems and 
networks 

The FF+E work, (as agreed by the Project Board at their meeting of 16th May 2008), 
has been added back into the main contract as a Provisional Sum to allow suitable 
co-ordination with the design process to take place. This element of risk has now 
been passed to the Contractor who will establish the Schools requirements and 
procure the necessary furniture and equipment for the new School. 

The ICT Active Hardware and Software works are intended to be carried out by IT 
Services under existing procurement contracts. 

 

11 Health and Safety implications of building on existing 
school site 

 

Probability: Medium 

Impact: High 

 

CONCERNS 

Activities during the Construction process, deliveries, craneage, etc. create dangers 
on site for staff and pupils. 

The School will require a safe passage to playing fields during the construction 
period. 

Noise during the school day is also a potential problem especially during exam times. 

Staff and student allergies etc. 

 

RESOLUTION 

The Authority Brief includes details on specific Health and Safety concerns identified 
prior to the Contract being let and any specific requirements as to safe routes and 
noise are included here. 

Other matters are bound to raise themselves during the Construction period and 
these will need to be resolved in conjunction with the successful contractor in a 
“partnership” relationship and as part of the ongoing CDM requirements. 

200



 

12 Security and Vandalism during construction phase 

Probability: High 

Impact: Medium 

Concerns: 

This is obviously a real concern for the contractor and Authority. The school already 
attracts its fair share of vandalism and with the allure of a building site this can only 
be expected to get worse. 

Resolution: 

During school time it is to be hoped that this will not be such a problem and the 
Contractor will take precautions and erect a suitable security fence and or boarding 
to prevent access to the site. 

Out of school hours it may be necessary for the contractor to provide full time 
security on the site. The co-operation of the Police will also be essential. 

 

 

13 Detrimental effect on education of existing students 
during construction 

Probability: Medium 

Impact: Medium 

Concerns: 

There is a real risk that the education of the pupils currently at the Minster will suffer 
as a result of the Construction process. 

Not only is having a building site so close a distraction in terms of seeing what is 
going on, there is also the noise and, in certain weather conditions, the dust, which 
can cause distractions. 

There is also the disruption caused by the decanting and the uncertainty caused by 
the loss of familiarity with the old School buildings. 

Resolution: 

The erection of a suitable boarded fence between the site and the school would block 
the view for ground floor classrooms but not for first and second floor classrooms. 

Some noisy building processes can be scheduled to be undertaken out of school 
hours and the site can be watered during hot, dry weather, although this can be 
frowned upon as a waste of water by some. 

201



Once again a good relationship/partnership with the Contractor will be key to 
reducing this risk. 

However, the construction process may also provide a benefit to the teaching of 
some subjects. 

Make Exam timetables and locations available to the Contractor. 

 

 

14 Public Rights of Way 

Probability: Low 

Impact:  High 

Concerns: 

If the Public Rights of Way around and over the site remain open during the 
construction phase, there is a risk of trespass onto the site by unauthorised persons 
and the inherent Health and Safety risk to third parties of death or injury. 

Resolution: 

As part of the works the Public Rights of Way will be temporarily closed during the 
construction phase will also be undertaken and is part of the Planning Application. 

The Contractor’s security arrangements for the site should also prevent this being a 
problem. 

 

 

15 Access to new buildings during demolition and 
completion of external works 

Probability: Low 

Impact: High 

Concerns: 

There is a concern that accessing the new buildings following the decanting process 
will give rise to a Health and Safety risk. 

Resolution: 

The demolition work is now scheduled to take place during the Summer holiday 
period in 2010. There may still be a limited requirement for access to the new 
building during the demolition phase but this will be minimal due to the timing of the 
works and can be accommodated by liaison with the Contractor. 

202



16 Objections to using Castlefields as delivery route 

Probability: Medium  

Impact: High 

Concerns: 

The current proposal that the Castlefields entrance onto the site is used for 
construction traffic might raise objection from residents. 

Resolution: 

The Planners and Highways departments do not consider this as a problem as it is 
only for a limited period of time. 

It can also be dealt with sympathetically by the Contractor under their Considerate 
Constructors Scheme. 

Deliveries in any event will be timed to arrive outside drop off and pick up times for 
the schools and will need to be properly managed by the contractor on site as well. 

 

 

17 Lack of HC resources delays scheme 

Probability: Medium 

Impact: High 

Concerns: 

That there are insufficient personnel with the necessary specialisms and experience 
to procure the contract in a timely manner. The risk is that if it becomes apparent that 
members of the current team become overloaded with work or leave the Authority for 
whatever reason during the contract there will be a delay in engaging a replacement, 
which will have a knock on effect on the contract. 

Resolution: 

This has already happened with the sad death of Jed Bayley and the inclusion into 
the development programme of the Wyebridge Academy which are likely to stretch 
technical support to the maximum. 

Any further personnel shortages can be resolved by ensuring that there is a quick 
response to identified departures and slippages by employing consultants to fill the 
gap. 

203



18 Authority prohibits use of Contractors listed by OFT for 
anti-competitive tendering behaviour. 

Probability: Low 

Impact: High 

Concerns: 

That the Authority may exclude Contractors listed on the OFT “cover pricing” list from 
Tendering or from entering into Contracts with the Authority. 

Resolution: 

The OFT list contained 112 named Contractors, mostly for cover pricing. Only 9 Nr of 
those named were accused of price colluding and for having gained financial 
advantage by doing so in Tendering activities. 

Stepnell’s Head Company were named due to their association with George Law of 
Kidderminster who they also own. The accusations against Stepnell’s Head 
Company is for cover pricing. 

Unfortunately Mansell have also been identified in the Construction press as one of 
the nine who have benefitted financially from collusion. 

All the companies named have a period of time to respond to the accusations made 
by the OFT and have not yet been found to be guilty. But should the Authority be 
minded to strike these companies from our Tender lists then potentially we would 
have to go out to Tender again with different Contractors. 

No further information on these accusations has yet been forthcoming since the 
Project Board Meeting on 16th May 2008. 

 

204



 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Nick Webster, Economic Regeneration Manager on (01432) 260601 

 

LAND AT FARADAY ROAD, HEREFORD  

PORTFOLIO RESPONSIBILITY: ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND  

COMMUNITY SERVICES 

CABINET 11 SEPTEMBER 2008 

 

Wards Affected 

Three Elms Ward 

Purpose 

To seek approval for preparatory steps to be taken to acquire by agreement or make a 
potential compulsory purchase order for land at Faraday Road, Hereford, which is shown 

outlined in red on Appendix 1 (the "Land").  The Land is allocated for employment use at 
policy HE5 of the adopted UDP, and the Land is also needed for the relocation of 
businesses from within the ESG area as part of the wider redevelopment of the ESG area.  

A further report to progress to acquire by agreement or to make any compulsory purchase 
order will be required. 

 

Key Decision  

This is not a key decision.  

Recommendation 

THAT: Cabinet 

a) Authorises negotiations with the owners of all interests in the land at 

Faraday Road in an attempt to acquire the land by agreement; 

b) Agrees that the Council will in principle consider using its powers of 

compulsory purchase to promote an Order for the compulsory purchase of 

the Land and authorises preparatory steps to be taken as required in 

tandem with negotiations to acquire by agreement; and 

c) Notes that if the Land cannot be acquired by agreement, a further report 

confirming the financial implications and options available to the Council, 

and recommending a preferred course of action, will be prepared for 

Cabinet.   

Reasons 

During the redevelopment of the area known as the Edgar Street Grid the Council will seek 
to relocate existing businesses located within development sites to new land and premises 
within Hereford. The majority of these businesses would wish to remain within the 
boundaries of Hereford City to the north of the river Wye. 

Consequently there is a need to secure suitable employment sites within the area of 

AGENDA ITEM 7

205



Hereford to the north of the river Wye. Although a number of vacant units are currently 
available on the market, the location, quality, planning use, and general suitability for 
relocated businesses is mixed and the units are scattered throughout the northern part of 
the City. 

Faraday Road is allocated as employment land within the current UDP, and if acquired 
would provide a strategic site on which a range of new units for employment use could be 
constructed to meet the needs of relocated businesses from the ESG area, in a location 
close to the existing ESG site. Faraday Road is currently the only sizeable employment 
development site north of the river Wye. 

Considerations 

1. ESG Herefordshire Ltd is a joint venture company set up, following Cabinet approval 
on 15

th
 July 2004, by Herefordshire Council and Advantage West Midlands (AWM) to 

coordinate the redevelopment of the 100-acre (40.7 hectares) Edgar Street Grid site 
in Hereford. The Company is managed by a Board of fourteen Directors and a 
company secretary, overseeing the work of a small executive team.  The Council is 
represented on the Board by the Leader and Chief Executive. 

2. The Unitary Development Plan (UDP) and the subsequent Supplementary Planning 
Document (SPD) for the ESG development, informed by the ESG Masterplan, 
provide a robust planning policy and design framework for the overall redevelopment 
of the ESG site.   

3. The ESG Masterplan identifies the creation of a number of different developments 
within the ESG area; the Retail Quarter, Urban Village, Catherine Street area, 
potential University Site and Transport Hub. The creation of these projects will 
require substantial preliminary infrastructure including the relocation of the existing 
Livestock Market, creation of flood mitigation works off site, and a new Link Road 
running from the A49 through to Commercial Road. The proposed location of these 
project areas and supporting infrastructure can be seen in Appendix 2. 

4. The Retail Quarter lies in the south western corner of the ESG area and is the first of 
the redevelopment sites to be brought forward to the market. The site lies 
immediately to the north of the inner ring road that separates the development from 
the City’s historic core. The site incorporates the Hereford Livestock Market and 
associated business premises.  

5. The Urban Village covers a gross area of approx 30 acres primarily within the 
northern element of the ESG site.  The Urban Village is not one site but rather an 
allocation of a number of correlating sites that together will be developed for 
residential purposes.  The site currently includes the Merton Meadow car park, the 
Essex Arms training ground, and numerous private commercial properties including 
the large Jewsons builder’s merchants.  

6. The Link Road is required from a technical transportation viewpoint and will run from 
a location near the current BP petrol station on Edgar Street through to a 
reconfigured Station Approach and accompanying junction.  This preferred line runs 
through land and property within a number of different ownerships. 

7. It is estimated that 35 businesses will be affected by the first phases of development 
on the line of the Link Road and the Livestock Market; there is a need, as far as 
reasonably practicable, for these businesses to be relocated from their current 
location to others within the City.  Further businesses will also be affected as future 

206



phases of the development come forward. The precise number and size of these 
businesses requiring relocation is being formulated on an ongoing basis as certainty 
over development parcels and timescales is clarified.   

8. The developers of the Retail Quarter and the Urban Village have already been 
selected, being Stanhope and Sanctuary respectively. The developers are planning 
and progressing the Retail Quarter and Urban Village developments and together 
with the Council and ESG, will be seeking to acquire by agreement the interests 
needed for the implementation of the Retail Quarter and Urban Village schemes and 
necessary supporting infrastructure. 

9. There are a number of businesses likely to be suitable for relocation to the Land at 
Faraday Road. The Council’s Economic Development Service have commissioned 
Drivers Jonas to produce a report into the relocation needs of the ESG businesses, 
in particular those who will be affected by the Retail Quarter and Link Road projects.  
It is expected that this report will be completed in September 2008. 

Land At Faraday Road 

10. The Land at Faraday Road lies within an area of safeguarded employment land 
under Policy E5 of the Herefordshire Unitary Development Plan, which resists the 
loss of proposed employment land unless there would be substantial benefits to 
residential amenity.  The total area of the plot extends to 4.3 acres; the site is 
cleared, flat and has access through the Westfields Trading Estate. 

11. The site was previously used by Sun Valley as part of its overall food preparation 
operation in Hereford, and was formerly part of the chicken processing plant that 
adjoins the site to the west.   

12. Bovale Limited acquired the site in 2003 and unsuccessfully applied for planning 
permission for a residential care village in May 2006. Bovale appealed against the 
Council's refusal to grant planning permission, and the appeal was subsequently 
dismissed following an inquiry.  However, Bovale is seeking a statutory challenge of 
the Inspector's decision which will be heard on 12th October 2008.  

13. Faraday Road is considered by the Council and ESG Herefordshire Ltd to be 
currently the only sizeable, cleared employment development site with vacant 
possession north of the river of strategic value. Its development in accordance with 
its UDP allocation is considered of key importance. In addition, due to the scarcity of 
suitable land, the Land at Faraday Road is likely to be required for the relocation of a 
number of existing businesses to be acquired as part of the redevelopment of the 
ESG area.   

Council’s Powers of Compulsory Purchase 

14. Under the power to be used to compulsorily acquire the land, S226 Town and 

Country Planning Act 1990 ("TCPA"), the Council as the acquiring authority has the 
power to acquire compulsorily any land in its area if it thinks that the acquisition will 
facilitate the carrying out of development, re-development or improvement on or in 
relation to the land.  

15. It is considered that the development of the Land at Faraday Road in accordance 
with its UDP allocation for employment use is of key importance. The ESG 
redevelopment scheme is also considered of key importance, and this would be 
supported by the redevelopment of the Land at Faraday Road.    

207



Financial Considerations 

16.  There will be a financial implication of acquiring the Land at Faraday Road, either by 
negotiation or via a compulsory purchase order. The preparatory work being 
authorised will include confirming appropriate sources of funding to finance the 
acquisition and this would be progressed and reported on in a subsequent report to 
Cabinet, should the Council be asked to confirm that it will acquire the Land by 
agreement or compulsory purchase order.   

17. Initial discussions have taken place with the District Valuer, to discuss the value 
parameters of the site, and a meeting with the current owner's agent is planned for 
early September 2008.  Depending on the outcome of the meeting, a detailed 
valuation may be progressed. This valuation will then form the basis for the Council’s 
negotiations with the owner of the Land. 

18. A detailed financial model for the costs of acquiring the Land at Faraday Road will be 
prepared as the land acquisition and/or the preparatory steps in relation to any 
compulsory purchase order are pursued, and this will include all legal and 
professional fee costs.  Cabinet will receive a further report on the cost implications 
of acquisition prior to a request for final agreement to acquire the Land or make a 
compulsory purchase order and this further report will include the detailed financial 
model for the acquisition and an assessment of the funding options available to the 
Council and the implications for the Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy. 

Risk Management 

Independent advice has been sought throughout regarding the legal process to be followed. 

Independent valuation advice will also be sought with regard to the value of the Land in 
order to ensure value for money.  

208



Alternative Options 

An alternative option is continuing to await the coming forward of employment proposals 
from the existing landowner. However, the current landowner has shown no willingness to 
progress such proposals and it is considered that a key employment site should not be lost.  

In relation to the ESG relocations, an alternative is to investigate the potential to acquire 
numerous smaller plots of vacant employment land or units as an alternative to acquiring 
one strategic site. However, the businesses would need to agree to relocate to any such 
sites, and currently this Land is considered to be the only sizeable, cleared, employment 
development site with vacant possession north of the river of strategic value. The 
implications of this site not coming forward for employment land for the ESG redevelopment 
would be to reduce the risk of not being able to acquire the required amount of relocation 
land for ESG relocations. The benefits of securing a cleared and serviced site for relocations 
in proximity to the city centre, with vacant possession, north of the river (reduced acquisition 
costs, no demolition costs, creation of new business destination) would not be realised. 

Consultees 

ESG Herefordshire Ltd has been instrumental in the identification of this particular site for 
the relocation of businesses affected by the ESG redevelopment and has been consulted 
throughout. 

No detailed stakeholder or business consultation has occurred to date although as 
mentioned in Point 9 above, the Council are surveying affected ESG businesses as to their 
relocation needs which includes inquiring about preferred relocation sites.  

Appendices 

Appendix  1 Location Map of Faraday Road (Colour copies will be available at the 
   meeting) 

Appendix  2  ESG Projects Location Map  (Colour copies will be available at the 
   meeting) 

 

Background Papers 

None. 

 

209



210



211



212



2
1
3



2
1
4



 

 
 Further information on the subject of this report is available from  

Peter Yates, Planning Policy Manager, on 01432 261952 

  

ESG MASTERPLAN 

PORTFOLIO RESPONSIBILITY: ENVIRONMENT AND STRATEGIC 
HOUSING 

CABINET 11 SEPTEMBER 2008  

 

Wards Affected 

Wards in Hereford City.  

Purpose 

To seek endorsement of the ESG Masterplan as a material consideration in the 
determination of relevant planning applications.  

 

Key Decision  

This is not a key decision.    

Recommendation 

THAT the ESG Masterplan be endorsed as a basis for the ongoing 
development of the ESG area and as a material consideration in the 
determination of relevant planning applications both within and outside the 
ESG area where such applications are of relevance to the ESG proposals.    

Reasons 

To define the status of the ESG Masterplan as a material consideration within the 
planning process.  

Considerations 

1. ESG Herefordshire Ltd have been engaged in the review and finalisation of a 
Masterplan to provide a framework within which the regeneration of the area 
can proceed. Developed on the basis of original proposals in 2004, a draft 
Masterplan was issued in 2007 and subject to wide consultation.   

2. Following consideration of responses, the Masterplan was adopted by the 
ESG Board in May.  A successful public launch was held in early July.  

3. A copy of the Masterplan is available in the Members room for information.  

4. The Masterplan has been developed to take forward UDP policies which 
provide for key aspects of the ESG proposals.  In doing so, it has been 
prepared in full cognisance of the adopted Supplementary Planning 

AGENDA ITEM 8

215



Document for the area, which establishes a design framework.  The UDP, 
SPD and Masterplan have been developed to be complementary.        

5. The Masterplan is a flexible framework for the delivery of the ESG 
regeneration scheme within the context of planning policy. It includes 
significant retail, residential and leisure development and necessary 
infrastructure provision, as envisaged in the UDP. The Masterplan provides 
more detail and develops several areas of new thinking, reflecting the 
experience to date of implementing the overall scheme including the selection 
of partners.  These areas include:  

• emphasis on addressing and improving connectivity between the Retail 
Quarter and the wider city centre; 

• renaming the Civic Quarter as the Catherine Street area, with a wider 
range of city centre uses now proposed, reflecting the more recent 
emphasis on providing public sector ‘back office’ accommodation 
elsewhere; 

• Identification of sites for West Mercia Constabulary, University and 
transport hub; 

• Clearer focus on the Blackfriars Urban Village as a sustainable community 
in the north of the area; 

• A number of other minor variations to scheme details as set out in the 
UDP.  For instance, reflecting concerns over the viability of moving the 
Football Club stadium to the north of the ESG area as suggested in the 
original 2004 proposals and the UDP, the Masterplan provides for its 
redevelopment in situ.   

6. Overall the Masterplan is consistent with and supportive of planning policy, 
providing a sound basis for the implementation of the UDP’s proposals for the 
regeneration of the ESG area.  The Masterplan will thus support both the 
expansion of Hereford city centre and help meet other development needs 
identified in the UDP, as well as contribute to the wider sub-regional role of 
the city envisaged in the Regional Spatial Strategy.  

7. It is now recommended that the Council endorse the masterplan as a material 
consideration within the planning process. As such it will have an 
acknowledged and defined importance in the determination of planning 
applications, whilst not overriding the Council’s established development plan 
policies in the UDP, the SPD and the emerging elements of the Local 
Development Framework. It is worth recording that Inspectors at recent 
planning appeals (Holmer Road) have referred to the draft masterplan and 
given it weight in their deliberations.  

8. Endorsement of the Masterplan in the terms now proposed will underline the 
role of the Masterplan in delivering planning policy, aid in the defence of the 
Council’s planning policies, and complete the package of local policies and 
guidance that will influence and shape the regeneration of the ESG area. 

216



Financial implications 
 
No direct financial implications.   
 

Risk Management 

No specific risks associated with the decision.   
 

Alternative Options 

Not to adopt the Masterplan.    

Consultees 

ESG Herefordshire Ltd 

Background Papers 

ESG Herefordshire Ltd., Masterplan, June 2008.  

217



218


	Agenda
	
	FIRE-BROCK

	3 MINUTES
	4 Youth Justice Plan 2008/09
	YouthJusticePlan2008V 4

	5 Review of Service Delivery Partnership
	SDR Phase2  final report cabinet 080911 amended 0809011
	SDR Phase 2 rpt Appendix A scope of contracts - for Cabinet 080911
	SDR Phase 2 rpt Appendix B SDR Model Descriptions version 0 3 5 6 2008 for Cabinet 080911
	SDR Phase 2 rpt Appendix C Method of estimating potential savings - for Cabinet 080911
	SDR Phase 2 rpt Appendix D Amey Statement Statement for Cabinet 080911
	SDR Phase 2 rpt Appendix D Amey Statement Appendix 1 - Partnerships for Cabinet 080911
	SDR Phase 2 rpt Appendix D Amey Statement Appendix 2 E and D Policy for Cabinet 080911

	6 Minster College Building Schools for the Future One School Pathfinder Œ Award of Contract
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3

	7 Land at Faraday Road, Hereford
	Appendix 1 - Land at Faraday Road1
	DelPlanFloodMitigationlabelled3

	8 ESG Masterplan

